AGENDA

9:30
10:30
10:40

ADMINISTRATIVE
ITEMS

ACTION ITEMS
WITHDRAWN

FAIRFAX COUNTY REVISED
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
October 7, 2014

Presentations
Presentation of the Volunteer Fire and Rescue Service Awards

Items Presented by the County Executive

Streets into the Secondary System (Mason, Mount Vernon,
Springfield and Sully Districts)

Extension of Review Periods for 2232 Review Applications
(Providence, Mason and Springfield Districts)

Authorization to Advertise a Public Hearing to Amend a Deed of
Lease with McLean Youth Athletics of Board-Owned Property at
1311 Spring Hill Road (Holladay Field)(Dranesville District)

Authorization to Advertise a Public Hearing on a Proposal to
Prohibit Through Truck Traffic on Spring Valley Drive, Mitchell
Street, Clinton Road and Canard Street (Mason District)

Approval of a Regional Joint Action Agreement for the
Northern Virginia Long-Term Care Ombudsman Program

Approval of an Agreement Between the Town of Vienna and
Fairfax County to Design and Construct a Stream Restoration
Project on Hunters Branch (Hunter Mill District)

Approval of a Resolution to Authorize the Extension of General
Obligation Bonds

Approval of Resolution Authorizing Execution of a Project
Agreement with the Virginia Department of Transportation for the
Preliminary Engineering, Design, and Construction of Various
Intersection Improvements Throughout the County (Hunter Mill,
Mason, Providence, and Lee Districts)

Approval of First Amendment to the Columbia Pike Streetcar
Agreement Between Fairfax and Arlington Counties (Mason
District)



10:50

11:40

4:00

4:00

4:00

4:00

4:30

ACTION ITEMS
(Continued)

CONSIDERATION
ITEMS

INFORMATION
ITEMS

PUBLIC HEARINGS

FAIRFAX COUNTY REVISED

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

October 7, 2014

Testimony for Public Hearing on Commonwealth of Virginia’s
Draft Revised Fiscal Year 2015-2020 Six-Year Improvement
Program and Upcoming FY 2016 — 2021 Six-Year Improvement
Program for Interstate, Primary, and Urban Highway Systems and
Public Transportation

Approval of Comments to the Virginia Department of
Environmental Quality on Proposed Federal Rule 111(d)
Regarding Emissions Reductions from Fossil-Fueled Power
Plants

2014 Virginia Association of Counties Annual Meeting

Fairfax County Transportation Status Report
Matters Presented by Board Members

Closed Session

Public Hearing on a Proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment
Re: Food Trucks

Public Hearing on SE 2014-SU-023 (Meenakshi Verma
Stringfellow Home Child Care) to Permit a Home Child Care
Facility (Sully District)

Public Hearing to Consider Adopting an Ordinance to Establish
the Inova Woodburn Temporary Residential Permit Parking
District, District T3 (Mason District)

Public Hearing to Consider Adopting an Ordinance Expanding
the Dunn Loring Residential Permit Parking District, District 3
(Providence District)

Public Hearing on Amendments to the Code of the County of
Fairfax, Chapter 82, Motor Vehicles and Traffic, Section 82-11-
1, Notice of Removal of Motor Vehicle



Fairfax County, Virginia

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
AGENDA

Tuesday
October 7, 2014

9:30 a.m.

PRESENTATIONS

RECOGNITIONS

e CERTIFICATE - To recognize the International Association of Firefighters Local
2068 for its success during the 2014 Fill the Boot Campaign. Requested by
Chairman Bulova.

e RESOLUTION — To recognize the Stroke Comeback Center for its 10th
anniversary. Requested by Supervisor Gross.

¢ RESOLUTION — To recognize the Herndon Fortnightly Club for its 125th
anniversary. Requested by Supervisor Foust.

¢ RESOLUTION — To recognize John Payne for his years of service to Fairfax
County. Requested by Chairman Bulova.

e RESOLUTION — To recognize Visit Fairfax and White+Partners for the success
of the Historical Figures campaign. Requested by Supervisor Cook.

DESIGNATIONS

¢ PROCLAMATION - To designate October 5-11, 2014, as Fire Prevention Week
in Fairfax County. Requested by Chairman Bulova.

— more —



Board Agenda Item
October 7, 2014

e PROCLAMATION — To designate October 25, 2014, as VolunteerFest Day in
Fairfax County. Requested by Chairman Bulova.

STAFF:
Tony Castrilli, Director, Office of Public Affairs
Bill Miller, Office of Public Affairs



Board Agenda Item
October 7, 2014

10:30 a.m.

Presentation of the Volunteer Fire and Rescue Service Awards

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:
None. Report delivered under separate cover.

PRESENTED BY:
Shawn Stokes, Secretary of the Volunteer Fire Commission and, President of the Dunn
Loring Volunteer Fire and Rescue Department




Board Agenda Item
October 7, 2014

10:40 a.m.

Iltems Presented by the County Executive




Board Agenda Item
October 7, 2014

ADMINISTRATIVE — 1

Streets into the Secondary System (Mason, Mount Vernon, Springfield and Sully

Districts)

ISSUE:
Board approval of streets to be accepted into the State Secondary System.

RECOMMENDATION:
The County Executive recommends that the street(s) listed below be added to the State
Secondary System.

Subdivision District Street

Word of Life Assembly of God Mason Backlick Road (Route 617)
(Additional Right-of-Way (ROW) Only)

Edsall Road (Route 648)
(Additional ROW Only)

BT Property, LLC Mt.Vernon  Alban Road (Route 790)
(UPS in Newington) (Additional ROW Only)
Colchester Land Company Mt. Vernon Furnace Road (Route 611)
(Gunston Commerce Center (Additional ROW Only)
Landbay D)

Furnace Road (Route 611)
(Additional ROW Only)

Michael & Marilyn Giampa Mt. Vernon Gunston Road (Route 242)
(Barnes Property) (Additional ROW Only)

Old Colchester Road (Route 611)
(Additional ROW Only)

Lakewood Hills Section 10 Springfield Sabine Hall Road
Phase 1
Castle Hill Road
Red Hill Drive

Berry Hill Court



Board Agenda Item
October 7, 2014

Subdivision District Street
Lakewood Hills Section 10 Springfield Castle Hill Road
Phase 2

Red Hill Drive

Carters Grove Court

Fairfax County Parkway (Route 286)
(Additional ROW Only)

Huntsman Boulevard (Route 4521)
(Additional ROW Only)
Everwood Sully Kenna Court

TIMING:
Routine.

BACKGROUND:
Inspection has been made of these streets, and they are recommended for acceptance
into the State Secondary System.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None.

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:
Attachment 1 — Street Acceptance Forms

STAFF:

Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive

James W. Patteson, Director, Department of Public Works and Environmental
Services (DPWES)

Audrey Clark, Acting Director, Land Development Services, DPWES




ATTACHMENT 1 - REVISED

Street Acceptance Form For Board Of Supervisors Resolution - June 2005

FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS |[VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION - OFFICE
FAIRFAX, VA OF THE ENGINEERING MANAGER, FAIRFAX, VIRGINIA

: . | REQUEST TO THE ENGINEERING MANAGER, FOR INCLUSION OF CERTAIN
Pursuant to the request to inspect certain | o o 0 e BUANEE RS NEIASER VIRGINIA SECONDARY ROAD
streets in the subdivisions as described, the | system
Virginia Department of Transportation has

. . PLAN NUMBER: 3641-5P-03
made inspections, and recommends that same [ SUBDIVISION PLAT NAME: word of e Assermbly of God
 be included in the secondary system.

COUNTY MAGISTERIAL DISTRICT: m

LOCATION -
STREET NAME 5
Zz g
Backlick Road (Route 617) , . _
(Additional Right-of-Way Only) 342'S CL Matthew Place (Route 2469) 531'S to End of Dedication 0.0
Edsall Road (Route 648) ! " , T e e
(Additional Right-of-Way Only) 360' W CL Dublin Avenue (Route 2690) 727'W to End of Dedication 0.0
i : TOTALS: | 00
Backlick Road: 4' Concrete Sidewalk on East Side to be maintained by VDOT.
Edsall Road: 4’ Concrete Sidewalk on North Side to be maintained by VDOT.



aschau
Typewritten Text

aschau
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 1 - REVISED

aschau
Typewritten Text


Street Acceptance Form For Board Of Supervisors Resolution - June 2005

FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
FAIRFAX, VA

Pursuant to the request to inspect certain
streets in the subdivisions as described, the
Virginia Department of Transportation has
‘made inspections, and recommends that same
1 be included in the secondary system.

STREET NAME

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION - OFFICE
OF THE ENGINEERING MANAGER, FAIRFAX, VIRGINIA

REQUEST TO THE ENGINEERING MANAGER, FOR INCLUSION OF CERTAIN

SUBDIVISION STREETS INTO THE STATE OF VIRGINIA SECONDARY ROAD
SYSTEM.

PLAN NUMBER: 0187-5P-002

' SUBDIVISION PLAT NAME: 5T property, LLC (UPS Newington)

COUNTY MAGISTERIAL DISTRICT: mountv,

ernon

JSE ON

LOCATION

FROM TO

Alban Road (Route 790)
(Additional Right-of-Way Only)

1,940' SW CL Boudinot Drive (Route 4502)

966' SW to End of Dedication

OTES i
5' Concrete Sidewalk on West Side to be maintained by VDOT,

TOTALS: | 00

10




Street Acceptance Form For Board Of Supervisors Resolution - June 2005

FAIRFAX, VA

FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

|Pursuant to the request to inspect certain
streets in the subdivisions as described, the
Virginia Department of Transportation has
made inspections, and recommends that same
be included in the secondary system.

SYSTEM.

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION - OFFICE
OF THE ENGINEERING MANAGER, FAIRFAX, VIRGINIA

REQUEST TO THE ENGINEERING MANAGER, FOR.INCLUSION OF CERTAIN
SUBDIVISION STREETS INTO THE STATE OF VIRGINIA SECONDARY ROAD

PLAN NUMBER: 9754-5p-011

SUBDIVISION PLAT NAME: colchester Land Co. (Gunston Commerce Center Landbay D)

e

COUNTY MAGISTERIAL DISTRICT: Mount Vernon

i

Asphalt Trail on North Side to be maintained by Fairfax County.

LOCATION -
STREET NAME 6 w
FROM TO & 2
- =
Furnace Road (Route 611) , . . , s
(Additional Right-of-Way Only) 2,000" N CL Richmond Highway (Route 1) 481 NE to End of Dedication 0.0
Furnace Road (Route 611) o . . . L
(Additional Right-of-Way Only) 3,990 NE CL. Richmond Highway (Route 1) 797" NE to End of Dedication 0.0
OTES "TOTALS: | 00

11




Street Acceptance Form For Board Of Supervisors Resolution - June 2005

FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
FAIRFAX, VA

Pursuant to the request to inspect certain
streets in the subdivisions as described, the
Virginia Department of Transportation has

be included in the secondary system.

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION - OFFICE
OF THE ENGINEERING MANAGER, FAIRFAX, VIRGINIA

REQUEST TO THE ENGINEERING MANAGER, FOR INCLUSION OF CERTAIN

SUBDIVISION STREETS INTO THE STATE OF VIRGINIA SECONDARY ROAD
SYSTEM.

) N 1 PLAN NUMBER: 8393-sD-001
made inspections, and recommends that same

'SUBDIVISION-PLAT NAME: Michael & Marilyn Giampa (Barnes Property)

COUNTY MAGISTERIAL DISTRICT: m

LOCATION -
STREET NAME 5w
< 1
FROM TO 4 E

Gunston Road (Route 242) . . o

(Additional Right-of-Way Only) 37" N CL Old Colchester Road (Route 611} 87’ N to End of Dedication . 0.0

Old Colchester Road (Route 611) \ , ..

(Additional Right-of-Way Only) 45' SW CL Gunston Road (Route 242) 90' SW to End of Dedication 0.0
NOTEST: = = _TOTALS: | o0
Gunston Road: 10’ Asphalt Trail on West Side to be maintained by Fairfax County.

Old Colchester Road: 10" Asphalt Trail on North Side to be maintained by Fairfax County.

12



Street Acceptance Form For Board Of Supérvisors Resolution - June 2005

| FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

FAIRFAX, VA

'Pursuant to the request to inspect certain
Streets in the subdivisions as described, the
Virginia Department of Transportation has
made inspections, and recommends that same
be included in the secondary system.

SYSTEM.

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION - OFFICE
OF THE ENGINEERING MANAGER, FAIRFAX, VIRGINIA

REQUEST TO THE ENGINEERING MANAGER, FOR INCLUSION OF CERTAIN
SUBDIVISION STREETS INTO THE STATE OF VIRGINIA SECONDARY ROAD

PLAN NUMBER: 5466-SD-001

| SUBDIVISION PLAT NAME: Lakewood Hills Section 10 Phase 1

COUNTY MAGISTERIAL DISTRICT: Springfield

=0 C SE

LOCATION -
STREET NAME 5w
=
FROM TO &2
. CL Huntsman Boulevard (Route 4521) - ‘ . "
Sabine Hall Road 520' NE CL Wagon Trail Lane (Route 6865) 286' W to CL Castle Hill Road 0.05
. CL Sabine Hall Road - 146" N to Section Line and
Castle Hill Road 286'W CL Huntsman Boulevard (Route 4521) 857" SWto CL Red Hill Drive  Total- = 1,003 019
L CL Castle Hill Road - 287' SWto End of Cul-de-Sac and .
Red Hill Drive 857" SW CL Sabine Hall Road 467" NE to Section Line Total = 754' 0.14
. CL Red Hill Drive - .
Berry Hill Court 300" NE CL Castle Hill Road -506" SE to End of Cul-de-Sac 0.10
NOTES = o TOTALS: | 048
Sabine Hall Road: 4' Conc

rete Sidewalk on Both Sides to be maintained by VDOT.

Castle Hill Road: 4' Concrete Sidewalk on Both Sides to be maintained by VDOT.

| Red Hill Drive: 4' Concrete Sidewalk on Both Sides to be maintained by VDOT.

Berry Hill Court: 4' Concrete Sidewalk on Both Sides to be maintained by VDOT.

13



Street Acceptance Form For Board Of Supervisors Resolution - June 2005

FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS | VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION - OFFICE
FAIRFAX, VA OF THE ENGINEERING MANAGER, FAIRFAX, VIRGINIA

‘Pursuant to the request to inspect certain REQUEST TO THE ENGINEERING MANAGER, FOR INCLUSION OF CERTAIN

SUBDIVISION STREETS INTO THE STATE OF VIRGINIA SECONDARY ROAD
streets in the subdivisions as described, the | gystem.

Virginia Department of Transportation has [FIAN NUMBER: mrccsncs
made inspections, and recommends that same [SUBDIVISION PLAT NAME: Larewood 1l section 10 Proce 2

be included in the secondary system. COUNTY MAGISTERIAL DISTRICT: springfield

| LOCATION -
STREET NAME ' O u
Z
FROM TO &2
Castle Hill Road ’ Exiéting Castle Hill Road - 146' NW CL Sabine Hall Road | 836' NW to CL Red Hill Drive 0.16
Red Hill Drive Existing Red Hill Drive - 167' NE CL.Berry Hill Court 1,004' NEto End of Cul-de-Sac 0.19
Carters Grove Court CL Castle Hill Road - 648' NW CL Sabine Hall Road 314' NE to End of Cul-de-Sac , 0.06
Fairfax County Parkway (Route 286) . - o
(Additional Right-of-Way Only) . 35'W CL Huntsman Boulevard (Rogte 4521) ) 590' W to End of Dedication 0.0
Huntsman Boulevard (Route 4521) | . . N ‘
(Additional Right-of-Way Only) . 60' S CL Fairfax County Parkway (Route 286) 445' S to End of Dedication 0.0
ESHEI R e S T TOTALS: | 04
Castle Hill Road 4 Concrete Sidewalk on Both Sides to be maintained by VDOT. ' ' '
Red Hill Drive: 4' Concrete Sidewalk on Both Sides to be maintained by.VDOT.
Carters Grove Court: 4' Concrete Sidewalk on Both Sides to be maintained by VDOT.

14



Street Acceptance Form For Board Of Supervisors Resolution - June 2005

FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
FAIRFAX, VA

| Pursuant to the request to mspect certain
streets in the subdivisions as described, the
Virginia Department of Transportation has

be included in the secondary system

STREET NAME

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION - OFFICE

OF THE ENGINEERING MANAGER, FAIRFAX, VIRGINIA

 REQUEST TO THE ENGINEERING ‘MANAGER, FOR INCLUSION OF CERTAIN

" SUBDIVISION STREETS INTO THE STATE OF VIRGINIA SECONDARY ROAD
| SYSTEM.

made inspections, and recommends that same

PLAN NUMBER: 6452-5D-002

‘SUBDIVISION PLAT NAME: Everwood

COUNTY'MAGISTERIAL DISTRICT: sully

LOCATION

FROM

TO

LENGTH
MILE

CL Stream Valley Drive (Route 7989) -
Kenna Court 739" NW CL Stringfellow Road (Route 645)

551' N to End of Cul-de-Sac

(=]

.10

MDA B =
5' Concrete Sidewalk on Both Sides to be maintained by VDOT.

TOTALS:

0.10

15



Board Agenda Item
October 7, 2014

ADMINISTRATIVE - 2

Extension of Review Periods for 2232 Review Applications (Providence, Mason and
Springdfield Districts)

ISSUE:
Extension of the review periods for specific 2232 Review applications to ensure
compliance with the review requirements of Section 15.2-2232 of the Code of Virginia.

RECOMMENDATION:

The County Executive recommends that the Board extend the review periods for the
following applications: FS-P14-25 to December 19, 2014, FS-M14-29 to December 20,
2014, FS-P14-27 to December 25, 2014, and FSA-Y00-44-2 to December 26, 2014.

TIMING:
Board action is required on October 7, 2014, to extend the review periods of the
applications noted above before their expirations.

BACKGROUND:

Subsection F of Section 15.2-2232 of the Code of Virginia states: “Failure of the
commission to act on any such application for a telecommunications facility under
subsection A submitted on or after July 1, 1998, within ninety days of such submission
shall be deemed approval of the application by the commission unless the governing
body has authorized an extension of time for consideration or the applicant has agreed to
an extension of time. The governing body may extend the time required for action by the
local commission by no more than sixty additional days. If the commission has not acted
on the application by the end of the extension, or by the end of such longer period as
may be agreed to by the applicant, the application is deemed approved by the
commission.”

The Board should extend the review period for applications FS-P14-25, which was
accepted for review by the Department of Planning and Zoning (DPZ) on July 22, 2014,
FS-M14-29 accepted on July 23, 2014, FS-P14-27 accepted on July 28, 2014, and FSA-
Y00-44-2, accepted on July 29, 2014. These applications are for a telecommunications
facility and thus subject to the State Code provision that the Board may extend the time
required for the Planning Commission to act on these applications by no more than sixty
additional days.

The review periods for the following applications should be extended:

FS-P14-25 Verizon Wireless

16



Board Agenda Item
October 7, 2014

Installation of Telecommunications Facility — Building Rooftop
1651 Old Meadow Road

McLean, Virginia

Providence District

Extend to December 19, 2014

FS-M14-29 AT&T
Installation of Telecommunications Facility — Existing Flagpole
5100 Backlick Road
Annandale, Virginia
Mason District
Extend to December 20, 2014

FS-P14-27 Verizon Wireless
Installation of Telecommunications Facility — Stealth Chimney
7501 Leesburg Pike
Falls Church, Virginia
Providence District
Extend to December 25, 2014

FSA-Y00-44-2 Sirius XM Radio
Modification to Telecommunications Facility — Building Rooftop
4000 Legato Road
Fairfax, Virginia
Springfield District
Extend to December 26, 2014

The need for the full time of these extensions may not be necessary, and is not intended
to set a date for final action.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:
None

STAFF:

Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive

Fred R. Selden, Director, Department of Planning and Zoning, DPZ

Chris B. Caperton, Chief, Facilities Planning Branch, Planning Division, DPZ

Douglas W. Hansen, Senior Planner, Facilities Planning Branch, Planning Division, DPZ

17



Board Agenda Item REVISED
October 7, 2014

ADMINISTRATIVE - 3

Authorization to Advertise a Public Hearing to Amend a Deed of Lease with McLean
Youth Athletics of Board-Owned Property at 13191 Spring Hill Road (Holladay Field)
(Dranesville District)

ISSUE:

Authorization from the Board of Supervisors is requested to advertise a public hearing
to amend a Deed of Lease with McLean Youth Athletics (MYA) for Board-owned
property at 13161 Spring Hill Road.

RECOMMENDATION:
The County Executive recommends that the Board authorize a public hearing to amend
a Deed of Lease with MYA for Board-owned property at 13181 Spring Hill Road.

TIMING:
Board action is requested on October 7, 2014, to provide sufficient time to advertise the
proposed public hearing on November 18, 2014, at 5:00 p.m.

BACKGROUND:

The Board of Supervisors is the owner of a five-acre parcel located at 13161 Spring Hill
Road, McLean, Virginia (Tax Map Number 0291 20 6605C) and situated next to Spring
Hill Elementary School. The property (informally referred to as Holladay Field) contains
a full-sized athletic field and practice area.

On December 13, 2001, the County entered into a Deed of Lease (“Lease”) with
McLean Youth Incorporated (MY1), the predecessor to MYA and hereinafter referred to
as MYA, in which the County agreed to lease Holladay Field to MYA for a five-year term
beginning on January 1, 2002 to December 31, 2006. In exchange, MYA was permitted
to make improvements to the field and accepted responsibility for maintenance. During
the term of this Lease, MYA has installed hybrid Bermuda grass on the site, maintained
the field during the athletic seasons, and winterized the field before the off-season.
Either party possessed the right to end the agreement with 120 days’ notice. MYA has
been a year-to-year periodic tenant since the original lease expiration date of December
31, 2006.

MYA has requested a few changes to the Deed of Lease to protect its investments in
the field and to better track the athletic calendar. The revised term will have a
retroactive start date of July 1, 2014, and will end .on June 30, 2015. MYA has
explained that a new termination date of June 30™ would correspond with the end of its
spring season. The term will be renewed annually unless either party provides notice of
nonrenewal by May 1% of any given year the Lease remains in effect.

18



Board Agenda Item
October 7, 2014

MYA has also proposed to amend the Deed of Lease to delete the existing 120-day
termination provision and replace it with a provision that authorizes either party to
terminate the Deed of Lease, effectlve December 31%, by giving written notice of
termination on or before November 1% of the same year. That would give MYA ample
time to remove goals, signs, bleachers, and irrigation system from the site before the
end of the lease term. Pursuant to the Board’s field allocation policy, other recreational
groups will continue to be allowed to use twenty (20) percent of available field time at
the Holladay Field.

In accordance with Board Policy and Section 15.2-1800 of the Code of Virginia, a public
hearing is required prior to any lease or other disposition of Board-owned property.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:
Attachment 1 — Location Map
Attachment 2 — Draft Lease Amendment
Attachment 3 — Original Lease

STAFF:

David J. Molchany, Deputy County Executive

Christopher A. Leonard, Director, Neighborhood and Community Services
Jose A. Comayagua, Jr., Director, Facilities Management Department

19



Board-Owned Property at
1311 Spring Hill Road,
Mcl.ean

County Tax Map No.
29-1 ((20)) Parcel C

— = - - T - —T
z . n.
2 = . . gt 0 155 310 620 Feet
. o
- . i 5 ] e
- L] 5 [ fp g sl 5 |
- T . = e i
4 . Fex " e o & L e N
x = LI ) - £n o AP, L] § \ \ﬁ\/ o B /\/\/
- S 1% é =i \/\/_.\/_\/ o e » k
by TN i - 5 7 1/ g 7 & ‘.,r’&
e = P i e ;F_‘-t
L ey e \/? 5
. i N
Bl arilg il =
B L Cnuidle |8, e
ma3g ) £= Y oo )
3 = tad el a
A . * h e at CUTATI

20


aschau
Typewritten Text
REVISED - Attachment 1


Attachment #2

AMENDMENT TO DEED OF LEASE

THIS AMENDMENT to Deed of Lease is made and entered into this  day of
___ 2014, by and between the BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF FAIRFAX COUNTY,
VIRGINIA ("Landlord"), and McLEAN YOUTH, INCORPORATED, now known as
McLEAN YOUTH ATHLETICS, INC. ("MYA" or “Tenant”); and

WHEREAS on December 13, 2001, MYA entered into a Deed of Lease with the
Landlord ("Deed of Lease"), which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference into
this Amendment to Deed of Lease; and

WHEREAS paragraph 16 of the Deed of Lease provides that it may be amended
or modified by a writing signed by both parties; and

WHEREAS the Landlord and MYA wish to amend the Deed of Lease through
this writing to adjust the term of lease to run from the 1st day of July, 2014, to the
30th day of June, 2015, rather than from January 1st to December 31st; and

WHEREAS the Landlord and MYA wish to amend the Deed of Lease through
this writing to delete the 60-day notice of non-renewal provision in paragraph 2 of the
Deed of Lease, and to provide instead that the Deed of Lease shall continue to
automatically renew annually unless notice to the contrary is given by either party on or
before May 1st of any given year that the Deed of Lease remains in effect; and

WHEREAS the Landlord and MYA further wish to amend the Deed of Lease
through this writing to delete the existing termination provision in paragraph 3 of the
Deed of Lease and replace it with a provision that authorizes either party to terminate the
Deed of Lease, effective December 31st, by giving written notice of termination on or

before November 1st of the same year; and

21




WHEREAS McLean Youth, Incorporated, by Articles of Amendment admitted
to record by the Clerk of the State Corporation Commission on May 21, 2004, changed
the name of its corporation from McLean Youth, Incorporated, to McLean Youth
Athletics, Inc.; now, therefore,

WITNESSETH:

1. The Landlord and MYA hereby mutually agree that effective July 1, 2014,
the term of the Deed of Lease shall no longer run annually from January 1st to December
31st, but shall be amended to begin on the 1st day of July, 2014, and end at midnight on
the 30th day of June, 2015, unless sooner terminated pursuant to the termination
prévision in paragraph 2 below. The Deed of Lease shall continue to automatically
renew annually unless written notice to the contrary is given by either party on or before
May 1st of any given year the lease remains in effect. In the event either party provides
timely, written notice of non-renewal, the Deed of Lease shall become null and void at
the end of the effective term.

2. The Landlord and MYA further mutually agree that either party may
terminate the lease, within any given year the lease is in effect, by giving written notice
of termination on or before November 1st. If either party provides such timely, written
notice of ’termination, the Lease shall terminate at midnight on December 31st of the
same year.

3. The Landlord and MYA hereby mutually agree that, by virtue of McLean
Youth, Incorporated, officially changing its name to McLean Youth Athletics, Inc., the
Deed of Lease and this Amendment shall be by and between the Landlord and McLean

Youth Athletics, Inc.

22




4. Except to the extent modified herein, all of the other terms and conditions
of the Deed of Lease dated December 13, 2001, shall continue in full force and effect
between the Landlord and MYA.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be

executed on the date first above written.

WITNESS: THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
OF FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA

By:

County Executive

McLEAN YOUTH ATHLETICS, INC.

By:

23



Attachment #3

’ DEED OF LEASE

A
THIS DEED OF LEASE made this / 3 f/day of [&éﬁh 72001,

by and between the BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF FAIRFAX COUNT Y, VIRGINIA
(“Landlord”), and the MCLEAN YOUTH INCORPORATED (“MYI” or “Tenant™),
cach a “Party” and collectively, the “Parties”.

WITNESSETH:

1. PREMISES: Landlord hereby leases to Tenant a portion of the
property identified by Tax Map No. 29-1-0020 Parcel C which is shown on the attached
Exhibits A& B (the “Premises”). Landlord represents and warrants that it is the owner of
the Premises, located at 1301 Spring Hill Road in McLean, Virginia,

2. TERM: This Lease is hereby granted for a term of five years
beginning on the lst day of January, 2002, and ending at midnight on the 31st day of
December, 2006, unless sooner terminated pursuant to Paragraph 3. The Landlord and
the Tenant agree that this Lease shall be automatically renewed annually unless notice to
the contrary is given by either party 60 days prior to the end of the current term, or any
anmual lease renewal period, and in this event, the Lease shall become null and void at the
end of the effective term. If the Lease is automatically renewed then all covenants,
conditions, and terms will remain the same except as may otherwise be agreed by the
parties pursuant to paragraph 16.

3. TERMINATION: This Lease may be terminated at any time, by
either party, upon 120 days prior written notice. Provided however, if the Landlord
invokes this provision prior to the third anniversary of the start of the term (prior to
January 1, 2005), Landlord, during the following fiscal year budget appropriations, shall
request the Board of Supervisors refund Tenant the costs of unamortized site
improvements undertaken under this lease which are neither removable nor recoupable

by Tenant.

4, CONSIDERATION: In consideration of the Tenant’s use of the
subject Premises, Tenant will provide sports-related activities to the community and
maintain Premises in a manner satisfactory to the Landlord.

5. USE: The Premises are leased to the Tenant for the Tenant’s use
of the field for games, practices, clinics and other activities consistent with youth sports
or community-related activities. The Premises shall not be sublet or assigned without the
prior written consent of the Landlord.

Page 1 of 5

24




The Tenant understands the allocation of these fields will be counted as part of its
regularly assigned fields and adjustments will be made to any future Fairfax County field
allocations in accordance with the Landlord’s Department of Community and Recreation
Services field allocation policy. '

6. CARE OF THE PREMISES: The Premises are leased “as is”
and are to be returned to the Landlord at the expiration of this Lease in as good condition
as received. Subject to the terms of this Paragraph 6, Tenant shall have the right to make
improvements to the Premises and the Landlord reserves the right to require the Tenant,
upon the termination of the Lease, to restore the Premises to its condition as of the
commencement date of the Lease term at the Tenant’s expense, including, but not limited
to, the removal of any improvements made by Tenant or Landlord in Tenant’s stead
pursuant to the terms of this Lease, and the grading and reseeding or resodding of the
Premises subject to the provisions of Paragraph 3 of this Lease. The Tenant shall assume
all utility expenses directly attributable to the Premises, and will pay all such final utility
bills upon the termination of the Lease. The Tenant shall keep the Premises neat and
clean and free from nuisances and hazards at all times during the term of the Lease.

The Tenant shall not make any modifications or alterations to the Premises without the
prior written consent of the Landlord which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.
The Tenant shall submit copies of all plans, specifications, and other documentation
describing any proposed modifications or alterations to the Landlord for review and
approval. The Tenant is responsible for securing all permits and governmental approvals
required in cormection with the proposed use of the Premises.

All requests to perform amy modifications or alterations to the Premises which will
require that the field be taken out of service for an entire season shall be submitted to the
Landlord prior to June 1% for the fall season and January 1% for the spring season of any
given year that this lease remains in effect.

7. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR: The Tenant shall be
responsible for all maintenance (including grass seeding if needed), grass cutting and
repairs, including the maintenance and repair of all improvements located on the
Premises or placed on the Premises in accordance with this Lease. The Tenant shall
notify the Landlord of any period during which the Premises will not be available for use
due to maintenance 30 days in advance of the work.

8. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

Liability for Damage to Personal Property and Persons: All personal property of the
Tenant (including the personal property of its employees, business invitees, subtenants,
customers, clients, agents, family members, guests or trespassers, etc), in and on said
Premises, shall be and remain at the sole risk of the Tenant, and Landlord shall not be
liable to them for any damage to, or loss of, such personal property arising from any act
of any other persons. The Landlord and its officials, employees, volunteers, and agents
shall not be liable for any personal injury to the Tenant (including their employees,

Page 2 of 5

25




business invitees, subtenants, customers, clients, agents, family members, guests or
trespassers, etc.) from the use, occupancy and condition of the Premises. Provided
however, that nothing in this provision shall either take from or add to the rights of any
individual, organization or governmental entity under the laws of the Commonwealth of

Virginia.

Liability Insurance: During the Lease Term, the Tenant will maintain a policy of
commercial general liability insurance insuring the Landlord and Tenant against liability
arising out of the ownership, use, occupancy, or maintenance of the Premises. The
insurance will be maintained for personal injury and property damage liability, adequate
to protect the Landlord against liability for injury or death or any person in connection
with the use, operation and condition of the Premises, in an amount of not less than ONE
MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) occurrence/aggregate. The limits of the insurance
will not limit the liability of the Tenant. If the Tenant fails to maintain the required
insurance the Landlord may, but does not have to, maintain the insurance at the Tenant’s
expense. The policy shall expressly provide that it is not subject to invalidation of the
Landlord’s interest by reason of any act or omission on the part of the Tenant.

Tenant’s Insurance Policies: Insurance carried by the Tenant will be with companies
reasonably acceptable to the Landlord. The Tenant will deliver to the Landlord a
certificate evidencing the existence and amounts of the insurance within thirty (30) days
of the execution of this Lease. No policy shall be cancelable or subject to reduction of
coverage or other modification except after sixty (60) days’ prior written notice to the
Landlord. Tenant shall, at least 60 days prior to the expiration of the policies, furnish the
Landlord with renewals or “binders” for the policies, or Landlord may order the required
insurance and charge the cost to the Tenants.

The Tenant will not do anything or permit anything to be done or any hazardous
condition to exist (“Increased Risk”) which shall invalidate or cause the cancellation of
the insurance policies carried by the Tenant. If the Tenant comumits, allows or permits
any Increased Risk which causes an increase in the cost of insurance policies, then
Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for additional premiums attributable to any act,
omission or operation of Tenant causing the increase in the premiums. Payment of
additional premiums will not excuse Tenant from terminating or removing the Increased
Risk unless Landlord agrees in writing. Absent agreement, Tenant shall promptly
terminate or remove the Increased Risk.

The Landlord shall be named as an “additional insured” on the commercial general
liability policy and it shall be stated on the Insurance Certificate that this coverage “is
primary to all other coverage the Landlord may possess.”

9. INDEMNIFICATION: The Tenant hereby agrees to indemnify

and hold harmless the Landlord, its officers, agents and all employees and volunteers,
from any and all claims for bodily injuries and personal injuries to the public, including

cost of investigation, all expenses of litigation, including reasonable attorney fees and the

cost of appeals arising out of any claims or suits because of the Tenant, including his

Page 3 of 5

26




agents, servants, employees, volunteers, invitees, guests or trespassets arising from the
use, occupancy and condition of the Premises.

10. RESTORATION: Upon the termination of this Lease, the Tenant
shall vacate the Premises and shall remove all personal property and improvements from
the Premises at the Landlord’s option. If the Tenant fails to vacate the Premises, and, if
required by the Landlord, fails to remove any improvements and restore the Premises to
its condition as of the commencement date of the Lease term by the date of the
termination of this Lease, the Landlord shall have the immediate right to enter upon and
take possession of the Premises, to remove any and all personal property of the Tenant
and to restore the Premises to its condition as of the commencement date of the Lease
term, and the Tenant shall be liable for all costs and fees reasonably incurred by the
Landlord in connection therewith, including but not limited to all costs and attorney’s
fees incurred to enforce the Tenant’s obli gations hereunder.

11. BREACH OF LEASE: If the Tenant uses the Premises for any
other purpose than herein stated, or fails to maintain the Premises in the condition herein
specified, or otherwise is in breach of any provision of this Lease, and such act or breach
remains uncured more than thirty (30) days (or such longer period as reasonably
required) after Tenant’s receipt of written notice from Landlord of such act or breach,
then such act or breach shall constitute a violation of this Lease, in which case the
Landlord hereby reserves the right to terminate this Lease, and is hereby expressly given
the right to enter the Premises and remove any and all belongings and property of the
Tenant, and thereby repossess the Premises without let or hindrance or any right of
damage against Landlord by said Tenant or anyone occupying the Premises, and shall
have all rights and remedies provided in paragraph 12 of this Lease.

: 12.  OTHER REMEDIES: It is also understood and agreed that in
case of violation of this agreement in any way by a Party, the other Party hereby reserves
and hereby is expressly given the right to take any other action allowable by law for the
enforcement of this agreement. '

13. ACCESS TO PREMISES: The Tenant hereby grants to the
Landlord, its agents, employees, contractors or representatives the right to enter on the
Premises at any time provided that such entry does not prevent or impair Tenant from
using the Premises for the purposes agreed herein.

14. PARKING: Premises has no on-site parking. Landlord is not
responsible for obtaining and/or providing on-site or off-site parking for Tenant.

15. NOTICES: All notices, payments, demands and requests
hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been properly given when

received by hand delivery or by United States First Class, Registered or Certified Mail,
postage prepaid, and addressed to the Landlord as follows:

Page 4 of 5

27




Fairfax County Government

Facilities Management Division

12000 Government Center Parkway
Suite 424 — Attention: Leasing Manager
Fairfax, Virginia 22035-0011

 and to the Tenant as follows:

McLean Youth Incorporated -

or to such other addresses as either of the parties may designate from time to time by
giving written notice as herein required. .

_ 16. MISCELLANEQUS: This Lease represents the entire agreement .
between the parties and supersedes all other prior agreements, oral or written, between
the parties relating to the Premises. This Lease can be amended or modified only by
writing signed by both parties, If any provision of this Lease is foundto be invalid by a
court of competent jurisdiction, said provision shall be stricken from this Lease and all
remaining terms and provision shall remain in full force and effect. This Lease is binding
upon the parties, their successors and assigns.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the Parties hereto represents and
warrants that it has been duly authorized to enter into this Lease and has caused this
instrument to be executed by its duly authorized representative on the date first above

written.
WITNESS: : LANDLORD:

THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF
FATRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA

ﬁLLJ L '/YL?J,-» By’T{ﬂ%ﬂp} {2.-71-O)

LB L i/ Q«ﬂ'a{'?'\;( P,_@Tﬂt%wéiﬂ'
L= nawabin TENANT: Dé«a»m) va"? Zxten -

Feplin)

/7 V4 5 MCLEAN YOUTH INCORPORATED
NASOULIER\DEED OF LEASE4- MCLEAN YOUTH SOCCER 11-13-01.doc

Page 5 of 5

28




Ih .
Ses {20-3)(1-33)

: ‘ | G

® ) .C b Outer o = ®~N—
| | 63

‘ : . 1= 5 .

i\ — (LM HUFFMAN  PROPERTY f Sl g N \

24

8
w.
%
/]
©
X [
2
o
g
w

B 40 ’ < u}./‘ - |
it )k b ; ‘ Z
: =T | = t

‘. o o | 'l
n - l E

|

P Arlr R a2

e

O

o psos2 .

REVISED T0: ‘
1-1-2000 ;

X
3
R

A )

s e

u
RS

el

i L_ ‘A
SECTION .29-1

BEC-ary

29




Board Agenda ltem
October 7, 2014

ADMINISTRATIVE - 4

Authorization to Advertise a Public Hearing on a Proposal to Prohibit Through Truck
Traffic on Spring Valley Drive, Mitchell Street, Clinton Road and Canard Street
(Mason District)

ISSUE:

Board authorization to advertise a public hearing for the purpose of endorsing the
following roads to be included in the Residential Traffic Administration Program (RTAP)
for through truck traffic restrictions:

Spring Valley Drive between Braddock Road and Mitchell Street.
Mitchell Street between Spring Valley Drive and Edsall Road.
Clinton Road between Spring Valley Drive and Mitchell Street.
Canard Street between Mitchell Street and Edsall Road.

RECOMMENDATION:

The County Executive recommends the Board authorize advertisement of a public
hearing for the purpose of endorsing Spring Valley Drive between Braddock Road and
Mitchell Street; Mitchell Street between Spring Valley Drive and Edsall Road; Clinton
Road between Spring Valley Drive and Mitchell Street; and Canard Street between
Mitchell Street and Edsall Road to be included in the RTAP for through truck traffic
restrictions.

TIMING:

The Board should take action on October 7, 2014 to provide sufficient time for
advertisement of the proposed public hearing scheduled for October 28, 2014,
4:30 p.m.

BACKGROUND:

In a memorandum dated July 10, 2014, Supervisor Gross requested staff to work with
the Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) to implement through truck traffic
restrictions on Spring Valley Drive, Mitchell Street, Clinton Road and Canard Street,
due to continuing safety concerns of residents regarding through trucks utilizing these
four roads as a shortcut between Braddock Road and Edsall Road. The increased
truck traffic has exacerbated safety concerns for the neighborhood. A possible
alternate route is via Braddock Road to Backlick Road to Edsall Road.

30



Board Agenda ltem
October 7, 2014

Section 46.2-809, of the Code of Virginia requires a local jurisdiction to hold a duly
advertised public hearing on any proposal to restrict through truck traffic on a primary or
secondary road. Further, a resolution pertaining to prohibiting through truck traffic on a
portion of this road has been prepared for adoption and transmittal to VDOT which will
conduct the formal engineering study of the through truck restriction request.

FISCAL IMPACT:
None.

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:

Attachment |: Proposed Resolution to Restrict Through Truck Traffic on Spring Valley
Drive, Mitchell Street, Clinton Road and Canard Street

Attachment II: Area Map of Proposed Through Truck Traffic Restriction

STAFF:

Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive

Thomas P. Biesiadny, Director, Fairfax County Department of Transportation (FCDOT)
Eric M. Teitelman, Chief, Capital Projects and Operations Division, FCDOT

Neil Freschman, Chief, Traffic Operations Section, FCDOT

Steven K. Knudsen, Transportation Planner, FCDOT

31



ATTACHMENT |
RESOLUTION

FAIRFAX COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
RESIDENTIAL TRAFFIC ADMINISTRATION PROGRAM (RTAP)
THROUGH TRUCK TRAFFIC RESTRICTION
SPRING VALLEY DRIVE, MITCHELL STREET, CLINTON ROAD
AND CANARD STREET
MASON DISTRICT

WHEREAS, the residents who live along Spring Valley Drive, Mitchell
Street, Clinton Road and Canard Street have expressed concerns regarding the
negative impacts associated with through truck traffic on this road; and

WHEREAS, a reasonable alternate route has been identified for Spring
Valley Drive, Clinton Road, Mitchell Street and Canard Street starting at Spring
Valley Drive and Braddock Road to the intersection of Braddock Road and
Backlick Road, and from the intersection of Braddock Road and Backlick Road to
the intersection of Backlick Road and Edsall Road and then on to the intersection
of Edsall Road and Mitchell Street; and

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Fairfax County Board of Supervisors to
ensure that the proposed through truck restriction be enforced by the Fairfax
County Police Department; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held pursuant to Section 46.2-809 of the
Code of Virginia,

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Supervisors
of Fairfax County, Virginia, has determined that in order to promote the health,
safety, and general welfare of the citizens of Fairfax County, it is beneficial to
prohibit through truck traffic on Spring Valley Drive, between Braddock Road and
Mitchell Street; on Clinton Road, between Spring Valley Drive and Mitchell Street;
on Mitchell Street, between Spring Valley Drive and Edsall Road; and on Canard
Street, between Mitchell Street and Edsall Road as part of the County's Residential
Traffic Administration Program (RTAP).

FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commonwealth Transportation
Board is hereby formally requested to take necessary steps to enact this prohibition.

ADOPTED this 28th day of October, 2014.

A Copy Teste:

Catherine A. Chianese
Clerk to the Board of Supervisors

32



ATTACHMENT |} 2

W@E
| 3

TS AdaNOOLNOW
au vIgnn1o9

Q

LEEISTONE CT
GILPIN DR

MONROUE DR

CLIFTON ST

WOODLAND DR

FRO

Fairfax County Department of Transportation
RESIDENTIAL TRAFFIC ADMINISTRATION PROGRAM (RTAP)
PROPOSED THROUGH TRUCK RESTRICTION ANFCDOT
SPRING VALLEY DRIVE, CLINTON ROAD, 0 £ ity
MITCHELL STREET & CANARD STREET

Mason District _

33


aschau
Typewritten Text

aschau
Typewritten Text
2


Board Agenda Item WITHDRAWN
October 7, 2014

ACTION -1

Approval of a Regional Joint Action Agreement for the Northern Virginia Long-Term
Care Ombudsman Program

ISSUE:

Board of Supervisors’ approval of a Regional Joint Action Agreement for the Northern
Virginia Long-Term Care Ombudsman Program among the Counties of Fairfax,
Arlington, and Loudoun, as well as the City of Alexandria.

RECOMMENDATION:

The County Executive recommends that the Board approve the Regional Joint Action
Agreement for the Northern Virginia Long-Term Care Ombudsman Program
(Attachment 1) and authorize him to sign the agreement.

TIMING:

Board approval is requested on October 7, 2014, to approve a Regional Joint Action
Agreement (Attachment 1) for the Northern Virginia Long-Term Care Ombudsman
Program.

BACKGROUND:

In September 1984, the Board of Supervisors approved the County’s participation in the
Northern Virginia Long-Term Care Ombudsman Program. In September 1985, a joint
action agreement was signed by the Executives for the Counties of Fairfax, Arlington,
Loudoun, and Prince William, as well as the City of Alexandria. Prince William County,
although initially part of the joint action agreement, withdrew from the regional program
in July 2013.

The Northern Virginia Long-Term Care Ombudsman Program provides the following
services to residents: the investigation and the resolution of complaints or concerns that
relate to the health, safety, welfare, or rights of some of the county’s most vulnerable
residents; the recruitment, training, and oversight of volunteers that contribute to the
well-being of the residents; provision of education and consultation to the public;
providing technical assistance to other community and county agencies and to the
facilities themselves.

34



Board Agenda Item WITHDRAWN
October 7, 2014

The Northern Virginia Long-Term Care Ombudsman Program originates from the Older
Americans Act, a federal provision, which requires every state to have a state long term
care ombudsman program and encourages the development of sub-state programs.
Virginia’s State Long-Term Care Ombudsman designated Fairfax County as the
administrative unit to annually receive federal and state funding from the Virginia
Division for the Aging for the participating jurisdictions. Each of the participating
jurisdictions, the Counties of Fairfax, Arlington, Loudoun, and the City of Alexandria will
contribute financially for the staff and the ongoing operation of the program.

As the Administrative Unit for the Northern Virginia Long-Term Care Ombudsman
Program, Fairfax County provides the day to day administration of the program and its
services. A policy board composed of directors of the Area Agencies on Aging of the
participating local jurisdictions provides guidance and reports to the participating
member jurisdictions on the federally mandated activities and functions of the program.
The Director of the Fairfax Area Agency on Aging serves as the Chair of the Policy
Board.

In order to maintain a continuation of services for the protection, health, safety and
welfare to those receiving long-term care services, this Regional Joint Action Agreement
between the four participating jurisdictions should be updated and approved.
Additionally, the structure of the Northern Virginia Long-Term Care Ombudsman
Program should be codified, including but not limited to the liability and liability
insurance for Ombudsman Staff and its volunteers.

FISCAL IMPACT:
The fiscal impact for Fairfax County in the implementation of this agreement for the
Program Year 2014 is included herein:

The Northern Virginia Long-Term Care Ombudsman Program’s cost is approximately
$600,000 annually and is operated under the Long-Term Care Ombudsman Grant. The
participating members of the Joint Action Agreement share in the annual operating
expenses, which are proportionally based on the allocation of age 60 years or older
populations and the licensed long-term care bed count in each jurisdiction. Fairfax
County has more than two times as many facilities as the three other participating
jurisdictions combined. Fairfax County contributes approximately $335,000 annually,
while the other participating jurisdictions in combination with state and federal funding
make up the remaining balance. Annually, the allocation is reviewed and adjusted
accordingly to reflect changes in any of the formula factors.

35



Board Agenda Item WITHDRAWN
October 7, 2014

ENCLOSED DOCUMENT:
Attachment 1: Proposed Joint Action Agreement By and Between the Counties of
Fairfax, Arlington, Loudoun and the City of Alexandria.

STAFF:

Patricia Harrison, Deputy County Executive

Nannette M. Bowler, Director, Department of Family Services

M. Gail Ledford, Director, Department of Administration for Human Services
Barbara Antley, Division Director, Adult and Aging Services, Department of Family
Services

Sharon Lynn, Director, Fairfax Area Agency on Aging, Department of Family Services

Laura Nichols, Director, Northern Virginia Long-Term Care Ombudsman Program

Lee Ann Pender, Division Director, Department of Administration for Human Services

Alison Baez, Contract Analyst, Department of Administration for Human Services
Donna R. Banks, Assistant County Attorney, Office of the County Attorney

36



ATTACHMENT 1

NORTHERN VIRGINIA LONG-TERM CARE OMBUDSMAN
PROGRAM

JOINT ACTION AGREEMENT

This Northern Virginia Long-Term Care Ombudsman Program Joint Action
Agreement is entered into pursuant to Va. Code Ann. §15.2-1300 by and among
the Counties of Arlington, Fairfax, Loudoun, and the City of Alexandria, herein
referred to as the Member Jurisdictions. This Agreement sets forth the services to
be delivered, and the roles and responsibilities of the Member Jurisdictions,
including the funding to be provided by each Member Jurisdiction for the Northern
Virginia Long-Term Care Ombudsman Program (NVLTCOP).

WHEREAS, this Agreement succeeds a previous agreement dated September 6,
1985, among the Member Jurisdictions, that expired on June 30, 1987; and the
NVLTCOP has been operating without a written agreement under substantially the
same terms and conditions thereafter of the 1985 agreement since the 1987
expiration; and

WHEREAS, the NVLTCOP is funded in part by the Federal Administration for
Community Living (ACL) through the Older Americans Act (OAA), Title VII funds,
State Ombudsman award, and the Department of Medical Assistance Services
(DMAS) Ombudsman funds, all of which flow through and are administered by the
Virginia Division for the Aging (VDA) of the Virginia Department for Aging and
Rehabilitative Services (DARS); in addition, all of the Member Jurisdictions help
fund the NVLTCOP through an annual contribution based on the formula outlined
in section 11 of this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the VDA provides funding and general oversight of the Office of the
State Long-Term Care Ombudsman (OSLTCO) that oversees mandated
Ombudsman Program functions in Virginia and the NVLTCOP operates as part of
a statewide long-term care ombudsman program that is directed by the OSLTCO;
and

WHEREAS, the Congress of the United States has passed legislation and the
President of the United States has signed into law the Older Americans Act of
1965, as amended, which requires every state to have a state ombudsman
program and encourages the development of sub-state programs; and

WHEREAS, the OAA (Title VII, Chapter 2, Section 712, (a) (5) of the OAA allows
the State Ombudsman to designate an entity as a sub-state ombudsman entity

and may certify an employee to represent the entity in carrying out the duties of the
OSLTCO; and

Page 1 of 12

37




ATTACHMENT 1

WHEREAS, the State Ombudsman has designated the Fairfax Area Agency on
Aging (FAAA) as a sub-state Ombudsman Program, and

WHEREAS, the VDA, through an annual contract (Area Plan) and through a
separate remittance for DMAS Ombudsman funds, awards funding to Fairfax
County, on behalf of the Member Jurisdictions, for the operation of the NVLTCOP;
and

WHEREAS, the Member Jurisdictions will provide advice and guidance to the
NVLTCOP regarding the activities of the NVLTCOP; and

WHEREAS, the Member Jurisdictions desire to achieve efficient and coordinated
delivery of ombudsman services in a manner that will effectively serve the adult
residents of the Member Jurisdictions who live in nursing facilities and assisted
living facilities, and, to the extent feasible, recipients of home- and community-
based services, in a manner designed to respond to meet local needs and to be
accountable to local elected and appointed officials, the VDA; and the OSLTCO;
and

WHEREAS, for these and other reasons, it is appropriate that the Member
Jurisdictions provide funding to jointly operate, through this multi-jurisdictional
Agreement, a regional program known as the NVLTCOP, which carries out the
mandated functions of a sub-state ombudsman program under programmatic
supervision of the OSLTCO; and

WHEREAS, to this end, the Member Jurisdictions desire to establish a regional
long-term care ombudsman program (the NVLTCOP) by means of this Agreement;
the NVLTCOP will develop, administer and operate the regional ombudsman
program in accordance with the OAA Regulations, the VDA, and the OSLTCO;
and

WHEREAS, Va. Code Ann. §15.2-1300 (2008), enables counties and cities to
enter into joint action agreements with one another for joint or cooperative exercise
of any power, privileges or authority which one is capable of exercising severally;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Member Jurisdictions do mutually
covenant and agree as follows:

Program: The Member Jurisdictions hereby establish the Northern Virginia Long-
Term Care Ombudsman Program (NVLTCOP).

Geographical Area: The geographical areas to be served under by the NVLTCOP
pursuant to this Agreement include the combined geographical area of all Member
Jurisdictions and named localities within their boundaries:

City of Alexandria

Page 2 of 12

38



ATTACHMENT 1
Arlington County
Fairfax County (including the Cities of Fairfax and Falls Church)

Loudoun County

By the signatures below of the chief administrative officials, these Member
Jurisdictions adopt the aforementioned purposes and accept the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

Statutory Authority of the Signatories: Title 15.2, of the Code of Virginia describes
establishes the City of Alexandria and the Counties of Arlington, Fairfax, and
Loudoun as being units of general local government having general corporate and
police powers and with the power to levy taxes and spend funds.

Administrative Unit: By mutual agreement of the parties, the County of Fairfax is
designated as the administrative unit to receive and administer funds for the
NVLTCOP.

Powers and Responsibilities of the County of Fairfax: As the Administrative Unit,
Fairfax County shall have the authority to contract with city, county, State, Federal
and private organizations and agencies for the delivery of services deemed
appropriate for the NVLTCOP and to enter into agreements with appropriate city,
county, state, federal and private organizations and agencies to adequately carry
out the purposes of the NVLTCOP, so long as the terms of such contracts and
agreements do not violate the Policies and Procedures of the OSLTCO or the
requirements stated in Title VII of the OAA.

It is agreed that for the day-to-day administration of NVLTCOP activities and
operations that the County Executive of the County of Fairfax, shall appoint the
FAAA as the program administrator (“Program Administrator”).

NVLTCOP operations and policy decisions will comply with the policies set by and
decisions rendered by the OSLTCO.

Additionally, it is agreed that the County of Fairfax shall provide all procurement
and fiscal services related to the NVLTCOP, and personnel services as
appropriate.

Other acts of the Northern Virginia Long-Term Care Ombudsman Administrative

Unit will be in response to policies established by the OSLTCO, the Policy Board
(as defined herein below) and the VDA.

Page 3 of 12

39



ATTACHMENT 1

Policy Board: A four (4) member Policy Board shall provide advice and guidance
to the NVLTCOP, and shall report to the Member Jurisdictions and their local
officials regarding the NVLTCOP’s federally mandated functions and activities in
compliance with the Policies and Procedures established by the OSLTCO.
Because the Policy Board’s members will be the persons filling certain Director
positions in the Member Jurisdictions (see below), this Agreement does not
provide for term limits for Policy Board members.

Policy Board Membership: The Policy Board shall be composed of one individual
member representing each Member Jurisdiction. This individual shall be the Area
Agency on Aging Director of the Member Jurisdiction’s Agency on Aging or another
person who is designated by the Member Jurisdiction’s Area Agency on Aging
Director to represent his or her respective Member Jurisdiction in accordance with
that Member Jurisdiction’s county or city practices and requirements. The
chairperson (“Chairperson”) of the Policy Board will be the Director of the Fairfax
Area Agency on Aging (FAAA). The FAAA’s Director will be the County of
Fairfax’s member on the four-member Policy Board.

Policy Board Meetings and Voting: The Policy Board shall schedule semi-annual
meetings and may meet at additional times as deemed necessary by the
Chairperson in consultation with the other members of the Policy Board.

The presence and participation of any three of the Policy Board’s four members
shall constitute a quorum.

Each Member Jurisdiction shall have one vote on the Policy Board. So long as a
quorum is present, the Policy Board may make decisions by a majority of votes
cast.

The NVLTCOP staff shall be responsible for drafting and maintaining the minutes
of the Policy Board meetings.

The staff of the NVLTCOP, being funded in part by the participating Member
Jurisdictions, shall provide staff support to the Policy Board meetings.

The Policy Board may adopt additional rules for its proceedings provided that they
are consistent with law and not inconsistent with provisions of this Agreement.

Duties and Responsibilities of the FAAA as Program Administrator:

a. Implement the NVLTCOP in compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations, including the regulations of the OAA and the policies and
requirements set forth by the OSLTCO and the VDA.

b. Negotiate Memoranda of Agreements between local, State and Federal
agencies where appropriate. Work in coordination with the OSLTCO to
continuously monitor, evaluate and take corrective action when necessary in a

Page 4 of 12

40



ATTACHMENT 1

manner consistent with Title VII, Chapter 2, Sec. 712 of the OAA and with the
OSLTCO’s Policies and Procedures set forth by the OSLTCO.

c. Have the authority to supervise NVLTCOP staff and volunteers’ activities to
ensure consistency with the OSLTCO’s Policies and Procedures set forth by
the OSLTCO.

d. Assure the FAAA's and the Policy Board’s freedom from conflict of interest with
regard to long-term care institutions and issues.

e. Obtain approval from the OSLTCO for the credentials of the individuals to be
designated the local ombudsmen.

f. Provide personnel support to the NVLTCOP in accordance with the Fairfax
County Pay for Performance System rules and procedures.

g. Assist the VDA and the OSLTCO with audits as required and report the results
thereof to the Policy Board and others consistent with applicable State and
Federal requirements.

h. Ensure that the NVLTCOP provides Policy Board members and OSLTCO with
standard program reports and statistics. These reports will indicate program
activity specifically within the geographical boundaries of each Member
Jurisdiction.

i. Provide volunteer insurance coverage for all volunteers assigned to the
NVLTCOP in accordance with the most current coverage at the time of a claim,
under Fairfax’s County Volunteer Coverage program, regardless of the location
at which the volunteer services were provided.

10. Duties and Responsibilities of the NVLTCOP:

a. Receive, investigate, and work to resolve complaints made by or on behalf of
residents of nursing facilities, assisted living facilities and other long-term care
settings as described in the Policies and Procedures of the OSLTCO.

b. Receive, investigate and work to resolve complaints made by or on behalf of
persons aged 60 and older receiving home and community-based long-term
care services.

c. Observe the requirements and rights to access assisted living facilities, nursing
facilities, continuing care retirement communities, community long-term care
facilities, and their medical records as provided for in the Code of Virginia, §2.2-
705.

d. Observe the requirements of confidentiality for complainants as provided for in
Federal law, including Title VII, Chapter 3 of the OAA and the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) and the Code of Virginia,

Page 5 of 12

41



11.

ATTACHMENT 1

including §2.2-706, and the Virginia Privacy Protection Act. Maintain a secure
file for complaints in accordance with Federal law, including the HIPAA, and the
Code of Virginia, including the Virginia Privacy Protection Act. Ensure
procedures are in place to protect the identity, confidentiality, and privacy of
complainants, residents and recipients of services.

. Report and record complaints and reports in the manner specified by the

OSLTCO Policies and Procedures.

Hire, train and supervise NVLTCOP staff and volunteers in accordance with
Policies and Procedures set forth by the OSLTCO, and Fairfax County.

. Recruit, screen, train, and directly supervise the NVLTCOP volunteers in

accordance with the Policies and Procedures set forth by the OSLTCO and the
NVLTCOP.

. Conduct publicity and outreach efforts concerning the availability of the

NVLTCOP to receive and investigate complaints and provide information
concerning the long-term care system.

Provide information and education regarding long-term care resources and the
rights of residents and potential residents of nursing facilities and assisted living
facilities.

Working in coordination with the OSLTCO, identify, document and make
recommendations concerning major issues affecting the well-being of residents
of long-term care facilities and monitor the development and implementation of
Federal, State and local laws, regulations and policies that relate to long-term
care.

. Consult with community groups, agencies, legal service programs, and

individuals in order to assist them in effectively serving long-term care clients.

Consult with the OSLTCO for assistance as needed and to forward to the
OSLTCO any complaints which cannot, in the Program Administrator’s opinion,
be resolved by the NVLTCOP sub-state program.

. Submit to Member Jurisdictions an annual list of long-term care facilities which

the NVLTCOP serves or will serve in the planning and service area.

Allocation of Funds: Any funds that are appropriated by the Member Jurisdictions

for the NVLTCOP shall be expended for the mutual benefit of the long-term care
recipients residing in the Member Jurisdictions.

In August or September of each year, NVLTCOP shall provide the Policy Board
with an annual summary of the projected Member Jurisdictions’ appropriations for
the next Area Plan fiscal year. The projections are based on the financial
information available at that time.

Page 6 of 12

42



ATTACHMENT 1

Each Member Jurisdiction’s appropriation to NVLTCOP costs will be calculated
using the formula below based on each Member Jurisdiction’s respective
proportion of the population aged 60 and older of the Northern Virginia population,
based on the American Community Survey data most recently used by the VDA
(50% of the formula), and the number of licensed long-term care beds in that
Member Jurisdiction (50% of the formula).

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.

Member Jurisdiction’s Appropriation = [(Total Personnel Cost + Operating Costs) —
Total Federal and State Revenue] x Member Jurisdiction’s Relative Share of Cost

Term Definition
Member Jurisdiction [% of total licensed long-term care beds (nursing
Relative Share of Cost = and assisted living) in the jurisdiction + total

population in the jurisdiction aged 60 and older as
a % of the Northern Virginia population aged 60
and older based on the American Community
Survey data most recently used by the VDA] / 2

Total Federal and State Federal Ombudsman award + State Ombudsman
Revenue = award + DMAS funds

Total Personnel Cost = Proposed salaries including Fairfax County fringe

benefit rate (Salaries are estimated at the time of the
projected budget letter. Any salary increases are determined
by the Fairfax County Board of Supervisors and are not
known until the end of the Fairfax County Budget cycle which
is typically in April/May of each year.)

Operating Costs = Non-personnel expenditures related to staff
trainings, volunteer trainings, mileage, database,
publications, supplies, and other program activities

Page 7 of 12

43



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

ATTACHMENT 1

Any written amendment to this Agreement that is signed by authorized
representatives of all of the Member Jurisdictions and that reflects any changes to
this funding formula shall be executed prior to any changes to these formulae
taking effect.

Appropriations by Member Jurisdictions: The Program Administrator shall be
responsible for calculating formula allocation costs based upon the NVLTCOP’s
actual operating budget (determined by the Fairfax County Board of Supervisors)
and VDA funding. The Billing Statement is sent to each Member Jurisdiction after
VDA provides the FAAA with the Summary of Obligations indicating the funding to
be expected from VDA. Each Member Jurisdiction will contribute its share to the
program on an annual basis in one lump sum. Notwithstanding any term or
condition of this Agreement to the contrary, all funds for payments by any Member
Jurisdiction to the NVLTCOP pursuant to this Agreement are subject to the
availability of an annual appropriation for this purpose by the governing body of
each Member Jurisdiction. In the event of non-appropriation of funds by the
governing body of any Member Jurisdiction, the Policy Board will convene to
discuss the non-appropriation and will ask the governing bodies of the Member
Jurisdictions to address the non-appropriation.

A financial report of operating expenditures, including aggregate salary
information, and other operating expenses, will be provided annually to each
Member Jurisdiction through their designated Policy Board Member.

Participation in Optional Activities: No program activities will be imposed on any
Member Jurisdiction participating in this Agreement should such Member
Jurisdiction decide that such program activities would be detrimental to the best
interests of that Member Jurisdiction.

Authority of the OSLTCO: The Member Jurisdictions acknowledge the authority of
the OSLTCO over the NVLTCOP program activities that are mandated by the
OAA.

Limitations on Obligations to Long-Term Care Recipients: Any obligation, whether
expressed or implied in this Agreement to provide services through the NVLTCOP
is expressly limited to the extent that such services can be provided by means of
and under the terms of the Fairfax VDA Contract and the Policies and Procedures
and other guidance of the OSLTCO.

Delegated Signatory Authority: To the extent that such documents relate directly
to the NVLTCOP, The parties hereto Member Jurisdictions delegate signatory
authority to the County Executive, of the County of Fairfax, or his designee, for
grant applications to the Governor of Virginia, on agreements with state and local
agencies, on agreements with VDA and the OSLTCO, and on sub-grants and
subcontracts and related grant agreements within the scope of the approved
grants and applicable regulations.

Page 8 of 12

44



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

ATTACHMENT 1

Term and Effective Date: This Ordinance Agreement shall be in effect from the
date of on which it is last signature signed by an authorized representative of a
Member Jurisdiction (“Effective Date”) until September 30, 2032, or until the
NVLTCOP is terminated by the Member Jurisdictions or by the Commonwealth of
Virginia, whichever occurs first. If the Commonwealth of Virginia terminates the
NVLTCOP, Fairfax County will notify member jurisdictions six months in advance
of the termination. The term “Effective Date” means the date coinciding with the
last to occur of each of the following events: (i) passage of an ordinance by each
of the Counties of Fairfax, Arlington, Loudoun, and the City of Alexandria as
participants in this Agreement; (ii) execution of the Agreement by all members.

This agreement shall remain in full force and effective from its Effective Date until
September 30, 2032, or until the NVLTCOP is terminated.

Termination: This Agreement shall not be terminated by withdrawal of any
Member Jurisdiction(s).

Any Member Jurisdiction, which is party hereto, shall have the right to withdraw
from this Agreement and the NVLTCOP by written notice from their respective
jurisdiction’s executive level authorized official to the other Member Jurisdictions
and the FAAA at least 90 days prior to the date on which that Member
Jurisdiction’s withdrawal will take effect.

A withdrawing Member Jurisdiction shall have no responsibility under this
Agreement for NVLTCOP actions that take place on or after the date that
withdrawal will take effect.

Effect of Termination: Should a Member Jurisdiction withdraw from this Agreement,
that Member Jurisdiction will be deemed to have waived all rights to services
provided under the NVLTCOP and to any funding allocated to the NVLTCOP.

Disposition of Assets: As Program Administrator, FAAA shall be responsible for
procuring and holding, for the duration of this Agreement, any real assets obtained
with VDA funds during the course of this Agreement for the duration of this
Agreement. Should the NVLTCOP Member Jurisdictions terminate this Agreement
or the Member Jurisdictions or the Commonwealth terminate(s) NVLTCOP, its
operations and this agreement, any real assets that are held by the Program
Administrator for the purposes of this Agreement or NVLTCOP in excess of
$10,000 shall be liquidated and the proceeds from such sale will be divided among
the then-current Member Jurisdictions in accordance with the proportion of the
then-current funding allocation formula, within 180 days of termination.

Additional Covenant: This Agreement is in no way to be construed as an indication
of a joint effort of the Member Jurisdictions in any manner other than that which is
expressly indicated in other sections described above.

Page 9 of 12

45



23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

ATTACHMENT 1

Furthermore, the Member Jurisdictions individually covenant and agree that this
Agreement shall not be introduced or referred to in any future proceeding, judicial
or administrative, concerning a change in the geographical boundaries hereto of
the Member Jurisdictions or of Planning District 8.

Severance Provision: If any provision of this Agreement is found or determined by
a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the remaining provisions still shall
remain in full force and effect.

Assignment: No Member Jurisdiction may assign, transfer, convey, sublet, or
otherwise dispose of any of its rights or duties under this Agreement and the
NVLTCOP created by it without the prior written consent of all of the other Member
Jurisdictions by and through representatives duly authorized to bind them.

Amendments:  This Agreement shall not be amended except by written
amendment executed by persons duly authorized to bind each Member
Jurisdiction.

No Waiver: The failure of any Member Jurisdiction to exercise in any respect a
right provided for in this Agreement shall not be deemed to waive subsequently the
same right or any other right hereunder.

No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity: Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Agreement to the contrary, nothing in this Agreement or any action taken by any
Member Jurisdiction or the NVLTCOP pursuant to this Agreement shall constitute
or be construed as a waiver of either the sovereign or governmental immunity of
any Member Jurisdiction. The Member Jurisdictions intend for this provision to be
read as broadly as possible.

Notices: Unless otherwise provided herein, all notices and other communications
required by this Agreement shall be deemed to have been given when made in
writing and either (a) delivered in person, (b) delivered by an agent, such as an
overnight or similar delivery service, or (c) deposited in the United States mail,
postage prepaid, certified or registered, addressed as follows:

IF TO FAIRFAX COUNTY:
County Executive

12000 Government Center Parkway

Fairfax, VA 22035

Page 10 of 12

46



ATTACHMENT 1

IF TO ARLINGTON COUNTY:
County Manager
2100 Clarendon Boulevard, Suite 302

Arlington, Virginia 22201

IF TO THE CITY OF ALEXANDRIA:
City Manager
301 King Street

Alexandria, Virginia 22314

IF TO LOUDOUN COUNTY:
County Administrator
1 Harrison St. SE, Mail Stop #02

Leesburg, VA 20175

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned persons duly certify that they are authorized
to enter into this Agreement on behalf of their respective Member Jurisdictions and that
their respective jurisdictions are legally bound thereby.

City of Alexandria

Rashad M. Young, City Manager Date

Page 11 of 12

47



Arlington County

ATTACHMENT 1

Barbara M. Donnellan, County Manager Date
Loudoun County

Tim Hemstreet, County Administrator Date
Fairfax County

Edward L. Long Jr., County Executive Date

48

Page 12 of 12



Board Agenda Item
October 7, 2014

ACTION -2

Approval of an Agreement Between the Town of Vienna and Fairfax County to Design
and Construct a Stream Restoration Project on Hunters Branch (Hunter Mill District)

ISSUE:

Board of Supervisors’ authorization is requested for the County to enter into an
agreement with the Town of Vienna (the Town) to provide funding to design and
construct a stream restoration project on Hunters Branch which is located in the Town
and the Accotink Creek watershed.

RECOMMENDATION:

The County Executive recommends that the Board approve and authorize the County
Executive or his designee to sign the agreement with the Town to fund the design and
construction of a stream restoration project on Hunters Branch.

TIMING:
Board approval is requested on October 7, 2014

BACKGROUND:

The Town has requested financial assistance from the County to design and construct a
stream restoration project that is located within the Town and the Accotink Creek
watershed. The proposed project includes restoring 2,067 linear feet of stream on
Hunters Branch. The stream restoration project would provide nutrient reduction and
improved water quality in the Accotink Watershed to achieve compliance with the
Town’s Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) permit and Chesapeake Bay
Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) requirements. The stream restoration project also
would provide Chesapeake Bay TMDL requirement credit to the County in accordance
with the terms of the “Cooperative Agreement Between the Fairfax County Board of
Supervisors and the Town of Vienna to Share Certain Stormwater Service District Fees
and Responsibility for Related Projects.”

49



Board Agenda Item
October 7, 2014

The Town is included within the County’s Stormwater Service District (Service

District). The County collects revenue from property owners within the Town. Providing
funding through this partnership will save the County the time and administrative costs
that would be incurred if the County implemented the project as part of its stormwater
program.

The project has received partial funding through a Department of Environmental Quality
(DEQ) Stormwater Local Assistance Fund (SLAF).

FISCAL IMPACT:

The estimated total cost of the project is $1,340,000. The County will transfer $570,000
to the Town solely for the purpose of constructing the project but shall not be used for
the cost of any feasibility study or acquisition of any lands or easements necessary for
the completion for the project. The Town will fund $100,000 toward the project. DEQ
SLAF funds in the amount of $670,000 have been awarded for the Hunters Branch
Stream Restoration Project. The Town will be responsible for any cost over-runs and
will reimburse the County funds that were not expended in accordance with the terms of
the attached agreement. Funding is currently available in Project Number SD-000031,
Streams and Water Quality, Fund 400-C40101 (Fund 125), for the County’s obligation
to this project.

CREATION OF POSITIONS:
No positions will be created.

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:
Attachment 1: Agreement between the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, Virginia
and the Town of Vienna

STAFEF:

Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive

James W. Patteson, Director, Department of Public Works and Environmental Services
(DPWES)

Randolph W. Bartlett, Deputy Director, DPWES

50



AGREEMENT

This Agreement (“Agreement”) made and entered into this day of , 2014, by
and between the BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA (the
"County"), a body politic, and the Town of Vienna (the “Town”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Town has been awarded a Stormwater Local Assistance Fund (SLAF)
Grant from the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality (‘“DEQ Grant”) for the Hunter’s
Branch Stream Restoration Project (the “Project”), which will be located within the boundaries of
the Town and which will restore a portion of the body of water known as Hunter’s
Branch/Accotink Creek; and

WHEREAS, the location of the Project is at Longitude 38.886 and Latitude 77.271, which is
more specifically shown on the Fairfax County Real Property Identification Map as Tax Map No.
48-1 ((13)) Parcel C; and

WHEREAS, the Project is within the Chesapeake Bay and Potomac River Watersheds, which
lies within the Town and County; and

WHEREAS, the Town is part of the County’s Stormwater Service District and the Town and
County have entered into the “Cooperative Agreement Between the Fairfax County Board of
Supervisors and the Town of Vienna to Share Certain Stormwater Service District Fees and
Responsibility for Related Projects” (the “Cooperative Agreement”), to share funds and
responsibility to maintain, operate, and improve stormwater systems that affect one another to
meet Chesapeake Bay Total Maximum Daily Load (“TMDL”) and other water quality goals. The
Cooperative Agreement is attached hereto as Attachment 1 and is incorporated herein by
reference; and

WHEREAS, the Town and County agree that funds collected as part of the Cooperative
Agreement can be used to match the DEQ Grant for the Project because the Project meets the
water quality objectives of each locality and their respective Chesapeake Bay TMDL obligations;
and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Cooperative Agreement, the Town and the County will complete the
design for the Project, which implements stormwater improvements in the Chesapeake Bay and
Potomac River Watersheds; and

WHEREAS, the total cost of the Project is estimated to be one million, three hundred and forty
thousand dollars ($1,340,000.00); and

51



WHEREAS, the County intends to contribute five hundred and seventy thousand dollars
($570,000.00) from the Fiscal Year 2015 Stormwater Budget for the purpose of supporting the
design and construction of the Project; and

WHEREAS, the Town intends to contribute one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000.00) from
the Financial Year 2014 Stormwater Budget for the purpose of supporting the design and
construction of the Project and dedicate Town staff expertise and time for the purpose of
supporting, developing, and implementing the Project; and

WHEREAS, the DEQ Grant will contribute six hundred and seventy hundred thousand dollars
($670,000.00) for the purpose of supporting the construction of the Project; and

WHEREAS, notwithstanding the Town’s implementation of the Project, pursuant to the
Cooperative Agreement, the Town and the County intend that the Project be part of the Joint
Action Plan that is described in paragraphs 15 through 24 of the Cooperative Agreement; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Cooperative Agreement, the Town and the County intend that the
Project will result in a credit to the County in proportion to the total load reductions as described
in paragraphs 21 through 23 of the Cooperative Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Town and the County concur that the County’s $570,000 contribution to this
Project shall not be charged against the PAID VIENNA REVENUES as set forth in the
Cooperative Agreement, but rather, are a separate grant to the Town from the County;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, which are incorporated herein as
if restated as binding provisions of this agreement, the mutual promises contained herein, and
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of all of which are hereby
acknowledged, the parties hereto further agree as follows:

1. The County shall grant to the Town the amount of five hundred and seventy thousand
dollars ($570,000.00) (the “County Contribution”), upon execution of this agreement.

2. The Town shall expend one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000.00) from the Financial
Year 2014 Stormwater Budget for the purpose of supporting the construction of the Project and
dedicate Town staff expertise and time for the purpose of supporting, developing, and
implementing the Project.

3. The Town shall expend the DEQ Grant of six hundred and seventy hundred thousand
dollars ($670,000.00) for the purpose of supporting the construction of the Project when the
DEQ Grant is received.

4, The County Contribution shall be used and expended solely for the purpose of design
and constructing the Project but shall not be used for the cost of any feasibility study or
acquisition of any lands or easements necessary for the completion of the Project.

5. The Town shall acquire, at its sole expense, any and all land or easements, or other
interests in real property, if any, that are necessary to complete the Project.

52



6. The Town, at its sole expense, shall administer the design and construction contracts,
obtain approval of all plans, and obtain all permits necessary for the completion of the Project.

7. The Town shall notify the County if the Town, at any time, modifies the scope of the
Project, which is generally described herein above and in the Town’s “Water Division
Application for Stormwater Local Assistance Fund (SLAF) — Stormwater Capital Projects,” which
was submitted to DEQ for the DEQ Grant (the “Plan”). If the scope of the Project’s design, in
the sole judgment of the County, significantly deviates from the design scope described in the
Plan, the Town shall, within 30 days after such notification of such deviation is provided by the
County, reimburse to the County the amount of the County Contribution.

8. The Town shall provide to the County a copy of the final site plan for the Project.

9. The Town shall retain all invoices and all records of payments for any and all services
rendered for the design, construction, and any related expenses for completion of the Project,
and copies of any such invoices and records of payments shall be provided to the County upon
request within three business days after such a request.

10. If at any time the Town abandons or otherwise ceases the Project for any reason, the
Town shall immediately return any amount of the County Contribution not expended in
accordance with this agreement and all invoices and records of payments related to the Project
shall be delivered within 14 days of such abandonment or cessation. “Abandon,” as used
herein, shall include, but not be limited to, the failure to initiate or the termination of the design
or construction before the Project’s completion.

11. The Town shall timely pay all Project cost overruns.

12. The Town shall complete the Project not later than two years after this agreement is
executed.

13. Pursuant to the Cooperative Agreement, the Project shall be part of the Joint Action Plan

that is described in paragraphs 15 through 24 of the Cooperative Agreement. If, however, the
Project has been completed before the Joint Action Plan is finalized and approved, then the
County shall nonetheless be entitled to its total load reduction credits as set forth below. The
County shall be entitled to a credit in proportion to the total load reductions as a result of the
Project, as such credit is described in paragraphs 21 through 23 of the Cooperative Agreement.

14. This agreement can only be modified in writing and signed by both parties.

[Signatures appear on following page]
TOWN OF VIENNA

By:

Mayor Laurie A. DiRocco

53



STATE OF VIRGINIA :
to-wit

COUNTY OF FAIRFAX

The foregoing Agreement was acknowledged before me by Mayor Laurie A. DiRocco of
the Town of Vienna, this day of 2014, on behalf of the Town of
Vienna.

Notary Public

My commission expires:

Notary Registration Number:

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF

FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA

By:

Edward L. Long Jr., County Executive,

Fairfax County, Virginia

54



STATE OF VIRGINIA :
to-wit

COUNTY OF FAIRFAX

The foregoing Agreement was acknowledged before me by Edward L. Long Jr., County
Executive of Fairfax County, Virginia, on behalf of the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County,
Virginia this day of 2014.

Notary Public

My commission expires:

Notary Registration Number:

55



Board Agenda ltem
October 7, 2014

ACTION -3

Approval of a Resolution to Authorize the Extension of General Obligation Bonds

ISSUE:
Board approval of a resolution requesting the Circuit Court to order an extension for
issuance of County general obligation bonds.

RECOMMENDATION:

The County Executive recommends Board approval of the enclosed resolution
requesting the Circuit Court to order an extension of the period for issuance of County
bonds authorized on November 7, 2006, from eight years to ten years.

TIMING:
Board action is requested on October 7, 2014.

BACKGROUND:

Under Virginia law, bonds authorized by referendum must be issued within eight years
unless the Circuit Court extends the time period. More specifically, Virginia Code
Section 15.2-2611 states in pertinent part:

Bonds authorized by a referendum may not be issued by a locality more than
eight years after the date of the referendum; however, this eight-year period may,
at the request of the governing body of the locality, be extended to up to ten
years after the date of the referendum by order of the circuit court of the locality,
.. . entered before the expiration of the eight-year period. The court shall grant
such extension unless the court is shown by clear and convincing evidence that
the extension is not in the best interests of the locality.

At the regular election on November 7, 2006, Fairfax County voters approved the
issuance of $125 million public safety facilities bonds to fund the cost of construction,
expansion, and renovation of public safety, civil and criminal justice facilities. These
bonds provided funds for the renovation and expansion of police facilities that included
the Fair Oaks Police Station, McLean Police Station, Reston Police Station, and the
West Ox Animal Shelter. In addition, bond revenues funded the renovation and
expansion of fire and rescue facilities at Great Falls Volunteer Fire Station and the Fire
and Rescue Training Academy. Lastly, the bonds provided funds for renovation of the
Historic Old Courthouse including relocation of the Historic Archives, preliminary design
of the Public Safety Headquarters and Bailey’s Fire Station, and other minor
improvements at public safety facilities throughout the County.

However, as noted in the approved prior years’ capital budgets, several of the 2006
Public Safety Facilities Bond Referendum Projects were delayed for economic reasons.

56



Board Agenda ltem
October 7, 2014

The County Executive’s letter transmitting to the Board the Advertised Capital
Improvement Program (CIP) for Fiscal Years 2009 — 2013, with Future Fiscal Years to
2018, recommended the deferral of select capital projects for budgetary reasons.
Among the deferred projects were several projects that were planned to be funded from
bonds authorized by the 2006 bond referendum: Reston Police Station — delayed 2
years; McLean Police Station — delayed 1 year; and the Fire and Rescue Academy —
delayed 9 months. The Board approved those delays when it adopted the FY 2009-FY
2013 Capital Improvement Program. These delays continued as part of the FY 2010-FY
2014 Adopted Capital Improvement Program and also included the Fair Oaks Police
Station — delayed 1 year; and the McLean Police Station was delayed an additional
year. Delays were due to limited General Fund revenue available to support both debt
service and operating costs associated with the opening of new and renovated facilities.
As a result, the sale of the bonds authorized by the 2006 Public Safety Facilities Bond
Referendum for those projects was postponed.

Currently, $32.28 million in bonds remain authorized but unissued from the 2006 public
safety facilities bond referendum. These funds will primarily provide for project closeout
for the above-referenced projects. Of the total, approximately $19.1 million is needed to
complete these postponed projects. In addition, prudent contract management and a
favorable construction market provided significant savings on projects already
completed. That savings ($13.2 million) will fund the design and construction of a new
Lorton Fire Station approved as part of the FY 20714 Carryover Review. The Lorton
Volunteer Fire Department and the Board of Supervisors entered into an agreement to
fund this project on June 17, 2014.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Staff recommends selling the $32.28 million balance of the authorized bonds as part of
the County’s annual General Obligation bond sales anticipated for January 2015
($16.14 million) and January 2016 ($16.14 million). The annual debt service cost is
included in the projected debt ratios as part of the FY 2015 — 2019 Adopted Capital
Improvement Program.

ENCLOSED DOCUMENT:
Attachment 1: Extension Resolution

STAFF:

Susan W. Datta, Chief Financial Officer

Erin C. Ward, Senior Assistant County Attorney

Carey Needham, Director, Building Design and Construction Division, Department of
Public Works and Environmental Services (DPWES)

Theresa Lepe, Chief, Building Design and Construction Division, DPWES

Martha Reed, Capital Programs Coordinator, Department of Management and Budget
Joseph LaHait, Debt Coordinator, Department of Management and Budget

57



ATTACHMENT 1

At a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, Virginia, held in the
Board Room in the Fairfax County Government Center at Fairfax, Virginia, on October 7, 2014,
at which meeting a quorum was present and voting, the following resolution was adopted by roll
call:

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING THE CIRCUIT COURT
OF FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA, TO ORDER AN
EXTENSION FOR ISSUANCE OF THE COUNTY'S
PUBLIC SAFETY FACILITIES BONDS, AUTHORIZED AT
REFERENDUM ON NOVEMBER 7, 2006pb FROM EIGHT
YEARS TO TEN YEARS FROM THE DATE OF SUCH
REFERENDUM AUTHORIZING THE BONDS

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, Virginia passed a resolution
dated June 5, 2006, requesting the Circuit Court of Fairfax County, Virginia, to order an election
on the question of contracting a debt, borrowing money and issuing bonds of Fairfax County,
Virginia, in the maximum aggregate principal amount of $125,000,000 for the purpose of
providing funds, in addition to the public safety facilities bonds previously authorized and any
other available funds, to finance the cost of providing public safety facilities, including the
construction, reconstruction, enlargement, renovation and equipment of detention facilities,
animal control facilities, civil and criminal justice facilities, police, fire and rescue training
facilities and stations, including fire and rescue stations owned by volunteer organizations, and
the acquisition of necessary land (“Bond Referendum”); and

WHEREAS, such resolution was duly filed with the Circuit Court of Fairfax County,
Virginia pursuant to the provisions of the Public Finance Act of 1991, Chapter 26, Title 15.2,
Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended; and

WHEREAS, on June 16, 2006, the Circuit Court of Fairfax County, Virginia entered an
order requiring the regular election officers of Fairfax County, Virginia, to open the polls on
November 7, 2006, at all the various voting places in the County to take the sense of the
qualified voters of Fairfax County, Virginia, on the question of contracting a debt, borrowing
money and issuing the Public Safety Facilities Bonds; and

WHEREAS, on November 7, 2006, the referendum was conducted in accordance with
the order of the court, and on November 9, 2006 the Fairfax County Electoral Board certified
that 260,515 votes were counted for the question, and 69,881 votes were counted against the
question; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Virginia Code 8§ 15.2-2611, bonds authorized by a referendum
may not be issued by a locality more than eight years after the date of the referendum; however
by order of the circuit court, the eight-year period may, at the request of the governing body of
the locality, be extended to up to ten years after the date of the referendum, which extension shall
be granted unless clear and convincing evidence is provided showing that such extension is not
in the best interest of the locality; and

58



WHEREAS, Fairfax County’s Capital Improvement Programs for Fiscal Years 2009 —
2013 and Fiscal Years 2010 — 2014 delayed several of the projects planned to be funded with the
Public Safety Facilities Bonds due to the downturn in the economy. Delays were due to limited
general fund revenue to support both debt service and operating costs with the opening of new
and renovated facilities; and

WHEREAS, the Public Safety Facilities Bonds issued to date provided funds for the
design and construction of police facilities including the Fair Oaks Police Station, McLean
Police Station, Reston Police Station, and the West Ox Animal Shelter, and the design and
construction of fire and rescue facilities including Great Falls VVolunteer Fire Station and the Fire
and Rescue Training Academy, as well as renovations to the Old Courthouse including the
relocation of the Historic Archives, preliminary design of the Public Safety Headquarters and
Bailey’s Fire Station, and other minor improvements at public safety facilities throughout the
County; and

WHEREAS, the County made significant project savings on the above-referenced
projects by conservative fiscal management and a favorable contract market; and

WHEREAS, due to the above-mentioned delays and conservative fiscal management
practice, only $92,720,000 of the $125,000,000 of Public Safety Facilities Bonds authorized at
the 2006 referendum have been issued; and

WHEREAS, these actions have preserved flexibility for meeting public safety priorities;
and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors and the Lorton Volunteer Fire Department have
entered into an agreement for the Board of Supervisors to fund the design and construction of a
new Lorton Volunteer Fire Station approved as part of the FY 2014 Carryover Review; and

WHEREAS, an extension from eight to ten years is necessary to issue the $32,280,000
authorized but unissued balance of the Public Safety Facilities Bonds, and such extension is in
the best interests of the County to provide for project closeout for the above-referenced projects
and to fund the design and construction of a new Lorton Volunteer Fire Station; and

WHEREAS, to finance continuing public safety priorities, the County expects to apply
the remaining authorized but unissued balance of the Public Safety Facilities Bonds for the
purpose of providing funds, in addition to the public safety facilities bonds previously authorized
and any other available funds, to finance the cost of providing of public safety facilities,
including the construction, reconstruction, enlargement, renovation and equipment of detention
facilities, animal control facilities, civil and criminal justice facilities, police, fire and rescue
training facilities and stations, including fire and rescue stations owned by volunteer
organizations, and the acquisition of necessary land within the two-year extension; now,
therefore,

59



BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County Virginia:

Section 1. For the reasons stated above, the Fairfax County Board of Supervisors
hereby requests the Circuit Court of Fairfax County to enter an order to extend for a period of
two years the time within which the remaining authorized but unissued Public Safety Facilities
Bonds may be issued.

Section 2. The Board hereby directs the County Attorney to present a petition to the
Circuit Court setting forth this request.

A Copy - Teste:

Clerk to the Board of Supervisors

60



Board Agenda ltem REVISED
October 7, 2014

ACTION - 4

Approval of Resolution Authorizing Execution of a Project Agreement with the Virginia
Department of Transportation for the Preliminary Engineering, Design, and Construction
of Various Intersection Improvements Throughout the County (Hunter Mill, Mason,
Providence, Lee)

ISSUE:

Board of Supervisors’ approval of a resolution authorizing the Fairfax County
Department of Transportation to execute a Project Agreement with the Virginia
Department of Transportation (VDOT) for the preliminary engineering, design, and
construction of intersection improvements at nine locations throughout the County.

RECOMMENDATION:

The County Executive recommends that the Board approve the attached resolution
(Attachment I) to execute a project agreement (Attachment II) with VDOT for the
preliminary engineering, design, and construction of intersection improvements.

TIMING:
Board approval is requested on October 7, 2014, so that the projects can begin
implementation in Fall 2014.

BACKGROUND:

Fairfax County Department of Transportation staff has been working in coordination
with VDOT to identify intersection improvement projects within the Six Year
Transportation Priorities Projects that were approved by the Board on January 28,
2014, that can advance quickly through use of VDOT’s design and construction
resources. A total of nine projects have been selected at various locations throughout
the County so far. These projects are listed below. The project IDs are those IDs used
in the Countywide Dialogue on Transportation (CDOT) public outreach effort.

Baron Cameron Avenue and Lake Fairfax Drive (ID# 93, Hunter Mill),

Chain Bridge Road and Boone Boulevard (ID# 101, Hunter Mill, and Providence)
Edsall Road and Montgomery Street (ID# 112, Mason),

Gallows Road and Route 50 (ID# 124, Providence),

Jermantown Road and Oak Marr Recreation Center/Arrowhead Drive (ID#139,
Providence),

61



Board Agenda ltem REVISED
October 7, 2014

Lee Highway from Circle Towers to Vaden Drive (ID# 145, Providence),
Leesburg Pike at Utterback Store Road (ID# 146, Hunter Mill),

Little River Turnpike at Old Columbia Road (ID# 148, Mason), and
Telegraph Road at Franconia Road (ID# 178, Lee)

Some improvements to these locations include: installation of pedestrian signalization,
construction of sidewalks and trails, curb cuts, drainage improvements, and installation
of hand railing. The current estimate to complete these projects is approximately $2.8
million.

As noted above, these intersection improvement projects were approved by the Board
on January 28, 2014, as part of the Board’s Six Year Transportation Priorities Plan.
These projects are the first set of projects that VDOT will be implementing. Staff will
return to the Board at a later date with additional projects for VDOT implementation.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The current total project estimate for the intersection improvements is $2,762,892. Staff
has identified available Commercial and Industrial Tax (Fund 40010, County and
Regional Transportation Projects) revenues in construction reserve to advance these
projects. There is no impact to the General Fund.

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:
Attachment | — Resolution to Execute Agreement
Attachment Il — Standard Project Agreement and-Appendix-A-with Appendices A and B

STAFF:

Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive

Erin Ward, Office of the County Attorney

Tom Biesiadny, Director, Fairfax County Department of Transportation (FCDOT)
Todd Wigglesworth, Acting Chief, Coordination and Funding Division, FCDOT

Bill Harrell, Capital Projects and Operations Division, FCDOT

Ray Johnson, Transportation Planner, Coordination and Funding Division, FCDOT

62



Attachment |

Fairfax County Board of Supervisors Resolution

At a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, Virginia, held in the
Board Auditorium in the Fairfax County Government Center of Fairfax, Virginia on
Tuesday, October 7, 2014, at which meeting a quorum was present and voting, the
following resolution was adopted.

AGREEMENT EXECUTION RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, in accordance with Virginia Department of Transportation project
agreement procedures, it is necessary that a resolution be received from the local
government authorizing execution of an agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of
Fairfax County, Virginia, authorizes the Director of Fairfax County’s Department of
Transportation to execute, on behalf of the County of Fairfax, a Project Administration
Agreement with the Virginia Department of Transportation for the Implementation of
Various Intersection Improvements (UPC 106498).

Adopted this day of , 2014, Fairfax, Virginia

ATTEST
Catherine A. Chianese
Clerk to the Board of Supervisors

63



REVISED

Attachment IT
VDOT ADMINISTERED - LOCALLY FUNDED
PROJECT ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT

FAIRFAX COUNTY
PROJECT NUMBER 9999-029-195 UPC 106498

THIS AGREEMENT, made and executed in triplicate on thisthe __ day
of , 20__, between the COMMONWEALTH OF
VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, hereinafter referred
to as the "DEPARTMENT" and the COUNTY OF , hereinafter
referred to as the "COUNTY."

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the COUNTY has expressed its desire to have the DEPARTMENT administer
the work as described in Appendix B, and such work for each improvement shown is hereinafter
referred to as the Project; and

WHEREAS, the funds as shown in Appendix A have all been allocated by the COUNTY to
finance the project; and

WHEREAS, the COUNTY has requested that the DEPARTMENT design and construct this
project in accordance with the scope of work described in Appendix B, and the DEPARTMENT
has agreed to perform such work; and

WHEREAS, both parties have concurred in the DEPARTMENT's administration of the
project identified in this Agreement and its associated Appendices A and B in accordance with
applicable federal, state, and local law and regulations; and

WHEREAS, the County's governing body has, by resolution, which is attached hereto,
authorized its designee to execute this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Section 33.2-338 of the Code of Virginia authorizes both the DEPARTMENT
and the COUNTY to enter into this Agreement;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants and
agreements contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

A The DEPARTMENT shall:

1. Complete said work as identified in Appendix B, advancing such
diligently, and all work shall be completed in accordance with the
schedule established by both parties.

2. Perform or have performed, and remit all payments for, all
preliminary engineering, right-of-way acquisition, construction,

contract administration, and inspection services activities for the
project(s) as required.

OAG Approved 6-2-2010; revised 10-1-2014

64


cjohn4
Typewriter
Attachment II

cjohn4
Typewriter

cjohn4
Typewriter

cjohn4
Typewriter

cjohn4
Typewriter

cjohn4
Typewriter

cjohn4
Typewriter

cjohn4
Typewriter

cjohn4
Typewriter

aschau
Typewritten Text
REVISED


County of Fairfax
Project 9999-029-195, UPC 106498

3. Provide a summary of project expenditures to the COUNTY for
charges of actual DEPARTMENT cost.

4. Notify the COUNTY of additional project expenses resulting from
unanticipated circumstances and provide detailed estimates of
additional costs associated with those circumstances. The
DEPARTMENT will make all efforts to contact the COUNTY
prior to performing those activities.

5. Return any unexpended funds to the COUNTY no later than 90
days after the project(s) have been completed and final expenses
have been paid in full.

B. The COUNTY shall:

1. Provide funds to the Department for Preliminary Engineering (PE), Right of
Way (ROW) and/or Construction (CN) in accordance with the payment
schedule outlined in Appendix A.

2. Accept responsibility for any additional project costs resulting
from unforeseeable circumstances, but only after concurrence of
the COUNTY and modification of this Agreement.

C. Funding by the COUNTY shall be subject to annual appropriation or other lawful
appropriation by the Board of Supervisors.

D. The Parties mutually agree and acknowledge, in entering this Agreement, that the
individuals acting on behalf of the Parties are acting within the scope of their official
authority and the Parties agree that neither Party will bring a suit or assert a claim
against any official, officer, or employee of either party, in their individual or
personal capacity for a breach or violation of the terms of this Agreement or to
otherwise enforce the terms and conditions of this Agreement The foregoing
notwithstanding, nothing in this subparagraph shall prevent the enforcement of the
terms and conditions of this Agreement by or against either Party in a competent
court of law.

E. The Parties mutually agree that no provision of this Agreement shall create in the
public, or in any person or entity other than the Parties, rights as a third party
beneficiary hereunder, or authorize any person or entity, not a party hereto, to
maintain any action for, without limitation, personal injury, property damage, breach
of contract, or return of money, or property, deposit(s), cancellation or forfeiture of
bonds, financial instruments, pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or otherwise.
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, unless
otherwise provided, the Parties agree that the County or the Department shall not be
bound by any agreements between either party and other persons or entities
concerning any matter which is the subject of this Agreement, unless and until the

OAG Approved 6-2-2010; revised 10-1-2014

65



County of Fairfax
Project 9999-029-195, UPC 106498

County or the Department has, in writing, received a true copy of such agreement(s)
and has affirmatively agreed, in writing, to be bound by such Agreement.

F. Should funding be insufficient and county funds be unavailable, both parties will
review all available options for moving the project forward, including but not
limited to, halting work until additional funds are allocated, revising the project
scope to conform to available funds, or cancelling the project.

G. Should the project be cancelled as a result of the lack of funding by the COUNTY,
the COUNTY shall be responsible for any costs, claims and liabilities associated
with the early termination of any construction contract(s) issued pursuant to this
agreement.

H. This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon 60 days advance
written notice. Eligible expenses incurred through the date of termination
shall be reimbursed to the DEPARTMENT subject to the limitations
established in this Agreement.
THE COUNTY and DEPARTMENT acknowledge and agree that this Agreement has been
prepared jointly by the parties and shall be construed simply and in accordance with its fair
meaning and not strictly for or against any party.

THIS AGREEMENT, when properly executed, shall be binding upon both parties, their
successors and assigns.

THIS AGREEMENT may be modified in writing upon mutual agreement of both parties.

OAG Approved 6-2-2010; revised 10-1-2014

66



County of Fairfax
Project 9999-029-195, UPC 106498

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each party hereto has caused this Agreement to be executed as of the
day, month, and year first herein written.

COUNTY OF FAIRFAX, VIRGINIA:

Date
Typed or Printed Name of Signatory Date
Signature of Witness Date

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION:

Chief of Policy Date
Commonwealth of Virginia
Department of Transportation

Signature of Witness Date

OAG Approved 6-2-2010; revised 10-1-2014

67



VDOT Administered Locally Funded Appendix A Date: 9/3/2014

Project Number: 9999-029-195 UPC: 106498 Locality: Fairfax County
ITProject Location ZIP+4: Multple locations Locality DUNS# 074837626 Locality Address (incl ZIP+4): 4050 Legato Road,
Suite 400, Fairfax VA 22033-2867
Project Narrative
Scope: Construct signalized crosswalks at multiple locations in Fairfax County. (See detailed scope in Appendix B).
From: Various locations
To: Various locations
Locality Project Manager Contact info: : Bill Harrell, 703-877-5767, william.harrell@fairfaxcounty.gov
Department Project Coordinator Contact Info: Sid Siddiqui, 703-259-3225, sid.siddiqui@vdot.virginia.gov
Project Estimates
Phase Estimated Project Costs
Preliminary Engineering $ 828,900.00
Right of Way & Utilities $ -
Construction $ 1,933,992.00
Total Estimated Cost $2,762,892.00
Estimate for Current Billing $2,762,892.00
Project Cost
Funds type o L
Phase Project Allocations (Choose from drop down Local % Participation for Local Share Amount
Funds Type
box)
Preliminary Engineering $828,900 Local Funds 100.00% $828,900
$0
$0
Total PE $828,900 $828,900
Right of Way & Utilities $0
$0
$0
Total RW $0 $0
Construction $1,933,992 Local Funds 100.00% $1,933,992
$0
$0
Total CN $1,933,992 $1,933,992
Total Estimated Cost $2,762,892 $2,762,892
[l Total Maximum Reimbursement / Payment by Locality to VDOT $2,762,892||
Project Financing
Fund Source B Fund Source C Fund Source D Aggregate Allocations
Local Funds (Choose from drop down (Choose from drop down (Choose from drop down Fund Source E (Choose (A+B+C+D+E)
box) box) box) from drop down box)
$2,762,892 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,762,892
Payment Schedule
FY 2015 FY20_ FY20_ FY20_
$2,762,892
Program and project Specific Funding Requirements
e This is a limited funds project. The locality shall be responsible for any additional funding in excess of $2,762,892 (if applicable)
e The locality will be billed the locality share above upon execution of the Agreement. If the estimated cost later differs from the original estimate, the amount of
funding may be adjusted by mutual agreement of Fairfax County and VDOT by a revision to the Appendix A.
e This Appendix A supersedes any previously listed funding schedule.

This attachment is certified and made an official attachment to this document by the parties to this agreement

Authorized Locality Official and date Authorized VDOT Official
Recommendation and Date

Typed or printed name of person signing Typed or printed name of person signing

68



County of Fairfax
Project 9999-029-195, UPC 106498

Appendix B

Project Number: 9999-029-195, (UPC 106498) Locality: Fairfax County

Project Scope

Work Fairfax County Signalized Crosswalks
Description:

From: Various Locations

To: Various Locations

Locality Project Manager Contact Info: Bill Harrell, 703-877-5767, william.harrell@fairfaxcounty.gov
Department Project Coordinator Contact Info: Sid Siddiqui, 703-259-3225

Detailed Scope of Services

VDOT will administer the design and construction of signalized crosswalks using an existing
consultant task order contract. The signalized crosswalks are at nine locations identified by Fairfax
County as Project ID numbers 101, 124, 139, 145, 148, 93, 112, 146, and 178. For the nine
intersections identified, VDOT’s consultant will provide traffic signal modification design services.
The scope of these modifications will be based on improvement sketches provided by Fairfax
County and notes from meetings between VDOT and Fairfax County. A summary of the scope of
work to be completed at each of the locations is described below

(quantities shown are approximate):

Baron Cameron Avenue and Lake Fairfax Drive — ID # 93
Install a marked and signalized pedestrian crosswalk across the north leg of Baron Cameron
Drive.

e Project Includes

o 2 pedestrian countdown signal heads

75 If. of marked crosswalk (blocked style)
2 curb cut ramps
100 If. of asphalt walkway (10 ft. wide)
100 If. of handrail
100 If. of curb and gutter in the southeast quadrant of the intersection
Removal of 50 If. of existing median nose
Relocation of stop bar.

O 0O O O O OO

Chain Bridge Road (SR 123) and Boone Boulevard — ID # 101

Install a marked and signalized pedestrian crosswalk across the west leg of Chain Bridge Road.
e Project includes
o 2 pedestrian countdown signal heads
o 150 If. of marked crosswalk (blocked style)
o 6 curb cut ramps

69



County of Fairfax
Project 9999-029-195, UPC 106498

o 50 If. of 5 ft. wide sidewalk
o 100 If. of curb and gutter in the northwest quadrant of the intersection
o Relocation of stop bar. (48 If.)

Edsall Road and Montgomery Street —ID # 112

Install signalized pedestrian crosswalks across the north and south legs of Montgomery Street, and
on the east leg of Edsall Road. The intersection currently has marked crosswalks across the north,
south and east legs of the intersection.
e Project includes
o 6 pedestrian countdown signal heads

Gallows Road and Route 50 —ID # 124

Upgrade the crosswalks on Gallows Road at Route 50, to include blocked style crosswalks and
pedestrian signal heads.

e Project includes

o 8 pedestrian countdown signal heads

14 curb cut ramps
96 If. of marked crosswalk (blocked style)
24 If. of lined crosswalk markings
Removal of one tree

o O O O

Jermantown Road and Oak Marr Recreation Center/Arrowhead Drive — ID # 139

Upgrade the crosswalks on Jermantown Road at Oak Marr recreation center/Arrowhead Drive, to
include lined style crosswalks and pedestrian signal heads.
e Project includes
o 4 pedestrian countdown signal heads

© 4 curb cut ramps
© 350 If. of lined crosswalk markings

Lee Highway (Route 29 walkway) — ID # 145

Construct walkway on south side of Lee Highway (Route 29) from Circle Towers to Vaden Drive.
Install signalized crosswalk at the intersection of Route 29 and VVaden Drive.
e Project includes
o 2 pedestrian countdown signal heads
o 2 curb cut ramps
o 60 If. of marked crosswalk (blocked style)
o 50 If. of 5 ft. wide concrete sidewalk

Leesburg Pike at Utterback Store Road —ID # 146

Provide a marked (blocked style crosswalk) and pedestrian signal heads for crossing Leesburg
Pike and Utterback Store Road.

e Project includes

70



County of Fairfax
Project 9999-029-195, UPC 106498

4 pedestrian countdown signal heads

6 curb cut ramps

100 If. of marked crosswalk (blocked style)
25 If. of 5 ft. wide concrete sidewalk

140 If. of 10 ft. wide asphalt walkway

20 If. extension of drainage pipe

O O O O O O

Little River Turnpike at Old Columbia Road —ID # 148

Provide a marked (blocked style crosswalk) and pedestrian signal heads for crossing Little River
Turnpike and Old Columbia Road.
e Project includes
o 4 pedestrian countdown signal heads
5 curb cut ramps

(@]
© 180 If. of marked crosswalk (blocked style)
o 50 If. of 5 ft. wide concrete sidewalk

Telegraph Road at Franconia Road —ID # 178

Upgrade the crosswalks on Telegraph Road at Franconia Road, to include lined style crosswalks
and pedestrian signal heads.
e Project includes
o 4 pedestrian countdown signal heads
o 5curb cut ramps
o 200 If. of marked crosswalk (blocked style)

This attachment is certified and made an official attachment to this document by the parties of this agreement

Authorized Locality Official and date Residency Administrator/PE Manager/District Construction Engineer
Recommendation and date

Typed or printed name of person signing Typed or printed name of person signing

71



Board Agenda Item
October 7, 2014

ACTION -5

Approval of First Amendment to the Columbia Pike Streetcar Agreement Between
Fairfax and Arlington Counties (Mason)

ISSUE:
Board approval of the First Amendment to the project agreement between Fairfax and
Arlington Counties for next phases of the Columbia Pike Streetcar project work.

RECOMMENDATION:

The County Executive recommends that the Board approve the amendment, in
substantial form, to the project agreement between Fairfax and Arlington Counties for
the next phases of the Columbia Pike Streetcar project work; and, authorize the County
Executive to sign the amendment.

TIMING:

The Board should take action on this matter on October 7, 2014, to provide funding for
the County’s share of the planning, environmental, and preliminary engineering services
task order work.

BACKGROUND:

For several years, Fairfax County has been engaged in planning efforts to enhance
public transportation in the Columbia Pike corridor with a focus on revitalization for the
Bailey’s Crossroads area. In 2012, following the completion of the federal Alternatives
Analysis and Environmental Assessment, the Board approved streetcar as the Locally
Preferred Alternative (LPA). Over the course of the last 12 months, planning work has
continued on the project. Two key products, the Return on Investment Study and the
Updated Ridership report were completed. The Return on Investment Study found the
streetcar investment would generate $3.2 billion to $4.4 billion in net benefits for the
entire corridor, and would generate $80 million to $160 million in incremental tax
revenue to Fairfax County over a 30 year period. Ridership estimates, using the
Metropolitan Washington Council of Governments (MWCOG) Round 8.2 forecasts for
population and employment and assuming a connection to the Crystal City streetcar,
projected corridor ridership (streetcar and bus) for 2035 of 42,800, or 40 percent higher
than the previous estimates.

Fairfax and Arlington Counties entered into the Columbia Pike Streetcar project
agreement on August 30, 2013. The Project Agreement established the processes for
management and completion of the initial phases of conceptual design and
environmental planning through final design, and set the proportional share that each
jurisdiction will pay for the required consultant services to complete conceptual design

72



Board Agenda Item
October 7, 2014

and environmental planning. The terms of the Project Agreement indicated that there
would be additional phases of project work, specifically Engineering Design and
Program Management services. The First Amendment acknowledges that the parties
are now prepared to proceed with consultant contracts for Program Management and
Engineering Design services, and it applies the existing proportional share for each
County to those services. Fairfax County will pay 19.6 percent and Arlington County will
pay 80.4 percent of costs under this amendment. This percentage splits are subject to
change for subsequent phases of the project.

The First Amendment extends the proportional share that each County pays under the
Project Agreement for Program Management and Engineering Design services. As
provided in the Project Agreement, Arlington County has procured consultant contracts
for Program Management over the next 12 months and Engineering Design services
over the next 18 months for the Columbia Pike Streetcar project. Under the terms of the
Project Agreement, Arlington will invoice Fairfax County quarterly for its share of the
consultants’ services performed on the Columbia Pike Streetcar project. Both the
Program Management and Engineering Design services contracts were endorsed by
the Columbia Pike Street Car Policy Committee on September 22, 2014.

Funding Scenario 1 in the table below represents an option for funding with federal New
Starts funds. This scenario was previously considered, but lengthened the project
schedule and increased costs overall due to federal requirements.

Scenario 1: Existing Federal New Starts strategy

Construction contract award: 2018 ($ in millions)
Revenue service begins: 2021 Fairfax County’s Share of the
Total Project Cost

Total project cost (millions): $358 $70.2
Funding Federal New Starts $176 $34.5
sources State (Additional Contribution) $ 0 $ 0.0
(millions) State Formula Assistance $ 73 $ 0.0

Local $109 $35.7

The Commonwealth recently identified $65 million for the streetcar project, and has
expressed an interest in moving the project forward on an advanced schedule. In an
effort to advance the project, Arlington County produced a non-federal funding scenario
that projects a scheduled completion date of 2020. Funding Scenario 2 in the table
below represents an option for funding without use of federal funds and maximum state
participation at approximately 50 percent. Fairfax and Arlington Counties, and the
Department of Rail and Public Transportation (DRPT) are currently working toward the
implementation of this scenario. This option for funding does not preclude the use of
federal funds for later stages of the project.

73



Board Agenda Item
October 7, 2014

Scenario 2: State funding plus State Aid

Construction contract award: 2017 ($ in millions)
Revenue service begins: 2020 Fairfax County’s Share of the
Total Project Cost

Total project cost (millions): $333' $65.2
Funding Federal New Starts $ 0 $ 0.0
sources State (Additional Contribution) $ 65 $12.7
(millions) State Formula Assistance $ 102 $20.0

Local $166 $32.5

1) As a condition for increased state participation the total project cost under the federal scenario had to
be reduced from $358 million.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The First Amendment provides that Fairfax County will pay 19.6 percent of contract
costs for Program Management and Engineering Design services over the next 12 and
18 months, respectively. Arlington County, in coordination with Fairfax County, entered
into a contract for Program Management services on June 16, 2014, and approved an
initial scope of services for the Columbia Pike Streetcar project totaling $5,222,995,
Fairfax County’s share of these costs is $1,023,707. The Counties have selected a
consultant team for Engineering Design services, and developed an initial scope for
preliminary engineering and associated services totaling $16,655,459. Fairfax County’s
share of these costs is $3,264,470. Fairfax County’s share of the entire project is
projected to be about $65 million.

Fairfax County’s total commitment under the First Amendment is up to $4,288,177. Staff
has identified state aid revenues held at the Northern Virginia Transportation
Commission (NVTC) to satisfy this commitment. There is no impact to the General
Fund.

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:
Attachment |: First Amendment to the Columbia Pike Streetcar Project Agreement

STAFF:

Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive

Tom Biesiadny, Director, Fairfax County Department of Transportation (FCDOT)
Todd Wigglesworth, Acting Chief, Coordination and Funding Division, FCDOT
Leonard Wolfenstein, Chief, Planning Section, FCDOT

Vanessa Aguayo, Transportation Planner, FCDOT

Erin C. Ward, County Attorney’s Office

Ray Johnson, Senior Transportation Planner, FCDOT

74



Attachment
1

FIRST AMENDMENT TO
COLUMBIA PIKE STREETCAR PROJECT AGREEMENT

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE COLUMBIA PIKE STREETCAR PROJECT
AGREEMENT (the “First Amendment”) is made this day of , 2014, by and
between the COUNTY BOARD OF ARLINGTON COUNTY, VIRGINIA (“Arlington County
Board”), a body corporate and politic and a subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia, and
the FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS (“Fairfax County Board”), a body
corporate and politic and a subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia. The Arlington
County Board and the Fairfax County Board are referred to herein individually as a “Party” and
collectively as the “Parties.”

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Parties have worked cooperatively since 2004 in the “Pike Transit Initiative” to
develop plans for an enhanced transit system to serve the Columbia Pike corridor, which extends
generally from Pentagon City in Arlington County via Columbia Pike to Skyline in the Bailey’s
Crossroads area in Fairfax County; and

WHEREAS, the Parties executed a Columbia Pike Streetcar Coordination Agreement dated
August 20, 2009, to establish the structure and processes for management and completion of
environmental planning and preliminary design services for the Columbia Pike streetcar project;
and

WHEREAS, the Parties further entered into the Columbia Pike Streetcar Project Agreement,
dated August 30, 2013 (“2013 Project Agreement”), which established the governance for the
Project (as defined therein) through final design, and approved the scope of work and cost for
additional planning, environmental and conceptual design services; and

WHEREAS, the Parties have jointly developed scopes of work and costs for the completion of
engineering services and comprehensive program management consultant services for the
Project, referred to as phases 2 and 3, respectively, in the 2013 Project Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Section 1 of the 2013 Project Agreement provides that the final scopes and budgets
for the aforesaid phases 2 and 3 shall be subject to approval by amendment to the 2013 Project
Agreement; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals and the terms and conditions
hereinafter set forth the Parties hereby agree to this First Amendment.

75


aschau
Typewritten Text
1


1. APPROVAL OF SCOPES OF WORK AND BUDGETS FOR PHASES 2 AND 3.

The Parties hereby agree upon the scope of work for program management services for phase 3
of the Project, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A (“Program
Management Scope of Work™), which services shall be provided in accordance with the program
management services budget attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B (“Program
Management Services Budget™). Such services shall be administered in accordance with
Agreement No. 565-14 between the Arlington County Board and Parsons Transportation Group,
Inc.

The Parties hereby further agree upon the scope of work for engineering services for phase 2 of
the Project, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit C (“Design Services
Scope of Work™). The Design Services Scope of Work shall be subject to the budget attached
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit D (“Design Services Budget). Such services shall be
administered in accordance with Agreement No. between the Arlington County Board
and

The Parties agree that the aforesaid scopes of work may only be amended by mutual written
agreement as set forth in the 2013 Project Agreement and signed by the Project Managers for
each Party. However, proposed changes in the scopes that will incur additional costs beyond the
aforesaid budgets may only be made with the prior approval of the the Arlington County Board
and the Fairfax County Board.

2. PROJECT FUNDING
The Parties agree the costs of the Program Management Services Budget and the Design
Services Budget shall be apportioned between the Parties as set forth in Exhibits B and D and

shall be paid in accordance with the provisions of Section 6 of the 2013 Project Agreement.

Funding for the Program Management Services Budget and the Design Services Budget are
subject to availability of funds and appropriation by the respective governing bodies.

3. GENERAL

All other terms of the 2013 Project Agreement not amended hereby shall remain in full force and
effect.

This space intentionally left blank.

76



IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the Parties here to have cause d this First Am endment to be
executed under seal as of the date first above written.

COUNTY BOARD OF FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF
ARLINGTON COUNTY, VIRGINIA SUPERVISORS
By: By:
Name: Barbara Donnellan Name: Edward L. Long Jr.
Title: County Manager Title: County Executive
List of Exhibits:

Exhibit A - Program Management Scope of Work
Exhibit B - Program Management Services Budget
Exhibit C - Design Services Scope of Work
Exhibit D - Design Services Budget

77



AGREEMENT NO. 565-14
EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF WORK —YEAR 1

Work Program Tasks and Subtasks

Task 1 Project Management

VN L=

Program Implementation Plan

Project Management Plan

Contractor Progress Reports and Invoices

Project Management Meetings

Other Meetings

Technical Capacity and Capability Review - OPTIONAL
Project Administration Support (Program Wide)

Project Management (Program Wide)

Quarterly Progress Report

Task 2 Integrated Project Office

Task 3 Project & Document Controls System

3.1
3.2
3.3
34
3.5
3.6
3.7
3.8
3.9

Policy & Procedures

Project Control Systems — Interim Solution

Project Control Software

Training

Document Management System

Configuration Management

Schedule Development, Monitoring and Reporting
Cost Monitoring and Reporting

Capital Cost Estimate Update

Task 4 Financial Management

4.1
4.2
43
4.4
4.5

Financial Capital Plan Development

Financial Plan Analysis and Updates

Cash Flow

Assistance in Securing Funding - OPTIONAL
Federal New Starts Program Evaluation - OPTIONAL

Task 5 Risk Management

5.1
52

Risk and Contingency Management Plan (RCMP) Development

RCMP Monitoring and Updates

Task é Third Parly Coordination and Approvals

6.1
6.2
6.3

Third Party Agreement Listing
Coordination
Utility Coordination

Task 7 Procurement Administration

7.1
7.2

EDC Consultant Negotiations
Additional EDC Consultant Negotiations - OPTIONAL

Task 8 Contract Administration/Management

8.1

EDC Contract

First Amendment Exhibit A

Page 28

78


jnguy5
Typewriter
First Amendment Exhibit A

jnguy5
Typewriter

jnguy5
Typewriter

jnguy5
Typewriter


Task ¢ Environmental

9.1 Environmental Approvals

9.2 Mitigation Tracking System

9.3 EDC Environmental Work Monitoring

Task 10 Right-of-Way Acquisition

10.1  Finalize Right-of-Way Acquisition Process
10.2 RAMP Development/Updates

10.3  Right-of-Way Acquisition Tracking

10.4  Right-of-Way Acquisition Support - OPTIONAL

Task 11 Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC) Procedures and Oversight
11.1  Quality Management Program (QMP)

11.2  Review of EDC QA/QC Program

1.3 QA/QC Compliance

Task 12 Design Oversight

12.1  Streetcar Design Criteria, Utility Rules of Practice and Design Standards
12.2  Process Development

12.3  Design Oversight

Task 13 Vehicle Acquisition Support

13.1 Vehicle Requirements

13.2  Rail Fleet Management Plan (RFMP)

13.3  Oversight of EDC Vehicle Specification Effort
13.4  Vehicle Commercial Provisions

13.5 Vehicle Source Selection Plan

Task 14 Communications and Outreach

14.1  Public and Stakeholder Outreach Plan

142  Program Logo and Name

143  Program Education and Communication Materials
14.4  Program Contact Database

14.5 Streetcar Committee Meetings & Communications
14.6  Stakeholder Meetings

14,7  Community-Sponsored Events

14.8 Public Meetings

14.9  Title VI / Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Outreach and Compliance
14.10 Comment Processing & Response to Inquiries

Task 15 Project Delivery Strategy and Coniracting Plan
15.1  Evaluation of Alternative Project Delivery Options
15.2 Contracting and Procurement Plan

15.3 Unsolicited Proposals - OPTIONAL

Page 29

79



Scope of Services

The following scope of work outlines the Work (i.e. Tasks) to be performed by the Contractor in the first year
work program as well as the deliverables that are associated with each Task. The attached first year Work
schedule (Exhibit C — Attachment 1 — Schedule) demonstirates the order and timing in which the Work shall
be performed.

The Contractor shall not perform any Work on an optional Task or sub-task unless written confirmation is
received from the Program Sponsor. The specific scope, deliverables and associated fees shall be
negotiated with the Contractor if the Work is authorized.

Task 1 Project Management

1.1 Program Implementation Plan

The Contractor shall coordinate with the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County to develop a Program
Implementation Plan (PIP) for the Streetcar Program. The PIP shali serve as a guide for the Contractor and
project team to use to implement the two (2) streetcar projects. The PIP shall define the program and
project goals, delineate responsibilities, reporting relationships, as well as outline procedures for undertaking
the work. In addition, the PIP shall incorporate the overall work plan/schedule for the two (2) streetcar
projects. .

The PIP shall include, but not be limited to the following sections; Executive Summary, Infroduction, Revision
History, Contract/Siatement of Work, Project Safety Plan, Change Order Management Plan, Subcontracts
and Suppliers, Project Execution Plan, General Administration, Sustainability Plan, Organization Charts,
Staffing Plan, Roles and Levels of Authority for the PMC, Points of Contact, Work Breakdown Structure (WBS),
WBS Dictionary, Job Charge Numbers, Negotiated Budget and Assumptions, Project Schedule, Document
Control Plan, Training and Orientation Plan, Project Completion and Demobilization Plan, and Standard
Operating Procedures.

There are several common elements that shall be addressed in both the PIP and the Project Management
Plan (PMP). A coordinated approach of the development of these common elements shall be conducted
to eliminate the duplication of effort.

The PIP shall be updated at least once in the first year to incorporate new procedures, schedules and/or
responsibilities. The Program Sponsor must approve the PIP as well as any subsequent updates.

As part of the PIP, the Contractor shall establish and implement a health and safety program through the
development of a Project Safety Plan (PSP). The PSP shall be based on experience from similar streetcar
and street running light rail transit projects. The PSP shall address the health and safety of the Contractor
and Project Sponsor’'s teams working on the streetcar program and shall be based on the following main
principles:

e Occupational injuries and iliness are preventable;

e Appropriate programs need to be implemented to protect the health and safety of staff; and

e Continuing scrutiny of hazards, training and experience is essential to success.

The Contractor shall provide a Safety Manager who shall be responsible for the development of the PSP and
its implementation. The Safety Manager shall conduct the following activities during the first year of the
Contractor's Work:

e Review and comment on the Project Sponsor's Safety Health Plans;

e Conduct an initial Hazard Assessment of the Streetcar Program;

¢ Develop the Project Safety Plan;

e Develop the Office Safety Plan for the Integrated Project Office (IPO};

e Review Confractor subconsultants' Safety Plans;

o Conduct safety orientation and training classes for the Contractor and Project Sponsor staff located
in the IPO;

Page 30

80



o Conduct periodic inspections of the IPO and project work sites for compliance with the PSP
requirements; and
e Review and comment on the EDC's Safety Plan.

The Project Safety Plan shall be updated should conditions or situations change during the first year of the
Streetcar Program. It will be updated as the streetcar advances into the next phase of the project
development during the second year of the Contractor's contract.

1.2 Project Management Plan

The Contractor shall develop and update a Program Management Plan (PMP) for each Streetcar project.
The PMP shall define the organizational structure, project team responsibilities and reporting relationships,
project approach, work breakdown structure for management of cost, schedule and resources, as well as
plans and procedures for key elements, including the Rail Fleet Management Plan (RFMP), Risk and
Contfingency Management Plan (RCMP), Real Estate Management Pian (RAMP) and the Quadlity
Management Plan (QMP). The RCMP (Task 5), RAMP (Task 10), QMP (Task 11), and RFMP (Task 13) are major
subplans to the PMP and shall be developed as stand-alone documents within the referenced tasks. A
summary description and overview of each plan shall be included in the body of the actual PMP along with
a reference to each specific individual plan.

The Contractor shall develop the Safety and Security Management Plan (SSMP) for each streetcar project
that meets all Federal Transit Administration (FTA) safety and security requirements identified in FTA Circular
5800.1, Safety and Security Management Guidance for Major Capital Projects. The SSMP shall be a stand-
alone document that will be referenced in the PMP. Development of the SSMP shall involve coordination
and review by the Department of Rail and Public Transportation (DRPT), the current rail oversight agency.

The Columbia Pike Streetcar PMP shall address all FTA New Starts Program requirements as identified in 49
CFR Parts 611 and 633, FTA Circulars 4220.1F, 5010.1D, and 5800.1, and the FTA Master Agreement. The
Columbia Pike PMP shall commence with a review of the existihng PMP document prepared by Arlington
County for the fall 2012 FTA Program Management Oversight Contractor (PMOC) meetings. The revisions
and additions shall address the PMOC review comments as well as reflect organizational and procedural
decisions developed as part of Task 1.1 — Project Implementation Plan.

The Crystal City Streetcar PMP shall be patterned after the Columbia Streetcar PMP but will not undergo
future FTA reviews. The SSMP development shall involve coordination and review by DRPT, the current rail
oversight agency.

Both PMPs shall incorporate information developed from other Contractor task efforts, including Schedule
Development (Task 3.7), Document Management System (Task 3.5), Project Controls System (Task 3),
Financial Plan Preparation (Task 4.1), RCMP Development (Task 5.1), Third Party Agreement Listing (Task 6.1),
RAMP Development/Updates (Task 10.2) and QMP (Task 11.1) as well as the Project Delivery Method (Task
15.1).

The PMP for each project, as well as the SSMP, shall be updated as required throughout the year to address
revisions to plans and procedures, the organization structure or project issues. The Program Sponsor must
approve each section of the PMP as well as any updates and revisions.

1.3 Contractor Progress Reports and Invoices

The Contractor shall prepare and submit monthly reporting and invoices to the Program Sponsor in the
format prescribed by the Program Sponsor. The monthly progress reports shall be comprehensive and
include the following information: accomplishments, deliverables, important meetings, current issues
relating to the streetcar projects, including interfaces, budgets and schedules, proposed resolutions to
mitigate the issues, and other project management issues.

1.4 Project Management Meetings
The Contractor shail prepare for and participate in weekly project review meetings and other meetings with
the Project Management Team (PMT). The PMT will include representatives from the Program Sponsor,

Page 31

81



Fairfax County, the Contractor and the Engineering Design Consultant (EDC). The PMT will be expanded to
include other contractors added to the Program.

The Contractor shall prepare the meeting agenda, supporting materials and minutes of each meeting for
Project Sponsor review and approval. The meeting minutes shall include agreed upon action items,
assignments and due dates.

The Contractor shall develop and maintain a comprehensive issues/action item log for tracking action items
and assignments, information transfers, issue resolution, and decisions required for the execution of the
streetcar projects. The Contractor shall propose formats and contents for the log, and the final log format,
contents, and timing of reporting will be approved by the Program Sponsor. The Action Item Log shall be
updated weekly.

The Contractor shall participate and provide support for project reporting in other meetings as requested by
the Project Sponsor including the following:

e Arington County Streetcar Interdepartmental Working Group - biweekly meetings with Deputy
County Manager and department staff to discuss progress, key issues, coordination requirements;

e Policy Committee (PC) - quarterly meetings to review materials and obtain policy direction at key
points during the planning and development process. The Columbia Pike Streetcar PC includes
representatives from the Arlington County and Fairfax County and their Boards, VDOT, DRPT, the
Commonwealth Transportation Board, Virginia State Senate and Virginia House of Delegates. The
PC will approve any changes to the project scope and schedule, as well as review draft documents
prior to presentation to the County Boards or the public. It is anticipated that a PC will be formed for
the Crystal City Streetcar project once the project enters the engineering phase. The PC members
will be similar, with the exception that Fairfax County representatives will not be included; and

o Executive Steering Committee (ESC) — quarterly meetings to provide direction to the PMT on major
project issues. Members include senior transportation staff with both Counties.

The Contractor shall prepare the meeting agenda, presentation materials and minutes of each meeting for
Project Sponsor review and approval. The meeting minutes shall include agreed upon action items.

Task 1.5 Other Meefings
As requested, the Contractor shall prepare draft reports and presentation materials on the status of the
streetcar projects or key issues and attend meetings with various County groups and external agencies.
These groups include:
e Arlington County Board, Fairfax County Board of Supervisors;
o Department of Rail and Public Transportation (DRPT) — quarterly reports on project expenditures,
activities and status;
e Federal funding agencies — reports on project expenditures, activities and milestone progress; and
® Review agencies — specific meetings to discuss issues associated with compliance, interlocal
agreements, permits, or other requirements.

The Contractor shall participate in and/or undertake project presentations and briefings on a periodic basis
and attend other meetings with the Program Sponsor, agencies and contractors.

The Program Sponsor must approve all reports and materials for presentation to these agencies as well as
Contractor attendance at the meetings.

Task 1.6 Technical Capacity and Capability Review - OPTIONAL

The Contractor shall perform a review and evaluation of the Program Sponsor’'s and Fairfax County's
technical capacity and capability to successfully implement, manage, and complete the Arflington and
Fairfax County Streetcar program. This shall address the ability of the two counties to successfully deliver
a major federally-assisted capital project, oversee consultants and contractors, satisfy funding and
compliance requirements, recognize and manage project risk factors, and implement mitigation
measures. The review shall address the following areas:

o Staff Positions and Qualifications

Page 32

82



The Contractor shall identify the specific functions that the Project Sponsor needs to perform as
federal and state grantee as well as owner of a fixed guideway system. The grantee requirements
relate to the funding and compliance requirements associated with federal and state funds,
including those outlined in FTA PMOC Oversight Procedure 21 — Management Capacity and
Capability Review. An important part of this review shall be the assignment of roles and
responsibilities between the Program Sponsor, Fairfax County and the Contractor. Specific ‘areas
that shall be addressed include budget/finance, procurement, contract management, project
management, compliance, quality, safety and security and engineering.

The Contractor shall review the Program Sponsor positions assigned to the Streetcar Program as
well as positions supporting the Program to develop an understanding of how specific functions
are being undertaken. Conduct a comparable review of the Fairfax County positions supporting
the Streetcar Program. Develop recommendations on any additional positions that are required
for both the short term period (preliminary engineering) as weli as the longer term period (final
design, construction and commissioning). The recommendations shall include the following
information:
o Position title;
o Function, including roles and responisibilities;
o Qudlifications - education, experience and any requirements for professional
licenses/certifications;
o Position classification, with supporting information on how the position is classified in other
agencies delivering major infrastructure projects;
o Timing and term; and
o The project delivery method(s) that are applicable to each position.

Organization Structure

The Contractor shall review the cument Streetcar Program organization structure and present
recommendations on any revisions that are needed, with supporting rationale. This shall include
recommendations on how qudlity and safety/security issues should be addressed in both
Counties.

Procurement System Review

The Contractor shall review the Program Sponsor’'s procurement system for the purpose of
establishing the efficiency and effectiveness. The Procurement System review will consist of an
assessment and contract review. The assessment will address the organizational structure, staffing,
management direction, and policies and procedures. The contract review will address
compliance with FTA Circular 4220.1F,

The Contractor shall produce and submit a draft report presenting findings, recommendations and
supporting rationale on the positions, organization structure and procurement system recommendations
for review by the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County. The Contractor shali develop and submit the final
report to include the revisions and additions requested by the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County.

In performing this Work, the Contractor shall attend three (3) meetings with the Program Sponsor and
Fairfax County senior management staff o finalize the approach, report on progress and initial findings
and then present draft findings and recommendations. Additional meetings that the Contractor shall
attend include the following:

Arlington County Streetcar program staff to obtain information on their responsibilities,
qualifications and experience;

Fairfax County staff to obtain information on their responsibilities, qualifications and experience;
Arlington County Human Resources staff to obtain an understanding of the County's personnel
classification structure as well as market conditions affecting recruitments; and

Arlington County Department of Management and Finance - Purchasing, County Attorney Office
{CAQO) and Department of Environmental Services (DES) — Transit staff to obtain an understanding
of current procurement processes and procedures.

Page 33

83



The Contractor shall consider findings and recommendations developed by the FTA PMOC review of the
Columbia Pike Streetcar project as part of this review. The Program Sponsor and Fairfax County will provide
access to organizational structures, position descriptions, staffing plans, procedures and other relevant data,
and access to select Program Sponsor and Fairfax County Staff.

1.7 Project Administration Support (Program Wide)

The Contractor shall provide administrative support to the Project Sponsor, including, but not limited to,
documentation of meetings, report writing, preparation of draft comrespondence, graphics, presentations,
assistance with logging and storage of information, electronic file maintenance and preparation of monthly
progress reports.

1.8 Project Management (Program Wide}

The Contractor shall provide a full-time Program Manager to the Contract. The Program Manager shall
oversee the performance of the Contractor team, manage the Contractor budget and schedule, provide
staffing with the requisite technical skills and expertise to conduct the Work and coordinate Contractor staff
committed to the Program and their availability. The Program Manager shall work on a full-time basis out of
the Integrated Project Office (IPO).

1.9 Quarterly Progress Report

The Contractor shall prepare and submit a quarterly Streetcar Program progress report in the format
prescribed and approved by the Program Sponsor. The report shall provide a comprehensive and detailed
summary of the status of the development of the Streetcar Program and provide information for public and
funding agency reporting undertaken in other tasks. The report shall include an executive summary and
other sections, presenting information on activities and accomplishments, cost and schedule performance,
as well as significant issues, challenges and proposed resolutions.

Deliverables

= 1.1A - Project Implementation Plan (PIP) for the Program, with updates — draft and update;

= 1.1B - Project Safety Plan for the Program, with updates - draft and update;

» 1.2A - Project Management Plan (PMP) for Columbia Pike Streetcar Project, with updates - draft
and update;

= 1.2B - Project Management Plan (PMP) for Crystal City Streetcar Project, with updates - draft and
update;

» 1.2C - Safety and Security Management Plan (SSMP) for Columbia Pike Streetcar Project, with
updates - draft and update;

= 1.2D - Safety and Security Management Plan (SSMP) for Crystal City Streetcar Project, with updates —
draft and update;

= 1.3A - Contractor Project Invoices — monthly;

» 1.3B - Contractor Progress Reports — monthly;

* 1.4A - Project Management Team Meetings - attendance, meeting agendas, supporting materials
and issues/action items log - weekly meetings;

s 1.4B - Other Management Meetings — attendance, agendas, presentation materials, graphics,
correspondence, minutes, financial reports;

= 1.5A - Other Meetings - draft reports, presentation materials, attendance;

= 1.6A —Technical Capacity and Capability Summary Report— draft and final (OPTIONAL);

= 1.7A - Administrative support for project management, oversight, planning and execution of task
order work;

» 1.8A - Project management, oversight, planning and execution of task order work; and

= 1.9A - Progress Reports - quarterly.

Task 2 Integrated Project Office

Representatives of the Program Sponsor and the Contractor shall be located at and work from an
Integrated Project Office (IPO) established by the Program Sponsor. The Contractor managerial staoff, lead
coordinators, and other persons identified as key personnel shall be physically located at the IPO as the
Work requires and within the agreed hours and travel cost budgeted.

Page 34

84



The IPO will be established by the Program Sponsor shortly after the formal Notfice to Proceed and
throughout the first year of the Program.

Task 3 - Project & Document Controls System

The Contractor shall coordinate with the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County to set up the Program and
project management software tools to facilitate collection and management of information related to cost,
schedule, scope, issue tracking, document control, contract administration, project status and other related
activities.

The Contractor shall;
e Coordinate with Program Sponsor staff to confim set up and configuration issues as well as
integration with existing County systems, including financial and contract information;
Develop the Work Breakdown Structure {(WBS) for the program;
Coordinate with Program Sponsor financial and budget staff in establishing the cost accounting
structure;
e Develop policies and procedures for document control, change administration and management,
budget and schedule control;
Develop draft report formats and incorporate review comments;
Coordinate system set up and testing to ensure accuracy and completeness of the reports;
Coordinate system training for Program Sponsor staff and the extended project team; and
At the end of the Contract, the Contractor shall transfer to the Program Sponsor the Project Controls
System and all related licenses.

3.1 Policy & Procedures

The Contractor shall coordinate with the Project Sponsor to develop policies and procedures for document
control, change administration, budget and schedule control. This shall involve development of a Work
Breakdown Structure (WBS) for each project from which scheduled activities shall be derived. The
procedures shall define the reporting requirements and specific formats for the scheduling and cost
reporting as well as the efforts that shall be undertaken to integrate the information with existing Program
Sponsor systems, including the financial and contract administration systems. The change administration
procedures shall address proposed change orders and/or contract amendments.

The Contractor shall develop the draft policies and procedures, with the final policies and procedures
reflecting the revisions and additions requested by the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County.

3.2 Project Control Systems — Interim Solution

The Contractor shall coordinate with the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County to set up the program and
project management software tools that shall facilitate collection and management of information related
to cost, schedule, scope, issue tracking, document control, configuration management, contract
administration, project status and other related activities.

The Coniractor shall implement an interim project control solution while the selected project control
software system is being acquired and established. The specific applications and format of the information
shall be recommended by the Contractor and approved by the Program Sponsor. The applications shall
include Microsoft SharePoint and Office Outlook, Excel and Access, and ProjectWise. The Contractor shall
be responsible for training of Program Sponsor and Fairfax County staff on the interim project control solution
and the migration of project data from the interim solution into the project control software system.

3.3 Project Control Software

The Contractor shall provide all services related to the acquisition, set up, implementation and
maintenance of the project control software system. The e-Builder Enterprise system shall be used for the
overall project control functions and the Oracle Primavera Pé Professional Project Management used for the
Program scheduling.

The e-Builder Modules shall include:
e Cost and Funding Management;
o Structured Workflow and Forms Management;

Page 35

85



Schedule Management;

Integrated Reporting and Dashboards;
Document Management;

Calendar Management;

Contact Management; and

e-builder Mobile.

The Contractor shall acquire an enterprise license structure for the software licenses for the Contractor,
Program Sponsor, Fairfax County and the EDC. The Contractor shall provide services required for the
implementation, utilization and maintenance of the software, including the application hosting services,
ongoing maintenance as well as user support services to diagnose problems, determine proper solutions
and provide the implementation services necessary to obtain the required documentation. The e-Builder
support services shall be provided by e-Builder staff with expertise in the functional and operational areas of
e-Builder Enterprise™ and shall be available twenty four hours a day, seven (7) days per week, within a 30
minute, 2 hour or same day response time based upon the issue severity level as defined in the e-Builder
Service Level Agreement (SLA) (Exhibit C — Attachment 2 — e-Builder SLA).

3.4 Training

The Contractor shall hire e-Builder staff to provide training to the Contractor, Program Sponsor, Fairfax
County and Engineering Design Contractor (EDC) staff. There will be two (2}, two-day “End User Training”
classes (class sizes from 15-20 people); one (1), three-day “Administrator” class (8 people); and one (1),
three-day “Train the Trainer” class (8 people). The Contractor shall provide written training materials.

3.5 Document Management System

The Conftractor shall develop a document management system for each streetcar project in coordination
with Program Sponsor and Fairfax County staff. The system shall specify policies and procedures to ensure
that all Streetcar Program team members have access to cumrent and accurate documents at all times.
The procedures shall reflect applicable local, state and federal requirements for record retention. The effort
shall be coordinated with the project controls system development and involve preparation of draft policies
and procedures and finalization of the policies and procedures to reflect revisions requested by the
Program Sponsor.

The Contractor shall undertake the storage, management and archiving of all documentation for the two
(2) projects using the approved procedures. Documents to be managed include, but shall not be limited
to, project schedules, project budgets, diagrams, drawings, plans, specifications, written text associated
with the project, materials from the civic engagement process, requests for information, change requests,
and all written project correspondence. The documentation will address the NEPA requirements relating to
maintaining the ‘administrative record’ for the project as well as FTA New Starts Program funding
requirements relating to the creation of a ‘Before and After Study' on the project.

The Coniractor shall be responsible for implementation of the systems and procedures, training of
Contractor, Program Sponsor and EDC staff and monitoring of compliance with procedures.

At the conclusion of the Contract, or at any time as directed by the Program Sponsor, in accordance with
the Main Agreement Terms and Conditions, the Contractor shall provide to the Program Sponsor all
documents and work products created under this Contract. As requested, the Contractor shall supply the
Program Sponsor with electronic copies of the documentation.

The Conftractor shall assist the Program Sponsor in developing and maintaining Program website data and
content and selecting and implementing other software tools to facilitate team communication and
manage exchange of information during the design process.

3.6 Configuration Management

The Contractor shall develop and implement a configuration management system that enables the
efficient management of the physical configuration of the projects and ensures that documents, records
and data remain concise and valid. The system shall accommodate and document the approved
changes and provide the foundation for permanently recording the evolution of the project, the approved

Page 36

86



design changes and supporting documentation. The Contractor shall develop the draft configuration
management system, with the final configuration management system incorporating revisions and additions
requested by the Program Sponsor.

3.7 Schedule Development, Monitoring and Reporting

As part of the initial schedule baselining effort, the Contractor shall review the draft schedules prepared by
the Program Sponsor for each streetcar project and provide comments on the existing schedule activities,
projected durations and timeframes for each project milestone and deliverable, interrelationships of
activities, as well as Critical Path elements.

The Contractor shall participate in meetings with Program Sponsor and Fairfax County staff to discuss review
comments and finalize issues pertaining to the schedules. The Contractor shall prepare a draft baseline
schedule for each project and finalize the baseline schedules to include the revisions approved by the
Program Sponsor and Fairfax County. The baseline schedules shall cover all elements of the projects through
and including the start of revenue service and shall be used for measuring project progress and contract
performance.

The Contractor shall track the progress of both projects and report against the Baseline Schedules regularly,
but not less than bi-weekly, fo include current information regarding the progress of the projects and
contracts, critical and near-critical activities, and outstanding issues affecting the schedule. The Contractor
shall propose report formats and contents, with the final report format, contents, and reporting dates
approved by the Program Sponsor.

The Contractor shall review the draft baseline preliminary engineering schedules developed by the EDC and
provide comments to the Program Sponsor on the reasonableness of the activities, durations, and
milestones as well as recommendations on any revisions, with supporting rationale. Following approval by
the Program Sponsor, the Contractor shall coordinate with the EDC on the implementation of the required
revisions to the baseline preliminary engineering schedules. The Contractor shall incorporate the approved
EDC baseline preliminary engineering schedule into the baseline scheduies for each streetcar project.

As the preliminary engineering work proceeds, the Contractor shall review the monthly schedule update
from the EDC and, if acceptable, integrate it into the project baseline schedules. In addition, the
Contractor shall review other project activities, including procurements, real estate acquisition, utility
relocation, and incorporate same into the baseline schedules.

The Contractor shall advise the Program Sponsor of all delays that affect critical path activities within five (5)
business days of knowledge of the delay. The Contractor shall develop and recommend corrective action
plans and recovery schedules for Program Sponsor and Fairfax County review and approval.

3.8 Cost Monitoring and Reporting

The Contractor shall analyze, monitor and report on a monthly basis actual and budget information for
each project to ensure there are sufficient funds to allow for completion of the projects. The information
shall include, but not be limited to reporting on encumbrances, commitments, expenditures and balances,
with information presented by funding source; the status of projected revenues; and assessments of project
progress based upon actual costs, estimates to complete outstanding activities, schedule progress, and
updated quarterly cash flow projections. The reporting of project costs shall conform to the FTA Standard
Cost Codes (SCC). The Contractor shall ensure that the structuring of the WBS enables the costs to be easily
reported by SCC code.

The Contractor shall identify any necessary changes in scope or anticipated under-runs or over-runs as well
as any potential change requests within five days knowledge of the scope or cost change issue. The
Contractor shall assist in identifying and undertaking actions to prevent, if possible, and address any
deficiencies.

The Contractor shall propose formats and contents for each report. The final report format, contents, and
fiming of reporting will be approved by the Program Sponsor. The cost monitoring results will be discussed in
weekly Project Management Team (PMT) meetings.

Page 37

87



3.9 Capital Cost Estimate Update

The Contractor shall perform an initial capital cost estimate review and update effort that shall be directed
at formal baselining and re-baselining of the cost, schedule, and risk profile for each project. The
Contractor shall also perform and manage cost estimating of other project elements, including real estate,
agency costs, and other soft costs. In addition, the Contractor shall review the design elements included in
the previously developed capital cost estimates contained in the FY2015-FY2024 draft Arington County
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) submission and make recommendations to the Program Sponsor for any
modifications, additions or other adjustments.

Deliverables:
= 3.1A - Policies and procedures for Document Control, Change Administration and Management,
Budget and Schedule Control — draft and final;
= 3.1B - Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) for the Program;
= 3.2A —Interim Project Control System Implementation;
3.3A - Project Control Software —acquisition (enterprise license structure), Set up, installation,
Discovery, Customization, Integration;
3.3B — Project Control Software Maintenance and User Support Services - Ongoing;
3.4A —Training and Training Materials;
3.5A — Document Management System Storage, Management and Archiving;
3.5B — Documentation Management System — Implementation and Training;
3.6A — Configuration Management Plan - draft and final;
3.6B — Configuration Management System - Implementation and Training;
3.7A - Baseline Schedule for Each Project — draft and final;
3.7B - Schedule Monitoring and Reporting-biweekly;
3.7C - Review and Coordination of EDC Baseline Schedules;
3.7D - Updated Baseline Schedule for each project — draft and final;
3.8A — Cost Accounting Structure
3.8B — Cost Monitoring and Reporting — monthly; and
3.9A — Baseline Capital Cost Estimate for each Streetcar Project.

Task 4 Financial Management

4.1 Financial Capital Plan Development

The Contractor shall coordinate with Program Sponsor and Fairfax County financial, accounting and grants
staff to develop a master financial capital plan for the Program that includes budget and cash flow
information for each project, with the source and use of the funds idenfified for each activity and
expenditure. The financial capital plan shall be developed to address Program Sponsor internal accounting
system requirements, FTA requirements for federally supported capital projects and DRPT requirements for
Commonweadlth supported projects. The capital financial plan shall reflect the cost accounting structure
developed as part of the Project Controls System (Task 3). The format of the financial plan shall be
recommended by the Contractor and approved by the Program Sponsor.

The capital financial plan shall present as a separate element the improvements that would qualify as a
enrichment and be eligible for exclusion from the New Starts Program cost- effectiveness measure
calculations, as defined in the FTA New and Small Starts Evaluation and Rating Process Final Policy
Guidance (August 2013).

The financial plan development shall consider information developed as part of the Arlington County
Manager's proposed FY2015-FY2024 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) budget submission (May 2014). The
funding program for each Streetcar Program will be confirmed as part of this publication.

For the Columbia Pike Streetcar project, other information to be considered includes cost recommendations
developed by the FTA PMOC Contractor as well as facility cost estimates currently being prepared by
another contractor tfeam under a separate contract with the Program Sponsor.

For the Crystal City Streetcar project, information to be considered shall include the capital cost estimating
work prepared by the Crystal City Streetcar Environmental Assessment contractor team.

Page 38

88



Additional efforts that shall be undertaken to refine the two (2) project budgets are:

e Incorporating project schedule adjustments approved as part of Task 3.7 — Project Schedules;

¢ Refining project management costs to include a more detailed estimate of agency staff charges
and program management consultant costs;
Reviewing and finalizing the project limits and facilities to be included in each project; and
Allocating project costs between the two (2) streetcar projects as well as Arlington County and
Fairfax County. The Contractor shall review the methodology developed by the Program Sponsor
and Fairfax County that dllocates capital costs between the two streetcar projects and make
recommendations on any revisions o the methodology. The final methodology to be used will be
approved by the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County.

The above efforts shall involve meetings with the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County staff and
development of analysis, recommendations and supporting information.

The Contractor shall present recommended budget adjustments and supporting rationale to the Program
Sponsor and Fairfax County for review and approval. The Contractor shall finalize the capital budget for
each project to incorporate revisions approved by the Program Sponsor.

4.2 Financial Plan Analysis and Updates

4.2.1 Capital

The Confractor shall provide assistance with regular financial analyses of the projects, including tracking
and reporting encumbrances, allocations and expenditures by project and funding source, and analyzing,
preparing and maintaining current and projected cash flow requirements for the Program. The information
shall be reported monthly, as defined in Task 3.8.

The Contractor shall update the capital plan for each project as required to address funding, cost and
contract administration issues, including change order and contract modifications. This shall include
updating the financial plan after a decision on the project delivery method for each project is made (Task
15.1).

4.2.2 Operating and Maintenance - OPTIONAL

If this subtask option is authorized, the Contractor shall update the operating and maintenance costs and
revenues for each project following a decision on the project delivery method. This shall include a review
of cost estimates and revenues prepared for the FY2015-FY2024 draft Arlington County CIP submission and
conducting additional analysis to refine the costs and revenue estimates. The methodology and revised
cost estimates must be approved by the Program Sponsor.

4.3 Cash Flow

The Contractor shall report quarterly capital cash flow projections and needs for each project, after the
project delivery method(s) have been defined per Task 15.1. The format of the cash flow reports shall be
recommended by the Contractor and approved by the Program Sponsor.

4.4 Assistance in Securing Funding - OPTIONAL

If this subtask option is authorized, the Contractor shall assist the Program Sponsor in securing funding. This
shall include providing support for securing funding agreements through DRPT and other funding sources.
The assistance shall include development of funding applications and correspondence for Program Sponsor
review and approval.

At the direction of the Program Sponsor, the Contractor shall provide assistance in developing grant
applications for project funding, budget revisions and extension requests.

The Contractor shall provide assistance with financial and progress reporting to internal and funding
agencies. Develop appropriate formats for the reports that will meet the requirements of the funding
agencies. The Program Sponsor will have final approval of all reporting formats and report development
processes.

Page 39

89



4.5 Federal New Starts Program Evaluation - OPTIONAL

If this subtask option is authorized, the Contractor shall provide support in evaluating the competitiveness of
the Columbia Pike Streetcar project with the FTA New Starts program and identifying schedule and cost
implications related to securing required approvals. The project competitiveness evaluation shall review
how the project is expected to perform against the New Starts Program evaluation criteria, using updated
ridership projections developed by the Program Sponsor in March 2014, cost information developed in Tasks
4.2 and 3.9 as well as evaluation criteria issued by FTA. Other information to be considered is the FTA New
Starts Program authorization levels approved by Congress as well as the number of competing projects in
the New Starts Program funding pipeline.

The Contractor shall identify strategies to make the project successful for FTA New Starts funding and to
maximize the amount of funding secured from the program. This shall include reviewing opportunities to
present the two (2) streetcar projects as an 'interrelated program of projects’ as well as identifying federal
funding opportunities for maintenance facility costs.

Program Sponsor, Fairfax and Contractor Roles
The roles for the Program Sponsor, Fairfax County, and the Contractor for this task will be as follows:
e Program Sponsor and Fairfax County staff will be responsible for the following efforts:
o Inputting financial information into PRISM, including grant and funding information,
encumbrances, expenditures and reimbursements;
o Determining financial strategies;
Securing all project financing, including any debt financing;
o Submitting grant applications, extension requests and budget revisions to funding agencies
as well as progress reports;
o Issuing all correspondence to funding agencies; and
o Obtaining required approvals from Arlington County Board and Fairfax County Board of
Supervisors related to project budgets and funding plans.
e The Contractor will be provided with read-only access to PRISM.

]

Deliverables:
* 4.1A - Financial Capital Plan for Columbia Pike Streetcar Project — draft and update;

4.1B - Financial Capital Plan for Crystal City Streetcar Project— draft and update;

4.1C - Recommendations on Streetcar Program Capital Cost Allocation Methodology;

4.2A - Revised Financial Capital Plan for Columbia Pike Streetcar Project- draft and update;

4.2B — Revised Financial Capital Plan for Crystal City Streetcar Project- draft and update;

4.2C - Financial Reporting on Capital Costs — monthly;

4.2D - Updated Operations and Maintenance Costs — draft and update (OPTIONAL);

4.3A — Capital Cash Flow Projections — quarterly;

4.4A - Information for Grant Applications, Requests for Budget Revisions and Extension Requests

(OPTIONAL); and

» 4.5A - Evaluation of Columbia Pike Streetcar Project Competitiveness with Federal New Starts
Program (OPTIONAL). :

Task 5 Risk Management
5.1 Risk and Contingency Management Plan (RCMP) Development
The Contractor shall establish a systematic risk management process for each streetcar project that
identifies and assesses risks as well as establishes response and control strategies to manage the risks,
including a secondary mitigation plan. The Contractor shall document the risk management process in a
RCMP for each project.
This activity shall:
e Assist the Project Sponsors in making key decisions related to:
o Project-Delivery Method (e.g., design-bid-build vs. design-build or Public-Private Partnership)
and
o Contract Packaging (i.e.. separate Columbia Pike Streetcar and Crystal City Streetcar
projects, versus a combined programy);
¢ ldentify and assess cost and schedule risks for both streetcar projects, and identify cost-effective
primary mitigation measures;

Page 40

90



e Establish appropriate cost and schedule contingencies for both projects; and
e Document allitems above in a Risk and Contingency Management Plan (RCMP) for each project.

For the Columbia Pike Streetcar project, the effort shall involve updating the Risk Register that was
developed by the Program Sponsor and FTA PMOC. For the Crystal City Streetcar project, the effort shall
involve updating the initial draft Risk Register developed by the Program Sponsor. For both projects, the risk
management effort shall include an assessment of the related infrastructure projects, including county and
state roadway and infrastructure projects.

The effort shall involve several workshops attended by the Program Sponsor, Fairfax County and Contractor
to discuss and assess risks.

The effort will include information and analysis from other tasks, including the cost updating to be
undertaken in Task 3.9 as well as the schedule updating undertaken in Task 3.7.

The Contractor shall provide recommendations on revisions and additions and supporting rationale to the
Program Sponsor and update the Risk Registers with the revisions approved by the Program Sponsor.

Subtask 5.1.1 Develop/Define the Risk Management Process

The Contractor shall develop and define the risk management process to be followed and establish the
RCMP outline/template. The process shall follow the guidelines established in the FTA PMOC Oversight
Procedure OP-40A - Risk and Contingency Review. The process shall incorporate the preliminary risk
assessments previously developed by the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County, expand them to include any
additional elements that are required and prepare a RCMP for each project.

Step 1 - Baseline Cost and Schedules
The Contractor shall review the baseline cost and schedule developed for each project as part of task 3.7 -

Schedule Development and task 3.9 — Capital Cost Estimate Update and define key decision points and
issues that will impact the baseline costs and schedule, including project delivery method and contract
packaging. To define the baseline project, the Contractor shall organize and hold a one-day workshop
with key program participants. Participants will include Program Sponsor, Fairfax County and Contractor
staff from the management, project controls, development and oversight areas. The results of the workshop
shall be a review of the current risk items, a set of additional candidate risk items and a risk assessment "“flow
chart”.

Step 2 - Update the Risk Registers

The Contractor shall update the risk registers for the Columbia Pike Streetcar project and Crystal City
Streetcar project, including the primary mitigation measures for significant risks. “Risks” include cost and
schedule risks (potential losses) and opportunities {potential improvements). This shall be a collaborative
effort between the Contractor, Project Sponsor and Fairfax County. This effort shall identify a
comprehensive and non-overlapping set of cost and schedule risks for each project {and any changes for
the key decision alternatives). For this sub-task, each risk shall be quantified in terms of a mean-value cost
change and duration change; this shall address the probability of occurrence and a mean-value cost
change and a mean-value duration change if the risk occurred. The time-value of schedule delays shall
also be assessed, so that the cost and time impacts for each risk shall be combined into a single equivalent
monetary risk impact {(mean-value risk severity). Risks shall then be ranked on the basis of mean-value
monetary risk impact (i.e., in terms of dollars). Primary risk mitigation measures shall then be discussed for the
most significant risks.

This sub-task shall require a three (3} day workshop with key participants which shall be organized by the
Contractor. Participants will include Program Sponsor and Fairfax County staff and Contractor staff from the
management, project controls, development, oversight, and alternative project delivery groups.

The Contractor shall develop and document in the Draft RCMP for each project an updated cost and
schedule risk register for each project, with mean-value assessments and potential risk-mitigation measures.

Page 41

91



Step 3 - Quantify Cost and Schedule Uncertainty

The Confractor shall quantify cost and schedule uncertainty for each project and major decision
alternatives, develop cost and schedule contingencies, and finalize the draft RCMP for each project. This
effort builds on the results from Steps 1 and 2, and leads to quantifying uncertainty in ultimate project cost
and schedule in terms of percentiles or confidence levels (e.g., there is an 80% chance that Columbia Pike
project could be completed for a cost of $X million or less). This information shall be used to compare the
cost and schedule for the key decision alternatives at desired confidence levels. The results shall also be
used to help define cost and schedule contingencies and a contingency-management plan.

This sub-task shall involve a two (2) day workshop with the same key participants from the previous workshop
session. The Contractor shall document in the draft RCMP for each project cost and schedule uncertainty
characterization and key decision alternatives, as well as a contingency-management plan. The draft
RCMP shall be an input into the project delivery method evaluation effort in Subtask 15.1.

Step 4 - RCMP Update

Upon selection of the project delivery method for each project in Task 15.1, the Contractor shall review and
update each RCMP to address any new or changed risks as well as mitigation strategies that are associated
with the project delivery method for review by the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County. The RCMP update
shall reflect any revisions and/or additions requested by the Program Sponsor and shall be used as the
baseline document for the projects.

5.2 RCMP Monitoring and Updates

Throughout the remaining portion of the first year Work, the Contractor shall monitor the risks to determine
how they have been handled or changed and assist the Program Sponsor in identifying mitigation strategies
for any new risks that arise. The Contractor shall update the RCMP for each project to include any new
program or project risks as well as mitigation strategies that are approved by the Program Sponsor.

Deliverables:
= 5.1A —Risk and Contingency Management Plan (RCMP) Update for Columbia Pike Streetcar Project
— draft and update;
= 5.1B — Risk and Contingency Management Plan (RCMP) Update for Crystal City Streetcar Project —
draft and update;
5.1.C — Risk Management Workshops;
5.2A - Risk Monitoring and Updates for Columbia Pike Project RCMP - draft and update;
5.2B - Risk Monitoring and Updates for Crystal City Project RCMP - draft and update; and
5.2C - Mitigation Strategies and Potential Solutions.

Task é Third Party Coordination and Approvals
6.1 Third Party Agreement Listing
For each Streetcar project, the Contractor shall review the initial third party agreement listing developed by
the Program Sponsor that identifies the specific government, developer and utility agreements that need to
be secured for each Streetcar project. The third parties include:
e Government Agencies
o Fairfax County: provisions relating to roles and responsibilities for project implementation,
funding, right-of-way acquisition, and governance;
o Funding partners: DRPT, FTA, and potentially Federal Highway Administration (FHWA);
o Regulatory
= VDOT - Fairfax County roads and specific intersections in Arlington;
DRPT - Rail Safety Oversight;
FTA — NEPA, ADA and other compliance;
VDHR - Section 106 Historic Resources; and
Northern Virginia Regional Parks Authority (VRPA) — W&OD Trail Impacts; and
FHWA - potential approval of transit use of federal-aid right-of-way, including Route
1, Route 7, and the Washington Boulevard interchange;
o Potential Columbia Pike Realignment and Navy Annex Land Exchange
= Department of Defense, Arlington National Cemetery, FHWA, VDOT

Page 42

92



o Utility Companies, including Dominion Power relocations/new service, Verizon, and additional utility
companies as required;
Developers: Vornado (Pentagon City, Skyline, Crystal City), Jefferson Transfer Center; and
Washington Metropolitan Transit Authority (WMATA):  fare provisions, shared bus stops, Joint
Development Adjacent Construction permit requirements for Pentagon City and Crystal City
MetroRail stations.

The Contractor shall identify any additional agreements that need to be included as well as the required
timing for each securing each agreement.

The Contractor shall develop a recommended format for the listing for Program Sponsor approval and then
manage the listing to provide updates on the status of the various agreements as well as the addition of
new agreements or requirements.

6.2 Coordination
The Contractor shall assist the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County in coordination with regulatory agencies
and other stakeholders and facilitate resolution of technical issues related to design, construction,
operations, compliance and funding. Any issues requiring legal guidance or interpretation of regulatory
authority shall be coordinated and reviewed by the County Attorney Offices of the Program Sponsor and
Fairfax County. The specific responsibilities shall include the following type of efforts:
o Assisting the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County in securing the required local, regional, state and
federal permits and regulatory and legistative approvals;
e Providing technical assistance to the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County required to secure
agreements such as "Memoranda of Understanding” or “Interlocal Agreements”.
e Assisting the Program Sponsor in developing agreements with developers for project elements and in
the negotiations to secure the agreements; and
o Identify any additional scope items requested by a third party for each streetcar project and
undertake analysis to evaluate the impact of the additional scope item in terms of the project
operations and maintenance implications and the additional cost. In addition, as directed by the
Program Sponsor develop draft provisions for cost-sharing arrangements and/or additional grant or
funding requirements.

6.3 Utility Coordination

The Contractor shall obtain and review information on the existing utility agreements between the Program
Sponsor and Fairfax County and prepare a summary memorandum highlighting the issues affecting the two
streetcar projects. The review shall identify any revisions that are required to existing agreements to address
federal funding requirements, including Buy America provisions.

The Contractor shall coordinate with all affected utility companies for infrastructure that may need to be
relocated or protected as part of the implementation of the Streetcar projects. Prepare draft Utility
Relocation/Protection/New Service Agreements for Program Sponsor review. Assist the Program Sponsor in
negotiating and findlizing the Utility Agreements with the affected utility companies. For work in Fairfax
County, all utility coordination efforts shall comply with VDOT's Manual of Utility Instructions.

The Program Sponsor and Fairfax County will be responsible for the following:

Specifying the required format for the agreements;

Approving the schedule for securing the agreements;

All Work associated the third party agreements and approvals;

Approval of all agreements;

Securing required approvals from the Arlington County Board and Fairfax County Board of
Supervisors on agreements; and

¢ Issuing all correspondence to third parties presenting agreement offers.

Deliverables:
= 4.1A -Third Party Agreement Listing for Columbia Pike Streetcar — draft and update;
»  6.1B - Third Party Agreemeni Listing for Crystal City Streetcar — draft and update;
»  6.1C - Updates to the Third Party Agreement Listing for Columbia Pike Streetcar — draft and update;

Page 43

93



6.1D — Updates to the Third Party Agreement Listing for Crystal City Streetcar - draft and update;

6.2A — Provide technical information to the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County for Columbia Pike
Streetcar Interlocal Agreements and Memoranda of Understanding;

6.2.B — Provide technical information to the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County for Crystal City
Streetcar Interfocal Agreements and Memoranda of Understanding;

6.2C — Provide technical assistance to the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County for Columbia Pike
Streetcar Developer Agreements;

6.2.D - Provide technical assistance to the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County for Developer
Agreements - Crystal City Streetcar;

6.3A - Columbia Pike Sireetcar Utility Issues Summary Memorandum — draft and update;

6.3B — Crystal City Streetcar Utility Issues Summary Memorandum - draft and update;

6.3C — Columbia Pike Streetcar Utility Relocation/Protection Agreements —draft and update; and
6.3D - Crystal City Streetcar Utility Relocation/Protection Agreements —draft and updates.

Task 7 Procurement Administration

The Contractor shall assist the Program Sponsor in developing procurement strategies, preparing draft
procurements for Program services, evaluating proposals and providing assistance and support for the
negotiation of confract awards.

7.1 EDC Consultant Negotiations

The Contractor shall assist with the negotiations with the top ranked Offeror on the Streetcar Engineering
Design Consultant (EDC) contract. The EDC contract is being structured as a Professional Services multi-
phase contract using the process specified in the Arlington County Purchasing Resolution, with the scope
and cost negotiations directed at Phase 1 - Preliminary Engineering.

The Contractor's effort shall include:

Review the draft EDC scope of services developed by the Program Sponsor for the preliminary
engineering services and provide recommendations to the Program Sponsor on any revisions,
additions and/or refinements, with supporting rationale;

Review the draft Independent Cost Estimate (ICE) prepared by the Program Sponsor for the
preliminary engineering services and assist the Program Sponsor in expanding the ICE to address all
of the elements included in the draft scope, with the information presented separately for each
Streetcar project and the Operations and Maintenance facility. Review the initial staffing plan
included in the draft Program Sponsor ICE and provide recommendations on the required labor
categories as well as the associated level of effort. Review the draft rates developed by the
Program Sponsor for the salaries, overhead and fee and provide comments to the Program Sponsor
on the reasonableness of the rates, with supporting rationale for any recommended revisions.
Prepare a revised ICE for the projects and operations and maintenance facility to include the
revisions approved by the Program Sponsor.

Participate in negotiation meetings with the EDC top ranked Offeror, Program Sponsor and Fairfax
County staff to discuss the scope, approach, deliverables, staffing plan, the schedule for the
preliminary engineering work as well as responsibilities of the EDC, Program Sponsor, Fairfax County
and PMC Confractor. Following the initial meetings, prepare draft instructions for EDC Offeror
submissions for Program Sponsor consideration;

Review the scope, staffing plan, and schedule submissions from the EDC Offeror and develop
comments and/or clarification requests for Program Sponsor consideration;

Review the EDC Offeror's rates proposal against the ICE and perform a cost anaiysis of the labor
rates, overhead costs and direct costs as required by FTA Circular 4220.1F - Third Party Contracting
Guidance. Provide comments to the Program Sponsor on the reasonableness and accuracy of the
rates submission and supporting documentation, any required clarifications and/or revisions, with
supporting rationale;

Prepare draft comrrespondence to the Offeror outlining the requested revisions and back up
information relating to the scope, staffing plan schedule and cost submissions and finalize the
correspondence to include additions and revisions requested by the Program Sponsor;

Participate in follow up negotiation meetings with the EDC top ranked Offeror, Program Sponsor and
Fairfax County fo discuss the review comments and the content and format for the revised
submission.

Page 44

94



Assist with finalization of the scope, cost provisions, schedule and contract terms for the
recommended EDC contract award as requested by the Program Sponsor; the effort shall involve
an additional review of Offeror submissions, provision of review comments and development of the
final draft scope and cost provisions;

Prepare a draft negotiations memorandum that summarizes the negotiation efforts as well as
justification for the recommended contract award for review by the Program Sponsor and Fairfax
County; finalize the memorandum to include additions and revisions requested by the Program
Sponsor; and

Document project files with information on the procurement, negotiations and the basis for the
confract award.

The Program Sponsor will be responsible for the following efforts:

Leading the EDC negotiations effort;

Issuing all correspondence to the EDC Offeror relating to negotiations and contract award issues;
Approval of the draft EDC contract award terms and conditions, including cost provisions; and
Submitting reports to the Arington County Board and Fairfax County Board of Supervisors with
recommendations on EDC confract award and provisions for the Arlington County and Fairfax
County agreement.

7.2 Additional EDC Consultant Negotiations — OPTIONAL

If the negotiation process does not lead to a contract award to the first ranked EDC Offeror, this subtask
option may be authorized. The Contractor shall assist with the negotiations with the second top ranked
Offeror on the Streetcar EDC contract. The Work shall involve only those sub-tasks related to review of the
top ranked Offeror submissions and completion of negofiations included in Task 7.1.

Deliverables

7.1A — Review Comments on Program Sponsor EDC Preliminary Engineering Scope;

7.1B — Review Comments on Program Sponsor EDC Independent Cost Estimate (ICE)—-draft and final;
7.1C - Correspondence to EDC Offeror with Questions, Submission. Requirements, Information
Requests — draft and final;

7.1D - Review Comments and Recommendations on EDC Offeror Submission on Scope, Staffing
Plan, Schedule and Cost Estimate;

7.1E - Cost analysis of EDC Offeror Submission;

7.1F — Attendance at Negotiation Meetings with EDC Offeror;

7.1G — Review Comments and Recommendations on Revised EDC Offeror Submission on Scope,
Staffing Plan, Schedule and Cost Estimate;

7.1H — EDC Preliminary Engineering Scope, Schedule and Staffing Plan for Contract Documents —
draft and final;

7.11 — Negotiations Memorandum summarizing the negotiation process and rationale for the EDC
Contract Award - draft and final:

7.1J - File Documentation on the Negotiations, Including the Negotiation Summary, Cost Analysis,
and the Basis for the Award;

7.2A thru 7.2J — same deliverables as 7.1B thru 7.1J {OPTIONAL)

Task 8 Contract Administration/Management
8.1 EDC Confiract
The Contractor shall provide contract administration services for the EDC contract. This shall include:

Review invoices and make recommendations to the Program Sponsor regarding payment of the
invoice. The review shall include verification of the accuracy of invoiced charges, conformance
with the contract terms, and existence of complete and accurate documentation to support the
charges. Where Work is behind schedule or deemed less than acceptable, review the submitted
invoices and make recommendations to the Program Sponsor for amounts to be disallowed and
prepare a draft letter for the disallowance that will include direction on a recovery plan;

Review requests for information by the EDC Contractor requesting clarification or additional
information concerning contract documents and prepare draft responses to the requests for review
by the Program Sponsor;

Page 45

95



e Assist in administering the change order/contract administration process developed in Task 3,
including reviewing proposed change orders and/or contract modifications and providing
recommendations to the Program Sponsor as to whether the revision is within the contract scope
and is necessary. The review shall also address the reasonableness of any proposed adjustments to
the project schedule. Perform a cost and price analysis following requirements in FTA Circular
4220.1F - Third Party Contracting Guidance on dall proposed change orders and contract
modifications and provide recommendations to the Program Sponsor on whether the proposed cost
is fair and reasonable. The effort will utilize procedures developed for change administration as part
of the Project Controls System (Task 3);

e Identify any required revisions to the EDC project scope, budget and schedule contingency relating
to the approved changes or contract amendments;

e Compile an update-to-date record of approved contract amendments for internal and external
reporting;

e Maintain a complete contract file including but not limited to all correspondence, purchase orders,
invoices, proposed change orders/amendments, requests for information, submittals, etc.; and

e Assist with documenting project files to ensure information on contract performance and any
amendments are complete, including supporting documentation, approvals, signed documents,
and contracting monitoring activities.

The Program Sponsor will be responsible for the following efforts:
e Payment of all EDC invoices and issuing any adjustments; and
e Processing of change orders and contract revisions in the financial system.

Deliverables
e 8.1A - EDC Contractor Invoice Review and Recommendations - monthly;
8.1B — EDC RFI Review and Draft Responses;
8.1C - EDC Change Order Management and Documentation Monitoring;
8.1D - Cost and Price Analysis of Proposed EDC Change Orders and Contract Modifications;
8.1E — EDC Budget Monitoring and Contingency Management Plans; and
8.1F — Maintain EDC Contract Administration File Documentation.

Task 9 Environmental

9.1 Environmental Approvals

The Contractor shall provide assistance with securing the required environmental approvals for both
streetcar projects.

9.1.1 Columbia Pike Streetcar
The Contractor shall undertake Work to secure the required National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA)
approval for the Columbia Pike Streetcar project. The Columbia Pike Streetcar project, as a federally
funded project, is subject to NEPA requirements and efforts to secure the project environmental approval
{Finding of No Significant Impact - FONSI} will be undertaken following confirmation of the key project faciiity
decisions. It is anficipated that a Supplemental Environmental Assessment document or a Re-evaluation
Report will be required to address revisions to the Pentagon City O & M facility and Skyline Station facility
definitions since the draft AA/EA report. The O & M and Skyline facilities are presently being reviewed as
part of the ongoing planning/conceptual engineering work, (by Others), with the following environmental
work underway:
e Completion of the Section 106 Phase | archaeological surveying and submission of the Phase 1
findings report to VDHR and FTA;
Compiletion of the Section 106 Historic Architectural Effects Assessment;
Conducting Section 106 Consulting Parties Meetings to solicit feedback from organizations and
individuals with a demonstrated interest in the project and present findings from the archeological
and historical assessments;
e Development of the Section 106 Programmatic Agreement or Letter of Commitment committing the
Program Sponsor to future actions to resolve any adverse effects to cultural resources;

Page 46

96



e Updating the potential environmental impacts and list of mitigative measures for the Pentagon City
0O8& M Facility; this will include work to assess the noise, transportation and Section 106 impacts from
the revised facility and track layout; and

« Updating the potential environmental impacts and list of mitigative measures for the Skyline Station
facility at a second site; this work will include an assessment of the noise, transportation and Section
106 impacts.

The concept for the Jefferson Transfer Center/park and ride is under finalization by Fairfax County. The draft
AA/EA has the facility being developed on private property adjacent to the streetcar station. The revised
concept has the kiss n' ride and bus fransfer area being developed as ‘on street’ facilities along Jefferson
Street, and the park and ride area eliminated from the project in the short term. The Supplemental
Environmental Assessment document or Re-Evaluation Report shall include a discussion of the revisions to
the facility.

In addition to the facility revisions, the Supplemental Environmental Assessment or Re-Evaluation Report shall
identify and then address any changed conditions that have a potential to change the determination of
impacts from those presented in the draft AA/EA report. This includes the enactment of new or revised laws
and regulations that would potentially affect the analysis of the impacts.

The Program Sponsor will coordinate with the Contractor to develop the appropriate scope, budget and
schedule for the necessary environmental Work and documentation required to obtain federal NEPA
approval.

The foliowing assistance shall be provided by the Contractor:

e Review the updated environmental Work completed on the two (2) facilities and determine the
need for any additional work that would be required to obtain NEPA approval;

e Aftend meetings with the Program Sponsor, Fairfax County, FTA and potentially VDHR to discuss
issues and clarify requirements for the Work effort and documentation;

¢ Prepare documents, public notices, attend and provide support at public and agency meetings,
prepare draft responses to comments, undertake field investigation and analysis, and provide
support with any required filing of environmental documents; and

e As directed by the Program Sponsor, attend meetings with FTA, VDHR, Consulting Parties and other
review agencies to clarify requirements, report on progress and to discuss draft reports and
submittals. The Consulting Parties are the agencies and stakeholder groups designated under
Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act (36 C.F.R. § 800.2(c)(1) to (c){4). The Contractor
shall propose formats and contents for each report, and the final report format, contents, and timing
of reporting shall be approved by the Program Sponsor.

9.1.2 Operations and Maintenance Facility - Navy Annex Location — OPTIONAL

If the Program Sponsor, in coordination with Fairffax County, decides to camry the Navy Annex site for the
Operations and Maintenance facility and vehicle storage yard into the project development process, this
subtask may be authorized.

If the effort is authorized, the Contractor shall attend meetings with FTA staff, undertake environmental
analysis to determine the potential impacts on the human and natural environment, develop mitigation
measures to alleviate potential impacts, agency and public coordination, as well as prepare a
Supplemental Environmental Assessment (EA) document or Environmental Re-evaluation Report. To the
maximum extent possible, the effort shall utilize information and analysis developed from other efforts,
including the Columbia Pike draft AA/EA Study, the Columbia Pike Multimodal Study as well as the facility
and environmental Work being undertaken as part of the current planning and conceptual engineering
effort.

9.1.3 Crystal City Streetcar — OPTIONAL
If the definition of the project is revised from the scope in the cument environmental effort, assistance with
preparing supplemental environmental documentation shall be required from the Contractor.

Page 47

97



9.2 Mitigation Tracking System

The Contractor shall set up a process for tracking mitigation measures required by Columbia Pike Streetcar
Project NEPA approval documents and ensures that activities are completed and documented in
accordance with applicable local, state and federal regulations. The Contractor shall set up a process
that tracks mitigation measures specified in the Crystal City Streetcar Environmental Assessment and ensures
that activities are completed and documented in accordance with applicable local, state and federal
regulations. For both efforts, the Contractor shall develop a draft work plan for cddressmg the mitigation
measures for review and approval by the Program Sponsor.

The Contractor shall propose formats and contents for each mitigation tracking system, with the final
mitigation fracking system format contents, and timing approved by the Program Sponsor. Tracking shall
be updated monthly and reported quarterly.

9.3 EDC Environmental Work Monitoring

The Contractor shall monitor Work efforts of the Streetcar EDC during preliminary engineering to ensure that
the environmental efforts are adequate and address project commitments. The monitoring shall include
tracking the status of the required mitigation measures. The Contractor shall inform the Program Sponsor of
any deficiencies with the environmental effort and provide recommendations on the required resolution
including any corrective actions by the EDC.

The Program Sponsor and Fairfax County will be responsible for the following Environmental Approval tasks:
e Issuing correspondence with FTA and regulatory agencies;
e Issuing public notices;
e Filing draft or final environmental reports, including supplemental EA reports; and
e Submitting draft reports to the Arlington County Board and Fairfax County Board of Supervisors with
recommendations on contract award and provisions for the Arlington County and Fairfax County
agreement.

Deliverables

= 9.1A - Supplemental Environmental Assessment or Re-evaluation Report and Related Environmental
Analysis - Columbia Pike Streetcar - draft and final;

= 9.1B - Public Notices related to the Columbia Pike Streetcar Supplemental Environmental Assessment
—draft and final;

= 9.1C - Responses to the Columbia Pike Streetcar Supplemental Environmental Assessment Public
Comments and Tracking of Comments —draft and final;

= 9.1D - Supplemental Environmental Assessment or Re-evaluation Report and Related Environmental
Analysis for the Navy Annex — draft and final (OPTIONAL);

= 9.1E - Public Notices - Navy Annex —draft and final (OPTIONAL);

s«  9.1F - Responses to Public Comments and Tracking of Comments for the Navy Annex —draft and final
(OPTIONAL);

= 9.1G - Supplemental Environmental Assessment or Re-evaluation Report and Related Environmentatl
Analysis — Crystal City Streetcar —draft and final (OPTIONAL);

= 9.1H - Public Notices — Crystal City Streetcar —draft and final { OPTIONAL);

= 9.1l - Responses to Public Comments and Tracking of Comments — Crystal City Streetcar — draft and
final (OPTIONAL);

= 9.2A — Mitigation Tracking System for Both Streetcar Projects — draft and final; and

= 93A - Monitoring of EDC Environmental Work Plan and Recommendations on the Required
Resolutions.

Task 10 Right-of-Way Acquisition

10.1 Finalize Right-of-Way Acquisition Process

The Conftractor shall provide assistance in finalizing the right-of-way acquisition process, responsibiiities and
schedule for both projects. The real estate acquisition strategy shall incorporate the requirements of the
funding sources included in each project’s financial plan (Task 4.1).  For the Columbia Pike Streeicar
project, the strategy shall include requirements associated with the federal Uniform Relocation Assistance
and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (Uniform Act).

Page 48

98



The Contractor shall participate in meetings with the DES-Real Estate Bureau, and the County Attorney’s
Office from both Counties, present information on the federal requirements, identify strategies that other
agencies have successfully implemented to acquire property and/or easements, as well as prepare draft
meeting minutes. The Contractor shall prepare a draft right-of-way acquisition process, responsibilities and
schedule for both projects and then findlize the process and responsibilities and schedule for both projects
to reflect Program Sponsor and Fairfax County review comments. The following elements shall be included
in the process:
e Responsibility for right-of-way acquisition in both Counties;
e Relationship to the engineering work, including level of the design work required for right-of-way
acquisition; and
* Specific tasks, approvals and the associated timeline for right-of-way acquisition activities, including
quick take and condemnation actions for both projects.

The real estate acquisition strategy shall be updated to reflect the decision on the project delivery method
approved for each project by the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County as part of the Project Delivery
Strategy (Task 15.1).

In undertaking this work, the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County will be responsible for the following:

o Approval of the right-of-way acquisition process;

e Approval of all correspondence with property owners and developers as well as the terms and
conditions for all proposed settlement offers;
All legal work associated with the right-of-way acquisition process; and
Submitting reports to the Arlington County Board and Fairfax County Board of Supervisors to provide
information and obtain approval of right-of-way acquisition settlement offers, and to secure
authorization to use condemnation proceedings, if necessary, for specific transactions.

10.2 RAMP Development/Updates

The Contractor shall review the draft Real Estate Acquisition Management Plan (RAMP) for the Columbia
Pike Streetcar project developed by Arlington DES-Real Estate Bureau which addresses the Arlington County
portion of the Streetcar project. The review shall identify any additions or revisions necessary to meet the
requirements outlined in FTA PMOC OP-23 - Real Estate Acquisition and Management Plan (RAMP) Review.

The Contractor shall coordinate with the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County to expand the RAMP to
include the Fairfax County portion of the Streetcar project. It is assumed that Fairfax County will be
responsible for right-of-way acquisition within its borders, although YDOT may be the right-of-way acquisition
agent.

The Contractor shall update the RAMP to include revisions and additions approved by the Program Sponsor
and Fairfax County. The RAMP update shall reflect the right-of-way acquisition process developed as part of
Task 10.1, the requirements associated with the federal funding, and the revised property requirements
associated with the project facilities currently under review as part of a separate effort — the O & M facility,
Jefferson Transfer Center and/or Skyline Station. The Contractor shall prepare updated property acquisition
cost estimates for these facilities using recent market data provided by the Program Sponsor and Fairfax
County; the effort shall not include conducting appraisals to determine the update value.

The Contractor shall develop a right-of-way acquisition plan for the Crystal City Streetcar project in close
coordination with the Program Sponsor. The plan shall include the central elements from the Columbia Pike
Streetcar project RAMP, including a listing of property and easement requirements, estimated property
acquisition costs and schedule. In addition, the plan shall reflect the right-of-way acquisition process
developed as part of Task 10.1.

The Contractor shall update the Columbia Pike Streetcar RAMP and Crystal City Streetcar right-of-way
acquisition plan as necessary to reflect revised property requirements, cost estimates and/or new
procedures, as approved by the Program Sponsor. In addition, the Contractor shall update the RAMP for
both projects to reflect the project delivery method approved as part of Task 15.1 - Project Delivery
Strategy.

Page 49

99



10.3 Right-of-Way Acquisition Tracking

The Contractor shall develop a format acceptable to the Program Sponsor Real Estate Bureau and Fairfax
County to track all acquisitions, as well as potential issues impacting right-of-way requirements and/or the
acquisition schedule for the Streetcar projects, including design, schedule or third party agreement issues.
The Columbia Pike Streetcar tracking system shall comply with federal transit requirements, including the
Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970.

As requested by the Program Sponsor, the Contractor shall participate in meetings with the working groups
that have been established on both Streetcar project corridors to discuss and coordinate responsibilities,
work efforts and schedules, as well as the following projects:

e Columbia Pike — Multimodal Project, Transit Stations, Streetcar; and

o Crystal City — Street Improvements, Streetcar, Crystal City Potomac Yard Transitway.

The Contractor shall provide a quarterly report on issues that have the potential to impact the streetcar
right-of-way acquisition schedule or cost and develop recommendations on strategies for Program Sponsor
consideration. This effort shall be reported in Task 3.8 - Cost Monitoring and Reporting, and Task 1.9 -
Quarterly Report.

10.4 Right-of-Way Acquisition Support - OPTIONAL

As requested, the Contractor shall provide support for Program Sponsor and Fairfax County discussions with
property owners on acquisition needs. Support shall include preparing plats, appraisals, review appraisals,
fitle reports, surveys, documentation presenting rationale/justification for acquisition, and similar documents.
The support shall be provided for the two (2) sites: the Verizon property at the Pentagon City Operations and
Maintenance facility and vehicle storage yard site as well as the Crystal City Streetcar Supplemental Vehicle
Storage Facility.

The Program Sponsor and Fairfax County will be responsibie for the following:

e Approval of the right-of-way acquisition process;

e Approval of all comespondence with property owners and developers as well as the terms and
conditions for all proposed settlement offers;
All legal work associated with the right-of-way acquisition process; and
Submitting reports to the Arington County Board and Fairfax County Board of Supervisors to
provide information and obtain approval of right-of-way acquisition settiement offers, and to
secure authorization to use condemnation proceedings for specific transactions.

Deliverables
= 10.1A - Right-of-way Acquisition Process, Responsibilities and Schedule for both projects - draft and
update;

» 10.1B — Examples of Strategies that other agencies have successfully implemented to acquire
property and/or easements;

= 10.1C - Meeting Attendance, Meeting Minutes;

= 10.1D — Updated Right-of-way Acquisition Process, Responsibilities and Schedule for both projects—

draft and update;

10.2A — Columbia Pike Streetcar Real Estate Management Plan (RAMP) Update - draft and update;

10.2B — Crystai City Streetcar Real Estate Management Plan (RAMP) Update - draft and update;

10.3A - Right-of-Way Tracking Systems — draft and update;

10.3B — Meeting attendance; and

10.4A — Plats, Cost Estimates, Appraisals, Appraisal Reviews, Rationale/Justification for Acquisition

(OPTIONAL).

Task 11 Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC) Procedures and Oversight

11.1 Quality Management Program (QMP)

The Contractor shall coordinate with Program Sponsor and Fairfax County on the development of a QMP for
the Streetcar Program. The QMP shall present the qudlity assurance and quality control program that

Page 50

100



defines functions, procedures, and responsibilities for the design and construction and inspection activities
associated with the Streetcar Program.

The QMP shall be developed in accordance with the following documents and references:
e The Federal Transit Administration's (FTA) Quality Management System Guidelines, December 2012;
and
e Project Management Oversight Contractor (PMOC) Operating Procedure 24 - Quality
Assurance/Quality Control Review.

The QMP shali be part of the PMP, but shall be developed as a separate standalone document. The QMP
is a dynamic document that will be further developed as the project work proceeds.

In Year 1, the Contractor shall develop the following sections of the QMP:

e Overview of the Quality Management Program, including the quadlity policy, objectives,
responsibilities of the project team, quality management training responsibilities;

e The document conirol qudlity assurance procedures and quality records distribution, maintenance
and storage procedures. This effort shail be coordinated with Task 3.5 Document Management
System; and

¢ The design quality procedures and activities.

The design quality procedures shall define the responsibilities and processes for the quality assurance and
quality control monitoring and oversight of the Contractor and the EDC during design.  The design quadlity
procedures shall be a subset of the QMP and shall be controlled quality record documents.

The Contractor shall prepare the draft QMP, with the final QMP documentation including revisions and
additions requested by the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County.  The effort shall involve meetings with the
Program Sponsor and Fairfax County to discuss and develop objectives, responsibilities and procedures.

The QMP shall be updated should conditions or situations change during the first year of the streetcar
program. Additional updates to the Program QMP shall be made throughout the duration of the Contract.

The Contractor shall provide an independent Quality Assurance Manager (QAM) to develop the project
QMP and provide overall management of the quality organization, verifying that the QMP is correctly and
fully implemented. The QAM shall have the responsibility and authority to ensure that the quality
organization is involved in all aspects of work performed by the Contractor, EDC, other contractors,
subcontractors, vendors, and suppliers. The QAM shall have authority to stop affected work, control further
processing, or prevent shipment of items that do not meet contract quality requirements.

11.2 Review of EDC QA/QC Program

The Contractor shall review the EDC's QA/QC program and identify any revisions or additions that are
required to enable it to meet Streetcar Program QMP requirements. The Contractor shall participate in
discussions with the EDC, Program Sponsor and Fairfax County to discuss the required revisions and oversee
the EDC's efforts to make any required revisions.

The Contractor shall maintain records of all correspondence, meetings and quality-related documentation
as quality records.

11.3 QA/QC Compliance

The Conftractor shall ensure and verify that the minimum standards for Quality Assurance/ Quality Control
(QA/QC) for all design activities associated with the Streetcar Program are completed in accordance with
the QMP and the established procedures. The Contractor shall provide oversight of activities related to
implementation of the adopted quality control procedures through the use of quality audits, surveillances
and other techniques. The Contractor shall identify, record and track areas needing improvement,
recommend corrective action plans and provide oversight o ensure compliance.

Page 51

101



11.3.1 Quadlity Plan Compliance (Contractor)

The Contractor shall conduct internal audits on a periodic basis on Work efforts and major deliverables to
assess the Contractor's compliance with the QMP and to ensure compliance with the PIP, PMP, design
control procedures as well as other requirements established in the QMP. The Contractor shall submit audit
reports to the Project Sponsor and shall include the audit reports in the quality records of the streetcar
projects.

11.3.2 Quality Plan Compliance (EDC)

The QAM shall conduct audits on a periodic basis on Work efforts and major deliverables prepared by the
EDC to document the EDC's compliance with its Quality Program, to verify the design and design changes,
ensure compliance with the design criteria, streetcar project requirements, and the requirements of the
relevant regulatory agencies.

The Contractor shall submit audit reports to the Project Sponsor and shall include the audit reports in the
qudlity records of the streetcar projects.

Deliverables

= 11.1A - Quadlity Management Program (QMP) — draft and update;
11.1B - Design Quality Procedures —draft and final;
11.2A - Review comments on EDC QA/QC program;
11.3A - Audit Reports on Contractor's compliance with QMP; and
11.3B - Audit Reports on EDC's compliance with QMP.

Task 12 Design Oversight
12.1 Streetcar Design Ciriteria, Utility Rules of Practice and Design Standards

12.1.1 Streetcar Design Criteria and Utility Rules of Practice

The Contractor shall assist the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County in finalizing the Streetcar Design Criteria
and Utility Rules of Practice manuals for the Streetcar program and confirm that the Streetcar Design Criteria
manual incorporates the necessary level of detail on the design, functional, and performance requirements
of the various streetcar system components.

The Contractor shall solicit and incorporate into the Streetcar Design Criteria and Utility Rules of Practice
manuals review comments from the Program Sponsor, Fairfax County, Virginia Department of Rail and Public
Transport (DRPT), Virginia Department of Transportation {VDOT} and various private utility companies, and
conduct meetings or work sessions as needed to obtain review comments. The Contractor shall review and
incorporate any comments previously collected from past work efforts by consultants tasked with reviewing
and commenting on these documents, and conduct meetings or work sessions to further clarify existing
comments as needed.

Following approval of the Streetcar Design Criteria and Utility Rules of Practice manuals by the Program
Sponsor and Fairfax County, the Contractor. shall incorporate both manuals into the document control
system (Task 3.5) to enable tracking of edits and versions of the document.

The Contractor shall develop a means of applying the Utility Rules of Practice, or identifying the necessary
utility requirements that apply, within Arlington County and to any portions of the streetcar projects that fall
outside of Arlington County and ensure compliance with the Fairfax County’s Public Facilities Manual and
VDOT's Manuatl of Utility Instructions as needed.

The Contractor shall support on-going coordination with the Ulility Rules of Practice, conflict identification
and resolution for related public and private projects.

12.1.2 Design Standards
The Contractor shall assist the Program Sponsor in consolidation of Arlington County, Fairfax County, and
relevant VDOT Design Standards applicable to the Streetcar projects. The Contractor shall review the

Page 52

102



standards and identify any conflicts and or missing standards and recommend changes to eliminate any
identified deficiencies.

The Contractor shall provide a recommendation on incorporating the Streetcar Design Criteria and relevant
design standards into a consolidated document.

12.2 Process Development

12.2.1 Design Review Process

The Contractor shall develop a design review process to promote timely and coordinated reviews of the
design. The design review process shall be flexible enough to accommodate various project delivery
methods (such as design-bid-build, design-build, DBOM, etc.). The design review process shall be
developed in coordination with the various Program Sponsor departments, Fairfax County Government
departments, VDOT, and utility companies, as required.

The design review process shall incorporate necessary reviews by the Program Sponsor Public Facilities
Review Committee (PFRC) and any other similar committee(s) in Fairfax County, including the support role
the PMC shall take in those reviews.

The design review process shall identify the applicable design standards currently in effect by the Program
Sponsor, Fairfax County, and VDOT, and shall develop a means of reconciling differences among these
standards and/or shall recommend how the differing standards are appropriately applied. The design
review process shall define how design waivers and design exception are identified, justified, fracked and
communicated.

The design review process shall define the roles and responsibilities of the various design reviewers, including
Program Sponsor staff, Fairffax County staff, VDOT, and the Contractor. The design review process shall
establish at what level of design development each reviewer should participate as well as establish
timelines for the reviews. The design review process shall also identify the means by which justifications of
design decisions and approval of design decisions are documented and communicated.

The Contractor shall conduct training of design and oversight staff, including relevant Program Sponsor,
Fairfax County and Contractor staff performing design reviews as necessary to ensure that all staff and
contractors understand and follow the design review process.

The Contractor shall ensure that this effort is coordinated with Task 11 — Quality Assurance/Quality Control
Procedures and Oversight.

12.2.2 System Requirements Analysis

The Contractor shall assist the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County in consolidating and finalizihng each
stakeholder's user requirements. This activity shall capture already identified requirements {user, operational,
performance, etc.) and identify any deficiencies. The Contractor shall identify the streetcar system in
functional terms, and describe requirements at each level, from the system level to the sub-system level
including major components of the system. The Contractor shall complete a requirements analysis for the
Streetcar Program through the consolidation of existing reports and planning documents into a traceability
matrix that confirms that the Program Sponsor's and Fairfax County's User Requirements have been
identified and recorded. The Contractor shall incorporate the identified user requirements into the
preliminary engineering design scope.

12.3 Design Oversight
12.3.1 Interface Definition
The Contractor shall define the project interfaces that may be encountered through the design and
construction of the streetcar projects. Project interfaces shall include scope and responsibility limits between
the streetcar projects and other projects, as well as between various elements of the streetcar projects. The
Contractor shall create and maintain a tracking tool for the management of the project interfaces. The
tracking tool shall:

o Document the system interfaces and the interactions that take place;

e Describe how the system interfaces place constraints on the project designs and performance; and

Page 53

103



e Trace how the interface requirements have been incorporated into the streetcar project designs.

The tracking tool shall serve to monitor design and technical issues, internal and external coordination, as
well as third party approvals.

12.3.2 Input into Preliminary Engineering

The Conftractors shall conduct an independent review of the conceptual-level plans developed for the
streetcar projects. Based on these reviews, the Contractor shall develop and document guidance for the
EDC, in collaboration with the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County, defining elements that are to be
modiified or given particular attention in the preliminary engineering phase of the work. The Contractor shall
develop a technical memorandum with accompanying table of requested initial modifications to existing
technical source documents provided to the EDC. This shall serve as the initial basis of design that the EDC
will be instructed to utilize to progress their work.

The Contractor shall define the level of design development necessary for each project component or
element to constitute an overall “preliminary engineering” level of design development. The Confractor
shall provide instruction to the EDC for the preliminary engineering work product and ensure the design shall
be sufficiently advanced to:

o Define the scope of the projects;
Establish to a reasonable degree of certainty the right-of-way acquisition needs;
Estimate the cost of the projects sufficiently to establish a final budget; and
Support an application into the Engineering phase of the FTA New Starts process for the Columbia
Pike Streetcar project.

12.3.3 Compliance with Design Criteria and Design Standards

The Contractor shall establish procedures for ensuring the design complies with the Streetcar Design Criteria,
all applicable VDOT, Fairffax County and Program Sponsor standards, and the Safety and Security
Management Plan. The procedures shall be based on preliminary engineering design development, the
selected project delivery method, and shall be expandable for future applicability to final design and
construction. The Contractor shall implement the procedures and monitor the design process. The
Contractor shall ensure that this effort is coordinated with Task 11 — Quadlity Assurance/Quality Control
Procedures and Oversight.

12.3.4 Coordinate Design Work with Adjacent Projects
The Contractor shall establish and implement procedures for coordinating the design work with adjacent or
closely related projects and various project stakeholders. The procedures shall entail regular coordination
meetings, design reviews related to areas that directly impact or conflict with the streetcar projects, and
other means of communication and documentation.

Examples of relevant closely related projects include:
e Columbia Pike Streetcar
o Columbia Pike Transit Stations;
o Columbia Pike Multimodal;
o Columbia Pike realignment and interchange modification (proposed); and
o Private development projects.

e Crystal City Streetcar
o Crystal City Street projects;
o Private development projects; and
o Crystal City Potomac Yard (CCPY) Transitway.

Examples of project stakeholders include:

e Program Sponsor and Fairfax County Transportation Operations, Stormwater Management;
Program Sponsor and Fairfax County Maintenance, including Water, Sewer and Streets;
Program Sponsor and Fairfax Public Works and Engineering;

Program Sponsor and Fairfax Public Safety;
VDOT; -

Page 54

104



Arlington Transit (ART);
Department of Defense;
Arlington Cemetery; and
Other groups.

Design work coordination shall take into consideration project interfaces and constructability.

12.3.5 Design Coordination and Management of EDC

The Contractor shall promote the timely completion of design work by the EDC through regular coordination
meetings. Outside of the regularly scheduled coordination meetings, the Contractor shall coordinate
various project design issues with the EDC on an as-needed basis.

Four (4) design packages are currently envisioned that include: Columbia Pike, Crystal City, the Pentagon
City Vehicle Maintenance Facility with the Crystal City Supplemental Vehicle Storage facility, and the
streetcar vehicles. The Contractor shall ensure that weekly design coordination meetings and general
coordination are conducted for each design package.

12.3.6 Conduct and Coordinate Design Reviews

The Contractor shall conduct and coordinate design reviews in accordance with the design review process
identified in Task 12.2.1 developed above. The Contractor shall establish the schedule for design reviews,
distribute materials to be reviewed by the various reviewers, conduct a pre-design review workshop to
outline contents of the review package and instructions to the reviewers as to the scope, purpose, and
expectations of their reviews. The Contractor shall follow up with reviewers to ensure timely completion and
submission of reviews. The Contractor shall collect and tabulate all received design review comments and
review comments for consistency with one another and, in the event of inconsistency, coordinate with
applicable reviewers to resolve inconsistencies.

The Contractor shall communicate review comments to the EDC and convene design review comment
work sessions as needed to ensure understanding.

12.3.7 Utility Coordination

The Contract shall establish and implement procedures for coordination of the streetcar project designs with
the various utility companies. The Contractor shall review the streetcar project designs and identify any
impacts on existing or planned utilities that may necessitate utility relocations. The Contractor shall
implement the guidance found in the Utility Rules of Practice. The Contractor shall assist the EDC, Project
Sponsor and Fairfax County in identifying alternative designs that mitigate the need for utility relocations.
The Contractor shall develop and implement a tracking system to monitor utility relocation designs, and also
identifies criticality, overall schedule impacts, design responsibility, cost responsibility, relocation/construction
responsibility, and relocation status. The Contractor shall ensure that this effort is coordinated with Task 6.3
Utility Coordination.

The Program Sponsor and Fairfax County will be responsible for the following:
* Approval of the Streetcar Design Criteria and Utility Rules of Practice manuals; and
o Approval of Design Review Process.

Deliverables

= 12.1A - Streetcar Design Criteria and Utility Rules of Practice manuals — draft and final;
12.1B — Consolidated Streetcar Standards-draft and final;
12.2A — Design Review Process Plan - draft and final;
12.2B - Design Review Process Training;
12.2C- Consolidated System Requirements Analysis and Traceability Matrix;
12.3A - Project Interface Definition and Tracking Tool;
12.3B - Conceptual Plans Review;
12.3C - Definition of “Preliminary Engineering” Level of Design Development;
12.3D - Instructions to EDC for Initial Basis of Design;
12.3E - Design Compliance Procedures and Implementation ~draft and final;
12.3F - Design Coordination Procedures- draft and final;

Page 55

105



12.3G - Design Coordination Meetings with EDC;
12.3H - Design Review Coordination;

12.3G - Utility Coordination Procedures; and
12.3H - Utility Relocation Design Tracking System.

Task 13 Vehicle Acquisition Support

13.1 Confirm Vehicle Requirements

The Contractor shall develop recommendations on the critical requirements for the streetcar vehicles. These
requirements shall provide the basis for the preparation of the technical specifications for the streetcar
vehicles.

In undertaking this effort, the Contractor shall review completed and ongoing Work related to ridership
projections, as well as the requirements for the fleet size and the capacity of the vehicles. This includes the
ridership projections and the operating plan requirements developed for the Columbia Pike Streetcar
AA/EA, the ridership and operating plan requirements under development for the Crystal City Streetcar EA
and the Streetcar Program ridership and vehicle capacity requirements under finalization as part of the
ongoing Columbia Pike Streetcar planning, environmental and conceptual engineering work. The
Contractor shall undertake additional analysis to confirm vehicle requirements relating to the vehicle length
and width as well as develop recommendations for other elements, including the number of seats, the
seating to standing ratio, minimum turning radius, partial or 100% low floor, off-wire capability, speed
requirements, geometrics (vertical and horizontal) and level boarding method.

The Contractor shall organize meetings with the Program Sponsor, Fairfax County and the EDC to discuss
requirements and ensure that the vehicle requirements are coordinated with the ongoing design work. Key
issues to be discussed include the capacity requirements, operating plan objectives, community and/or
stakeholder considerations, alignment, grades, station designs, as well as facility layouts.

The Contractor shall develop recommendations on the vehicle requirements with supporting rationale and
revise the requirements to include revisions and additions requested by the Project Sponsor and Fairfax
County.

13.2 Rail Fleet Management Plan (RFMP)

The Contractor shall prepare a draft Rail Fleet Management Plan (RFMP) for the Streetcar Program that
meets the requirements established in FTA PMOC OP-37 Rail Fleet Management Plan. The draft RFMP shall
include but not be limited to information on service levels, vehicle requirements by time of day and day of
the week, spare requirements, vehicle life expectancy, the required maintenance program, and future
service expansion requirements. A separate RFMP shall be prepared for each Streetcar project to include
the operations plan and vehicle requirements sections specific to each Streetcar project. The common
elements for the RFMPs shall include the maintenance reliability program, the overhaul and rebuild
program, the capacity standards and the procurement plan.

The initial draft RFMPs shall be submitted to the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County for review. The drafts
shall be revised to reflect revisions requested by the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County. The draft RFMPs
shall be updated following a decision on the project delivery method in Task 15.1 - Project Delivery Strategy.

The draft RFMPs shall be an interim document and shall be finalized following completion of the preliminary
engineering work in Year 2.

13.3 Oversight of EDC Vehicle Specification Effort

The Contractor shall develop a strategic approach for the preparation of the vehicle specifications. The
approach shall reflect the Program Sponsor’s desire for maximizing use of Off-the-Shelf (OTS) designs and
minimize customization of the vehicle design. The Contractor shall present the draft approach to the
Program Sponsor and Fairfax County for review and finalize the approach to include revisions requested by
the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County.

The Contractor shall oversee the EDC efforts to develop the vehicle specifications using the approved
strategic approach. This shall include ensuring that the efforts reflect the design performance criteria

Page 56

106



established for the vehicles, including acceleration and braking rates, wayside communications, as well as
the operational requirements, including minimum tuming radius, maximum grade and level boarding. In
addition, the Contractor shall obtain information from the EDC for inclusion in the vehicle contract
commercial provisions, including submittal requirements, progress schedule, payment milestones, inspection
and acceptance, delivery instructions, spare parts, and options for additional purchases.

In performing this Work, the Contractor shall attend meetings with EDC staff, review draft technical vehicle
specifications, prepare review comments for Program Sponsor consideration, and coordinate with the EDC
on the preparation of the required revisions to vehicle technical specifications.

The draft vehicle specifications shall be an interim document and findlized early in the second year of the
Contractor contract.

13.4 Vehicle Commercial Provisions

The Contractor shall develop the draft commercial provisions for procurement of the streetcar vehicles. The
provisions shall include the submittal requirements, payment provisions, schedule, inspection and
acceptance requirements and procedures, delivery instructions, spare parts, and options for additional
purchases. In addition, the provisions shall include the requirements associated with federal funding,
including Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)} and Buy America provisions.

The provisions shall reflect the project delivery method decision approved in Task 15.1 and shali be
developed in conjunction with the draft procurement and contracting plan effort (Task 15.2). The draft
vehicle commercial provisions shall be submitted to the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County for review. The
Contractor shall revise the draft to reflect revisions requested by the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County.

The draft provisions shall be an interim document and shall be finalized in the second year of the Contractor
contract following approval of the Streetcar procurement and contracting plan (Task 15.2).

13.5 Vehicle Source Selection Plan

The Contractor shall prepare the source selection plan for the vehicles. The plan shall describe how the
vehicles will be procured, including the procurement method, evaluation process, evaluation factors and
their relative importance, as well as guidance and templates for the evaluation of the technical and cost
proposals.

The plan shall reflect the requirements associated with the project funding plan as well as the project
delivery method confirmed in Task 15.1. The effort shall be coordinated with development of the
Procurement and Contracting Plan (Task 15.2) and shall involve coordination with Program Sponsor
Purchasing and County Attorney staff to understand the purchasing and contracting requirements
applicable to the vehicle procurement.

The Contractor shall prepare the draft vehicle source selection plan and finalize the draft plan to include
revisions and additions requested by the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County. The draft vehicle source
selection plan will be an interim document and shall be finalized in year 2 after the vehicle specifications
are developed by the EDC and the Procurement and Contracting Plan (Task 15.2) is finalized.

Deliverables
» 13.1A - Vehicle Requirements Technical Memorandum - draft and final;
13.2A - Preliminary Rail Fleet Management Plan for Columbia Pike - draft and update;
13.2B - Preliminary Rail Fleet Management Plan for Crystal City Streetcar - draft and update;
13.3A - Vehicle Technical Specifications Design Approach - draft and final;
13.3B - Oversight Reports of the EDC Technical Specifications Development;
13.4A - Preliminary Vehicle Commercial Provisions -draft;
13.5A - Preliminary Vehicle Source Selection Plan —draft.

Page 57

107



Task 14 Communications and Outreach

14.1  Public and Stakeholder Outfreach Plan

The Contractor shall prepare a Public and Stakeholder Outreach Plan for the two (2) streetcar projects. The
Plan shall present the framework for the public and stakeholder involvement efforts as well as the
procedures for undertaking the Work. Detailed information shall be included on the Year 1 efforts, including
the specific events, website updates, newsletters and other communication and involvement strategies.

The Plan shall also describe the specific efforts that shall be undertaken to increase participation by
traditionally under-represented populations and groups in the two (2} streetcar corridors, as required under
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. This shall include the following:
e The Spanish language publications that will be used for the advertisement of the public meetings.
The two leading Hispanic news print publications shall be used;
e Business community and faith-based groups to be contacted; and
e Procedures for tracking and reporting participation by Title VI groups.

As part of the plan development, coordinate with Program Sponsor and Fairfax County public information
and marketing staff o obtain input on procedures and protocols as well as with the PMT o understand the
specific objectives for the public and stakeholder involvement, including special requirements applicable to
the engineering and environmental outreach efforts. In addition, coordinate with staff performing the Title
VI coordination effort in both Counties.

The Contractor shall prepare the draft Plan, with the final Plan addressing Program Sponsor and Fairfax
County review comments.

14.2  Program Logo and Name

14.2.1 Program Logo and Name Development

The Streetcar Program logo and name shall be used to develop the Program messaging and identity. The
Conftractor shall prepare a Program Logo and Name Development Plan defining the specific efforts that
shall be undertaken to develop the Streetcar program logo and name. The effort shall involve coordination
with the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County to obtain input on the strategies. The Contractor shall submit
the draft plan for Program Sponsor and Fairfax County review and finalize the plan to include revisions
requested by the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County.

The Contractor shall develop several streetcar program logos and name alternative concepts and namrow
them down to three (3} using the process approved in the Plan. The concepts shall include the name and
visual presentation, including font type, color, and accompanying graphical image. The program logo and
name concepts shall be submitted to the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County for review, and then the logo
and name finalized based upon direction from the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County.

Upon approval, prepare and deliver a program standards guide for use by all program elements. This shail
be applicable to reports, power point templates, and collateral materials.

14.2.2 Qutreach on Logo and Name ~ OPTIONAL

The Contractor shall define and undertake an outreach program to obtain public and stakeholder
involvement in the logo and name. The effort shall include, but not be limited to, coordination with
Streetcar stakeholder groups, and outreach via the Streetcar website for public review and feedback of the
top ranked logo/brands. The specific approach will be approved by the Program Sponsor in advance.

14.3  Program Education and Communication Materials

The Contractor shall assist the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County with development of educational,
communication and outreach materials for the Streetcar Program. The assistance shall be provided on an
as needed basis and could include drafting content and providing graphical support for the Program
Sponsor and Fairfax County to use to develop fact sheets, email updates, website updates, and social
media posts; designing brochures to provide information on aspects of the projects (ridership, funding, etc)
and the benefits as well as developing social/digital advertisements that fink to information on the project

Page 58

108



website. Ad development and placement shall be coordinated with Program Sponsor and Fairfax County
public information officers and media relations staff.

14.4  Program Contact Database
The Conftractor shall design and develop a consolidated, online Streetcar contact database in consultation
with the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County. The database shall contain, but not be limited to, the
following:
e Participants in current and past Streetcar projects and studies:
e General public who have indicated an interest in being kept up-to-date about the project;
e Business groups along Columbia Pike and in Bailey's Crossroads, Crystal City, Pentagon City, and
Arington Potomac Yard;
Elected and appointed officials;
Special interest groups (transit, bike/pedestrian, etc.);
Transit users;
Commuters;
Local, regional, state, and federal agency staff;
Freight and passenger rail operators;
Title Vi-related groups and organizations;
Community leaders;
Faith leaders; and
Community organizations.

Program Sponsor and Fairfax County will provide contact information currently stored in their files in a
tabular or database electronic file format. The Contractor shall undertake additional efforts to expand the
database, including conducting research into other agencies and organizations in the corridors.

Maintain and update the contact database on a monthly basis to add or remove names and update
information. Provide monthly reports to the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County on new email subscribers.

14.5 Streetcar Committee Meetings & Communications
The Contractor shall participate in coordination meetings with the following groups:
¢ Technical Advisory Committee (TAC). There will be two separate committees — one for the Columbia
Pike Streetcar project and one for the Crystal City Streetcar project. They will meet quarterly after the
commencement of the preliminary engineering work. Members shall include representatives from
DRPT, VDOIT, FTA, the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County.

o Citizens' Coordination Committee (CCC). There will be two separate committees — one for the
Columbia Pike Streetcar project and one for the Crystal City Streetcar project. They will meet
quarterly after the commencement of the preliminary engineering work. Members shall include
representatives of the public and stakeholder groups in the corridors.

The Contractor shall attend the meetings associated with both committees, prepare meeting presentations,
meeting summary notes and follow-up action summaries; coordinate and distribute presentation materials,
and make presentations as requested. The presentations, summary notes and follow up action summaries
shall be prepared as draft materials, with the final materials reflecting review comments by the Program
Sponsor and Fairfax County.

14.6 Stakeholder Meefings

The Contractor shall attend meetings with local community groups, Chambers of Commerce, and other
special interest groups along the streetcar comidors to provide information on the Streetcar Program and
current activities. The effort shall include attendance of up to twelve (12) meetings; the specific meetings
shall be approved by the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County in advance. The Contractor shall develop a
presentation using existing information and presentations developed in other tasks and shall prepare brief
summary notes and a list of follow-up action items following each meeting.

Page 59

109



14.7 Community-Sponsored Events
The Contractor shall participate in community-sponsored events in the Streetcar corridors at the direction of
the Program Sponsor. Twelve (12) community events shall be attended during Year 1.

The Contractor shall attend the events and provide information on the Streetcar Program and respond to
questions. The information to be distributed shall include a Streetcar Program email update sign-up sheet,
project fact sheets, and a comment/input form. Prepare a summary of participation at each event and
submit the summary to the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County.

14.8 Public Meetings

The Contractor shall develop plans, make arrangements and conduct public meetings to inform the public,
jurisdictions and stakeholders about the Streetcar Program engineering work and solicit and provide
opportunities for input.

The public meetings shall be in the form of one round of open house meetings related to the engineering
work on the two (2) streetcar projects. The open houses shail be held at three (3) locations: the Crystal City
Streetcar corridor, the Columbia Pike Streetcar comidor in Arington County, and the Columbia Pike
Streetcar comidor in Fairfax County.

In cooperation with the Program Sponsor and Fairffax County, the Contractor shall arange for an
appropriate public space for each meeting and make reservations for the meeting spaces. All meeting
locations shall be approved by the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County.  Site selection for all public
meetings must meet the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990. The meetings shall
follow an open-house style format and will be up to three hours in duration. The Contractor shall arrange for
a translator proficient in American Sign Language (ASL) to transiate for the hearing impaired community at
the meetings, if this service is requested by the public.

The Contractor shall prepare an advertising plan for each meeting or round of meetings that identifies how
the meetings will be advertised, including the specific print and online media to be used and the timing for
the ad placements. This shall include the Spanish publications to be used. Following approval by the
Program Sponsor and Fairfax County, develop the appropriate print and social/digital advertisements, and
arrange for the placement of the ads with the designated media. Coordinate ad development and
placement with Program Sponsor and Fairfax County public information officers and media relations staff.
The cost of the print and online media advertising shall be paid by the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County
directly.

The Contractor shall develop the agenda for the meetings and prepare display boards, presentation
materials, sign in sheets and comment forms. The Program Sponsor and Fairfax County will approve the
agendas as well as all information and presentation materials. :

The Contractor shall attend the public meetings and prepare a meeting summary from each meeting for
Program Sponsor and Fairfax County approval.

14.9 Title Vi/Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Outreach and Compliance
The Contractor shall support the Program Sponsor to implement outreach activities complying with
provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

The Contractor shall provide a translator fluent in Spanish and English for each public meeting. The transiator
shall be available to franslate information presented at the meeting, talk to members of the public as well as
to document public comments and questions.

The Contractor shall advertise the public meetings in the local Spanish language publications designated in
the public meeting advertising plan (Task 14.8). The advertisements shall be approved by the Program
Sponsor and Fairfax County.

Page 60

110



The Contractor shali translate project materials, including newsietters and information to be distributed at
public meetings into Spanish.

The Contractor shall prepare and distribute project information to local businesses and community
gathering places in Spanish, with the specific locations approved by the Program Sponsor and Fairfax
County.

The Contractor shall make arrangements and attend meetings with Spanish groups within the streetcar
corridors; the groups shall be approved by the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County in advance. Prepare a
summary report of each meeting documenting attendance, comments and questions and submit to
Program Sponsor and Fairfax County. Include comments in the project database. Provide follow-up
information or responses to any group or individual requesting this information.

The Contractor shall track and report participation by Title VI groups in the meetings on a quarterly basis in
the format approved in the Public and Stakeholder Plan (Task 14.1).

14.10 Comment Processing & Response fo Inquiries

in coordination with environmental requirements (Task 9.1) and in accordance with other requirements
identified by the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County, the Contractor shall establish a protocol, record and
maintain a list of comments and responses for the Streetcar projects in the Program Comment Database
(Task 14.4). The Contractor shall recommend a protocol for the comments and responses, with the Program
Sponsor approving the protocol. To the maximum extent possible, comments shall be tied to individual
names or affiliations in the Database. The listing shall include comments requesting a follow up action. For
these comments, the Contractor shall advise the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County of the comments and
required action monthly.

Deliverables:
= 14.1A - Public and Stakeholder Involvement Plan - draft and final;
= 14.2A - Streetcar Logo and Name development plan; draft and final;
= 14.2B - Three Streetcar Program logo and name concepts; draft and final;
= 14.2C -Top Streetcar Program logo and name concepts — draft and final;
= 142D - Streetcar Program Standards Guide;
= 14.3A - Program Education and Communication Materials - One page of content on the Streetcar
program, — draft and final - monthly;
14.3B — Program Education and Communications Materials - One graphic on the Streetcar
program-draft and final - monthly.
14.3C - Educational brochures on streetcar projects —draft and final;
14.3D - Social/digital advertisements that link to information on the project website —draft and final;
14.4A — Consolidated Streetcar contact database;
14.4B — Updated database — monthly;
14.4C — Email reports onnew Streetcar email update subscribers — monthly;
14.5A — Technical Advisory Committee meeting (1 presentation) — draft and final;
14.5B — Technical Advisory Committee meeting summary -draft and final ;
14.5C - Technical Advisory Committee meeting follow up action summary;
14.5D - Citizens Advisory Committee meeting { 1 presentation) — draft and final;
14.5E - Citizens Advisory Committee meeting summary —draft and final;
14.5F — Citizens Advisory Committee meeting follow-up action summary;
14.6A — Stakeholder briefing presentation - draft and final;
14.6B - Stakeholder briefing meeting summary -draft and final;
14.6C — Stakeholder briefing follow-up action summary ;
14.7A — Attendance at community-sponsored events;
14.7B — Community-sponsored events summaries;
14.8A — Public Meeting Advertising Plan— draft and final;
14.8B — Public Meeting advertisement — print and electronic— draft and final;
14.8C - Public meeting presentation —draft and final;
14.8D - Public meeting informational boards - draft and final;
14.8E — Public meeting summary - draft and final;

Page 61

111



14.8F — ASL translation services at public meetings;

14.9A - Spanish Translator at public meetings;

14.9B — Advertisement of public meetings in Spanish publications — draft and final;

14.9C - Spanish translation of project materials;

14.9D - Information distribution to local businesses and community groups;

14.9E — Scheduling of meetings with Spanish groups, meeting attendance, summary report of
meetings;

= 14.9F - Tracking of Title VI group participation in meetings;

= 14.10A - Comment processing and response protocol; and

= 14.10B - Report on required public comment follow-up actions - monthly.

Task 15 Project Delivery Strategy and Contracting Plan

15.1 Evaluation of Alternative Project Delivery Opftions

The Contractor shaill evaluate and compare the implementation of each Streetcar project through the
traditional design-bid-build method and alternative project delivery (*APD") methods, such as design-build
(DB)., design-build-operate-maintain  (DBOM), design-build-finance-operate-maintain  (DBFOM)} and
construction manager (CM) at risk.

The subtasks to Task 15.1 are summarized below; some subtasks are internally focused and others shall
require interaction with external parties.

Subtask Internal External

Subtask 15.1.1 Facilitate meetings with Program Sponsor
and Fairfax County to confirm project goals
and process and gather qualitative data

Subtask 15.1.2 Conduct lessons learned scan with other
agencies
Subtask 15.1.3 Conduct qualitative analysis of DBB and
APD alternatives
Subtask 15.1.4 Conduct quantitative analysis of 3
alternatives
Subtask 15.1.5 Conduct Board Workshop of ADP
Approaches

Subtask 15.1.6 Prepare Value for Money Analysis
evaluating 2 alternatives

Subtask 15.1.7 Conduct Market Sounding
Subtask 15.1.8 Prepare draft report of Findings and
Recommendations

Subtask 15.1.9 Assist in presentation of findings and
recommendations with Policy Committee
and County Boards

Throughout Task 15.1, the Contractor efforts shall involve close coordination with the Program Sponsor and
Fairfax County to obtain input, strategize on key issues and discuss findings and recommendations. At
multiple points during the evaluation process, the Contractor shall present interim findings to the Program
Sponsor and Fairfax County and seek decisions to narrow the number of scenarios under review. These
meetings shall first be held with an identified Working Group of staff representing different disciplines from
the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County and then shall include meetings with the Columbia Pike Streetcar
Policy Committee. Recommendations on the project delivery method shall be presented to the Arlington
County Board and Fairfax County Board of Supervisors for their review and approval.

The evaluation and decision making process is presented below.

Page 62

112



Meeting Decision Analysis

Working Group
] Projed Goals
Policy Committee | Hugdsc

Qualitative
"~ Analyss&
Lessons
Learned Scan

Working Group

Policy Committee |1

S .

Policy Committee I

Quantitative

Analysis

Sudy -
VA Analysis
- . & Market
N Sunding
b Confirmation
Policy Committee IV P ot Prefermed
T < Prajed

- Alternative

County Boards

Subtask 15.1.1 Facilitate Meetings with Arlington and Fairfax Counties in Support of the Qualitative Analysis

To kick-off the process and confirm Program Sponsor and Fairfax County "buy-in" of the process, the
Contractor shall develop presentation materials and facilitate the first staff Working Group meeting.

Task | Meeting Purpose

15.1.1 | Working o Review and confirm goals and objectives for the Columbia Pike and Crystal City
Group Streetcar projects
Meeting 1

o Explain and confirm the process for communicating findings to the Counties in
support of decisions to narrow alternatives under study (the evaluation and decision-
making process), resulting in the decision of a Preferred Delivery Model

o Detail strategy for presenting Project Goals and Objectives and the evaluation and
decision-making process to the Policy Committee

15.1.1 | Policy o Present Project Goals and Objectives
Committee o Present evaluation and decision making process resulting in Preferred Delivery
Workshop I Model for “buy-in”

Participants will include Working Group members as well as representatives from the legal and real estate
departments from the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County. Contractor participants shall include the
Alternative Project Delivery (APD) team and the technical team.

The Contractor shall develop the agendas and presentations for the meeting, assist in facilitating the
discussions, and incorporate the input into the evaluation. The Program Sponsor will provide the Contractor

Page 63

113



with all relevant prior project-related documents, including related budget and Capital Improvement Plan
documents not already available.

Outcomes of the Working Group Meeting | include a confirmation on evaluation and decision-making
process with the Working Group; an agreement on dates, times, attendees, and logistical preparation for ail
upcoming Working Group Meetings, Policy Committee Workshops, and County Board Workshops; and an
agreement on the strategy for presenting the Project Goals and Objectives and the evaluation process to
the Policy Committee.

The first presentation to the Columbia Pike Streetcar Policy Committee meeting shall include a discussion of
the project goals and objectives as well as the evaluation process for involving the Policy Committee in the
alternative project delivery method evaluation.

The Program Sponsor will coordinate with the Policy Committee Members on the scheduling and
arrangements for all Policy Committee meetings. The Contractor shall provide a draft presentation and
talking points for the Policy Committee meeting for review and approval by the Program Sponsor and
Fairfax County.

Following these meetings, the Coniractor shall facilitate a series of mini-workshops with the Program Sponsor
and Fairfax County staff to support the information gathering necessary to complete the qualitative analysis.
These meetings shall cover the following topics:
¢ Risk issues and how they would be handled in each alternative project delivery approach. Key risk
issues include right-of-way acquisition, utilities, interlocal agreements, the potential Navy Annex land
exchange, and associated projects;
e Financing strategies, including federal funding; this shall include a discussion of uncertainty issues
related to federal funding;
Operations and maintenance of the system;
Governance issues; and
Legal constraints.

The purpose of these meetings is outlined in the table below. To facilitate the Program Sponsor's
participation at the meetings, the Contractor shall supply the Program Sponsor with a topic matrix
identifying the information requirements..

114

Meeting Purpose Entity Participants | Data/Info Inputs
Working o Discuss potential operations and | Counties | PM, Counties' preferences and/or
Group maintenance structures of the Procurement, | constraints relative to O&M
Workshop A | system and client preferences and DMF (Budget | structures (including vehicles)
constraints & Finance); given project due diligence to
Legal; Real date; fill in topic matrix
Estate
o Discuss governance issues and | PMC APD Team, Topic matrix for County
client preferences and constraints Technical workshop prep; agendas for
Team; the meetings
Procurement
Manager
Working o Legal constraints Counties | PM, County-identified legal
Group Procurement, | constraints; fill in topic matrix
Workshop B DMF (Budget
& Finance);
Legal; Real
Estate
PMC APD Team, Topic matrix for County
Technical workshop prep; agendas for
Team; the meetings
Procurement
Manager
Page 64




Working o Financing strategies, including | Counties | PM, Identified financial
Group federal funding; this will include a Procurement, | constraints; output of DMF's
Workshop C | discussion of uncertainty issues DMF (Budget | Financial Advisor analysis
related to federal funding; & Finance), regarding the Tax Increment
Legal; Real Financing district; capital plan
Estate updates; fill in topic matrix
PMC APD Team, Topic matrix for County
Technical workshop prep; agendas for
Team the meetings
Working o Risk issues and how they would | Counties | PM, Updates to ROW acquisition,
Group be handled in each alternative Procurement, | utilities, interlocal agreements,
Workshop D | project delivery approach. Key DMF (Budget | the Navy Annex land
risk issues include right-of-way & Finance); exchange, and associated
acquisition, utilities, interlocal Legal; Real projects; fill in topic matrix
agreements, the potential Navy Estate;
Annex land exchange, and Engineering
associated projects; staff
PMC APD Team, Task 5 RCMPs for each
Technical project with items added for
Team; potential scope elements
Procurement | beyond "DB" such as the
Manager financing, operations, and
maintenance; topic matrix for
County workshop prep;
agendas for the meetings

The Contractor shall develop the agendas for the meetings, facilitate the discussions and incorporate
Program Sponsor and Fairfax County input into the evaluation. The Program Sponsor and Fairfax County will
provide the inputs identified in the table above as well as additional information identified by the
Contractor.

Participants for the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County are identified in the table above and vary
depending on the topic at hand. Participants for the Contractor shall include a minimum of the APD and
Technical Team leads, but shall also vary depending on the topic at hand.

The Contractor shall include discussions from these meetings in the qualitative analysis report developed in
Subtask 15.1.3.

Subtask 15.1.2 Lessons Learned Scan with Other Agencies

In support of the qualitative analysis, the Contractor shall organize meetings and/or conference calls with
other agencies with similar government structures that have implemented light rail or streetcar systems. The
list of agencies shall be approved by the Program Sponsor in advance, and shall include agencies with
strong County Boards, no pre-existing rail transit service, and decentralized procurement processes. The
meetings shall include agencies based in the Commonwealth of Virginia. The specific agencies and
meeting agenda shall be approved by the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County in advance.

This scan of lessons learned, building on the prior research conducted by past Program Sponsor consultants,
will provide input into the qualitative analysis in considering the risks and the implications of the delivery
methods relative to each Streetcar project within the context of the County's processes. For agencies that
have solicited and/or administered a public-private partnership {P3} contract, information on their specific
efforts, timelines and costs shall be obtained. This information will be collected by phone and/or site visit,
with the specific method approved in advance by the Program Sponsor.

Subtask | Purpose Decisions/Deliverables

Page 65

115



15.1.2 o Identify lessons learned from agencies | Approval of the target agencies and questions to cover.
with similar government structure (i.e.
strong County Boards, no existing rail
transit service, decentralized
procurement processes) that have
developed a new build light rail or
streetcar system to learn more about the
implications of the delivery methods,
why they chose that method, and discuss
their application to each Streetcar
project.

Summarize input and incorporate into qualitative
analysis report.

This effort shall occur in parallel to the other qualitative analysis data gathering meetings in subtask 15.1.1.
The deliverable associated with these meetings shall be captured in the quadlitative analysis report provided
at the end of Subtask 15.1.3.

Subtask 15.1.3 Quadlitative Analysis

Incorporating the information identified in Subtasks 15.1.1 and 15.1.2, the Contractor shall conduct a
qudlitative analysis of traditional design-bid-build and alternative project delivery approaches. The effort
shall address a wide range of factors including, agency control, staff capability, risks, schedule,
opportunities for innovation, design flexibility, and community considerations. The analysis shall be captured
in the subtasks deliverable, a summary report, and presented to a Working Group meeting followed by a
Policy Committee meeting (see table below). The outcomes of those meetings shall confirm three (3)
alternative delivery methods for further analysis in Subtask 15.1.4, the quantitative analysis. The Contractor
shall provide information to assist in the discussions in selecting the three (3) alternatives (including design-
bid-build). These materials shall include examples of how other agencies have addressed risk issues in the
various project delivery approaches.

The Program Sponsor and Fairfax County will review draft materials and provide written feedback to the
Contractor as well as coordinate the arrangements for the Policy Committee meeting.

Subtask | Meeting Purpose

15.1.3 Working o Present draft qualitative results and recommendations to further study 3 alternatives
Group o Confirm approach with Policy Committee Meeting
Meeting I1

15.1.3 Policy o Present results of qualitative analysis and recommendation to further study 3

Committee | alternatives
Meeting 11 o Present summary of other agency lessons learned scan

Subtask 15.1.4 Quantitative Analysis

The Conftractor shall conduct a quantitative analysis of no more than three (3) potential alternatives of
project delivery approaches, including the development of a financial model with a public sector
comparator (a scenario based on the traditional design-bid-build delivery model). This analysis requires
inputs related to the Program Sponsor’s and Fairfax County’s Capital Improvement Plan, the Crystal City TIF,
public sector debt terms, risk allocation assumptions and value of fransferred risks, among others. Working
Group workshops detailed in the table below shall be held to assist in the collection of these inputs and
vetting of the assumptions.

Subtask Meeting Purpose Entity Participants

Page 66

116



15.1.4 Working o Collect necessary inputs (i.e. | Counties | Working Group; Real Estate; Legal

Group Task IV O&M estimates, public
Workshop sector financing scenario(s)
18 assumptions) . PMC APD Team, Technical Team;
o Confirm other assumptions for Procurement Manager
analyses (i.e. timing of
availability of ROW and utility
relocations)
15.14 Working Counties | Working Group; Real Estate; Legal
Group o Identify values associated with
Workshop F | 1 elements and risk

allocation/transfer, depending on | PMC APD Team, Technical Team,
scenarios under analysis Procurement Manager

The Contractor shall develop the agendas for the meetings and facilitate the discussions. In addition, the
Contractor shall provide the Program Sponsor with a topic matrix to assist in the preparation of the
workshops.

The Program Sponsor and Fairfax County will provide quantitative inputs and update inputs necessary for
the analysis.

Once the necessary inputs are identified and confirmed, the Contractor shall complete the analysis and
develop a financial model, which shall be approved by the Program Sponsor. Information collected in these
meetings shall be captured in the quantitative analysis report deliverable.

The Contractor shall provide information, including presentation materials and talking points to assist the
Working Group and Policy Committee Meeting il (see Subtask 15.1.5) in identifying the two (2) prefered
alternative delivery approaches to be addressed in the Value for Money analysis and report. These
materials shall include the draft quantitative analysis and results as well as recommendations. The
Contractor shall incorporate feedback from the Working Group Meeting before advancing the
presentation to the Policy Committee Meeting Il

Subtask | Meeting Purpose Decisions/Deliverables
15.14 Working Group o Present draft quantitative results and | Confirm the two alternatives to
Meeting 111 recommendations to further study 2 advance for further study in VFM
alternatives in the Value for Money analysis.
2“32::;& appoacividNPolicy Draft quantitative analysis report,
including input from Working Group.
Committee Workshop III e b R AR OTNE SrORh

Subtask 15.1.5 APD Workshop with Policy Committee

To support the Program Sponsor's and Fairfax County's determination of which two (2) project delivery
methods should advance for study under a Value for Money (VFM) analysis, the Contractor shall conduct a
workshop with the Policy Committee covering the APD and P3 procurement processes, including
implications related to the timing of procurement, advisory needs, and evaluation criteria.

Subtask | Meeting Purpose Decisions/Deliverables

15.1.5 Policy o Conduct an APD and P3 Workshop with Confirm the 2 alternatives to
Committee the Policy Committee to discuss the steps advance for further study in VFM
Meeting 111 involved in each delivery method’s analysis.

procurement process, including the
development of procurement and contract
documents, evaluation criteria, advisor needs,
etc.

Page 67

117



o Present draft quantitative results and
recommendations to further study 2
alternatives in a VFM.

Finalized quantitative analysis
report

The deliverable associated with this subtask (and subtask 15.1.4) is a quantitative analysis that incorporates
Working Group input and feedback while the outcome or significant decision made is to narrow the number
of preferred alternatives for further study to two for the VFM analysis.

Subtask 15.1.6 Value for Money Analysis

The Contractor shall prepare a 'Value for Money' (VFM) analysis that considers both the design and
construction costs, as well as the long-term cost of a project (operations, maintenance, and capital
replacement), and compares the net present value of the project using alternative project delivery
methods. The analysis shall consider the Virginia Office of Transportation Public-Private Partnerships ‘Value
for Money White Paper.'

Working Group Meeting IV shall confirm VFM inputs and assumptions during which the Contractor shall
facilitate discussions, providing the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County with an opportunity to update any
assumptions and inputs into the analysis of the two (2) alternatives. This workshop shall also serve as an
opportunity for the Contractor to present the proposed approach to a Market Sounding and seek Program
Sponsor input.

Subtask | Meeting Purpose
15.1.6 Working o Confirm inputs required to complete the Value for Money analysis,
Group including such items as risk transfer values, public financing inputs,
Meeting IV using the County’s FA related to Crystal City, and private financing
inputs.
o Present approach fo Market Sounding and seek input.

Subtask 15.1.7 Market Sounding

Parallel to the VFM analysis, the Contractor shall conduct a market sounding to obtain industry feedback to
assess and develop marketplace interest in the projects under one (1) or more project delivery approaches,
obtain feedback on potential provisions, procurement strategies and evaluation measures as well as to
generate interest in the projects. The specific approach and materials shall be approved by the Program
Sponsor in advance. These discussions are anticipated to all be held by conference call. The Program
Sponsor and Fairfax County will be represented on the calls.

Working Group Meeting V shall occur after the Marketing Sounding is completed, during which the
Contractor shall present a summary of findings from the effort.

Subtask | Meeting Purpose
15.1.7 Market o Obtaining industry feedback to assess and develop
Soundings marketplace interest in the projects under one or more project

delivery approaches

Page 68

118



15.1.7 Working Group | o Review Market Sounding findings
Meeting V o Discuss Working Group's feedback

Subtask 15.1.8 Draft Report of Findings and Recommendations

Consolidating information and decisions from subtasks 15.1.1 through 15.1.7, the Contractor shall prepare a
draft report presenting the evaluation findings and recommendations on the delivery strategy for each
project. The draft report shall address all elements of the projects, including final engineering, right-of-way
acquisition, construction, vehicle acquisition, and operations and maintenance. Supporting information in
the report shall include a description of the evaluation process and evaluation criteria as well as the
rationale for the recommendations. The recommendations shall include specific strategies for addressing
critical risk issues with the recommended delivery method, including right-of-way acquisition. The draft
report shall include an executive summary that describes the alternatives and presents the findings of the
evaluation and recommendations in a clear and easily understood format. The draft report shall be
presented at the Working Group Meeting VI and shall be revised to incorporate Working Group feedback
before advancing the findings and recommendations to the Policy Committee IV. The following table
presents more detdails on these meetings.

Subtask | Meeting Purpose Data/info Inputs Decisions/Deliverables
15.1.8 Working o Review draft Comments on Confirmation of Preferred
Group report findings draft report Project Delivery Method;
Meeting VI | and Approval of draft report
recommendations findings and
o Discuss Working recommendations, including
Group's feedback input from Working Group.
o Confirm Draft report Confirmation of next steps,
approach with findings and including strategy for
Policy Committee | recommendations, | presenting to the Policy
and County including summary | Committee and County
Boards from Market Boards
Sounding;
Presentation
materials and
talking points
15.1.8 Policy o Present draft Policy Committee | Confirmation of Preferred
Committee | report findings Member Project Delivery Method
Meeting IV | and coordination;
recommendations | approval of
o Identify next presentation
steps materials and
talking points
Presentation Confirmation of next steps,
materials and including strategy for
talking points presenting to the Board

Subtask 15.1.9 Presentation of Findings and Recommendations
The Contractor shall assist with the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County with presentations of the findings
and recommendations to up to the County Boards; the assistance shall include preparation of power point

Page 69

119



presentations as well as talking points. The Program Sponsor will be responsible for coordinating with the
County Board Members.

The outcome of these meetings shall be a determination as to the Preferred Project Delivery Method for the
projects and confirmation of next steps.

One final Working Group Meeting VIl shall be held after the County Board's to review the Revised Report
Findings and Recommendations. This meeting shall also serve as the kick-off meeting of the development of
the Procurement and Contracting Plan.

The Program Sponsor and Fairfax County will be responsible for the following:

e Undertaking the evaluation of legal constraints associated with alternative project delivery
strategies;

¢ Provide guidance regarding the preferred operational and maintenance approach and related
constraints;

e Providing inputs required to establish the Public Sector Comparator and other assumptions in
developing the financial model and VFM analysis;
Approving questions and agency participants for the survey on alternative project delivery methods;
Determining potential alternatives at each step to narrow the scenarios evaluated at the next step,
identifying the three alternatives at the quantitative analysis step and the two alternatives for the
VEM analysis;

e Participating in the Market Sounding; and
Submitting reports to the Arlington County Board and Fairfax County Board of Supervisors with
recommendations on the contract delivery method for each project.

15.2 Conftracting and Procurement Plan

The Contractor shall develop the contracting and procurement plan for each Streetcar project that details
the specific services and goods required, the type of contracts to be awarded and the procurement
approach for each of the contracts. The plan shall identify the special considerations that need to be
addressed in each procurement, including the requirements that are associated with each project's
funding sources, as defined in the Financial Plan (Task 4.1). The plan shall be specific to the project delivery
method that is approved for each Streetcar project by the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County as part of
Project Delivery Strategy (Task 15.1).

In support of the development of the plan, the Contractor shall:

o Closely coordinate with the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County to obtain input, strategize on key
issues and discuss findings and recommendations;

e If a P3 project delivery method is selected for one or both streetcar projects, the plan shall address
how the specialized procurement coordination and transaction management services would be
administered;

e Develop a schedule that details the timing for all of the procurement efforts associated with each
contract as well as the interrelationships between contracts; and

e Prepare the draft contracting and procurement plan; the draft plan will be finalized in year 2 of the
Coniractor contract following industry outreach.

Subtask 15.2.1 Draft Procurement and Contracting Plan

The Contractor shall prepare a draft Procurement and Contracting Plan for the Columbia Pike, Crystal City
Streetcar projects and the vehicle procurement. The effort shall involve coordination with Program Sponsor
Purchasing, and County Attorney, Finance and DES staff to obtain information on requirements, processes,
and funding. In addition, the Contractor shall coordinate with the technical team to discuss project issues,
including risks and develop strategies to address risks and uncertainties.

The Plan shall address the following ltem:s:
e Definition of Services to be Procured - The services to be procured, the steps that will be undertaken
to obtain the services, the procurement method, financial justification for the procurement and the
timeframe for the procurement activities;

Page 70

120



+ Statement of Need - A brief statement of the need for the Columbia Pike and Crystal City Streetcar
lines, the ancillary facilities, and the vehicles;

o Compliance with the Applicable Requirements - Efforts to be undertaken to ensure compliance with
State, Federal and County requirements;

o New Starts Requirements — Applicable FTA New Starts requirements and the measures that will be
taken to achieve compliance;

Cost - Cost goals and supporting rationale; :

e Period of Performance - Optimum period of performance for each contract;

Procurement Constraints — Discussion of the uncertainties of the procurements, the consequences of
failure, and the action needed to address the uncertainties. This will include:

a) Unclear scope or requirements;

b) Unrealistic schedule;

c) Unrealistic budget and/or cost expectations of vendors;

d) Conflicts of Contracts;

e) Lack of Adequate Resources (Program Sponsor, PMC, Third-Party Contractors); and

f) Excessive period of time to complete the proposal evaluations, and reach consensus on the

recommendation for awards.

e Procurement Risks - The risks identified in the Risk Management workshops (Task 5.1) shall be
incorporated into the plan, along with any other risks that may be identified during the development
of the Plan. This shall include right-of-way acquisition; utilities agreements; engineering delays; long
delivery items, schedule slippage and funding availability. The Plan shall include measures for
addressing the risks; and

o Other Concerns — The Plan shall include measures for addressing other issues, including performance
and compliance issues.

The Draft Procurement and Contracting Plan shalt be submitted to the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County
for review. The Contractor shall incorporate the input into the draft Procurement and Contracting Plan. The
draft plan shall be an interim document prepared in Year 1 and shall be finalized in Year 2 after industry
outreach is conducted.

15.3 Unsolicited Proposals — OPTIONAL

If requested by the Program Sponsor, the Contractor shall assist the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County in
evaluating any unsolicited proposals that may be submitted under the Public-Private Transportation Act of
1995, Va. Code Ann. §§ 56-556, et seq. (the "PPTA") as amended, and the guidelines adopted by the
Arlington County Board.

The assistance shall include:
e Review of the feasibility and merits of the proposal and provision of review comments to the Program
Sponsor; and
e Undertaking a technical analysis of proposal elements.

In addition, the Contractor shall assist the Project Sponsor in undertaking activities related to the following:

e Accept or Reject Unsolicited Proposal {Page 9 of the Arington County PPTA Guidelines)
- o Determine if Proposal Meets PPTA Requirements;

Review for Compliance of Required Format;

Review Need for the Transportation Facility;

Review for Meeting the Needs of the Transportation Plan; and

Prepare Summary Level Report/Recommendation to Accept or Reject.

e Provision of Public Notice (Page 9 of the PPTA Guidelines)
o Assist in Preparing Public Notice

¢ |nitial Review at the Conceptual Stage (Pages 14 through 21 of the PPTA Guidelines)
o Introduction of Entity/Firm;

Project Characteristics;

Project Benefit and Compatibility;

Qualifications and Experience;

Project Financing;

References;

O 0 O O

O 0 0 0 O

Page 71

121



o Conflict of interest Statement; and
o Prepare Summary Level Report/Recommendation to Accept or Reject.

Deliverables

15.1A - Survey, meetings and calls with representatives of other agencies;

15.1B — Qualitative Analysis Findings — draft and final;

15.1C - Financial model —draft and final;

15.1E - Quantitative Analysis findings-draft and final;

15.1F — Value for Money Analysis —draft and final;

15.1G - Market Sounding technical memorandum;

15.1H — Technical Report with recommended Project Delivery Strategy and supporting rationale —
draft and final;

15.11 — APD Workshops with Policy Committee -attendance, presentations, talking points — four

workshops;

15.1J — APD Meetings and Workshops with Working Group - attendance, presentations, talking
points;

15.1K — APD Meeting with Arlington County Board and Fairfax County Board of Supervisors -
attendance, presentations, talking points;

15.2A — Draft Procurement and Contracting Plan; and

15.3A — Evaluation of Unsolicited Proposals {OPTIONAL)

Page 72

122



First Amendment Exhibit B
Arlington — Fairfax Streetcar Program
Proposed Cost Allcoation for Program Management Contract - Year 1
September 3, 2014

| City - I ia Pike - I ia Pike -
Base Work Crys'fa City Co um-bla ike Co umt.Jla ike TOTAL
Arlington Arlington Fairfax
Base Work Total S 2,492,718 S 3,666,180 S 893,745 |$ 7,052,643
Optional Work Crys'FaI City - Colum'bia Pike - Columk'>ia Pike - TOTAL
Arlington Arlington Fairfax
Optional Work Total S 274,426 S 533,108 S 129,962 | S 937,496
Program Total S 2,767,145 S 4,199,288 S 1,023,707 S 7,990,139
\ Y J
S 6,966,432 S 1,023,707 $ 7,990,139

123



First Amendment Exhibit C

Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES
AGREEMENT NO. 652-13
EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF WORK - PHASE |
Work Program Tasks and Subtasks

Task 1.0 Project Management and Administration
1.1.  Project Implementation Plan
1.2.  Safety Plan
1.3.  Preliminary Engineering Schedule
1.3.1.  Schedule Development
1.3.2. Schedule Reporting and Updates
1.3.2.1.  Schedule Updates
1.3.2.2. Schedule Narrative Report and Narrative Updates
1.4.  Monthly Reporting and Invoices
1.5.  Quality Assurance /Quality Control Manual
1.6. Project Management Meetings

Task 2.0 Document Management
2.1.  E-Builder
2.2. CADD Management

Task 3.0 Agency Coordination Meetings
3.1.  Policy Committee (PC)
3.2. Executive Steering Committee (ESC)
3.3. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC)
3.4. Citizen/ Stakeholder Coordination Committees
3.5. VDOT Local Project Team Coordination

Task 4.0 Public Outreach
4.1. Public Outreach Meetings
4.2. Project Briefings
4.3. Website Updates

Task 5.0 Environmental Compliance

5.1.  Operations and Maintenance Facility - Navy Annex Location
5.1.1 Stormwater management
5.1.2.  Traffic/transportation effects
5.1.3. Noise
5.1.4 Vibration
5.1.5.  Visual effects

5.2.  Not Used

5.3.  Four Mile Run Bridge
5.3.1.  Hydraulic Analysis
5.3.2. Temporary Construction Effects

5.4. WMATA Adjacent Construction
5.4.1. Columbia Pike Streetcar
5.4.2. Crystal City Streetcar

5.5.  Noise and Vibration Analysis for the Projects- OPTIONAL

124


jnguy5
Typewriter
First Amendment Exhibit C


Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

5.5.1. Ambient Noise Measurement
5.5.2.  TPSS Noise Analysis
5.5.3. Vibration Propagation

5.6. Environmental Site Assessments
5.6.1. Phase | EAPlan
5.6.2. TSP and Phase | ESA Analysis

Task 6.0 Preliminary Engineering

6.1. Data Collection
6.1.1.  Existing Data
6.1.2. Control Survey
6.1.3.  Boundary Compilation
6.1.4.  Aerial Photography, Mapping, and Topography
6.1.4.1.  Aerial
6.1.4.2.  Topographic Drawing
6.1.4.3. Base Maps
6.1.4.4.  Additional Surveys - OPTIONAL
6.1.5.  Utilities
6.1.5.1.  Utility Designation Survey
6.1.5.2.  Utility Drawings
6.1.5.3.  Utility Data and Matrix File
6.1.5.4.  Test Pit Program Plan- OPTIONAL
6.1.6.  Existing Structural Assessment
6.1.6.1.  Existing Structural Assessment for Lenox Apartments parking garage- OPTIONAL
6.1.6.2.  Existing Structures Visual Assessment
6.1.6.3.  Field Verification
6.1.6.4.  Field Observation Analysis Report
6.1.6.5.  Additional Existing Structures Assessment - OPTIONAL
6.1.7.  Existing Roadways
6.1.7.1.  Existing Roadways Plan collection
6.1.7.2.  Signal Infrastructure Inventory
6.1.8. Geotechnical
6.1.8.1.  Geotechnical Engineering
6.1.8.2.  Phase Il Environmental Site Assessment
6.1.8.3.  Additional Phase Il ESA(s) - Optional
6.1.8.4.  Geotechnical Data and Engineering Reports
6.1.8.5.  Resistivity Surveys at Major Structural Elements
6.1.9.  Corrosion Control
6.1.9.1.  Baseline Stray Current Survey
6.1.10. Traffic Data
6.1.10.1.  Arlington County Traffic Data
6.1.10.2. Fairfax County Traffic Data

6.2. NOTUSED

6.3. Traffic Analysis

6.3.1.  Traffic Volume Forecasts
6.3.1.1.  Arlington County Traffic Volume Forecasts
6.3.1.2.  Fairfax Future AM/PM Volume Forecasts and Modeling Methodology
6.3.1.3.  Fairfax Future Midday/Weekend Volume Forecasts and Modeling
Methodology- OPTIONAL

6.3.2. Traffic Operations
6.3.2.1.  Existing Year VISSIM models (AM/PM)

125



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

6.3.2.2.
6.3.2.3.
6.3.2.4.
6.3.2.5.
6.3.2.6.
6.3.2.7.
6.3.2.8.
6.3.2.9.
6.3.2.10.

Future VISSIM models (2020/2040, AM/PM)
Synchro models

VISSIM and Synchro model

Traffic Report Preparation & Presentation
VISSIM Visualizations - OPTIONAL

Navy Yard O&M Facility VISSIM - OPTIONAL
Pentagon City O&M Facility VISSIM- OPTIONAL
Crystal City Storage Facility VISSIM - OPTIONAL
Midday/ weekend Synchro/VISSIM- OPTIONAL

6.4. Design Waivers and Exceptions
6.4.1.  Analysis and Identification
6.4.2.  Approval and Tracking

6.5. Updated Conceptual Alignment Plans
6.5.1. Updated Conceptual Alignment Drawings and CADD Files
6.5.2.  Strip Map Drawing Updates

6.6. Civil/Roadway
6.6.1.  Existing Design Review
6.6.2. Pedestrian and Bicycle Accommodation Review
6.6.3. Sustainable Design and Stormwater Management

6.6.3.1.
6.6.3.2.

Stormwater Management Plans
Conceptual/Feasibility Stormwater Management Report

6.6.4.  Preliminary design plans

6.6.4.1.
6.6.4.2.
6.6.4.3.
6.6.4.4.

Bike/Pedestrian Best Practices and Designs
Preliminary Designs

Utility Relocation Plans

Preliminary Construction Phasing/Sequence Plan

6.7. Track Way Design Plans
6.7.1.  Track Drawings
6.7.2.  Special Trackwork
6.7.3. Track Type Evaluation

6.8. Systems Desigh Development
6.8.1. Traction power system

6.8.1.1.
6.8.1.2.
6.8.1.3.

Load Flow Analysis and TPSS Location Identification
Power Feed Requirements and Considerations
Preliminary Site Layout and Design

6.8.2. Overhead contact system (OCS)

6.8.2.1.
6.8.2.2.

OCS Plans
Evaluation of Alternative Wire Configuration and Pole Design

6.8.3. Traffic signal system

6.8.3.1.
6.8.3.2.
6.8.3.3.
6.8.3.4.
6.8.3.5.
6.8.3.6.

Transit Preferential Treatment Opportunity Analysis
Concept of Operations

Traffic Signal Design

Navy Annex O&M Facility Signal Design

Pentagon City O&M Facility Signal Design

Crystal City Storage Facility Signal Design

6.8.4. Train control
6.8.5. Other Systems Components

6.8.5.1.
6.8.5.2.
6.8.5.3.

Automatic Vehicle Location Systems
Wayside Passenger Information System
Off-Vehicle Ticket Vending

126



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

6.8.5.4.  Preliminary Stray Current Control and Corrosion Protection
6.8.5.5. Electromagnetic Interference

6.9. Station Design Development
6.9.1. Columbia Pike Streetcar

6.9.1.1 Columbia Pike Streetcar Station Design
6.9.1.2 General Design Concept

6.9.1.3. Concept Design Refinement

6.9.1.4 Station Safety Plan

6.9.1.5 Skyline Station Alternative Design

6.9.2. Crystal City Streetcar
6.9.2.1.  CCPY Transitway Project - Constructed Station Analysis and Design
6.9.2.2.  Crystal City Streetcar Project - New Station Design
6.9.2.3. Concept Design Refinement
6.9.2.4. Station Safety Plan

6.10.  Facilities Design Development
6.10.1. O&M and Vehicle Storage Facilities
6.10.1.1.  Pentagon City Programming and Schematic Design
6.10.1.2. Pentagon City Design Development
6.10.1.3.  Navy Annex Programming and Schematic Design
6.10.1.4. Navy Annex Design Development
6.10.2. Crystal City - Vehicle Storage Facility
6.10.2.1.  Crystal City Programming and Schematic Design
6.10.2.2. Crystal City Design Development
6.10.3. Temporary Construction Staging/Lay down Parcel
6.10.4. Jefferson Street Transit/ Transfer Center Site
6.10.4.1. Confirmation of Design Concept
Programming and Design Development
6.10.5. Major retaining walls related to Navy Annex O&M Facility - OPTIONAL

6.11.  Structural

6.11.1. Evaluation of Impacts
6.11.1.1.  Lenox Apartments Parking Garage. Evaluation of Lenox Apartment Garage
adjacent to the Pentagon City O&M Facility - OPTIONAL

6.11.2. Preliminary Design of Four Mile Run Bridge

6.11.3. Preliminary Design of New Retaining Walls

6.11.4. Preliminary Design of Modifications to Other Existing Structures- OPTIONAL
6.11.4.1. 12t Street under U.S. Route 1 Jefferson Davis Highway- OPTIONAL
6.11.4.2. Crystal Drive under Airport Viaduct- OPTIONAL
6.11.4.3. Joyce Street under Washington Boulevard and 1-395- OPTIONAL
6.11.4.4. Underground Parking Structures - OPTIONAL
6.11.4.5. WMATA Metrorail Tunnel and Station - OPTIONAL

6.12. Property Identification Plans
6.12.1. Preparation of Plans
6.12.1.1. Deed Information
6.12.1.2.  Acquisition Limits
6.12.1.3. ROW Requirements
6.12.2. Impact Matrix
6.12.3. Final Plats
6.12.3.1.  Final Plats
6.12.3.2. Title Reports

6.13.  NOTUSED

127



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

6.14.  Vehicle Design Specifications
6.14.1. Development of Vehicle Technical Specifications
6.14.2. Cost Estimates
6.14.3. Technical Specification Industry Review- OPTIONAL
6.14.4, Support for County-Led Vehicle Procurement- Standard Project Delivery-
OPTIONAL

6.15.  Basis of Design Report

6.16.  Constructability Review and Value Engineering
6.16.1. Constructability Review
6.16.2. Value Engineering

6.17.  Safety and Security Compliance

6.18. Construction Cost Estimates
6.18.1. Cost Estimate and Methodology Report
6.18.1.1. Cost Estimate Methodology Report
6.18.1.2. Construction Cost Estimates

6.19.  Outline Specifications

6.20. Construction Permit Evaluation

6.21. Public Art Integration- OPTIONAL

6.22. Design Collateral Materials - OPTIONAL
Task 7.0 Support for Design-Build (DB), Design-Build-Operate-Maintain (DBOM) or Public-
Private Partnership (P3) Solicitation - OPTIONAL

7.1.  Performance-Based Technical Provisions

7.1.1. Infrastructure and Facilities
7.1.1.1. Performance Based Technical Provisions - Infrastructure
7.1.1.2. Performance Based Technical Provisions - Facilities
7.1.1.3.  Technical Provision Update

7.1. Vehicles
7.2. Reference Design Package
7.2.1. Infrastructure and Facilities
7.2.1.1.  Reference Design Package Development

7.2.1.2.  Reference Design Package Refinement

ATTACHMENTS
1 Phase 1 Schedule
2 Survey Effort for Streetcar Preliminary Engineering

128



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

Background

Arlington County, herein named the Program Sponsor, in cooperation with Fairfax County, is
implementing a streetcar program to enhance fransit service provided to residents and
businesses in both Counties. Two (2) projects are included in the streetcar program:
e Columbia Pike Streetcar Project, which extends from the Skyline area in Fairfax County
along Columbia Pike to just east of the Pentagon Metrorail station in Pentagon City; and
e Crystal City Streetcar Project, which extends from the vicinity of Potfomac Avenue and
South Glebe Road in Potomac Yard to Pentagon City in Arlington County.

The two (2) streetcars connect in Pentagon City, providing Arlington County and Fairfax
County residents with enhanced access to Pentagon City, Crystal City, and Baileys Crossroads
and to the regional transit network. Key facilities associated with the streetcar program include
an Operations and Maintenance facility and vehicle storage yard as well as a supplemental
vehicle storage facility in Crystal City.

The Conftractor shall provide specialized expertise and prepare designs and specifications o
advance the implementation of the Columbia Pike Streetcar and Crystal City Streetcar
projects. The confract is a mulfiphase professional services contract. Phase | — Preliminary
Engineering will consist of development of preliminary design plans for the two streetcar
projects and the streetcar operations and maintenance (O & M) facility and vehicle storage
yard(s) as well as preparation of technical specifications for the streetcar vehicles. Several
optional subtasks are included in Phase | to address the uncertainty with conditions that would
be encountered on the corridors; all optional efforts require separate authorization by the
Program Sponsor. One of the optional tasks is preparation of bridging documents for a Design
Build (DB), Design-Build-Operate-Maintain  (DBOM) or Public-Private Partnership (P3)
procurement.

The subsequent phases of the contract, if awarded, may include final design services or
assistance with tfransitioning the engineering work to an alternative project delivery contractor,
such as DB, or DBOM, or P3 contractor.

The Program Sponsor has established an integrated project team that includes personnel from
Arlington County, Fairfax County, and a Program Management Consultant (PMC) to
implement and oversee the streetcar projects, including the work of the Confractor. The
specific arrangements for preparation and submission of deliverables, conducting design
reviews, and oversight of the engineering and design work will be finalized in the first month of
the contract.

Scope of Services

The following scope of services outlines the Work (i.e. tasks) to be performed by the Contractor
in Phase | of the engineering contract as well as the deliverables that are associated with each
task. The attached Work schedule (Attachment 1 — Phase 1 Schedule) demonstrates the order
and fiming in which the Work shall be performed.

The Contractor shall not perform any Work on an optional task or sub-task unless written

confirmation is received from the Program Sponsor. The specific scope, deliverables and
associated fees shall be negotiated with the Contractor if the optional Work is authorized.

129



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

Task 1.0 Project Management and Administration

The Contractor shall appoint a Project Manager who shall be the primary point of contact with
the Program Sponsor and the Program Management Consultant (PMC) Project Manager. The
Contractor’'s Project Manager shall be responsible for engineering project deliverables, and shall
further be responsible for coordinating quality reviews of those materials prior to delivery to the
Program Sponsor.

The Contractor’s Project Manager shall be responsible for ensuring that deliverables
required as part of the project contract are delivered to the Program Sponsor. The procedure
for acceptance or rejection of task deliverables shall be established as part of the Document
Management Plan that will be developed by the Program Sponsor.

1.1. Project Implementation Plan

The Contractor shall develop a Project Implementation Plan (PIP) for the preliminary engineering
phase of Streetcar Program in consultation with the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County. The
PIP shall serve as a guide for the Contractor and project team fto use to implement the
preliminary engineering phase for the Columbia Pike (CP) and Crystal City (CC) streetcar
projects, the streetcar Operations & Maintenance (O&M) facilities, vehicle storage yards and
vehicle technical specifications. The PIP shall define the preliminary engineering project goals,
the Confractor’s project team organizational structure, delineate responsibilities and reporting
relationships, as well as outline procedures for undertaking the Work. In addition, the PIP shall
incorporate the overall work plan/schedule for the preliminary engineering effort of the CP and
CC streetcar projects, the streetcar O&M facilities, vehicle storage yards and vehicle technical
specifications.

The PIP shall include, but not be limited to the following sections: Executive Summary,
Introduction, Revision History, Contract/Statement of Work, Project Safety Plan, Change Order
Management Plan, Subcontracts and Suppliers, Project Execution Plan, General Administration,
Sustainability Plan, Organization Charts, Staffing Plan, Roles and Levels of Authority for the
Confractor, Points of Contact, Work Breakdown Structure (WBS), WBS Dictionary, Job Charge
Numbers, Negofiated Budget and Assumptions, Preliminary Engineering Project Schedule,
Document Control Plan, Training and Orientation Plan, Project Completion and Demobilization
Plan, and Standard Operating Procedures. The Document Control Plan shall include a listing of
deliverables and shall indicate the number of hard copies or means of electronic submission.

The PIP shall be updated at least once during the preliminary engineering phase of the Streetcar
Program to incorporate new procedures, schedules and/or responsibilities. The Program Sponsor
must approve the PIP as well as subsequent updates.

1.2. Safety Plan

As part of the PIP, the Contractor shall develop a detailed Project Safety Plan (PSP) and shall
coordinate with the Program Sponsor to ensure compliance with the Streetcar Program Safety
Plan developed by the Program Sponsor. The PSP shall be based on experience from similar
streetcar and street running light rail fransit projects. The PSP shall address the health and safety
of the Conftractor’s project feams working on the streetcar program and shall be based on the
following main principles:

a) Occupational injuries and iliness are preventable;
b) Appropriate programs need to be implemented to protect the health and safety of staff;
and

130



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

c) Continuing scrutiny of hazards, tfraining and experience is essential to success.
The Project Safety Plan shall be updated should conditions or situations change during the
preliminary engineering phase of the Streetcar Program. The Program Sponsor must approve the
Project Safety Plan as well as subsequent updates. The Contractor’s sub-contracted firms shall
sign-off on the Project Safety Plan and adhere to it throughout the life of the project.
1.3. Preliminary Engineering Schedule

1.3.1. Schedule Development

The Contractor shall develop and maintain a Contract Schedule which is a comprehensive
baseline schedule that identifies timeframes for each activity, task milestone, and deliverable.
The Contract Schedule includes the Baseline Schedule, Monthly Update Schedules, and
Recovery Schedule(s).

The Baseline Schedule is the initial Critical Path Method (CPM) schedule representing the
Contractor's original work plan, as accepted by the Project Sponsor.

The Monthly Update Schedules are the modifications of the most current Contractor CPM
schedule through a regular and periodic (at least monthly) review to incorporate actual
progress to date by activity. Monthly Update Schedules shall indicate changes to the activity's
percent complete, actual start and actual finish dates.

A Recovery Schedule, when applicable, is the Contractor’s proposed plan for the recapture of
lost schedule progress to achieve the applicable completion dates. The Recovery Schedule
shall be based on the latest Monthly Update Schedule.

The Contractor shall prepare a preliminary Baseline Schedule for each streetcar project, as well
as the O & M facility/vehicle storage yard and vehicle technical specification development
and finalize the baseline schedules to include the revisions approved by the Program Sponsor.
The Program Sponsor will also review and approve all adjustments to the Contractor’s
designation of critical path activities.

The Program Sponsor will provide the Contractor with a Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) for
major activities. If no WBS is provided by the Program Sponsor, the Contractor shall utilize a WBS
that reflects the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Standard Cost Categories (SCC).

The Contractor shall use the Oracle Primavera Pé Professional Project Management software for
the Program scheduling. The Program Sponsor must approve or accept the preliminary

engineering baseline schedule as well as subsequent updates.

1.3.2. Schedule Reporting and Updates

1.3.2.1. Schedule Updates

The Contractor shall frack the Work activities progress for the scope elements and report its
progress against the baseline schedule to the Program Sponsor and the PMC. Reporting shall
occur monthly and shall include information through the last Friday of the reporting month
regarding progress, critical and near critical activities, and outstanding issues affecting the
schedules. Progress updates shall have a data date of the last Friday on the month. The
Conftractor shall provide an “.XER" file of the schedules with the baseline and schedule updates

131



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

The Program Sponsor will compare the Confractor's Baseline and Update schedules with the
master schedule developed by the Program Sponsor and will provide concurrence with or
request adjustments to the Contractor’s designation of critical path activities, as appropriate.
The Contractor shall make every feasible effort to advise the Program Sponsor of delays that
affect critical path activities within five (5) business days of knowledge of the delay. The
Contractor shall develop and recommend corrective action plans and recovery schedules for
Program Sponsor review and approval.

1.3.2.2. Schedule Narrative Report and Narrative Updates

The Contractor shall provide a Baseline Schedule narrative report which shall describe, in a
narratfive fashion, the logic of the schedule. It shall identify the critical path and other areas of
schedule delay risk. The narrative shall include a listing of identified decision/approval points in
the schedule.

The Conftractor shall provide with the Monthly Schedule Update an Update Schedule narrative
report that describes the progress of Work performed by Contractor during the report period.
The Update Schedule Narrative Report shall indicate, as appropriate, the Contractor's plans for
continuing the Work during the forthcoming report period, planned actions to correct negative
float, delays, issues and their estimated impact on the contract completion date for the
projects. The Contractor shall include, for consideration by the Program Sponsor, alternatives for
schedule recovery to mitigate potential excusable delays which are not directly attributed to
the Contractor.

The Update Schedule Narrative Report(s) shall follow the outline set forth below:
1) Contractor's Transmittal Letter;
2) Work completed during the report period;
3) Description of the current critical path of the schedule;
4) List of delayed activities;
5) Status of the Contract Interim Milestones and Contract Completion Dates;
6) Onschedule;
7) Ahead of schedule and number of days;
8) Behind schedule and number of days; and
9) List of changes to the schedule activities or logic.

For inexcusable delays, which may be directly attributed to the Contractor, the Contractor shall
provide a Recovery Schedule and a Recovery Schedule narrative report when applicable. The
Recovery Schedule narrative report shall summarize the Contractor’s proposed plan for the
recapture of lost schedule progress to achieve the applicable Completion Dates.

On a monthly basis and on a date to be determined by the Program Sponsor, the Confractor
shall meet with Program Sponsor to review the Monthly Update Schedule and the Schedule
Narrative Report.

1.4. Monthly Reporting and Invoices

The Contractor shall prepare and submit monthly reporting and invoices to the Program Sponsor
in a format prescribed by the Program Sponsor. The monthly progress reports shall include the
following information: accomplishments, deliverables, important meetings, and current issues
relating to the streetcar preliminary engineering projects including interfaces, budgets and
schedules, and other project management issues. The Program Sponsor will approve the format
of this report.

132



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

The Contractor shall frack the preliminary engineering progress against the agreed upon budget
for the preliminary engineering effort and include the tracking in the monthly progress report to
the Program Sponsor. The baseline preliminary engineering budget shall identify labor costs and
direct expenses by task and subtask as directed, with costs presented for each project, O&M
facility and vehicle storage yard, and vehicle technical specifications.

1.5. Quality Assurance /Quality Control Manual

The Contractor shall develop a Quality Assurance and Quality Control (QA/QC) Manual
specific to the Contractor team that shall provide guidelines and procedures for QA of
calculations, deliverables and other materials submitted to the Program Sponsor; and shall
define functions, procedures and responsibilities related to the preliminary engineering (PE)
design effort associated with the two streetcar projects. The Confractor shall coordinate with the
Program Sponsor, Fairfax County, and the PMC as needed in development of the Confractor
QA/QC Manual and shall update the manual as needed to accommodate project changes.
Throughout the life of the project the Contractor shall employ quality assurance measures and
documentation per the approved guidelines.

The Contractor shall prepare a draft QA/QC Manual for the Program Sponsor’s review (1 round)
and shall incorporate or respond to revisions and additions for the final document. The Program
Sponsor must approve the QA/AC manual as well as subsequent updates prior to finalization
and distribution.

1.6. Project Management Meetings

Unless otherwise directed by the Program Sponsor, the Contractor shall prepare for and
participate in project review meetings which shall include weekly meetings (up to 56) which
shall occur over the life of the project and which shall be scheduled for four (4) hours per
meeting. The meetings may include representatives from the Program Sponsor, Fairfax County,
the PMC and the Confractor. During the meetings, the Contractor shall provide updates on the
technical Work for each project and discuss upcoming efforts and issues requiring resolution
with the Program Sponsor and other Project team members. The regular attendees at the
project management meetings shall be known as the Project Management Team (PMT).

Deliverables

1.1A - Project Implementation Plan for Preliminary Engineering — Draft and Final;
1.2A - Project Safety Plan for Preliminary Engineering — Draft and Final;
1.3A - Preliminary engineering baseline schedule;

1.3B — Baseline schedule Updates (monthly);

1.3C - Recovery Schedule;

1.3D - Baseline Schedule Narrative Report;

1.3E - Update Narrative Reports and Meetings (Monthly);

1.4A — Monthly Progress Report;

1.4B — Monthly Payment Requisition/Invoice;

1.5A - QA/QC Manual for Preliminary Engineering — Draft and Final;

1.5B - QA/QC Manual updates as needed; and

1.6A — Weekly Meetings — attendance and supporting meeting materials.

Task 2.0 Document Management

The Contractor shall manage and frack documents generated as part of the preliminary
engineering services in accordance with the Document Management Plan developed by the
Program Sponsor. Documents to be managed by the Contractor shall include, but not be
limited to: reports, schedules, budgets, diagrams, drawings, plans, calculations, specifications,

133



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

and written text associated with the engineering, materials from the public and agency
engagement process, requests for information, change requests, and written project
correspondence.

At the conclusion of the Contract, or at any time as directed by the Program Sponsor, in
accordance with the Main Agreement Terms and Conditions, the Contractor shall provide to
the Program Sponsor documents and Work products created under this Contract in electronic
format.

2.1. E-Builder

As part of the Streetcar Program the Program Sponsor will establish a project and document
controls system using the e-Builder Enterprise system for overall project confrol functions,
including document management. The e-Builder system will store scope, schedule, budget, and
final Work products. The Contractor shall store “work-in-progress” products within its own
document management system. The Program Sponsor will provide e-Builder access, licenses,
and training to the Contractor for the duration of the preliminary engineering design phase of
the streetcar program. The Confractor key staff shall attend training provided by the Program
Sponsor and, based on this training, frain its own staff on the use of the e-Builder system.

As directed by the Program Sponsor, the Contractor shall participate in one (1) one-day “end
user training” class (up to 3 people) and one (1) three-day "“frain the tfrainer” class (1 person) on
the e-Builder system. The Program Sponsor will be responsible for scheduling the training sessions
and providing the Contractor with written training materials.

2.2. CADD Management

The Contractor shall develop a CADD Management System (CMS) in coordination with Program
Sponsor as well as the Document Management Plan developed by the Program Sponsor. The
CMS shall specify procedures to ensure that Streetcar Program team members have access to
current and accurate engineering drawings (in PDF and CADD formats) and documents and
shall address streetcar elements that are not designated within the current Arlington County
CADD Standards and Guidelines Manual. The Contractor shall implement the system and
procedures and shall monitor compliance with procedures.

The Program Sponsor will provide the Contractor with a copy of the current Arlington County
CADD Standards and Guidelines Manual. The Contractor shall review this manual as well as the
VDOT CADD Manual (2012 or latest available). The Contractor shall propose and submit for the
Program Sponsors’ review and approval a Project CADD Manual that incorporates the intent of
the Arlington County and VDOT manuals and draws upon the Contractor’s typical practice to
streamline the development of the Contractor’s technical drawings. The Contractor’s Project
CADD Manual shall address VDOT, Arlington County, and Fairfax County requirements for right-
of-way exhibits. CADD base files shall be submitted to the Program Sponsor on CD-ROM or other
approved external storage device at each interim design milestone submittal; for the final
submittal CADD files shall be provided to the Program Sponsor as directed. Unless otherwise
specified, all Contractor material and file deliverables shall be in electronic format. The
Contractor shall provide interim and final submittal of CADD base files to the Program Sponsor as
requested in AutoCAD format and compatible with AutoCAD version 2012.

Deliverables

2.0A - Project documents as required;

2.1A - Participation in e-Builder training; and
2.2A - CADD Management System; and
2.2B - CADD Manual - Draft and Final.

134



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

Task 3.0 Agency Coordination Meetings

As directed by the Program Sponsor, the Contractor shall participate in project presentations
and briefings on a periodic basis as part of coordination meetings with the following groups
and agencies. Unless otherwise specified, all materials and files provided by the Contractor shall
be in electronic format.

3.1. Policy Committee (PC)

Quarterly Policy Committee meetings (up to 6 meetings) will occur to review materials and
obtain policy direction at key points during the planning and development process. The
Columbia Pike Streetcar PC includes representatives from the Arlington County and Fairfax
County and their Boards, Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT), Department of Rail and
Public Transportation (DRPT), the Commonwealth Transportation Board (CTB), Virginia State
Senate and Virginia House of Delegates. The role of the PC is fo approve changes o the project
scope and schedule, as well as review draft documents prior to presentation to the County
Boards or the public.

3.2. Executive Steering Committee (ESC)

Quarterly Executive Steering Committee meetings (up to 6 meetings) will occur to provide
direction to the PMT on major project issues; members include senior fransportation staff with
both Countfies.

3.3. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC)

TAC meetings will occur quarterly (up fo 6 meetings) to provide direction to the PMT on project
technical issues; members include VDOT, DRPT, and potentially Federal Transit Administration
(FTA).

3.4. Citizen/ Stakeholder Coordination Committees

There will be quarterly Citizen/Stakeholder Coordination Committee meetings (up to 6 meetings)
to provide feedback to the PMT and Project Team and also to inform citizens’ advisory groups
and community organizations of project progress. These committees are:

e Columbia Pike Implementation Team

e Crystal City Citizens Review Council

e Pentagon City Area Coordination Committee (to be identified)

¢ Baileys Crossroads Area Coordination Committee (to be identified)

3.5. VDOT Local Project Team Coordination

The Contractor shall provide appropriate representatives to attend up to eighteen (18) monthly
meetings and up to nine (?9) additional meetings to coordinate design development and
approvals with VDOT Northern Virginia District staff. The Program Sponsor will approve reports
and materials for presentation as well as Contractor attendance at the meetings.

Deliverables

3.1A = Quarterly Policy Committee meetings — attfendance and supporting meeting materials;
3.2A - Quarterly Executive Steering Committee meetings — attendance and supporting meeting
materials;

3.3A — Quarterly Technical Advisory Committee meetings — attendance and supporting meeting
materials;

3.4A — Quarterly Citizen/Stakeholder Coordination Committees meetings — attendance and
supporting meeting materials; and

3.5A - VDOT Local Project Team Coordination — attendance and supporting meeting materials.

12

135



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

Task 4.0 Public Ovutreach

Both streetcar projects shall be conducted in a collaborative atmosphere, with public
participation intfegrated into the technical evaluation process. Timely updates and clear
communications with citizens, businesses, developers, and state, federal, and local elected
officials are keys to public participation. Unless otherwise specified, the Contractor shall provide
in electronic format all materials and files requested by the Program Sponsor.

4.1. Public Outreach Meetings

The Contractor shall attend, participate in and undertake project presentations and briefings on
a periodic basis at public meetings to inform the public and stakeholders about the Streetcar
Program preliminary engineering design effort and solicit and provide opportunities for public
input.

Each streetcar project will have two (2) rounds of open house public meetings with one (1)
round occurring early in the preliminary engineering design phase and the other round later in
the process when preliminary engineering plans are more developed. Each round of open
house meetings will be held at three (3) locations: the CC Streetcar corridor, the CP Streetcar
corridor in Arlington County and the CP Streetcar corridor in Fairfax County. The public outreach
and stakeholder meetings will be coordinated by the Program Sponsor and the PMC.

The Contractor shall provide to the Program Sponsor in electronic format maps, graphics, and
other Work products (renderings, stills, animations) that have been prepared as part of other
tasks for the purposes of creating display boards and other presentation materials for each
round of meetings. The Contractor shall participate in the meetings and respond to technical
questions on the preliminary engineering Work being conducted for each streetcar project, the
O & M facility and vehicle storage yard, and vehicle technical specifications.

4.2. Project Briefings

The Contractor shall participate in additional meetings with project stakeholders and agencies
as directed by the Program Sponsor, up to eighteen (18) meetings total. The information
presented at these briefings shall be the same as presented at the associated public meetings,
as appropriate. The groups shall include the following:

Arlington County Transit Advisory Committee;

Arlington County Transportation Commission;

Arlington County Disability Affairs Commission;

Arlington County Public Facilities Review Commission;

Applicable civic associations;

Fairfax County Board of Supervisors (BOS) Transportation Committee; and

Fairfax County Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC).

4.3. Website Updates

As part of Public Outreach and Stakeholder Coordination, the Program Sponsor will maintain
and manage a website for each Streetcar project. As requested, the Contractor shall provide
to the Program Sponsor, for incorporation intfo the project website, technical updates on the
preliminary engineering design effort, including the status of design work, summaries of findings,
and reports.

Deliverables

4.1A — CP Streetcar oufreach meetings — attfendance and electronic versions of supporting
meeting materials, presentation materials and graphics — two (2) rounds, two (2) meetings each
round;

136



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

4,1B — CC Streetcar outreach meetings attendance and electronic versions of supporting
meeting materials, presentation materials and graphics — two (2) rounds, one (1) meeting each
round;

4.2A — Project Briefings — attendance and electronic versions of supporting meeting materials,
presentation materials and graphics;

4.3A — CP Streetcar website electronic submissions; and

4.3B — CC Streetcar website electronic submissions.

Task 5.0 Environmental Compliance

The Contractor shall prepare technical support documentation and provide assistance to the
Program Sponsor in order for the Program Sponsor to secure the required environmental
clearance, approvals, and permits for both streetcar projects. The specific areas of technical
support that the Contractor shall provide are described below.

Presently, a number of alternatives will be carried into the preliminary engineering design phase
for the CP streetcar project including; two (2) O & M facility and vehicle storage yard sites, two
(2) street alignments for the eastern end of Columbia Pike from the Navy Annex site to Joyce St
and two (2) Skyline Station facility locations. The federal funding in the current funding plan
necessitates that project Work be in compliance with federal National Environmental Policy Act
(NEPA) requirements. The Program Sponsor will be required to develop a Supplemental
Environmental Assessment document or a Re-evaluation Report to address revisions to the CP
Streetcar project definition since completion of the draft Columbia Pike Transit Initiative AA/EA
report (2012) as well as the enactment of new or revised laws and regulations. In the event that
a federal environmental document is not required for the CP Streetcar, the Program Sponsor will
be required to comply with the Virginia State Environmental Review Process as well as the Local
Environmental Review Process.

The CC Streetcar funding program does not include federal funding and it is assumed that the
Program Sponsor will be required to comply with the Virginia State Environmental Review
Process as well as the Local Environmental Review Process for this project.

The Contractor shall provide similar technical environmental analyses and support for either the
federal or state/local process for both streetcar projects

5.1. Operations and Maintenance Facility - Navy Annex Location

The Contractor shall provide engineering and technical support documentation and assistance
with updating potential environmental impacts and mitigation measures for the Navy Annex
O&M Facility. The Program Sponsor will coordinate with the Confractor to develop the
appropriate scope, budget and schedule for the environmental effort. This shall include Work to
assess the following effects to the facility:

5.1.1.  Stormwater management

For NEPA documentation support, the Contractor shall evaluate the potential stormwater
management (SWM) impacts to determine the effect of the proposed facility on runoff volume
and peak flow rates and on the water quality of stormwater runoff at the project drainage
outfalls. The Contractor shall also make an assessment of land disturbance impacts during
construction and shall identify the type of erosion and sediment control measures necessary to
mitigate the impacts. The Contractor shall identify the required permanent changes to the
drainage system measures such as, new access roads with curb and gutter inlets and storm
sewers and shall include the amount of land surface impacts of SWM Best Management
Practice (BMP) facilities. The Contractor shall prepare a conceptual design for SWM facilities,

137



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

such as extended detention or enhanced extended detention, bio-retention basins, rain
gardens and others to determine potential right-of-way impacts and shall include these designs
in the NEPA impact calculations. The Confractor shall identify areas required for purchasing
additional right-of-way or easements. The Confractor shall design the conceptual design
stormwater final design measures to comply with the Virginia Runoff Reduction Method criteria
and the new Virginia Natfional Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) requirements.

5.1.2. Traffic/transportation effects

The Contractor shall complete a tfraffic impact analysis to assess the transportation effects of
streetcar operations and vehicle turning movements at intersections and driveways between
the Columbia Pike/Oak Street and Columbia Pike/Joyce Street intersections near the Navy
Annex O&M Facility and vehicle storage yard site. The traffic impact analysis shall be
completed for the a.m. and p.m. peak hours using Synchro, and output results shall be used to
complete the noise, vibration, and air quality analyses.

5.1.3. Noise

The Contractor shall conduct a study of the site conditions once a preliminary master plan and
concept design have been approved for the O&M Facility. The Contractor shall model noise
originating from sources, such as wheel squeal, horns, bells, maintenance equipment, wash
equipment, and standby generators, to predict noise levels at the sensitive receivers, such as
residences, hospitals, and other institutional land uses adjacent to the facility. The Contractor
shall measure ambient noise near the site at a maximum of four (4) sites, including up to two (2)
long-term sites for a duration of 24 hours. The Confractor shall assess noise impacts and shall
recommend potential mitigation strategies to maintain permissible noise levels per approved
advanced conceptual engineering (ACE) and environmental assessment (EA) documentation.
The Contractor shall use the FTA's detailed assessment procedure to determine if the predicted
noise levels from the streetcar operations at the O & M facility exceed the impact thresholds of
sensitive receivers.

5.1.4. Vibration

The Contractor shall evaluate vibration levels at sensitive receivers, such as residences, hospitals
and other institutional land uses, adjacent to the facility. The Contractor shall recommend
mitigation measures to maintain permissible vibration levels per approved ACE and EA
documentation. The Contractor shall use the FTA's detailed assessment procedure to
determine if the predicted vibration levels from the streetcar operations at the O & M facility
exceed the impact thresholds of sensitive receivers.

5.1.5.  Visual Effects

The Confractor shall evaluate the developed Navy Annex O&M facility concept and
determine its potential visual impact to surrounding adjacent properties in all four (4) compass
directions. The Contractor shall digitally render the facility within the context of the site and
develop (or update existing) multiple, up to six (6), perspective renderings of the facility from
various viewpoints, which show height, massing, wall openings and other relevant visual
characteristics required to determine impacts to the environment.

138



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

5.2. Not Used
5.3. Four Mile Run Bridge

5.3.1. Hydraulic Analysis

The Contractor shall perform hydraulic analysis of the Four Mile Run stream related to
modifications to the pier footings of the Four Mile Run Bridge using existing Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA) Flood Insurance Study (FIS) model information. The Contractor
shall coordinate with the Program Sponsor, Virginia Department of Environmental Quality, and
the FEMA to determine the appropriate analysis. The Columbia Pike Bridge over Four Mile Run is
located within a FEMA FIS flood plain, Zone AE, with designated Base Flood Elevations. Based on
the flood profile within the August 19, 2013 FIS, the 100-year and 500-year flood profiles are
below the low cord elevation. Even though the bridge may be structurally improved without
impacting the bridge opening area, the Contractor shall perform a proposed conditions
hydraulic analysis using the FIS peak flow to verify and validate that the project will not adversely
impact the flood profiles. The Contractor shall perform a separate hydrologic analysis to verify
that the FIS flow values are appropriate for the scour evaluations. The Contractor shall perform a
scour analysis using the 2012 HEC-18 procedures to develop a scour profile for the 100-year and
500-year flow events. The Confractor shall submit a hydraulic analysis report to the Program
Sponsor for review and approval.

5.3.2. Temporary Construction Effects

The Conftractor shall document the temporary effects from construction on the Four Mile Run
Trail, Glencarlyn Park, and the Washington and Old Dominion Trail due to necessary
improvements to the Four Mile Run Bridge. The Contractor shall conduct a site visit with qualified
environmental scientists to evaluate potential environmental impacts and to determine the
breadth and scope of potential impacts. The site visit shall focus on potential impacts to Waters
of the US (WOUS) and impacts to the park trails and impacts to park visitor usage. The
Contractor shall draft an environmental memorandum based on the site visit which shall
summarize existing site conditions, narrative on potential impacts to resources and the park,
identify potential environmental permits needed to perform the work, provide mitigation and
avoidance recommendations and identify permit requirements of activities impacting potential
WOUS. The permit requirements shall identify the required applications, review process and
timeline for each necessary permit. The Contractor shall coordinate such documentation with
Arlington County and the Northern Virginia Regional Park Authority. The Contractor shall develop
bicycle and pedestrian detour plans if it is determined temporary closures are necessary during
streetcar project construction. The Contractor shall submit written documentation of the
temporary construction effects to the Program Sponsor for review and approval.

5.4. Washington Metropolitan Area Transportation Authority (WMATA) Adjacent Construction

The Confractor shall conduct a preliminary adjacent construction analysis to ascertain the
effects of streetcar infrastructure and construction upon underground Metrorail facilities. The
Contractor shall analyze the effects of the streetcar projects on the existing underground
WMATA facilities and report findings based upon the WMATA Adjacent Construction Project
Manual. The Contractor shall review the WMATA Zones of Influence (ZOl) requirements for each
one of the underground facilities that the streetcar alignment crosses or intersect. The
Contractor shall review the ufility owner’s criteria, streetcar structural loadings, geotechnical
data and how it affects WMATA underground facilities and their respective ZOls. This analysis
shall not include detailed finite element analyses or modeling for the preliminary WMATA
adjacent construction. The Contractor shall submit a draft preliminary adjacent construction

139



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

analysis report to the Program Sponsor for review and approval and shall provide a final report
incorporating revisions and additions requested by the Program Sponsor.

5.4.1. CP Streetcar

The Confractor shall analyze the effects on the Pentagon City Metrorail Stafion and Metrorail
running tunnel under South Hayes Street.

5.4.2. CC Streetcar

The Contractor shall analyze the effects on the Crystal City Metrorail Station and Metrorail
running tunnel under 18t Street South.

5.5. Noise and Vibration Analysis for the Projects- OPTIONAL

If this optional subtask is authorized, the Contractor shall provide engineering and technical
support documentation and assistance with noise and/or vibration analysis as appropriate for
the projects. The Program Sponsor will coordinate with the Confractor to develop the
appropriate scope, budget and schedule for the environmental effort if the Work is required.

For each of the subtasks, the Contractor shall perform noise and/or vibration impact analysis as
appropriate and recommend mitigation where there are potential impacts. In addition, the
Contractor shall develop general guidelines on best practices to mitigate potential noise and
vibration impacts from activities related to the project construction. Because the means and
methods of construction will not be fully known at the time of environmental documentation, the
construction noise and vibration evaluation shall focus on determining the potential impact
distances based on general assumptions of equipment usage. The Contractor shall submit a
draft technical report documenting the noise and vibration analysis to the Program Sponsor for
review and approval. The Contractor shall submit a final report which incorporates revisions and
additions requested by the Program Sponsor.

5.5.1. Ambient Noise Measurement

The Contractor shall conduct ambient noise measurements for the Project at representative test
sites. The selection of sites shall be performed after a preliminary scoping of the project corridor
by the Contractor, and consultations with the Program Sponsor. The noise tests shall be
performed at a maximum of two (2) long-term sites for a duration of twenty four (24) hours and
at up to two (2) additional short-term sites for durations ranging from fifteen (15) minutes to one
(1) hour. The Contractor shall use the FTA's detailed assessment procedure to determine if the
predicted noise and vibration levels from streetcar operations exceed the impact thresholds at
sensitive receivers. Where impacts are predicted, the Contractor shall recommend appropriate
mitigation measures. The Confractor shall perform traffic noise analysis if streetcar speeds are
expected to exceed 25 mph in any section of the alignment or if major realignment of existing
lanes is expected as a result of the streetcar project. If traffic noise impacts are identified, the
Contractor shall evaluate reasonableness and feasibility of mitigation for traffic noise impacts.

5.5.2. Traction Power Substation (TPSS) Noise Analysis

The Confractor shall conduct noise measurements at up to ten (10) sites, including up to six (6)
long-term sites for a duration of 24 hours, as determined collaboratively by the Confractor and
Program Sponsor, in order to establish ambient noise levels at sensitive receivers that are
located close to the TPSS facilities. At the remaining sites, short-term noise measurements for a
duration ranging from thirty (30) minutes to two (2) hours will be performed. The Contractor shall
evaluate the potential for noise impacts at the sensitive receivers from the TPSS units. If noise

140



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

impacts from the TPSS units are identified at any of the sensitive receivers, the Contractor shall
recommend appropriate noise mitigation measures.

5.5.3. Vibration Propagation

The Confractor shall perform vibration propagation tests using FTA test procedures at up fo six
(6) sites in the project area. The selection of test sites shall be performed collaboratively by the
Contractor and the Program Sponsor. The vibration propagation tests shall measure
characterizing vibration transmission efficiency through the ground in the project corridor and
provide information that shall be used to perform a detailed assessment of vibration impacts at
sensitive receivers.

5.6. Environmental Site Assessments

5.6.1. Phase | Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) Plan

The Contractor shall develop and submit for Program Sponsor approval a plan for assessing the
environmental condition of properties identified for acquisition on both streetcar corridors under
subtask 6.1.2.2. The plan shall utilize the applicable Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and
American Society of Testing and Materials (ASTM) standards related to identification of the
presence or likely presence of hazardous materials. The plan shall recommend the appropriate
level of assessment for each parcel based upon the ASTM Standard Practices Manual — either
the transaction screen process (TSP) or the Phase | ESA.

In developing the plan, the Contractor shall consider the previous Phase 1 ESA Work completed
on both corridors — the CC Streetcar Phase | ESA (2014) as well as the 2009 Phase | ESA on
Columbia Pike and shall recommend the additional environmental assessment effort required
at each property based upon the shelf life of assessments and the anticipated timing for the
property acquisition. In addition, the plan shall recommend the appropriate level of
assessment for properties identified for acquisition in sections of the alignment that were not
previously reviewed in the 2009 Phase 1 ESA:

e CP Streetcar alignment along Jefferson Street between Route 7 and Columbia Pike;

e CP Streetcar alignment along Joyce Street, Army-Navy Drive, Hayes Street, and 12th

Street; and
¢ O&M and Venhicle Storage Facility at Navy Annex.

The Contractor shall submit the draft plan for review and comment by the Program Sponsor,
and submit the final plan incorporating revisions provided by the Program Sponsor.

5.6.2. TSP and Phase | ESA Analysis

The Contractor shall undertake the TSP and Phase | ESA analysis at the parcels that are
approved in the Phase | ESA Plan by the Program Sponsor and submit a report with the findings
for Program Sponsor review and approval. Up to seven (7) Phase 1 ESAs shall be undertaken by
the Contractor as part of this effort. The Program Sponsor will coordinate with the Contractor to
develop the scope, budget and schedule for the TSP and Phase 1 ESA effort following approval
of the TSP/ Phase 1 ESA plan. The budget will reflect the number of parcels to be analyzed and
the type of analysis to be undertaken: TSP or Phase 1 ESA.

The TSPs and Phase | ESAs shall be prepared under the supervision of a qualified Environmental
Professional as defined ASTM E1527-13. At the conclusion of the TSP/Phase | ESA analysis
process, the Contractor shall prepare a report with the results of the TSP and Phase | ESA
analysis at each parcel. The report shall include recommendations regarding the sites that
require a Phase Il ESA, as well as the type of testing recommended. The Contractor shall submit

141



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

the draft report for review and comment by the Program Sponsor, and submit a final report
incorporating revisions provided by the Program Sponsor.

Deliverables

5.1A — Navy Annex O&M Noise, Vibration, Visual, Stormwater Management and Transportation
Impacts Evaluation Report — draft and final;

5.3A - Four Mile Run Bridge hydraulic analysis report and temporary construction effects report —
draft and final;

5.4A — Preliminary WMATA Adjacent Construction for Columbia Pike analysis report — draft and
final;

5.4B - Preliminary WMATA Adjacent Construction for Crystal City analysis report — draft and final;
5.5.1A — Ambient Noise Measurements and Mitigation Report — draft and final - OPTIONAL;

5.5.2A — Noise Analysis report for TPSS — draft and final — OPTIONAL;

5.5.3A - Ground Borne Vibration Report — draft and final — OPTIONAL;

5.6.1A =TSP and ESA Plan - draft and final; and

5.6.2A - TSP and Phase | ESA analysis and reports — draft and final.

Task 6.0 Preliminary Engineering

As a part of the first phase, the Contractor shall develop preliminary engineering plans (overall
30% design development) for the two streetcar projects, facilities, and vehicles with the goals of
identifying physical requirements, fully defining the project scope, and developing more refined
cost estimates for the purpose of setting the stage for the final design, vehicle manufacturing,
and construction phases of the projects. As the projects advance, it will be critical to develop a
coherent set of preliminary design documents that cover necessary aspects of project
development while eliminating unnecessary redundancy. The Contractor shall coordinate their
Work with projects within the identified streetcar corridors currently in design or construction by
Program Sponsor, Fairfax County and other stakeholders. The Contractor shall coordinate on the
development of aesthetfic freatments and potential public art projects that may be
incorporated into the streetcar projects’ design, as directed by the Program Sponsor.

The engineering and architectural designs and vehicle technical specifications shall be in
accordance with the Arlington County Streetcar Design Criteria and Streetcar Utility Rules of
Practice, both of which are under development, as well as the applicable VDOT standards,
WMATA Adjacent Construction Manual, applicable Fairfax County Standards, other applicable
Arlington County standards, guidelines, building codes, and specifications, and other relevant
Federal and State and Authority Having Jurisdiction requirements.

Preliminary design shall be advanced in close coordinafion with the environmental effort
outlined in Task 5.0.

6.1. Data Collection

The Confractor shall coordinate with the Program Sponsor to obtain information currently
available for the CP Streetcar and CC Streetcar projects. The Program Sponsor currently has
several projects underway in the Columbia Pike and Crystal City corridors. The available
information includes: control surveys, aerial photography and mapping, Geographical
Information Systems (GIS) data, existing utility locations (both wet and dry), utility relocation
activities, information on the ufility franchise agreements, civil roadway design plans, transit
facility design plans, traffic counts, model networks, and transit studies. The Program Sponsor will
provide the Contractor with available design plans for projects along proposed corridor.

142



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

6.1.1. Existing Data

The Contractor shall review the provided information and identify to the Program Sponsor any
additional information necessary for the preliminary engineering effort that has not been already
compiled, is inaccurate, or is no longer current. The project area shall include areas related to
the track, station, and facility improvements. The study area for the traffic analysis shall be
sufficient to capture the potential vehicular effects. In general, the existing data that the
Program Sponsor will provide includes:

Survey Control Arlington  County Survey Control Network
(ACSCN) second (2nd) order accuracy (or higher)
survey control monuments

Project specific secondary horizontal and vertical
control documentation along Columbia Pike
between South Jefferson Street and South Joyce
Street, and the project alignments through
Pentagon City, Crystal City, and Potomac Yard
within Arlington County.

Topographic 1. Columbia Pike between South Jefferson Street
and South Joyce Street

(The Program Sponsor has topographic survey,
from 2009, which will be provided to the
Contractor. The Program Sponsor also intends to
prepare new topographic survey of portions of]
Columbia Pike, which will also be provided to the
Confractor as the information becomes
available.)

2) Navy Annex O&M facility site from 2013.

3) The Program Sponsor also intends to prepare
new topographic survey of portions of Columbia
Pike, which will also be provided fto the
Contfractor as the information becomes
available.

Boundary Columbia Pike between South Jefferson Street
and South Joyce Street, and some areas of the
project alignments through Pentagon City and
Crystal City.

Engineering Design Plans Columbia Pike between South Jefferson Street
and South Joyce Street and some areas of the
project alignments through Pentagon City and
Crystal City.

The Confractor shall collect the most recent orthorectified aerial photography for the two
streetcar project corridors from the Virginia Base Mapping Program.

6.1.2. Control Survey

All surveying Work to be provided by the Confractor shall be performed under the direct
supervision of a Virginia licensed land surveyor in accordance with the current regulations and
applicable provisions of the Code of Virginia and the VDOT Commonwealth of Virginia
Surveying Manual dated 2014 or most current.

20

143



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

The Program Sponsor will provide the Contractor with documentation on control
monumentation established as part of the Arlington County Survey Control Network (ACSCN).
The Confractor shall review the documentation for secondary horizontal and vertical control
established along the CP Streetcar project corridor and the CC Streetcar project corridor, as
provided by the Program Sponsor. The Confractor shall establish a streetcar program survey
control network using the ACSCN as the basis for the control network. The Contractor shall
supplement the existing ACSCN by establishing new second (2nd) order accuracy (or higher)
survey control monuments using the NAD83 and NAVD 88 geodetic reference systems, along
the streetcar corridor as required. All new control monuments shall be established at intervals of
500 - 700 feet (ft), with line of sight between each new monument, where achievable. For the
portion of the CP Streetcar project that lies within Fairfax County, the Contractor shall collect
and incorporate control and baseline information from VDOT and Fairfax County where
available.

The Contractor shall supplement existing secondary project control by establishing new
secondary horizontal and vertical control within the streetcar corridor as required, including the
portion of the CP Streetcar project that lies within Fairfax County. All new secondary conftrol
shall be established at interval of no more than 500 feet (ft) with line of sight between each new
control point, where achievable. For the portion of the CP Streetcar project that lies within
Fairfax County, the Contractor shall collect and incorporate control and baseline information
from VDOT and Fairfax County, where available.

The Contractor shall ensure that all new and existing second (27d) order accuracy (or higher)
survey confrol monuments and secondary project control within the two streetcar corridors are
fied to the ACSCN ensuring a program survey confrol network is established.

The Contractor shall prepare signed and sealed survey confrol drawings suitable for use in
construction. The Contractor shall incorporate the survey control points info CADD files and
drawings for each project alignment and provide copies to the Program Sponsor.

The Contractor shall submit all computations for new control monuments to the Arlington
County, Office of the County Surveyor for inclusion into the ACSCN.

The base conftrol survey effort for Preliminary Engineering is summarized in Attachment 2.

6.1.3. Boundary Compilation

All surveying services to be provided by the Contractor shall be performed under the direct
supervision of a Virginia licensed land surveyor in accordance with the current regulations and
applicable provisions of the Code of Virginia and the VDOT Commonwealth of Virginia
Surveying Manual dated 2014 or most current.

The Contractor shall assemble a property mosaic for the base mapping of all parcels along
both streetcar corridors from provided and best available information showing all property lines,
ROW lines and all utility, drainage or other temporary or permanent easements and ownership
per the legal description recorded for each property from deeds and other research. A field
survey shall be performed to tie down all adjacent parcels to the established project control
established in Task 6.1.2 and to inifially resolve gaps and overlaps based on the assembled
property mosaic base. All property monumentation (and a description of the object found)
shall be shown on the survey. All topography and property surveys shall meet or exceed the
minimum standards outlined in Sections 18VAC10-20-380 and 18VACI10-20-382 of the Virginia
Administrative Code. The level of detail shall be suitable for preparing plats and right-of-way
exhibits for property acquisition.

21

144



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

The Contractor shall incorporate the boundary compilation survey into CADD files and drawings
for each project alignment, and provide copies to the Program Sponsor.

The base boundary compilation survey effort for Preliminary Engineering is summarized in
Attachment 2

6.1.4. Aerial Photography, Mapping, and Topography

All surveying services to be provided by the Contractor shall be performed under the direct
supervision of a Virginia licensed land surveyor in accordance with the current regulations and
applicable provisions of the Code of Virginia and the most current VDOT's Commonwealth of
Virginia Surveying Manual.

6.1.4.1. Aerial

The Contractor shall obtain new aerial photography and provide survey and engineering
services to develop topographic and planimetric information in the following areas:
1. Route 7 (Leesburg Pike) for 600 feet west of Jefferson Street to 600 feet east of Jefferson
Street;
Jefferson Street from Leesburg Pike to Columbia Pike;
South Joyce Street from the northern edge of I-395 to 100 feet south of Army-Navy Drive;
Army-Navy Drive from 100 feet west of South Joyce Street to 12t Street South;
South Hayes Street from Army-Navy Drive to 100 feet south of 12th Street South;
12th Street South from South Hayes Street to eastern edge of South Fern Street;
12th Street South from western edge of South Eads Street to Crystal Drive;
Crystal Drive from 12t Street South to 33d Street South; and
18th Street South from South Eads Street to Crystal Drive.

Vo NGO~ WN

The aerial photography shall initially be geo-referenced in areas where existing data is
provided. The geo-referenced photography shall be used to provide checks of the existing
data for its accuracy and completeness. In areas where no existing data is available, the
photographs shall be ortho-rectified and tied to the survey control established in Task 6.1.2. The
photography shall be used to produce raw mapping and supplemented with ground survey.
The timing of this Work shall be at the direction of the Program Sponsor.

The Conftractor shall perform ground surveys to supplement the aerial mapping for the project
limits. The ground survey scope includes preparing supplemental field run topographic surveys
along the length of the two project alignments. The Contractor shall obtain top of curb, bottom
of curb, crown of road, edge of pavement, and doorway threshold elevations along the
project alignments. The survey shall include surface features within the project area, including
but not limited to, buildings, roadways, streams, utility pedestals, fences and gates, swales,
retaining walls, rock outcrops, boulders, curbing, curb cuts, visible surface evidence of gravity
and non-gravity utilities, power poles (with numbers), aerial utility connectivity, water wells,
meters, fire hydrants, street trees, free pits, free lines, landscape areas, signage, light poles, signs
(with identification), electrical meter boxes, bridge piers, and sidewalks. The survey shall also
include subsurface features, such as but not limited to, gravity storm and sanitary structures
including inverts of structures and connectivity, underground parking garages and other
facilities to be located at the direction of the Program Sponsor. The Program Sponsor will be
responsible for obtaining permission to enter private and public facilities to perform the Work.

22

145



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

6.1.4.2. Topographic Drawing

The Contractor shall integrate topographic and planimetric information collected above with
information provided by the Program Sponsor. The Contractor shall prepare a Digital Terrain
Model (DTM) of the topographic survey. Topographic information gathered from the surveys
shall be included in a separate drawing file that can be referenced to the topographic survey.
The topographic survey shall meet or exceed the minimum standards outlined in Sections
18VAC10-20-380 and 18VAC10-20-382 of the Virginia Administrative Code.

6.1.4.3. Base Maps

The Contractor shall prepare a signed and sealed set of base sheet drawings for the two
streetcar projects depicting the topography, existing utilities, property lines, and right-of-way
(including easements) as located, printable at 1"=25" scale using the existing information
obtained as part of task 6.1 together with new data collected as part of Tasks 6.1.2 — 6.1.4. The
base sheet drawings shall meet the requirements established in the CADD Management System
in Task 2.0. The Contractor shall incorporate the survey into CADD files and drawings for each
project alignment, and provide copies to the Program Sponsor.

6.1.4.4. Additional Surveys - OPTIONAL

If this optional subtask is authorized, the Contractor shall provide additional survey services. The
Program Sponsor will coordinate with the Contractor to develop the appropriate scope,
budget and schedule if the Work is required. The surveys shall meet the requirements as
described in Tasks 6.1.4.1, 6.1.4.2, and 6.1.4.3.

The Conftractor shall provide survey and engineering services to develop topographic and
planimetric information in the following areas:

1) South Clark Street from 12th Street to 18th Street: The Contractor shall provide survey
services to develop topographic and planimetric information for the area of South Clark
Street which is planned to be demolished by others.

2) Crystal Drive from 26th Street South to southern edge of 33rd Street South, including the
Crystal City Vehicle Storage Facility Site: At the completion of the construction of the
CCPY Transitway, the topographic survey and base map may be updated for this
segment.

3) Crystal Drive from the southern edge of 33rd Street South to the eastern edge of Route
1, then along Crystal City Potomac Yard (CCPY) Transitway alignment to 100 feet south
of South Glebe Road: At the completion of the construction of the CCPY Transitway, the
topographic survey and base map may be updated for this segment.

4) South Glebe Road from eastern edge of Route 1 to eastern edge of Potomac Avenue:
At the completion of the construction of the CCPY Transitway, the topographic survey
and base map may be updated for this segment.

5) Potomac Avenue from the northern edge of South Glebe Road to 200 feet south of Four
Mile Run Bridge: At the completion of the construction of the CCPY Transitway, the
topographic survey and base map may be updated for this segment.

6) 12th Street South between eastern edge of South Fern Street and western edge of South
Eads Street: The Contractor shall provide survey services to develop topographic and
planimetric information for the area of the 12th Street South between South Fern Street
and South Eads Street upon completion of construction of this segment.

7) The Contractor shall provide survey services to develop topographic and planimetric
information for the area of Airport Viaduct Ramp which is planned to be demolished by
others.

8) The Contractor shall provide survey services to develop topographic and planimetric
information for the area of the Washington Boulevard interchange with Columbia Pike

23

146



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

(also known as “Segment B”) upon completion of its construction. The approximate limits
of this Work are between South Orme Street and South Quinn Street.

9) The Confractor shall provide survey services to develop topographic information for the
Four Mile Run stream from 500 feet upstream fo 500 feet downstream of the existing
bridge of Columbia Pike over Four Mile Run.

10) The Contractor shall provide survey services to develop topographic and planimetric
information for the area of Columbia Pike between South Jefferson Street and Four Mile
Run (also known as “Segments H & 1").

11) The Conftractor shall provide survey services to develop topographic and planimetric
information for the area of Columbia Pike between Four Mile Run and South Wakefield
Street (also known as “Segment G") upon completion of its construction.

12) The Contractor shall provide survey services to develop topographic and planimetric
information for the area of Columbia Pike between South Wakefield Street and South
Oakland Street (also known as “Segment F”).

13) The Confractor shall provide survey services to develop topographic and planimetric
information for the area of Columbia Pike between South Oakland Street and South
Garfield Street (also known as “Segment E”).

14) The Contractor shall provide survey services to develop topographic and planimetric
information for the area of Columbia Pike between South Garfield Street and South
Quinn Street (also known as “Segments C & D").

15) The Confractor shall provide survey services to develop topographic and planimetric
information for the area of Columbia Pike between South Orme Street and South Joyce
Street (also known as “Segment A”).

16) The Contractor shall obtain aerial photography and shall provide survey services to
develop topographic and planimetric information and mapping for the area of Route 7
(Leesburg Pike) between Carlin Springs Road and South 14th Street. The transverse limits
shall extend from approximately 50 feet behind the sidewalk on the south side of
Leesburg Pike to approximately 50 feet behind the sidewalk that abuts the service drive
on the north side of Leesburg Pike.

The optional topographic survey and mapping effort for Preliminary Engineering is summarized
in Aftachment 2.

6.1.5. Utilities

6.1.5.1. Utility Designation Survey

The Contractor shall undertake a utility designation survey at SUE Level B according to
American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE) guidelines. Utilities of record but not capable of
designation shall be plotted at a lower quality level (Quality Level “C" or “D”) on the
deliverables. In performing the survey, the Contractor shall provide the following services:

1) Provide all equipment, personnel and supplies required to perform the designating
services. The Conftractor shall determine which equipment, personnel and supplies are
required to perform designating services;

2) Conduct appropriate records research, investigate site conditions and identify
applicable project limits;

3) Obtain necessary permits from city, county or other municipal jurisdictions to allow Work
in the existing streets, roads or rights-of-way;

4) Designate existing underground ufilities and their major laterals to commercial buildings
within project limits utilizing appropriate radio frequency electromagnetic, magnetic,
and acoustic emission techniques. Unless expressly requested, utilities designated will not
include a) storm or sanitary sewers mains or laterals (except metallic force mains), b)

24

147



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

5)

6)

7)

8)

?)

non-accessible empty conduits or empty utilities, c¢) vault or manhole limits or
dimensions, d) irrigation, fountain, or sprinkler systems, or €) underground storage tanks;
Prepare appropriate field sketches of marked utilities, and survey designating marks,
which shall be referenced to project controls;

Plot survey information onto a utility designation base file using CADD system:s. Utilities of
record but not capable of designation shall be plotted at a lower quality level (Quality
Level “C" or “D");

Compare survey information plotted on the utility designation base file with information
provided from field sketches and evaluate all plotted information in the field for
accuracy and reliability;

Final plot all information onto the utility designation base file to account for any
corrections noted from the previous step and review plan sheets against a) records, b)
field sketches, c) CADD drafting, and d) field notes. Discrepancies with records may be
resolved through depiction of utilities at “Quality Level C or D”; and

Translate survey data and drafting codes to an electronic file to allow direct
incorporation intfo the main design file.

The Contractor shall include survey, engineering, and ufility designation services to provide
utility information along the entirety of the two streetcar project alignments, as described more
fully below. The Contractor’s utility coordinator and the lead track designer shall review the
designation survey for identifications of possible utility conflicts with streetcar elements. This shall
include the main alignment, maintenance and storage facilities, stations, Overhead Control
System (OCS) poles, TPSS, and other roadway improvements necessary to the streetcar project.

The limits of utility designation services are as follows:

Columbia Pike Project -

1)

2)
3)
4)

5)
6)
7)
8)

Route 7 from one signalized intersection (driveway) east of S Jefferson Street to one
signalized intersection (driveway) west of S Jefferson Street (approx. 1200 ft);

S Jefferson Street from Route 7 to Columbia Pike;

Columbia Pike from S Jefferson Street to S Joyce Street;

Planned realigned Columbia Pike from Air Force Memorial Drive to S Joyce Street and
area between realigned Columbia Pike and the north edge of 1-395;

S Joyce Street from Columbia Pike (existing intersection) fo Army Navy Drive;

Army Navy Drive from S Joyce Street to 12th Street;

S Hayes Street from Army Navy Drive to 12th Street S; and

12th Street S from S Hayes Street to Army Navy Drive.

Crystal City Project -

1)
2)

3)
4)
5)
6)

7)

12th Street S from Army Navy Drive to Crystal Drive;

Crystal Drive from 12th Street S to 33rd Street S, including the ROW of the Crystal City
Potomac Yard Transitway south of 26th Street S;

Jefferson Davis Highway northbound lanes from 33rd Street S to S Glebe Road, including
the ROW of the Crystal City Potomac Yard Transitway;

S Glebe Road from Jefferson Davis Highway to Potomac Avenue, including the ROW of
the Crystal City Potomac Yard Transitway;

Potomac Avenue from S Glebe Road to Four Mile Run;

S Clark Street from 12th Street S to 18th Street S — elevated and af-grade portions and
including the northbound ramps connecting 15th Street to Jefferson Davis Highway up
to the east edge of Jefferson Davis Highway mainline; and

18th Street S from Jefferson Davis Highway to Crystal Drive.

25

148



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

6.1.5.2. Utility Drawings

The Contractor shall create separate existing ufility drawings, which shall be referenced to the
survey base sheets showing the utility designation base file for each project alignment, and shall
submit to the Program Sponsor. As part of this utility investigation, the Contractor shall conduct
an electronic grid sweep to search for utilities that do not appear on the base sheet drawings
but that are indicated on the researched utility records as existing. The Contractor shall update
the base sheet drawing for the two project areas incorporating the designated utilities from the
electronic grid sweep.

6.1.5.3. Utility Data and Matrix File

The Contractor shall use the information from Tasks 6.1.5.1 and 6.1.5.2 to prepare a
comprehensive utility data file and to create and update a utility matrix and mapping to
include Type of utility, Nature of conflict, Who is responsible, Proposed resolution, and Ongoing
fracking. In the case of discrepancies or disagreements, the VDOT Statewide Utility Manual shalll
govern.

6.1.5.4. Test Pit Program Plan- OPTIONAL

If the SUE Level utility Work undertaken in Tasks 6.1.5.1, 6.1.5.2 and 6.1.5.3 and subsequent design
Work identify potential utility conflicts with the streetcar infrastructure and facilities, then this
optional subtask may be authorized by the Program Sponsor. This Work shall provide information
of utilities locations, depth and material that otherwise could not be determined under the
previous sections and the confirmation of type, sizes and locations for utilities that are directly in
conflict with the streetcar alignment and facilities. If requested, the Contractor shall develop a
plan for undertaking test pits fo obtain Level A utility information. The plan shall be submitted to
the Program Sponsor for review, with the final plan including revisions requested by the Program
Sponsor. The level of effort includes up to 72 test pits for the CC Streetcar project and up to 108
test pits for the CP Streetcar project. The Program Sponsor will coordinate with the Contractor to
develop the appropriate scope, budget and schedule if the Work is required.

6.1.5.5. Supplemental Utility Designation - OPTIONAL

The Contractor shall undertake supplemental utility designation survey at SUE Level B for the
geographic limits described below. The Contractor shall provide all the services and meet all
the requirements as described in task 6.1.5.1. The Confractor shall update the utility drawings
following the requirements of task 6.1.5.2 and shall update the utility data and matrix files
following the requirements of task 6.1.5.3 to incorporate the supplemental utility designation
survey information. The Program Sponsor will coordinate with the Contractor to develop the
appropriate scope, budget and schedule if the Work is required. The limits of supplemental
utility designation services are as follows:

Columbia Pike Project — optional additional work
1) Route 7 from S Carlin Springs Road to one signalized intersection (driveway) west of S
Jefferson Street (approx. 1200 ft); and
2) Route 7 from one signalized intersection (driveway) east of S Jefferson Street to 14th
Street (approx. 1200 ft).

The base and optional utilities survey effort for Preliminary Engineering is summarized in
Attachment 2.

26

149



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

6.1.6. Existing Structural Assessment

Based on the current maps and survey data, the following existing structures have been
identified for assessment:

1) Skyline Complex - Retaining walls, elevated structures (decks), and underground
structures where accessible providing entrance;

2) Bridge over Four Mile Run including the stone masonry retaining wall adjacent to the
existing western-most pier;

3) Columbia Pike under Washington Boulevard (vertical clearance, existing footings for
piers, abutments, and wing walls);

4) 12t Street under Jefferson Davis Highway (vertical clearance, existing foofings for piers,
abutments, and wing walls);

5) Crystal Drive under Airport Viaduct (vertfical clearance, existing footings for piers,
abutments, and wing walls);

6) Airport Viaduct Ramp parallel to Crystal Drive;

7) Joyce Street under Washington Boulevard and I-395 (vertical clearance, existing footings
for piers, abutments, and wing walls);

8) Underground parking structures in Potomac Yard;

9) Underground parking structures and other potentially affected structures in Pentagon
City and Crystal City; and

10) Metrorail running funnel and stations under and near South Hayes Street and 18t Street
South.

6.1.6.1. Existing Sfructural Assessment for Lenox Apartments parking garage-
OPTIONAL

If this optional subtask is authorized, the Confractor shall provide existing structural assessment
for Lenox Apartments parking garage. The Program Sponsor will coordinate with the Contractor
to develop the appropriate scope, budget and schedule if the Work is required.

6.1.6.2. Existing Structures Visual Assessment

The Conftractor shall visually survey the existing structures where accessible and document the
results in a technical report. For each evaluation of the existing structures listed above, only the
portion of the existing structure that will be impacted by the streetcar projects shall be assessed.
Neither structural testing (non-destructive or otherwise) nor material sampling is included in this
scope of work.

6.1.6.3. Field Verification

The Conftractor shall perform field visits to identify and verify the impacted structures listed
above. Efforts shall be made by the Contractor to identify those structures not identified in the
mapping review. The Contractor shall request from the structures’ owners: as-built drawings,
inspection reports, boring logs, load ratings, and other pertinent information for the identified
affected structures. The Contractor shall identify and undertake additional inspections as may
be required to evaluate structural integrity.

6.1.6.4. Field Observation Analysis Report

The Contractor shall provide field observations at appropriate locations for the required Existing
Structural Assessment to investigate damage potentially related to existing ground conditions.
The Contractor shall evaluate the structural integrity of each of the inventoried structures and
write a technical report documenting the results of the analysis for each project. The
Confractor shall submit a draft of the report to the Program Sponsor. The Contfractor shall
address review comments and submit a final structural inventory report.

27

150



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

6.1.6.5. Additional Existing Structural Assessment(s) - OPTIONAL

If this optional subtask is authorized, the Contractor shall provide assessments of up fo five (5)
additional existing structures. Any additional structures requiring assessment shall be identified
as part of the data collection undertaken in Task 6.1.6. The Contractor shall include these
structures in the inventory and notify the Program Sponsor for further action (such as inspection
and formal assessment) for these additional structures. The process as described in Tasks 6.1.6.2.
6.1.6.3, and 6.1.6.4 shall be followed for the assessments. The Program Sponsor will coordinate
with the Contractor to develop the appropriate scope, budget and schedule if the Work is
required.

6.1.7. Existing Roadways

6.1.7.1. Existing Roadways Plan Review

The Contractor shall collect and review conceptual or design plans from the Project Sponsor for
public roadway work currently under design and anficipated to be constructed prior to the
construction of the streetcar projects. These public roadway design plans include, but are not
limited to:

1) Columbia Pike Multimodal project;

2) Columbia Pike Realignment project;

3) 12t Street South construction project;

4) South Clark Street demolition project;

5) Airport Viaduct ramp demolition project;

6) 18t Street reconstruction project (between South Eads Street and Crystal Drive);

7) 15t Street reconstruction project (between Jefferson Davis Highway and Crystal Drive);

8) 23 Street reconstruction project (between Jefferson Davis Highway and Crystal Drive);

9) Army-Navy Drive reconstruction project; and

10) Crystal City Potomac Yard Transitway.

6.1.7.2. Signal Infrastructure Inventory

The Contractor shall complete an inventory of the traffic signal system including the controller
and other equipment inside the traffic signal cabinets, such as closed-circuit television (CCTV),
detection systems, and communications. Additionally, the Contfractor shall inventory the traffic
signal central management system and document relevant near-term improvement plans. The
Program Sponsor will provide the means to access the controller equipment. The Contractor
shall inventory all signalized intersections that the streetcar alignments pass through. The
Contractor shall document the traffic signal inventory results in a draft technical memorandum,
and shall finalize the memorandum to include comments and revisions from the Program
Sponsor and Fairfax County.

6.1.8. Geotechnical

6.1.8.1. Geotechnical Engineering

The Contractor shall review boring logs and geotechnical data available in the project area
and develop a supplemental soil boring and lab-testing program for Program Sponsor
approval. The program shall include recommendations on the geotechnical, soil/pavement
borings, in-situ soil resistivity testing, ground water elevation measurements through installation
of monitoring wells in selected borings and checking water levels, laboratory testing, and
geotechnical engineering analyses along the two project corridors that is necessary to support
the preliminary designs of:

1) Roadway subgrade;

2) Track slab;

28

151



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

3) Overhead contact system;

4) Traction power substations;

5) Streetcar passenger station stops;

6) Four Mile Run bridge;

7) O&M and venhicle storage facilities;

8) Jefferson Street retaining walls;

9) Jefferson Davis Highway/15t Street ramp reconstruction; and

10) Site grading and miscellaneous stormwater management structures.

The Conftractor shall perform up to 181 geotechnical soil borings (10 to 50 ft.) for total drilling of
up to 3,410 ft. in soil and 60 ft. in rock as well as up to 132 pavement cores at locations
accessible with truck- or ATV-mounted equipment. Other testing that shall be undertaken in the
geotechnical engineering includes up to seventeen (17) groundwater observation wells, each
up to forty (40) ft. deep. Depending on conditions encountered on the proposed building sites
and along the alignment, the Contractor may recommend up to eighteen (18) additional
explorations which shall require a separate authorization by the Program Sponsor. Drilling shall
include Standard Penetration Test (SPT) sampling, collection of thin-wall tube (undisturbed)
samples, and pavement cores in accordance with applicable ASTM and VDOT standards. The
type and depth of samples will depend upon the existing conditions, the proposed features,
and the subsurface conditions. The Contractor shall stake or mark out the preliminary boring
locations in the field using common GPS equipment and survey actual boring locations and
elevations after drilling.

In order to achieve the anticipated schedule, approximately half of the borings (up to 1,705
linear ft. of driling) may be drilled at night if necessary in order to optimize drilling progress and
minimize community disruption. Traffic confrol shall consist of up to 32 days or nights of lane
closures and 13 days or nights of shoulder closures.

Some damage to the ground surface, trees, and bushes may result from drilling operations. The
Contractor shall attempt to limit any such damage, but no restoration other than backfiling
borings is included. Excess spoil from the drilling shall be removed from the site if necessary and
all borings shall be grouted or patched as appropriate and in compliance with applicable
Program Sponsor, Fairfax County, and VDOT requirements.

Rights of entry and access to the site as well as required permits or permission required to drill
the borings shall be provided by the Program Sponsor with coordination assistance from the
PMC and the Contractor. Contractor shall contact "Miss Utility” prior to mobilizing drilling
equipment to the project site. Preliminary boring locations marked in the field shall be swept for
underground utility conflicts, and borings shall be moved to avoid identified utility conflicts,
reduce traffic impacts, or facilitate access as required. The Contractor shall not be responsible
for damage or disruption of utilities or other subsurface features not identified in advance of
drilling.

Laboratory testing of soil samples performed by the Contractor shall include natural moisture
content, liquid and plastic limits, and grain size distribution on natural soils. These tests are used
to estimate soil behavior under different loading (and unloading) conditions. Additionally,
strength festing on selected undisturbed (fube) samples shall include direct shear,
consolidated-drained triaxial, and one-dimensional consolidation testing. These tests provide
strength and compressibility data for analyses. In several locations, bulk samples shall be
collected and tested for laboratory compaction (moisture-density relationship) and California
Bearing Ratio for evaluation of earthwork properties and support of pavements. Selected rock
core samples collected shall be tested for natural moisture content, natural density, and

29

152



Arlington County Streetcar Program

EDC Phase | Scope of Work

unconfined compressible strength. Additional testing of soil and/or rock samples shall be
recommended by the Contractor to address subsurface conditions encountered and
proposed design features;
implementation of this additional testing.

Program Sponsor

authorization  will

be provided prior

to

Except for the soil surrounding the existing underground storage tanks and the Contractor role
related to the Phase Il ESAs, it is expected that the subsurface materials are free of
environmental contaminants and the materials the Contractor could encounter will not require
personal protective equipment beyond Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA)
Level D. No special handling of samples shall be required. If unexpected contaminated soil or
groundwater is encountered during the subsurface exploration, the boring shall be stopped
and backfilled with drilling spoils and the Confractor shall notify the Program Sponsor with a
recommended course of action. No contaminated soil or groundwater encountered during

geotechnical driling shall be removed from the site.

The following summarizes the boring and other geotechnical surveys and investigations that are
included in the Preliminary engineering efforts, as detailed in Tasks 6.1.8 and 6.1.9.

Element Line Location Borings Design Criteria per [Testing Notes and
Subsurface applicable Scope
Investigation Section)
Roadway Columbia Pike 4.9 mile - corridor [65 1 boring per 400 ft.; Baseline Stray Current
Subgrade/Track Slab [Line between Skyline area in 10 f. deep Survey (Sec 6.1.9)
Fairfax  County  and
Penfagon City in
IArlington
Crystal City Line [2.5 mile- corridor (33 1 boring per 400 ft.; Baseline Stray Current
connecting  Potomac 10 ft. deep Survey (Sec 6.1.9)
Yard, Crystal City, and
Pentagon City in
Arlington
Overhead Contact |[Columbia Pike performed  |porings drilled for [Baseline Stray Current
System and Crystal City as  part  of Roadway Survey (Sec 6.1.9)
Lines Track Slab Subgrade/Track
Slab
Traction Power [Columbia Pike 10 1 boring per 0.5 mile [In-situ  soil  resistivity
Substations Line of track; 30 ft. deep |(Sec 6.1.9)
Crystal City Line 5 1 boring per 0.5 mile [In-situ  soil resistivity
of track; 30 ft. deep |(Sec 6.1.9)
Streetcar Passenger |Columbia Pike |Jefferson Street, |6 1 boring per
Station Stops Line Goodwin House, Army- structure; 20  ft.
Navy Drive, 12th/Hayes deep
Street, and 12th/Eads
Street, Skyline
Crystal City Line |12th/Clark Westbound, |4 1 boring per
12th/Clark Southbound, structure; 20  ft.
Crystal City Metrorail, deep
and 20th/Crystal
Southbound
30

153




Arlington County Streetcar Program

EDC Phase | Scope of Work

Element Line Location Borings Design Criteria per [Testing Notes and
Subsurface applicable Scope
Investigation Section)
Four Mile Run Bridge |Columbia Pike [2 abutments and 2 piers |4 1 boring per |2 groundwater
Line substructure; 50 ft. [observation wells 50 ft
deep plus 10 ft.rock [deep each (Sec
cores in  each [6.1.8.1)
boring
O&M Facility Columbia Pike |12th/Eads in Pentagon [6 6 borings; 30 ft |1 groundwater level
Line City deep observation well 30 ft
deep (Sec 6.1.8.1)
Vehicle Storage [Crystal City Line |Crystal City 6 6 borings; 30 ft |l groundwater level
Facility deep observation well 30 ft
deep (Sec 6.1.8.1)
O&M and vehicle [Columbia Pike [Navy Annex 6 6 borings; 30 ft |1 groundwater level
storage Facility Line deep observation well 30 ft
deep (Sec 6.1.8.1)
Jefferson Street [Columbia Pike 5 Based on 5
retaining walls Line locations, 1 boring
in each structure; 20
ft. deep
Jefferson Davis [Crystal City Line 4 Based on 4
Highway/15th Street accessible
ramp reconstruction locations; 40  ft.
deep
Site grading and |Columbia Pike 10 Based on 10 SWM [10 groundwater level
miscellaneous and Crystal City structures, 1 boring |observation wells 30 ft
stormwater Lines in each structure; 30 [deep each  (Sec
management ft. deep 6.1.8.1)
structures
Testing in support of |Columbia Pike {1400 Block of Columbia |5-10  direct Geophysics
Phase 2 ESA Pike, suspected [push, investigation to
abandoned UST depending identify if tank is
on results of present, env sampling
geophysics and lab testing (Sec
6.1.8.2)
Columbia Pike [Columbia Pike 8 1 boring per 400 ft.;
Realignment Line 20 ft. deep
Joyce Street under |Columbia Pike 4 Based on 412 groundwater
Washington Blvd. [Line accessible observation wells 40 ft
and I-395 locations; 40 ft. deep each (Sec
deep 6.1.8.1)
Miscellaneous Columbia Pike 5 Based on 5
Retaining Walls land Crystal City locations, 1 boring
Lines in each structure; 20
ft. deep
31

154




Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

Element Line Location Borings Design Criteria per [Testing Notes and
Subsurface applicable Scope
Investigation Section)
Total Estimated Borings: 181 Up to 3410 ft. 17 wells
IAdditional borings (as Up to 18 Up to 341 ft. Up to 2 wells
equired and
approved):

The Contractor shall recommend additional geotechnical subsurface investigations as needed
for Program Sponsor approval. Additional borings up to ten (10) percent of the planned
subsurface investigation program described above may be performed as approved by the
Program Sponsor. The Program Sponsor will coordinate with the Confractor to develop the
appropriate scope, budget and schedule for the Work.

6.1.8.2. Phase Il ESA

The Confractor shall perform a Phase Il ESA on the finding from the 2009 Phase | ESA for
Columbia Pike that identified a suspected underground storage tank located in the ROW of the
1400 block of Columbia Pike. The Phase Il ESA shall consist of a geophysical survey of the area
to identify if a tank is present, followed by five (5) to ten (10) direct push borings, sampling of the
soil, and laboratory analysis. The Confractor shall prepare the Phase Il ESA report under the
supervision of a qualified Environmental Professional as defined in ASTM E1527-13. The report
shall identify the presence of any contamination, the type of contamination, recommendations
on mitigation, and to the extent possible, an estimate of the cost to mitigate the issue for use in
property acquisition activities and considering the planned property use. The Contractor shall
submit the draft report for review and comment by the Program Sponsor, and submit the final
report incorporating revisions requested by the Program Sponsor.

6.1.8.3. Additional Phase Il ESA(s) - Optional

If this Optional subtask is authorized, the Contractor shall perform additional Phase Il ESA(s) at
sites identified in the TSP and Phase | ESA Analysis- Task 5.6.2. The specific sites will be approved
by the Program Sponsor. The Program Sponsor will coordinate with the Contractor to develop
the appropriate scope, budget and schedule if the Work is required.

The Contractor shall provide one (1) additional Phase Il ESA for each of the seven (7) Phase |
ESA sites listed in section 5.6.2, and one (1) additional Phase Il ESA for conditions that might be
encountered during drilling, for a total of eight (8) Phase Il ESAs. The Contractor shall prepare
the Phase Il ESA report under the supervision of a qualified Environmental Professional as
defined in ASTM E1527-13. The report shall identify for each Phase Il ESA undertaken, the
presence of any contamination, the type of contamination, recommendations on mitigation,
and to the extent possible, an estimate of the cost to mitigate the issue for use in property
acquisition activities and considering the planned property use. The Contractor shall submit the
draft report for review and comment by the Program Sponsor, and submit the final report
incorporating revisions requested by the Program Sponsor.

6.1.8.4. Geotechnical Data and Engineering Reports

The Contractor shall prepare Geotechnical Data Reports (GDR) and Geotechnical Engineering
Reports (GER). The GDRs shall be sealed by a Professional Engineer licensed in the
Commonwealth of Virginia. The GERs shall be labeled for information only and shall not be

32

155



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

signed or sealed documents; however, the geotechnical study shall be performed under the
supervision of a Professional Engineer licensed in the Commonwealth of Virginia.

1) The GDR shall serve to compile and present the available geotechnical field and
laboratory data and data collection methods for the projects. Separate GDRs shall be
prepared for each of the following, as appropriate:

a) Columbia Pike GDR;

b) Crystal City GDR;

c) Navy Annex O&M and vehicle storage facility GDR;

d) Pentagon City O&M and vehicle storage facility GDR; and
e) Crystal City supplemental vehicle storage facility GDR.

2) The GER shall serve to document the results of the geotechnical analyses, make
preliminary recommendations for foundation design under static loading conditions,
lateral earth pressures, and site grading, and provide preliminary comments regarding
construction considerations. The Contractor shall submit report drafts to the Program
Sponsor. The Contractor shall address review comments and submit final reports for:

a) Columbia Pike GER compilation & presentation;

b) Crystal City GER compilation & presentation;

c) Columbia Pike TPSS GER compilation & presentation;

d) Crystal City TPSS GER compilation & presentation;

e) Navy Annex O&M GER compilation & presentation;

f) Pentagon City O&M GER compilation & presentation

g) Storage Facility at Crystal City GER compilation & presentation;
h) Joyce Street at I-395 GER compilation & presentation; and

i) Four Mile Run Bridge GER compilation and presentation

6.1.8.5. Resistivity Surveys at Major Structural Elements

The Contractor shall perform resistivity Surveys at major structural elements as referenced in Task
6.1.6 if it is determined during the analysis of existing structures that the testing is necessary. The
surveys shall be performed at up to twelve (12) locations. The results from the field resistivity
measurements will be addressed in the technical memorandum generated for Task 6.1.9.

6.1.9. Corrosion Control

The Contractor shall prepare a baseline stray current survey by incorporating data and analysis
from field data info a Baseline Stray Current Survey report. This analysis shall involve recording
charts to determine magnitude and effects of possible stray currents on existing utility
installations; soil and groundwater laboratory testing for corrosive characteristics; and
consideration of atmospheric corrosion characteristics such as temperature, relative humidity,
wind direction and velocity, solar radiation, and amount of rainfall.

6.1.9.1. Baseline Stray Current Survey

The Contractor shall prepare a Baseline Stray Current Survey at select locations susceptible to
stray current along the project corridors, conduct corrosivity analysis for up to 85 Crystal City and
141 Columbia Pike soil samples, and provide a technical report documenting the results of the
analysis. The soil samples for laboratory analysis shall be selected at various boring locations. The
exact location and depth of soil samples shall be determined after reviewing the design
drawings and geotechnical data. The technical report generated for this task shall support the
design and development of stray current and corrosion confrol systems to include:

33

156



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

1)
2)

3)

4)

Review of field data collected along with as-received laboratory data and soil chemistry
conducted by NACE Certified Corrosion or Cathodic Protection Specialists;

Recording charts fo determine magnitude and effects of possible stray currents on
existing utility installations;

Soil and groundwater laboratory testing for corrosive characteristics. Laboratory testing
typically includes as-received resistivity, saturated resistivity, pH, possibly sulfides and
oxidation-reduction potential; it also includes a chemical analysis for determining the
concentration of calcium, magnesium, sodium, carbonate, bicarbonate, chloride,
sulfate, ammonium, and nitrate ions; and

Atmospheric corrosion characteristics such as temperature, relative humidity, wind
direction and velocity, solar radiation, and amount of rainfall.

The Confractor shall submit a draft report to the Program Sponsor; the Contractor shall address
review comments and submit a final Baseline Stray Current Survey report.

6.1.10. Traffic Data

The purpose of the fraffic and public fransit data collection is to guide the design of the
streetcar projects with regard to the need for new or modified traffic signals, operational
understanding of the interaction between the streetcar and other travel modes, sight lines, and
general safety considerations for pedestrians and bicyclists.

The traffic data collected herein shall meet the following requirements:

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)

7)

8)

Automated counts shall be verified by simultaneous manual counts for at least ten
percent (10%) of the total locations;

The turning movement counts shall include passenger cars, pedestrians, bicycles, heavy
vehicles, and parking maneuvers within the intersection area of influence;

Turning movement counts shall be collected for the mid-day, weekday three-hour a.m.
and three-hour p.m. peak, and weekend periods;

The counts shall be provided in both tabulated and raw format to the Program Sponsor
for acceptance prior to use;

The tabulated format shall be broken into 15 minute intervals with the peak hour and
peak 15 minute period shall be identified;

The heavy vehicle, pedestrian, and bicycle peak periods and volumes shall be
included;

The peak hour factor by approach and for the entire intersection shall be calculated
and included on the tabulated format. The raw data shall be binned into 15 minute
intervals and shall be in Excel or comma delineated format; and

Lane configurations, lane widths, furn lane lengths, and grade at each counted
intersection shall be provided.

6.1.10.1. Arlington County Traffic Data

All traffic data and intersection geometry (Item #8 above) for locations within Arlington County
will be provided by the Program Sponsor. The Program Sponsor will provide turning movement
counts and fraffic data for the 3-hour a.m. peak period, the 3-hour p.m. peak period, the 2-hour
weekday midday peak period, and the 2-hour weekend peak period, for the following
locations:

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)

South Jefferson Street and Columbia Pike;

South Greenbrier Street and Columbia Pike;

South Frederick Street and Columbia Pike (unsignalized);
South Columbus Street and Columbia Pike;

South Four Mile Run Drive and Columbia Pike;

South George Mason Drive and Columbia Pike;

34

157



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

7) South Glebe Rd and Columbia Pike;

8) South Walter Reed Drive and Columbia Pike;

9) South Quinn Street and Columbia Pike;

10) South Scoftt Street and Columbia Pike (unsignalized);

11) South Rolfe Street and Columbia Pike (unsignalized);

12) Washington Boulevard interchange ramps at Columbia Pike;
13) South Joyce Street and Columbia Pike;

14) South Joyce Street and Army-Navy Drive;

15) Army-Navy Drive and South Hayes Street;

16) South Hayes Street and 12th Street South;

17) 12th Street South and South Clark Street;

18) 15t Street South and Jefferson Davis Highway northbound ramps;
19) 18t Street South and South Bell Street;

20) 18th Street South and Crystal Drive;

21) Crystal Drive and 26 Street South; and

22) Potomac Avenue and South Glebe Road.

6.1.10.2. Fairfax County Traffic Data

The Contractor shall collect turning movement counts that meet the data collection
requirements described in Task 6.1.10 for the 3-hour a.m. peak period, the 3-hour p.m. peak
period, the 2-hour weekday midday peak period, and the 2-hour weekend peak period at the
following six (6) locations within Fairfax County:

1) Route 7 at Jefferson Street;

2) Route 7 at Carlin Springs Road;

3) Route 7 at South George Mason Drive;

4) Route 7 one signalized intersection west of Jefferson Street;

5) Route 7 one signalized intersection east of Jefferson Street; and

6) Jefferson Street and retail driveway.

The Contractor shall collect 24-hour, 7-day vehicle counts measuring speed, volume, and
classification by lane and by direction, at a maximum of three (3) locations in the vicinity of
Route 7 and Jefferson Street, as directed by the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County. The tube
counts shall be performed on seven consecutive days while area schools are in session.

The Contractor shall record the lane configurations, lane widths, turn lane lengths, and grade at
each counted intersection. The Contractor shall submit the traffic data to the Program
Sponsor.

Deliverables

6.1.1A - Existing Data Review;

6.1.1B — Aerial Photography (from Virginia Base Mapping Program);
6.1.2A - Signed and sealed survey confrol drawings, including CADD files;
6.1.2B — Computations for new control monuments;

6.1.3A — Property Mosaic and supporting information;

6.1.4A — New aerial photography;

6.1.4B — Topographic base drawings;

6.1.4C - Digital Terrain Model;

6.1.4E — Updated survey base sheets— OPTIONAL;

6.1.5A — Utility Designation Survey;

6.1.5B — Utility Base Drawings;

6.1.5C — Utility Matrix;

6.1.5D —Test Pits Plan and Findings - OPTIONAL;

35

158



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

6.1.6A — Existing Structural Assessment technical report- Draft and Final;

6.1.6B — Existing Structural Assessment Report for Lenox Apartments- Draft and Final — OPTIONAL;
6.1.6C - Supplemental Existing Structural Assessment Report — draft and final - OPTIONAL;
6.1.7 A = Traffic signal inventory memorandum - draft and final;

6.1.8A — Columbia Pike GDR;

6.1.8B — Crystal City GDR;

6.1.8C — Navy Annex O&M and vehicle storage facility GDR;

6.1.8D - Pentagon City O&M and vehicle storage facility GDR;

6.1.8E — Crystal City vehicle storage facility GDR;

6.1.8F — Columbia Pike Streetcar GER report & presentation — draft and final;
6.1.8G - Crystal City Streetcar GER report & presentation — draft and final;
6.1.8H — Columbia Pike TPSS GER report & presentation — draft and final;

6.1.81 — Crystal City TPSS GER report & presentation — draft and final;

6.1.8J — Navy Annex O&M GER report & presentation — draft and final;

6.1.8K - Pentagon City O&M GER report & presentation — draft and final;

6.1.8L — Crystal City Storage Facility GER report & presentation — draft and final;
6.1.8M — Four Mile Run Bridge GER report and presentation — draft and final;
6.1.8N - Joyce Street at I-395 GER report and presentation — draft and final;
6.1.80 — Phase Il ESA Report;

6.1.8P — Additional Phase Il ESA Report- OPTIONAL;

6.1.9A — Baseline Stray Current technical report - draft and final; and

6.1.10A - Turning movement and tube count traffic data.

6.2. NOT USED
6.3. Traffic Analysis

6.3.1. Traffic Volume Forecasts

6.3.1.1. Arlington County Traffic Volume Forecasts

The Program Sponsor will provide the Contractor with future year 2020 and year 2040 a.m. and
p.m. peak hour furning movement traffic volumes for the Build scenarios (with streetcar) for all
study intersections with Arlington County (a total of four scenarios). If the Program Sponsor
requests that the Contractor analyze the weekday midday and weekend midday peak hours,
the Program Sponsor will provide future year 2020 and year 2040 weekday midday and
weekend midday peak hour tfurning movement traffic volumes for the Build scenarios (with
streetcar) for all study intersections within Arlington County (a total of four scenarios). The
Program Sponsor will document the methodology for future volume development from this
subtask and will provide it to the Contractor.

6.3.1.2. Fairfax Future AM/PM Volume Forecasts and Modeling Methodology

The Conftractor shall develop fraffic volume growth factors and estimate future a.m. and p.m.
peak hour turning movement volumes at the six (6) intersections in Task 6.1.10 that are located
in Fairfax County for the Build scenarios (with streetcar) in the year 2020 and year 2040 (a total
of four scenarios). The Contractor shall meet and work with the Program Sponsor, Fairfax
County, and VDOT to develop an agreed-upon methodology for future volume development
prior to traffic operations analysis Work in Task 6.3, and shall document the methodology for
traffic volume forecasting from this subtask. If fravel demand models are required for this task,
they will be provided by the Program Sponsor and will be versions most similar to the models
used for the most recent analysis of the CP Streetcar and CC Streetcar projects. The year 2020
and year 2040 travel demand models will contain the CP and CC Streetcar routes as well as

36

159



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

proposed future transit services within project area. The Contractor shall not build, modify, or re-
create the travel demand models.

6.3.1.3. Fairfax Future Midday/Weekend Volume Forecasts and Modeling
Methodology- OPTIONAL

If this optional subtask is authorized, the Contractor shall provide additional forecast modeling.
The Program Sponsor will coordinate with the Confractor to develop the appropriate scope,
budgetf, and schedule if the Work is required. The Contractor shall develop traffic volume
growth factors and estimate future weekday midday and weekend peak hour (a total of four
scenarios) turning movement volumes at the six (6) infersections in Task 6.1.10.1 that are located
in Fairfax County for the Build scenarios (with streetcar) in the year 2020 and year 2040 using the
process described in Section 6.3.1.2. The methodology memo developed in Task 6.3.1.2 shall be
modified to reflect the efforts of this Section.

6.3.2. Traffic Operations

The Conftractor shall perform traffic operations analysis using Synchro and VISSIM models that
contain the entirety of the projects’ alignments from Route 7/Jefferson Street to Potomac
Avenue/South Glebe Road to demonstrate the operations of the highway network in
conjunction with the streetcar system. The Synchro model shall be used to determine intersection
volume/capacity (v/c) ratios and to develop signal timing parameters for the future year VISSIM
models with the streetcar. The VISSIM models shall be used to determine level-of-service, per-
vehicle delay, and 95" percentile queuing results, and to assess streetcar operations. The models
shall consider the CC Streetcar and the CP Streetcar Projects fogether, as directed by the
Program Sponsor.

6.3.2.1. Existing Year VISSIM models (AM/PM)

From the project termini from Route 7/Jefferson Street to Potomac Avenue/South Glebe Road,
the Contractor shall review, develop, and calibrate VISSIM models that include up to fifty (50)
intersections to represent existing traffic operations for the a.m. and p.m. weekday peak hours
(2 models total). The intersections shall be approved by the Program Sponsor and Fairfax
County. VISSIM models from prior work on the CP Streetcar and CC Streetcar projects will be
provided to the Contractor by the Program Sponsor. Once the existing VISSIM models are
developed, the Contractor shall submit them to the Program Sponsor and VDOT for review.
After the Program Sponsor and VDOT have approved the existing conditions models, the
Contractor shall proceed to develop the future Build (with streetcar) conditions models.

6.3.2.2. Future VISSIM models (2020/2040, AM/PM)

Using the existing VISSIM models as a base, the Contractor shall create four (4) future Build
conditions VISSIM models (weekday a.m. and p.m. peak hours for the year 2020, and weekday
a.m. and p.m. peak hours for the year 2040), that include up to fifty (50) intersections and
incorporate planned and programmed roadway system improvements, planned changes to
fransit operations (including the streetcar projects), and future forecast traffic volumes for 2020
and 2040, as developed in Task 6.3.1. The list of planned and programmed roadway system
improvements and planned changes to transit operations will be provided to the Contractor by
the Program Sponsor. The VISSIM models shall incorporate general purpose vehicles, transit
vehicles (bus and streetcar) including dedicated transit lanes, heavy vehicles, and bicycles. The
future models shall include special signal phasing required for turning streetcars where required
and shall include streetcar switching operations and detection systems as planned in order to
understand the impact of switching operations and dwell times at streetcar stations on overall
system operation. The VISSIM models for this task shall not include modeling streetcar ingress or

37

160



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

egress movements for the Navy Annex O&M Facility, the Pentagon City O&M Facility, and the
Crystal City Storage Yard.

6.3.2.3. Synchro models

Synchro models from prior work in the Columbia Pike and Crystal City corridors will be provided
to the Contractor by the Program Sponsor. The Contractor shall develop six (6) Synchro models
that include up to fifty (50) intersections for the weekday a.m. and p.m. peak hours for existing
and future Build (with streetcar) scenarios years 2020 and 2040. The Build models shall be used
to determine intersection volume/capacity (v/c) ratios and the results shall be used to develop
fraffic signal timings for use in the future VISSIM models.

6.3.2.4. VISSIM and Synchro model

The Program Sponsor will provide the existing signal fimings and phasing to the Contractor for all
signalized intersections in the Synchro/VISSIM models. The Contractor shall run the Synchro and
VISSIM models and submit the model inputs and results to the Program Sponsor and VDOT for
review and comment. The Contractor shall make two (2) sets of revisions for each model based
on the comments and resubmit the model inputs and results for acceptance. This task includes
three (3) meetings to review the existing conditions, year 2020, and year 2040 models (one
meeting per each analysis year).

6.3.2.5. Traffic Report Preparation & Presentation

The Conftractor shall prepare a transportation conditions report documenting the results of the
fraffic analysis (Synchro and VISSIM outputs, as applicable) using per-vehicle delay, level-of-
service, v/c ratio, vehicle/streetcar travel times, and 95th percentile queuing results for up to
fifty (50) intersections and submit the report to the Program Sponsor for review. The final report
shall incorporate revisions requested by the Program Sponsor. The Contractor shall assist the
Program Sponsor and Fairfax County in presenting the results of the traffic analysis to VDOT for
their concurrence.

6.3.2.6. VISSIM Visualizations - OPTIONAL

If this optional subtask is authorized, the Contractor shall prepare two (2) five-minute computer-
based visualizations using VISSIM and other tools to depict the operation of the streetcar project
in the context of the roadway network. The Program Sponsor will coordinate with the
Confractor to develop the appropriate scope, budget, and schedule if the Work is required.
The geographic limits of the visualization shall be limited to a portion of a contiguous facility
segment up to ten (10) adjacent intersections in length and agreed upon between the
Contractor and the Program Sponsor. The specific tools to be used for the visualizations shall be
proposed by the Contractor and approved by the Program Sponsor.

6.3.2.7. Navy Yard O&M Facility VISSIM - OPTIONAL

If this optional subtask is authorized, the Contractor shall conduct a VISSIM analysis for the
operation of the Navy Annex O&M Facility and its relation to the adjacent roadway network.
The Program Sponsor will coordinate with the Contractor to develop the appropriate scope,
budgeft, and schedule if the Work is required. The analysis shall serve as a “proof of concept” for
the operational plan and design of the signal system at the Navy Annex O&M Facility. The
Conftractor shall update the traffic analysis report to include the results.

6.3.2.8. Pentagon City O&M Facility VISSIM- OPTIONAL

If this optional task is authorized, the Contractor shall conduct a VISSIM analysis for the
operation of the Pentagon City O&M Facility and its relation to the adjacent roadway network.

38

161



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

The Program Sponsor will coordinate with the Contractor to develop the appropriate scope,
budget, and schedule if the Work is required. The analysis shall serve as a *proof of concept” for
the operational plan and design of the signal system at the Pentagon City O&M Facility. The
Contractor shall update the traffic analysis report to include the results.

6.3.2.9. Crystal City Storage Facility VISSIM - OPTIONAL

If this optional subtask is authorized, the Contractor shall conduct a VISSIM analysis for the
operation of the Crystal City Vehicle Storage Yard and its relation to the adjacent roadway
network. The Program Sponsor will coordinate with the Contractor to develop the appropriate
scope, budget, and schedule if the Work is required. The analysis shall serve as a "“proof of
concept” for the operational plan and design of the signal system at the Crystal City Vehicle
Storage Facility. The Contractor shall update the traffic analysis report to include the results.

6.3.2.10. Midday/ weekend Synchro/VISSIM- OPTIONAL

If this optional subtask is authorized, the Contractor shall conduct a Synchro and VISSIM analysis
from the project termini from Route 7/Jefferson Street to Potomac Avenue/South Glebe Road
for the weekday midday and weekend peak hours. The Program Sponsor will coordinate with
the Confractor to develop the appropriate scope, budget, and schedule if the Work is
required. The analysis would include six (6) additional scenarios: existing conditions (weekday
midday and weekend peak hours), year 2020 with streetcar (weekday midday and weekend
peak hours), and year 2040 with streetcar (weekday midday and weekend peak hours). The
VISSIM models for this task shall not include modeling of the Navy Annex O&M Facility, the
Pentagon City O&M Facility, or the Crystal City Vehicle Storage Facility. The Contractor shall
update the traffic analysis report to include the results.

Deliverables

6.3.1A — Fairfax Future year AM &PM. turning movements volumes;

6.3.1B - Fairfax Modeling methodology memo - draft and final;

6.3.1C - Fairfax Future year midday & weekend furning movements volumes — OPTIONAL;
6.3.1D - Updated Fairfax Modeling methodology memo- draft and final - OPTIONAL;
6.3.2A - Existing Conditions VISSIM model input and results;

6.3.2B — Future Years VISSIM model input and results;

6.3.2C - Existing and Future Year Synchro model input and results;

6.3.2D - Traffic analysis report - draft and final;

6.3.2E — VISSIM videos/visualizations — OPTIONAL;

6.3.2F — Navy Annex O&M Facility VISSIM models and Report Update — OPTIONAL;

6.3.2G - Pentagon City O&M Facility VISSIM models and Report Update— OPTIONAL;
6.3.2H — Crystal City Vehicle Storage Facility VISSIM models and Report Update— OPTIONAL; and
6.3.21 - Midday/ weekend Synchro/VISSIM Model and Report Update — OPTIONAL.

6.4. Design Waivers and Exceptions

The Contractor shall fully familiarize themselves with the Streetcar Design Criteria and Streetcar
Utility Rules of Practice developed by the Program Sponsor.

6.4.1. Analysis and Identification

During the course of the preliminary engineering design effort, the Contractor shall provide input
to the Program Sponsor on any identified missing standards, guidelines, and topics in the Design
Criteria. The Contractor shall identify needed waivers, exceptions, or revisions to the Design
Criteria and Streetcar Utility Rules and Practice for the projects, with supporting rationale and
required analysis and documentation. This analysis shall include applicable VDOT design
requirement waivers.

39

162



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

6.4.2. Approval and Tracking

The Contractor shall Work with the Program Sponsor, Fairfax County, and VDOT to obtain
approvals of the design waivers and exceptions or to eliminate proposed design waivers and
exceptions. The Program Sponsor and Fairfax County are responsible for obtaining the necessary
approvals. The Contractor shall track the status of waivers and exceptions on an ongoing basis
until they are resolved.

Deliverables

6.4A — Design Criteria Review and Identification of Missing Information;
6.4B — Proposed Design Waivers and Exceptions; and

6.4C - Tracking Log for Design Waivers and Exceptions.

6.5. Updated Conceptual Alignment Plans

The Contractor shall prepare updated conceptual alignment drawings for both streetcar
projects consisting of two products. The first is a set of 1"=25" scale view port drawings. The
second is a set of Strip Map viewport drawings at 1"=100" scale covering both projects. Each
product shall:

1) Be depicted over an aerial photograph background;

2) Incorporate the locations of passenger stations, fraction power substations, and vehicle

facilities; and
3) Depict both plan and profile with track alignment stationing.

The CP Streetcar project stationing shall be consistent with the Columbia Pike Multimodal
project stationing.

6.5.1. Updated Conceptual Alignment Drawings and CADD Files

The Contractor shall produce an updated set of conceptual alignment drawings and CADD
files for the two streetcar projects, based on the original conceptual plans developed during
the environmental review process, conceptual engineering, and project development Work for
the projects. Updates include, but are not limited to:

1) Revising the alignment along Army-Navy Drive to be median-running;

2) Examining the ability to operate the streetcar in fransit-only lanes on 12th Street South;

3) Refining the tail-frack configurations at the project termini;

4) Updating the track connections to the Navy Annex O&M Facility, the Pentagon City O&M
Facility, and the Crystal City supplemental Vehicle Storage Facility;

5) Incorporating the new track alignment associated with the proposed roadway realignment
of Columbia Pike at the Navy Annex site and Joyce Streef;

6) Depicting crossover tracks and pocket storage tfracks along the project alignments fo
support the recommended rail operating plan;

7) Updating the station locations, including the Crystal City Potomac Yard Transitway stations,
the Columbia Pike Transit Stations (former Super Stops), the six stations in the CP Streetcar
project scope, and the four stations in the CC Streetcar project scope; and

8) Refining or developing bikeway designs associated with the streetcar alignments.

6.5.2. Strip Map Drawing Updates

The Contractor shall produce and submit biweekly updates to the alignment Strip Map
drawings in PDF format incorporating the ongoing, or “Work-in-Progress”, design development
and refinements as appropriate. The Strip Map updates shall depict additional project elements
as they become defined, including but not limited to roadway, retaining walls, structures, frack,
passenger stations, traction power substations and feeders, OCS items, vehicle facilities,
laydown areas, utilities, drainage, and right-of-way. The Program Sponsor will provide alignment

40

163



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

format and means of transmittal which the Contractor shall use to update design files for
submittal to the Program Sponsor.

Deliverables

6.5A — Updated conceptual alignment drawings — CC Streetcar;
6.5B — Updated conceptual alignment drawings — CP Streetcar; and
6.5C — Biweekly Strip Map plan updates.

41

164



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

Preliminary Engineering Plans, Specifications and Estimate

Tasks 6.6 through 6.11, 6.15, 6.18, and 6.19, preliminary plans, specifications and estimates: The
Contractor shall develop and provide to the Program Sponsor (3) three interim submittals and
(1) one final (30%) submittal for formal design review by the Program Sponsor and Fairfax
County. The submittals shall include the plans developed in Tasks 6.6. through 6.11, 6.15, 6.18,
and 6.19. The specific requirements associated with each submittal are outlined in the following
table:

# |Level Schedule Deliverables
0 PB0% Pre-Design Submittal Cost Methodology, task 6.10 programming and task
6.10 schematic design.
1 65% st Interim- end of 7t Plans, Cost Estimate, Draft Technical Reports, Draft
month Basis of Design; (task 6.10 Final PE Programming &
Schematic Submittal).
2  P0% 2nd Interim- end of 11th Plans, Cost Estimates, Specs, Final Technical Reports,
month Final Basis of Design.
3 [Pre-final [3@ Interim- end of 14th Plans, Cost Estimates, Specs.
month
4 [Final 16t month Document delivery of Plans, Cost Estimates, Specs.

Each plan submittal shall include ten (10) full size paper sefts, twenty (20) half size paper sets and
electronic submittals. The Contractor shall provide electronic copies of each interim and final
submittal on CD ROMs or flash drives in individual Adobe (.pdf) format for each deliverable. For
Preliminary Engineering Drawings, a batch pdf file of all drawings shall be provided along with
individual pdf files per drawing that are fitled per individual drawing number. CADD submittal
requirements are listed in Task 2.2. Prior to each interim submittal and the final submittal, the
Confractor shall convene a pre-submifttal workshop with the Program Sponsor and Fairfax
County to preview the contents of the upcoming submittal with roll plots and other materials
that shall be included in the upcoming submittal. The workshops shall provide an opportunity for
the Program Team to review the upcoming submittals and provide an opportunity for questions
and comments to be discussed in the meeting. If is not required that comments which occur in
the meeting be incorporated into the submittal; this workshop shall be used for discussion and
review purposes.

The Contractor shall attend comment resolution workshops with the Program Sponsor and
Fairfax County and provide completed comment response worksheets with documentation of
resolution in the following submittal.

The Contractor shall review and track design review comments, responses, and resolutions for
each of the three (3) inferim progress submittals, including conducting review workshops with
the Program Sponsor and other reviewing entities.

The schedule of each submittal and the workshops shall be established during the development
of the Program Master Schedule, with input from and in coordination with the Contractor's
proposed design schedule.

42

165



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

6.6. Civil/Roadway

6.6.1. Existing Design Review

Large portions of the street design within the two streetcar project areas are underway or will
have been recently completed as part of the Columbia Pike Multimodal project and the
Crystal City Streets projects. The Program Sponsor will provide design drawings and CADD files
to the Contractor as they become available. The Contractor shall review the street designs
completed as part of other roadway projects.

6.6.2. Pedestrian and Bicycle Accommodation Review

The Contractor shall review the bicycle accommodations recommended in the Crystal City
Multimodal Transportation Study, the Columbia Pike Parallel Bike Network Study, and the
Arlington County Transportation Master Plan. The plans have recommended a variety of bicycle
facilities including shared lanes, cycle tracks, bicycle lanes along streets proposed to have
streetcar, and bicycle boulevards on parallel streets. This assessment shall inventory bicycle
improvements implemented from those plans and identify remaining gaps in the bikeway
network. This assessment shall also identify opportunities for improvement in facility type
continuity and identify proposed bicycle accommodation improvements which may be
required due to a change in the streetcar alignment. The Contractor shall compile the analysis
and recommendations and submit a draft memorandum to the Program Sponsor. The
memorandum shall be finalized to include revisions and additions requested by the Program
Sponsor.

6.6.3. Sustainable Design and Stormwater Management

The proposed streetscape concepts shall be informed by sustainable design, incorporating Low
Impact Development standards for stormwater, using indigenous plant material, permeable
pavement, and similar techniques. The Contractor shall prepare plans and perform drainage
and stormwater management calculations in accordance with the VDOT Drainage Manual
2014 and applicable Arlington and Fairfax County standards.

6.6.3.1. Stormwater Management Plans

The Contractor shall prepare plans identifying locations for stormwater management facilities to
comply with current state and local criteria including the new Runoff Reduction Method for
both water quality and quantity control. The plans shall indicate where existing infrastructure will
be impacted by the proposed construction. Conceptual designs shall be developed for
stormwater management facilities in order to determine additional right-of-way or easement
requirements.

6.6.3.2. Conceptual/Feasibility Stormwater Management Report

The Contractor shall prepare a conceptual/feasibility stormwater management report
identifying the project outfalls or Points of Investigation (POI), new and redeveloped impervious
areas, the required Treatment Volume for each outfall, and a conceptual design of individual
water quality treatment facilities to verify the project shall meet the Treatment Volume at each
PQOI. Since a significant amount of the tfrack will be embedded within existing pavement limits,
the Work shall be considered as redevelopment rather than new development. Even though
the amount of water quality freatment is less for redevelopment than new development, water
quality control Best Management Practices (BMPs) shall be required for the projects. The
individual water quality freatment facilities selected shall be based on the BMP Clearinghouse
and shall meet the Environmental Site Design criteria.

43

166



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

For water quantity control, each POI shall meet the channel protection and flood control
requirements. Since both the CC Streetcar and CP Streetcar alignments will be built mainly
within existing pavement, it is likely that for most outfalls there will be no increase in impervious
areas and runoff rates. There are locations where there will be new impervious areas impacting
outfall runoff rates. For those locations, the Confractor shall identify and display detention
facilities on the plans.

In areas with open space and available for right-of-way acquisition, open treatment BMP
facilities shall be used, such as micro-bio-retention basin, rain gardens etc.; however in densely
urban areas, BMP with less impacts on land use shall be proposed including planter boxes and
manufactured BMPs such as underground filter structures. For water quantity control,
underground detention vaults may be required.

6.6.4. Preliminary design plans

6.6.4.1. Bike/Pedestrian Best Practices and Designs

The Contractor shall assemble best practices and designs for pedestrian and bicycle
accommodations for the Program Sponsor to incorporate into the Design Criteria. The
Contractor shall prepare preliminary civil/roadway design plans for the two streetcar projects to
facilitate proper street interface with the streetcar track and station stops and provide
accommodations for cyclists and pedestrians.

6.6.4.2. Preliminary Designs

The Contractor shall prepare preliminary designs to include typical sections and plan views
showing existing conditions, as well as proposed roadway improvements, curb and gutter,
sidewalk, curb ramps and intersection improvements, bicycle accommodations, landscaping,
retaining walls, drainage inlet (including track drains) and pipe locations and sizes, driveway
entrance fie-ins, and street lights. The plans shall show preliminary pavement marking locations.
The Conftractor shall prepare preliminary cross sections (regularly spaced at 100" and closer at
median openings and driveway).

The civil/roadway plans shall show right-of-way requirements and shall define limits of
construction. The civil/roadway design plans shall coordinate with the following interfacing
projects:

Interfacing project Applicable Streetcar project
Columbia Pike Multimodal project CP Streetcar
Columbia Pike Realignment project CP Streetcar
Columbia Pike Transit Stations project CP Streetcar
Clark Street demolition project CC Streetcar

Army-Navy Drive reconstruction project (including bicycle|CP Streetcar
facility)
12t Street South construction project CP and CC Streetcar

The civil/roadway design plans shall include, at a minimum:

Civil/roadway design area Applicable Streetcar project
Reconstruction of Jefferson Street south of Columbia Pike to|CP Streetcar

achieve an acceptable grade for the streetcar
Widening of southbound of South Jefferson Street between|CP Streetcar
the retail entfrance and Route 7

44

167



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

Civil/roadway design area Applicable Streetcar project
Modifications to Route 7 in the vicinity of the Skyline station,|CP Streetcar

to include possible conversion of outer most right/through
lane to a right turn lane with improvements at the
intersection of Route 7 and S. Jefferson St/Skyline entrance.
Intersection modifications at South Jefferson Street and|CP Streetcar
Columbia Pike
Intersection modifications at Columbia Pike and South|CP Streetcar
Joyce Street — current location
Intersection modifications at Columbia Pike and South|CP Streetcar
Joyce Street —realigned location
Intersection modifications at South Joyce Street and Army-|CP Streetcar
Navy Drive
Intersection modifications at South Hayes Street and Army-|CP Streetcar
Navy Drive
Intersection modifications at South Hayes Street and 12th|CP Streetcar
Street South
Intersection modifications at South Clark Street and 12th|CC Streetcar
Street South
Intersection modifications at 18t Street South and Crystal|CC Streetcar
Drive
Intersection modifications at 18th Street South and South Bell|CC Streetcar
Street
Realignment of northbound on- and off-ramps of Jefferson|CC Streetcar
Davis Highway at 15t Street South.

6.6.4.3. Utility Relocation Plans

The Contractor shall prepare preliminary utility relocation plans for the two streetcar projects,
identifying potential conflicts and proposed relocations and/or protections for public and
private utilities. Along Columbia Pike, the same segment designations as the Multimodal Project
shall be used. The Contractor shall prepare a utility conflict matrix identifying each potentially
conflicting utility's size, material, owner, nature of the conflict, proposed resolution of the
conflict, responsibility, and status. The Contractor shall update the utility conflict matrix on an
ongoing basis during the preparation of plans for submittal to the Program Sponsor and with the
submission of the final preliminary utility relocation plans.

6.6.4.4. Preliminary Construction Phasing/Sequence Plan

The Contractor shall develop a preliminary construction phasing/sequencing plan for each
project. The effort shall include examining opportunities to coordinate construction with other
infrastructure projects, including the Columbia Pike Multimodal, Columbia Pike Transit Statfions,
and Crystal City streets projects. The purposes of the preliminary construction
phasing/sequencing plan are to prepare for the development of Maintenance of Traffic (MOT)
plans and to support the construction contracting plan. Drawings shall illustrate in plan view
(1"=25") and typical sections that show the conceptual MOT requirements required to construct
the infrastructure and facilities for the streetcar projects and delineate the potential limits of
necessary tfemporary construction easements required. Narrative text shall be provided on the
plans with a high-level representation of the major activities for sequencing the Work.

The Contractor shall follow the CADD standards developed in Task 2.0. Drawings shall be at
1"=25" scale.

45

168



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

Deliverables

6.6.1A — Review of existing designs;

6.6.2A — Pedestrian and Bicycle Accommodation Memo - Draft and Final;
6.6.3A — Conceptual/Feasibility Stormwater Management Report — draft and final;
6.6.3B — Preliminary storm drainage plan sheefs;

6.6.4A — Bike/Pedestrian Best Practices;

6.6.4B — Preliminary roadway plan and profile plan sheetfs;

6.6.4C — Preliminary roadway typical sections;

6.6.4D — Preliminary cross sections;

6.6.4F — Preliminary utility relocation plan sheets;

6.6.4G — Utility conflict matrix and updates; and

6.6.4H — Preliminary construction phasing/sequencing plan sheets;

6.7. Track Way Design Plans

For each project, the Contractor shall develop preliminary track way plans, to include plan and
profile, typical sections, typical track way details, special trackwork details, and appropriate
general alignment information sheetfs. The intent is to identify the rail type, slab design
concept(s), and stray current control concepf(s).

6.7.1. Track Drawings

The plan and profile drawings shall include the horizontal and vertical alignment, track
stationing, proposed roadway modifications, structures, proposed pavement markings, and
utilities. The track typical sections shall show the frack in relationship to the roadway, proposed
maintenance facility, and on structure. The typical frack way details shall include ballast track
where required, thickness and reinforcement of the track slab, rail attachment method,
maintenance of gauge, flange way design, noise, vibration, and electrical isolation, and special
tfreatments of the track way above utilities and through horizontal curves. The track way design
shall incorporate an evaluation of practical methods of construction as undertaken in the basis
of design. The Contractor shall consider opportunities to coordinate track way construction with
the Columbia Pike Multimodal or other road construction projects, as applicable to the assigned
work.

6.7.2. Special Trackwork

As part of the effort, the Contractor shall determine special trackwork requirements — based on
the operatfing plan and design criteria — such as the number and required locations for
crossovers, turnouts, or passing tracks and include them in the tfrack way design plans. Design
features for bicycle safety shall be evaluated and incorporated into the design.

6.7.3. Track Type Evaluation

The Contractor shall evaluate different types of rail and their applicability to the projects, based
on cost, availability of a U.S.-based supplier, Buy America requirements, and performance
characteristics. This evaluation shall include both main line and facility yard locations. The
Confractor shall prepare and submit to the Program Sponsor a technical report documenting
the results of the analysis, with the final report reflecting the revisions requested by the Program
Sponsor.

The Contractor shall follow the CADD standards developed in Task 2.0. Drawings shall be at
1"=25" scale.

Deliverables

6.7.1A - Preliminary Track way horizontal alignment plan sheets;

46

169



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

6.7.1B — Preliminary Track way vertical alignment profile sheets;
6.7.1C - Preliminary Typical frack way section sheets;

6.7.2A - Special tfrackwork details plan sheets; and

6.7.3A — Track type evaluation report — draft and final.

6.8. Systems Design Development

The Contractor shall assume that the development of systems plans for the CP Streetcar and CC
Streetcar projects proceed concurrently. The Confractor shall develop preliminary systems
design plans for each streetcar project, incorporating the following elements:

6.8.1. Traction power system

6.8.1.1. Load Flow Analysis and TPSS Location Identification

The Contractor shall conduct a load flow analysis of the traction power system and identify the
TPSS locations (up to 5 for each line as well as additional substations at each of the yard sites).
The Contractor shall confirm with the Project Sponsor the project horizontal and profile
information basis prior to running the traction power load modelling. The load flow analysis shall
include contingency analysis for substations outages, vehicle bunching, and vehicle loading,
per the Design Criteria. Software used for load flow analysis shall comply with requirements from
the Design Criteria. The analysis shall evaluate optimizing the total number of traction power
substations and number and size of rectifiers for each streetcar project. The Contractor shall use
the load flow analysis to develop an optimized traction power system approach, in terms of the
number and size of substations, and to identify opportunities to co-locate the TPSS with other
public facilities in the corridor. The Confractor shall submit a load flow analysis report to the
Program Sponsor.

6.8.1.2. Power Feed Requirements and Considerations

The Contractor shall identify the power feed requirements for the traction power substations, as
well as the monitoring and confrol of the fraction power substations. The Contractor shall
identify the required interface(s) with the power supplier (Dominion Virginia Power) and
consider the potential for power supply from the planned Crystal City District Energy program.

6.8.1.3. Preliminary Site Layout and Design

The Contractor shall develop preliminary site layouts and designs for each traction power
substation, including:
1) Interior and exterior functional site layout, building footprint, building architecture and
orientation;
2) Preliminary designs for the grading, drainage and filities, site fencing or walls,
landscaping, parking areas, and access drives;
3) Preliminary building floor plans, site plans, sections, elevations and details including
ground mat requirements and size;
4) Preliminary structural design; and
5) Recommendations for potential use of pre-fabricated units as compared to construct-in-
place substations, documenting advantages and disadvantages and cost and schedule
implications of each method which be incorporated into the basis of design.

47

170



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

6.8.2. QOverhead contact system (OCS)

6.8.2.1. OCS Plans

The Confractor shall develop the preliminary locations, configuration, and structural
requirements for the OCS as well as the direct current (dc) feeder systems (above and below
grade), and negative return. The Confractor shall identify the required clearance and
necessary interface between the OCS and highway bridges at Washington Boulevard over
Columbia Pike, I-395 over South Joyce Street, Jefferson Davis Highway over 12th Street South,
and the Airport Viaduct over Crystal Drive.

6.8.2.2. Evaluation of Alternative Wire Configuration and Pole Design

The Contractor shall evaluate alternative wire configurations for the OCS and compare them in
terms of performance, cost, and visual effects. Off-wire capability shall not be considered. The
Contractor shall analyze alternative catenary pole designs, including shared-use poles. The
Conftractor shall document the alternative evaluations in a draft report for one (1) round of
review by the Program Sponsor and shall provide a final report which incorporates comments
and revisions.

6.8.3. Traffic signal system

6.8.3.1. Transit Preferential Treatment Opportunity Analysis

The Contractor shall evaluate opportunities to increase transit operational efficiencies. This
assessment integrates transit and traffic data including the following elements:

1) Existing fransit service routes;

2) Transit stop locations;

3) Existing transit ridership demand at each stop; and

4) Corridor travel speeds and time for transit and auto traffic.

The Contractor shall compile the readily available data from the Program Sponsor and transit
operating agencies. The Contractor shall coordinate with WMATA and ART and document their
plans for future transit service along the corridor. The analysis shall include:

) Assessing and coordinating transit stop locations;

) Assessing opportunities fo adjust transit stop locations to improve operations;

) Assessing and identifying locations for transit preferential treatments such as transit signal
priority; and

4) Assessing signal timing plans and phasing for dedicated fransit phases.

w N =

The Contractor shall produce a draft technical memorandum on opportunities for transit
preferential treatments. The technical memorandum shall be finalized after incorporating
comments from the Program Sponsor.

6.8.3.2. Concept of Operations Report

The Conftractor shall develop a Concept of Operations report for the streetcars and determine
how to integrate the traffic signal system with the streetcar confrol system, including the
connection to the wayside equipment. The Concept of Operations includes the
accommodation of other facility users (automobiles, pedestrians, and bicycles) to maintain
efficient and safe operations with the Streetcar system. The Contractor shall coordinate with the
Program Sponsor, Fairfax County, VDOT, and the PMC to determine how best to integrate the
streetcar signal and train control requirements into the traffic signal systems, including any
transit signal priority that may be implemented. Transit signal system tasks include:

48

171



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

1) Signal timing operations and requirements for dedicated streetcar phases including
preceding and terminating flash logic, operating speeds through intersections, actuated
operational strategies for gap out and max times, emergency operations;

2) Development of frain control protocols and requirements within the traffic signal system;

3) Traffic signal controller testing to accommodate streetcar signal operations;

4) Mark ups of signal timing sheets for dedicated streetcar phases and associated timings;

5) Documentation of controller logic for streetcar operations; and

6) Conftroller programming for supplemental controller logic.

6.8.3.3. Traffic Signal Design

The Confractor shall identify the locations for new traffic signals and for modifications to the
existing fraffic signals to accommodate streetcar phases. The Contractor shall develop plans for
traffic signal modifications, including transit signal and streetcar detector additions, necessary
to accommodate the OCS. The Program Sponsor will provide the Contractor with existing
design files, signal plans, or other available documentation. The Contractor shall conduct field
inventories of traffic signals. The affected intersections may include but not be limited to:

1) Route 7 at Jefferson Street;

2) South Jefferson Street and Signalized Retail Entrance;

3) South Jefferson Street and Columbia Pike;

4) South Greenbrier Street and Columbia Pike;

5) South Columbus Street and Columbia Pike;

6) South Four Mile Run Drive and Columbia Pike;

7) South Buchanan St and Columbia Pike

8) South Wakefield St and Columbia Pike

9) South Thomas St and Columbia Pike

10) South Taylor St and Columbia Pike

11) South George Mason Drive and Columbia Pike;

12) South Quincy St and Columbia Pike

13) South Monroe St and Columbia Pike

14) South Glebe Rd and Columbia Pike;

15) South Highland St and Columbia Pike

16) South Walter Reed Drive and Columbia Pike;

17) South Barton St and Columbia Pike

18) South Wayne St and Columbia Pike

19) South Courthouse Rd and Columbia Pike

20) South Quinn Street and Columbia Pike;

21) Washington Boulevard inferchange ramps at Columbia Pike (west)

22) Washington Boulevard interchange ramps at Columbia Pike (east)

23) South Joyce Street and Columbia Pike — base;

24) South Joyce Street and Columbia Pike — alternative;

25) South Joyce Street and Army-Navy Drive;

26) Army-Navy Drive and Parking Lot

27) Army-Navy Drive and South Hayes Street;

28) South Hayes Street and 12th Street South;

29) 12th Street South and S Fern St

30) 12th Street South and South Clark Street;

31) 12th Street South/Army Navy Dr

32) 15th Street South and Jefferson Davis Highway northbound ramps;

33) 15th Street South and Crystal Dr

34) 18th Street South and South Bell Street;

35) 18th Street South and Crystal Drive;

36) 20th Street South and Crystal Drive;

49

172



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

37) Parking Lot south of 20t Street South and Crystal Drive;
38) Crosswalk north of 23rd Street South and Crystal Drive;
39) 23rd Street South and Crystal Drive;

40) Crystal Drive and 27 Street South/Potomac Avenue;
41) Crystal Drive and 33 Street South;

42) Jefferson David Highway and South Glebe Road; and
43) Potomac Avenue and South Glebe Road

6.8.3.4. Navy Annex O&M Facility Signal Design

The Conftractor shall provide preliminary signal design and conceptual fraffic and frain conftrol
logic/sequencing for the Navy Annex O&M Facility at the following two (2) locations: 1) Central
ingress/egress (on Columbia Pike) and 2) lower ingress/egress (on South Joyce Street). This Work
shall include determining the signal controller capabilities to accommodate all required
movements/phases, the logic requirements, and the number of confroller inputs/outputs. Two
work sessions with representatives from the relevant teams shall be held - the first to identify
constraints and the second to develop the operations plan.

6.8.3.5. Pentagon City O&M Facility Signal Design

The Conftractor shall provide preliminary signal design and conceptual fraffic and train control
logic/sequencing for the Pentagon City O&M Facility at the atf the following two (2) locations:
(1) ingress/egress point near the intersection of South Eads St/12 Street and (2) ingress/egress
point near the intersection of South Eads St/Army-Navy Drive. This Work shall include
determining the signal controller capabilities to accommodate all required movements/phases,
the logic requirements, and the number of controller inputs/outputs. Two (2) work sessions with
representatives from the relevant teams shall be held - the first to identify constraints and the
second fto develop the operations plan. These two (2) work sessions shall be conducted
concurrently with those in Task 6.8.3.6.

6.8.3.6. Crystal City Storage Facility Signal Design

The Conftractor shall provide preliminary signal design, conceptual traffic, and train control
logic/sequencing for the Crystal City Vehicle Storage Facility at the ingress/egress point at the
intersection of Crystal Drive/26th Street. This Work shall include determining the signal controller
capabilities to accommodate all required movements/phases, the logic requirements, and the
number of confroller inputs/outputs. Two (2) work sessions with representatives from the relevant
teams shall be held - the first to identify constraints and the second to develop the operations
plan. These two (2) work sessions shall be conducted concurrently with those in Task 6.8.3.5.

6.8.4. Train control

The Contractor shall identify the method for switch actuation, control, and monitoring. The
Contractor shall develop the requirements for the train-to-wayside communications system. As
part of this effort, the Contractor shall identify and compare the range of alternatives for train-to-
wayside communications systems in terms of cost and performance capabilities based on
review of current and emerging industry practice and shall document the findings in a report.
The Contractor shall develop the requirements for the streetcar vehicle detection system in
coordination with the development of the vehicle specifications in Task 6.14.

The Contractor shall develop preliminary design drawings for the proposed Train confrol to
include double line track plans, typical wayside equipment details and typical block diagrams

for coordination with interrelated systems (communications, automatic vehicle location (AVL)
and operational control center (OCC)).

50

173



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

6.8.5. Other Systems Components

6.8.5.1. AVL Systems

The Contractor shall research the AVL systems currently in use in transit operations in the
Washington region (including the proposed systems for the DC Streetcar and MTA Purple Line)
and shall recommend, in report form, a vehicle location system for use for the streetcar
program. Research shall include the following tasks:

1) Transit agency interviews and meetings;

2) Review of case studies and prior research done on fransit systems within the Washington,

D.C. region; and
3) Communication with AVL system vendors.

The Contractor shall develop performance requirements and outline-level specifications for the
automatic vehicle location system.

6.8.5.2. Wayside Passenger Information System

The Contractor shall develop the wayside passenger information system preliminary plans,
potentially including both dynamic information signs and public address.

6.8.5.3. Off-Vehicle Ticket Vending

The Contractor shall coordinate and provide input to the Program Sponsor on the off-vehicle
ticket vending system, particularly related to equipment location on the station platforms,
space needs, and supporting infrastructure requirements. The off-vehicle fare collection system
shall be compatible with WMATA's New Electronic Payments Program (NEPP), with the intent to
incorporate off-the-shelf equipment or equipment procured as part of NEPP.

6.8.5.4. Preliminary Stray Current Control and Corrosion Protection

The Confractor shall design the stray current control and corrosion protection system fo a
preliminary level. Typical details and typical spacing of necessary testing stations or other
proposed mitigations shall be shown. During this phase, the preliminary stray current and
corrosion control systems shall be designed to accommodate Streetcar Infrastructure only.

6.8.5.5. Electromagnetic Interference

The Confractor shall conduct an analysis of electromagnetic interference (EMI) that the
streetcar project will produce and potential impacts with respect to adjacent properties and
facilities (up to four as identified by the Confractor and approved by the Program Sponsor) and
shall identify, in report form, a mitigation plan for identified effects.

Deliverables

6.8.1A —Traction power system load flow analysis report — draft and final;
6.8.1B — Preliminary design plans for traction power substations;

6.8.2A — Preliminary design plans for OCS;

6.8.2B — Alternate Wire Configuration Evaluation Report — draft and final;
6.8.3A — Transit Preferential Treatments Technical memo - draft and final;
6.8.3B — Concept of Operations report - draft and final;

6.8.3C — Preliminary Traffic Signal Preliminary Design Plans;

6.8.3D — Navy Annex Facility Preliminary Signal Design Plans;

6.8.3E — Pentagon City Facility Preliminary Signal Design Plans;

6.8.3F — Crystal City Facility Preliminary Signal Design Plans;

6.8.4A — Preliminary Train Control System design plans;

51

174



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

6.8.5A — Preliminary AVL system report — Draft and Final;

6.8.5B — Preliminary wayside passenger information system plans;

6.8.5C - Station requirements for off-vehicle ficket vending system;

6.8.5D - Stray Current Control and Corrosion Protection Preliminary design plan detail sheets; and
6.8.5E - Electromagnetic interference analysis report — draft and final.

6.9. Station Design Development

The Contractor shall prepare preliminary designs for station stops in both projects. The Contractor
shall prepare visualizations for depicting the statfion stop designs, using techniques as proposed
by the Contractor and agreed to by the Program Sponsor, for the purposes of obtaining design
input from stakeholders and the community. Designs of above-grade structures shall consider
the purposes and intent of the Counties’ adopted plans for Baileys Crossroads, Columbia Pike,
Pentagon City, and Crystal City. The Contractor shall participate in internal coordination
meetings as directed with staff from Arlington County Department of Community Planning,
Housing, and Development, Arlington Initiative to Rethink Energy (AIRE), and appropriate Fairfax
County Departments, as determined by Fairfax County Department of Transportation.

The Contractor shall develop the following aspects of the station design and prepare preliminary
designs for station stops for the two streetcar projects:
1) Platform location, dimensions, access points, and interaction with pedestrian and bicycle
traffic;
2) Provision of and design of bicycle parking;
3) Platform amenities configuration (seating, shelter, signing, ticket vending, etc.);
4) Canopy/shelter architecture;
5) Structural design of canopy/shelter;
6) Preliminary design for retaining walls, as needed
7) Landscaping zone and consideration for irrigation;
8) Integration of public art and/or aesthetic enhancements and the streetcar brand
identity;
9) General grading plan;
10) Utility location and potential adjustments;
11) Property/right-of-way requirements;
12) Communications and signing systems;
13) Lighting; and
14) Safety and security considerations.

6.9.1. CP Streetcar

The Columbia Pike Transit Stations shall serve as the streetcar station stops along Columbia Pike,
designed and implemented by others. The Contractor shall incorporate off-vehicle fare
collection and other streetcar equipment into the Columbia Pike Transit Stations.

6.9.1.1. CP Streetcar Station Design

There are six (6) new stop locations for the CP Streetcar project. Three (3) stafions are in
Pentagon City on Army-Navy Drive, Hayes Street, and 12t Street; and three (3) statfions are in
Fairfax County at Skyline, Jefferson Street, and Goodwin House. All are anticipated to be
median platform stations, except potentially the Skyline station.

The Contractor shall develop the station design for the three (3) new stop locations in Pentagon
City and for the three (3) stations in Fairfax County.

52

175



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

For the Fairfax County alignment, the Contractor shall undertake design Work on ftwo
alternatives for the Skyline Station. The design shall be developed in the location approved by
the Program Sponsor in coordination with Fairfax County. The two locations are:

1) The Skyline West Alternative; and

2) The Skyline East Alternative.

6.9.1.2. General Design Concept

The Contractor shall review the general designs for the Columbia Pike Transit Stations and the
CCPY Transitway Stations, to be provided by the Program Sponsor. The Contractor shall develop
a maximum of two (2) additional design concepts for the stations in the CP Streetcar project
scope.

6.9.1.3. Concept Design Refinement

The station design concepts, which shall be presented through Task 3.0 Agency Coordination
and Task 4.0 Public Outreach, shall be refined in this task, based on comments received from
the public and agencies.

The Confractor presentations, performed under Tasks 3.0 and 4.0, shall include 2 presentations:
one for preliminary concept designs, and one for final concept designs. Following the
preliminary round of presentations to the technical, policy, and stakeholder groups as well as
the general public, the Contractor shall refine the station design concepts based on feedback
received on the designs and design elements important to the community. The Contractor shall
define at most two design concepts in consultation with the Program Sponsor, Fairfax County,
and the PMC. The Contractor shall then present the final design concepts to the technical,
policy, and stakeholder groups, performed under Tasks 3.0 and 4.0, and explain how design
input was incorporated, and to solicit final comments. The Contractor shall incorporate
feedback into the design development of the selected concepfs.

6.9.1.4. Station Safety Plan

The Contractor shall develop the preliminary design for the station safety and security systems
for review and comment by the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County. The Contractor shalll
utilize and include requirements provided by the PMC to provide preliminary design of the
stations.

6.9.2. CC Streetcar

6.9.2.1. CCPY Transitway Project - Constructed Station Analysis and Design

Five (5) streetcar stops along the CC Streetcar alignment are being constructed as part of the
Crystal City Potomac Yard (CCPY) Transitway project: South Glebe Road, 33rd/Crystal,
27th/Crystal, 23rd/Crystal northbound and 18th/Crystal northbound.

The Contractor shall analyze the CCPY Transitway stations as constructed and shall recommend
modifications required to accommodate streetcar service. The Confractor shall design
modifications to these stations as directed by the Program Sponsor. The modifications shall
include streetcar dynamic envelope and loading requirements, fare vending and streetcar
related amenities.

53

176



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

6.9.2.2. CC Streetcar Project - New Station Design

There are four (4) new stop locations for the CC Streetcar Project: 12th/Clark westbound,
12th/Clark southbound, Crystal City Metrorail Station, and 20th/Crystal southbound.

The Contractor shall utilize the general design concept for the CCPY Transitway stations in
Crystal City and design the four new stations in the CC Streetcar project scope.

6.9.2.3. Concept Design Refinement

The station design concepts, which shall be presented through Task 3.0 Agency Coordination
and Task 4.0 Public Outreach, shall be refined through this subtask based on comments
received from the public and agencies.

The Contractor presentations, performed under Tasks 3.0 and 4.0, shall include 2 presentations:
one for preliminary concept designs, and one for final concept designs. Following the
preliminary round of presentations to the technical, policy, and stakeholder groups as well as
the general public, the Contractor shall refine the station design concepts based on feedback
received on the designs and design elements important to the community. The Contractor shall
define at most two design concepts in consultation with the Program Sponsor, Fairfax County,
and the PMC. The Confractor shall then present the final design concepts to the technical,
policy, and stakeholder groups, performed under Tasks 3.0 and 4.0, and explain how design
input was incorporated, and to solicit final comments. The Contractor shall incorporate
feedback into the design development of the selected concepts.

6.9.2.4. Station Safety Plan

The Contractor shall develop the preliminary design for the stafion safety and security systems
for review and comment by the Program Sponsor. The Confractor shall utilize and include
requirements provided by the PMC to provide preliminary design of the stations.

Deliverables

6.9.1A- Columbia Pike Stations Conceptual design plans;

6.9.1B- Columbia Pike Stations Preliminary architectural, structural, civil, and landscape plans;
6.9.1C- Columbia Pike Station Safety Plans;

6.9.2A- CCPY Transitway Station Analysis Report — draft and final;

6.9.2B- CCPY Transitway Station Modification Plans — as directed;

6.9.2C- Crystal City Stations Preliminary architectural, structural, civil, and landscape plans; and
6.9.2D- Crystal City Station Safety Plans.

6.10. Facilities Design Development

The Contractor shall prepare preliminary designs for an O&M Facility and vehicle storage yard
at the Navy Annex site, an O & M Facility and vehicle storage building at the Pentagon City
site, a supplemental Vehicle Storage Facility in Crystal City, construction laydown parcels, and
the Jefferson Street Transit/Transfer Center. In addition, the Contractor shall prepare designs for
major retaining walls associated with the Navy Annex O&M Facility and vehicle storage yard.

In performing this work, the Contractor shall incorporate information and analysis from other
subtasks, including environmental analysis (Tasks 5.1 and 5.6), survey (Tasks 6.1.2, 6.1.3, 6.1.4)
ufilities (Task 6.15), geotechnical studies (Task 6.18), traffic analysis(Task 6.3), civil/roadway (Task
6.6), tfrack way design (Task 6.7), and systems design development(Task 6.8). In addition, the
Contractor shall incorporate the vehicle requirements and specifications developed in Task 6.14
intfo the design of all facilities.

54

177



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

The Contractor shall coordinate with the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County on obtaining
community and agency input on the facilities’ design Work through the agency and
community engagement process described in Tasks 3.0 and 4.0.

The specific scope requirements for each facility and the construction laydown parcels are
described in Tasks 6.10.1 through 6.10.5.

6.10.1. O&M and Vehicle Storage Facilities

The Contractor shall prepare preliminary programs and designs for the O&M facility and vehicle
storage facility at the Pentagon City and Navy Annex sites and the vehicle storage facility in
Crystal City. The design development of the facilities shall comply with all applicable federal,
state and local requirements and standards, including federal Americans with Disabilities Act
(ADA) requirements and Arlington County zoning and vertical design standards, including the
requirement for the development of Building Information Modeling (BIM). The Confractor shalll
support the Program Sponsor with obtaining review of the facilities by the Arlington County
Public Facilities Review Commission.

The following describes the general approach and process that the Contractor shall use o
design each facility:

Confirmation of facility concept design. Prior to undertaking the design work, the specific
concept design for the facility shall be confirmed. The Contractor shall review the work
produced through the previous planning and conceptual design efforts undertaken by other
consultants for the Program Sponsor and coordinate with the Program Sponsor on any
necessary refinements prior to finalizing the specific facility concept to be carried forward into
preliminary engineering.

Facility Program. The programming needs for each facility shall be determined. The Contractor
shall review existing project documentation on needs and undertake additional analysis to
determine the space programming and operating requirements for each functional area in the
facility, including office and administrative space, maintenance bays and work areas, vehicle
storage areas, employee and visitor parking, landscaping and areas required by local
jurisdictional agencies, including water retention/detention. The analysis shall incorporate the
opening year and horizon year revenue vehicle fleet size that will be provided by the Program
Sponsor.

The Contractor shall conduct a workshop with other design team members, the Program
Sponsor, Fairfax County and the PMC to review and confirm the space needs, requirements
and anticipated operating procedures. This shall include a discussion of utilities, systems and
frack way design considerations as well as best practices from similar facility projects.

The Contractor shall develop a draft facility program report for each facility to summarize the
uses and the associated space allocation program. The draft program shall define the space
requirements and site spatial requirements for each function and reflect specific code issues,
including ADA compliance and applicable building codes. The program shall address the
interior areas (offices, shops, maintenance, storage, etc.), the exterior spaces (streetcar
storage, non-revenue parking, employee parking, visitor parking, material storage), as well as
total site area requirements. The draft program, which shall include a narrative description of
the functional areas and operations, staff and vehicle projections and the space program, shall
be submitted to the Program Sponsor and revised to include the revisions and additions
requested by the Program Sponsor.

55

178



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

Design Criteria. The Contractor shall review the design criteria developed by the Project
Sponsor for the project and confirm and recommend to the Program Sponsor any revisions or
refinements needed for the design of the facilities. The Contractor shall develop more detailed
design criteria for the facilities, including the preliminary functional requirements for building
systems, including architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical and plumbing systems. The
design criteria will be approved by the Program Sponsor.

Schematic Drawings. The Contractor shall prepare schematic design drawings to illustrate the
scale and character of the various uses, their functions and their interrelationships. The
Contractor shall develop alternative site and building layouts o accommodate the approved
program. The alternatives shall consider a range of considerations, including site development
boundaries, access to site and sight distances, adjacent uses, security, topography, location of
utilities, applicable code issues, track way requirements and cost considerations. The
Confractor shall organize and hold a design charrette for each facility to identify and evaluate
alternatives. Each design charrette shall be a continuous four (4) day session for the
Contractor design team to review site alternatives and set project priorities. As part of the
design charrette, the Contractor shall have a short meeting each day with the Program
Sponsor, Fairfax County and stakeholders approved by the Program Sponsor to discuss priorities
and review alternative layouts as they are developed. The Program Sponsor, in conjunction
with Fairfax County, will approve the schematic design and layout of each facility.

Based on the plans and concepts approved at the workshops, the Contractor shall prepare
final rendered site and building floor plans for each facility as display exhibits for public
meetings. Three dimensional architectural forms and schematic level design of exterior
materials and fenestration shall be created in this phase. Schematics for the overall building
core and shell, platforms, wash bays, and canopies shall be identified in this phase. At the same
time, preliminary track geometry shall be advanced and the Confractor shall begin developing
building models to serve as the initial computer-generated plans for use by all disciplines.

Preliminary design plans. The Contractor shall prepare preliminary design plans for each facility
based upon the schematic design and layout alternative approved by the Program Sponsor.
The Contractor shall utilize survey, utility, geotechnical and additional information obtained
in the other project tasks and progress the design Work to develop preliminary engineering
documents for the buildings and site improvements to a level of approximately 30%
construction documents. The deliverables shall include facility and site plans for architecture,
structural, civil, traction power, frack, landscape, mechanical, equipment, electrical and
plumbing systems. See list of drawings for more detail.

Additional efforts that shall be undertaken by the Confractor as part of Tasks 6.10.1 and 6.10.2
include the following:

Sustainability - The Confractor shall incorporate sustainability considerations in the design of
each facility. Prior to the design workshops, the Contractor and Program Sponsor will meet to
establish broad sustainability and energy efficiency goals for each facility. Following the design
workshop, the Contractor and Program Sponsor will confirm the sustainable design and
construction features that are most effective for each facility and the corresponding LEED
points for those features. The Contractor shall develop a LEED Scorecard and LEED
Documentation Matrix that will serve as a guide through the LEED process. Examples of possible
goals include LEED Silver Certification, aggressive water efficiency targets, or Zero Net Energy
(ZNE). The Contractor efforts shall include preparation of a preliminary LEED checklist for HVAC
and plumbing; but energy budget or other calculations required to document LEED credits shall
be provided by Program Sponsor. During preliminary design, the Contractor shall review the

56

179



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

preliminary design documents to verify that the project is on track to achieve the targeted LEED
credits and to identify missing information, conflicting information and opportunities with
respect to LEED requirements and shall update the LEED Checklist for each facility.

Code Analysis related to regulations and life safety plans- The Contractor shall conduct a
thorough code analysis and shall review and evaluate each facility project with Authorities
having Jurisdiction (AHJs). The Contractor shall interface with the departments and/or agencies
having jurisdiction and shall work to resolve code or compliance issues. Code and life safety
plans shall be prepared for each facility. The Contractor shall note and document in the
preliminary Design Submittal for each facility all code and compliance issues requiring special
attention. The Contractor shall further its relationships with the AHJs in order to ensure a smooth
permitting process.

Public Art and/or aesthetic treatments - If authorized by the Program Sponsor, the Contractor
shall integrate public art and/or aesthetic treatments and the streetcar brand identity in the
facilities. The effort shall be undertaken as part of Task 6.21 — Public Art Integration.

Visualizations - The Contractor shall prepare visualizations for depicting the facility designs for
the purposes of obtaining design input from stakeholders and the community. The visualizations
shall include 3-D renderings of each site and building including the relationship of each building
with one another on each site. Visualizations will include vertical scale, material selections, and
wall openings for each primary view.

6.10.1.1. Pentagon City Programming and Schematic Design

The Contractor shall review prior conceptual design work for the Pentagon City O&M Facility
(Alternates 4A and 26B) and shall coordinate with the Program Sponsor on necessary
refinements prior to finalizing the specific site and facility concept to be carried forward into
preliminary engineering. This facility is intended to support the vehicle storage for the CP
Streetcar fleet and the maintenance and administrative needs of both streetcar projects. The
Contractor shall:

1) Confirm with the Program Sponsor on the programming needs for the facility, including
opening year and horizon year revenue vehicle fleet size, administrative, maintenance,
and operational uses required to serve both streetcar projects;

2) Review and confirm space allocation requirements for the operations, administration,
maintenance, and vehicle storage functions;

3) Prepare schematic design documents to illustrate the scale and character of the various
uses, functions and relationships;

4) Sustainability Design and LEED Certification Coordination:

a) Set up and facilitate a sustainable facility design workshop to include material, site,
systems and operational design opportunities and options to be included in the
preliminary facility design;

b) Develop the LEED Checklist and target points to achieve LEED Silver;

c) Develop a list of key concept approaches to be carried through Final Design; and

5) Following approval of the schematic designs by the Program Sponsor, develop
preliminary design plans.

6.10.1.2. Pentagon City Design Development

The Confractor shall utilize survey, utility identification, geotechnical studies, and additional
information obtained in the other project tasks to develop the following:
1) Maintenance facility layouts for the approved schematic design, addressing the number
and size of vehicle servicing and maintenance bays, vehicle maintenance support areas

57

180



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

2)

3)

4)
5)

6)

7)

(such as component shops), equipment and parts storage, operator/dispatch facilities

and administration facilities;

Site layout for the approved schematic design, addressing streetcar layup and

circulation frack requirements, parking requirements, facility security requirements,

fraction power substation, building footprint(s), building architecture and orientation and
track configurations for accessing the main line;

Grading, drainage, stormwater management, sanitary sewer and utilities, site fencing or

walls, landscaping, and access drives;

Preliminary exterior site layout track vertical and horizontal alignments;

Preliminary architectural building floor plans, site plans, sections, elevations and details

including:

a) Facility Renderings;

b) Building code analysis identifying code required site coverage and access limits, fire
separations, allowable building sizes, usage separations and vertical/horizontal
circulation limitations;

c) Architectural building site plan locating buildings, hardscapes, softscapes,
egress/access, site signage, amenities, roadways and parking;

d) O&M Facility and Train Wash Building floor plans depicting all room overall sizes,
configurations, adjacencies, dimensions, egressing, and other space requirements;

e) Other building plans including roof plans, reflected ceiling plans and enlarged floor
plans;

f)  Building elevations including all sides, depicting materials, colors, openings;
g) Building sections both longitudinal and cross sections;
h) Key building component schedules including door, window and hardware/security
i) Primary details for key constructability and cost sensitive items;
i) Finish plans and schedules for floor, wall, and ceiling;
k) Site and building signage and graphics plan;
[) Rendered landscape site plan; and
m) Material Boards with samples of the primary building and interior materials.
Preliminary Structural Design: Investigate and develop preliminary alternative framing
options of different structural frame materials and layouts and meet with the design team
to discuss, coordinate and evaluate. Advance the structural design of the selected
system; develop structural calculations and drawings to describe the structural frame
and foundations including member sizes, typical details and critical sections for all the
critical structural elements of the project:

a) O&M Facility and Train Wash Building foundation floor plans based on the results of
the geotechnical investigation and report recommendations;

b) Building floor framing and roof framing plans;

c) Building pit and platform plans and details;

d) Building sections, details, schedules;

e) Outline structural specifications; and

f) The purpose and level of completion of the documents shall be as required to
provide clear structural design intent and requirements and to assist the other design
team members in their design development and the cost estimator in developing a
cost model for the project.

Preliminary mechanical, electrical, plumbing, and life safety plans including:

a) Mechanical/Plumbing/Life Safety:

i. O&M Facility and Train Wash Building mechanical floor plans and enlarged
floor plans with major equipment layout and preliminary single line ductwork
layout (no air terminal devices);

i.  Mechanical major equipment schedules;

iii. O&M Facility and Train Wash Building plumbing floor plans and enlarged
toilet room plans with major equipment and fixture layout, and preliminary

58

181



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

8)

?)

sanitary, industrial wastewater, water, natural gas and roof drainage piping
layout;

iv. Plumbing major equipment schedules;

V. Preliminary plumbing riser diagrams;

Vi. Building sprinkler/standpipe main feed floor plans; and
Vii. Building sprinkler/standpipe riser diagrams.
b) Electrical:
i.  O&M Facility and Train Wash Building lighting plan, type of fixtures to be used
in the areas;

i.  Building power floor plans (home runs) to major equipment, major electrical
system panels, fransformers, and switchgear layout;
ii.  Building enlarged floor plans of electrical room;
iv.  Site power plan with transformer and emergency generator locations;
v.  Site and building power single line diagrams; and
Vi. Building grounding riser diagrams.
Listing of major maintenance industrial equipment including:
a) O&M Facility and Train Wash Building industrial equipment floor plans;
b) Building industrial equipment sections and details; and
c) Building industrial equipment schedules and notes.
Integration of public art and/or aesthetic enhancements and the streetcar brand
identity, if authorized by the Program Sponsor under task 6.21.

6.10.1.3. Navy Annex Programming and Schematic Design

The Contractor shall review prior conceptual design work for the Navy Annex O&M Facility and
shall coordinate with the Program Sponsor on necessary refinements prior to finalizing the
specific site and facility concept to be carried forward into preliminary engineering. This facility
is infended to support the vehicle fleet storage, maintenance, and administrative needs of the
both streetcar projects. The Contractor shall:

1)

2)
3)

4)

5)

Confirm with the Program Sponsor on the programming needs for the facility, including
opening year and horizon year revenue vehicle fleet size, administrative, maintenance,
and operational uses required to serve both streetcar projects;

Review and confirm space allocation requirements for the operations, administration,

maintenance, and vehicle storage functions;

Prepare schematic design documents to illustrate the scale and character of the various

uses, functions and relationships;

Sustainability Design and LEED Certification Coordination:

a) Set up and facilitate a sustainable facility design workshop to include material, site,
systems and operational design opportunities and options to be included in the
preliminary facility design;

b) Develop the LEED Checklist and target points to achieve LEED Silver; and

c) Develop a list of key concept approaches to be carried through Final Design.

Following approval of the schematic designs by the Program Sponsor, develop

preliminary design plans.

6.10.1.4. Navy Annex Design Development

The Confractor shall utilize survey, utility identification, geotechnical studies, and additional
information obtained in the other project tasks to develop the following:

1)

2)

Maintenance facility layouts, addressing the number and size of vehicle servicing and
maintenance bays, vehicle maintenance support areas (such as component shops),
equipment and parts storage, operator/dispatch facilities and administration facilities;

Site layout, addressing streetcar layup and circulation track requirements, parking
requirements, facility security requirements, traction power substation, building

59

182



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

3)

4)
5)

6)

7)

footprint(s), building architecture and orientation and track configurations for accessing

the main line;

Grading, drainage, stormwater management, sanitary sewer and utilities, site fencing or

walls, landscaping, and access drives;

Preliminary exterior site layout track vertical and horizontal alignments;

Preliminary architectural building floor plans, site plans, sections, elevations and details

including:

a) Facility Renderings;

b) Building code analysis identifying code required site coverage and access limits, fire
separations, allowable building sizes, usage separations and vertical/horizontal
circulation limitations;

c) Architectural building site plan locating buildings, hardscapes, softscapes,
egress/access, site signage, amenities, roadways and parking;

d) O&M Facility, Parking Deck and Train Wash Building floor plans depicting all room
overall sizes, configurations, adjacencies, dimensions, egressing, and other space
requirements;

e) Ofther building plans including roof plans, reflected ceiling plans and enlarged floor
plans (toilet, locker, lunch room, and other key operations spaces);

f)  Building elevations including all sides, depicting materials, colors, openings;
g) Building sections both longitudinal and cross sections;
h) Vertical circulation plans, sections, elevations;
i) Key building component schedules including door, window and hardware/security;
i) Primary details for key constructability and cost sensitive items;
k) Finish plans and schedules for floor, wall, and ceiling;
[) Site and building signage and graphics plan;
m) Rendered landscape site plan; and
n) Material Boards with samples of the primary building and interior materials.
Preliminary Structural Design: Investigate and develop preliminary alternative framing
options of different structural frame materials and layouts and meet with the design
team to discuss, coordinate and evaluate. Advance the structural design of the
selected system; develop structural calculations and drawings to describe the structural
frame and foundations including member sizes, typical details and critical sections for all
the critical structural elements of the project:

a) O&M Facility, Parking Deck and Train Wash Building foundation floor plans based on
the results of the geotechnical investigation and report recommendations;

b) Building floor framing and roof framing plans;

c) Building pit and platform plans and details;

d) Sections, details, and schedules;

e) Outline structural specifications; and

f) The purpose and level of completion of the documents shall be as required to
provide clear structural design intent and requirements and to assist the other design
team members in their design development and the cost estimator in developing a
cost model for the project.

Preliminary mechanical, electrical, plumbing, and life safety plans including:

a) Mechanical/Plumbing/Life Safety:

i)  O&M Facility and Train Wash Building mechanical floor plans and enlarged floor
plans with major equipment layout and preliminary single line ductwork layout
(no air terminal devices);

i) Mechanical major equipment schedules;

i) O&M Facility, Parking Deck and Train Wash Building plumbing floor plans and
enlarged toilet room plans with major equipment and fixture layout, and
preliminary sanitary, industrial wastewater, water, natural gas and roof drainage
piping layout;

60

183



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

8)

?)

iv) Plumbing major equipment schedules;
v) Preliminary plumbing riser diagrams;
vi) Building and Parking Deck sprinkler/standpipe main feed floor plans; and
vii) Building and Parking Deck sprinkler/standpipe riser diagrams.
b) Electrical:
i)  O&M Facility, Parking Deck and Train Wash Building lighting floor plans, type of
fixtures to be used in the areas;
i) Building power floor plans (home runs) to major equipment, major electrical
system panels, transformers, and switchgear layout;
i) Building enlarged floor plans of electrical room;
iv) Site power plan with tfransformer and emergency generator locations;
v) Site and building power single line diagrams; and
vi) Building grounding riser diagrams.
Listing of major maintenance industrial equipment including:
a) O&M Facility and Train Wash Building industrial equipment floor plans;
b) Building industrial equipment sections and details; and
c) Building industrial equipment schedules and notes.
Integration of public art and/or aesthetic enhancements and the streetcar brand
identity, if authorized by the Program Sponsor under task 6.21.

6.10.2. Crystal City - Vehicle Storage Facility

6.10.2.1. Crystal City Programming and Schematic Design

Prior fo undertaking the design work, the Contractor shall confirm, in consultation with the
Program Sponsor, the site and concept design for the facility. The Contractor shall:

1)
2)

3)

4)

5)

Confirm with the Program Sponsor on the programming needs for the facility;

Review and confirm space allocation requirements for the operations, administration,

maintenance, and vehicle storage functions;

Prepare schematic design documents to illustrate the scale and character of the various

uses, functions and relationships;

Sustainability Design and LEED Certification Coordination:

a) Set up and facilitate a sustainable facility design workshop to include material, site,
systems and operatfional design opportunities and options to be included in the
preliminary facility design;

b) Develop the LEED Checklist and target points to achieve LEED Silver;

c) Develop a list of key concept approaches to be carried through Final Design; and

Following approval of the schematic designs by the Program Sponsor, develop

preliminary design plans.

6.10.2.2. Crystal City Design Development

The Confractor shall utilize survey, utility identification, geotechnical studies, and additional
information obtained in the other project tasks to develop the following:

1)

2)

3)
4)

Site layout for the approved schematic design, addressing streetcar layup and
circulation frack requirements, parking requirements, facility security requirements,
traction power substation, building footprint(s), building architecture and orientation and
track configurations for accessing the main line;

Grading, drainage, stormwater, sanitary sewer and utilities, site fencing or walls,
landscaping, and access drives;

Preliminary exterior site layout track vertical and horizontal alignments;

Preliminary architectural building floor plans, site plans, sections, elevations and details
including:

a) Facility Renderings;

61

184



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

5)

6)

b) Building code analysis identifying code required site coverage and access limits, fire
separations, allowable building sizes, usage separations and vertical/horizontal
circulation limitations;

c) Architectural building site plan locating buildings, hardscapes, softscapes,
egress/access, site signage, amenities, roadways and parking;

d) Building and Pit/Platform floor plans depicting all room overall sizes, configurations,
adjacencies, dimensions, egressing, and other space requirements;

e) Other building plans including roof plans, reflected ceiling plans and enlarged floor
plans;

f)  Building elevations including all sides, depicting materials, colors, openings;
g) Building sections both longitudinal and cross sections;
h) Key building component schedules including door, window and hardware/security;
i) Primary details for key constructability and cost sensitive items;
i) Finish plans and schedules for floor, wall, and ceiling;
k) Site and building signage and graphics plan;
I) Rendered landscape site plan; and
m) Material Boards with samples of the primary building and interior materials.
Preliminary Structural Design: Investigate and develop preliminary alternative framing
options of different structural frame materials and layouts and meet with the design team
to discuss, coordinate and evaluate. Advance the structural design of the selected
system; develop structural calculations and drawings to describe the structural frame
and foundations including member sizes, typical details and critical sections for all the
critical structural elements of the project:

a) Building and pit/platform foundation floor plans based on the results of the
geotechnical investigation and report recommendations;

b) Building floor framing and roof framing plans;

c) Building pit and platform plans and details;

d) Sections, details, and schedules;

e) Outline structural specifications; and

f) The purpose and level of completion of the documents shall be as required to
provide clear structural design intent and requirements and to assist the other design
team members in their design development and the cost estimator in developing a
cost model for the project.

Preliminary mechanical, electrical, plumbing, and life safety plans including:

a) Mechanical/Plumbing/Life Safety:

i Building and pit/platform mechanical floor plans and enlarged floor plans
with major equipment layout and preliminary single line ductwork layout
(no air terminal devices);

ii. Mechanical major equipment schedules;

iii. Building and pit/platform plumbing floor plans and enlarged toilet room
plans with major equipment and fixture layout, and preliminary sanitary,
industrial wastewater, water, natural gas and roof drainage piping layout;

iv.  Plumbing major equipment schedules;

v.  Preliminary plumbing riser diagrams;

vi.  Building sprinkler/standpipe main feed floor plans; and

Vii. Building sprinkler/standpipe riser diagrams.

b) Electrical:

i Building and pit/platform lighting floor plans, type of fixtures to be used in
the areas;

i. Building and pit/platform power floor plans (home runs) to major
equipment, major electrical system panels, fransformers, and switchgear
layout;

ii.  Building enlarged floor plans of electrical room;

62

185



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

iv.  Site power plan with transformer and emergency generator locations;
v.  Site and building power single line diagrams; and
vi.  Building grounding riser diagrames.
7) Listing of major maintenance industrial equipment including:
a) Building and pit/platform industrial equipment floor plans;
b) Building and pit/platform industrial equipment sections and details; and
c) Building and pit/platform industrial equipment schedules and notes.
8) Integration of public art and/or aesthetic enhancements and the streetcar brand
identity, if authorized by the Program Sponsor under task 6.21.

6.10.3. Temporary Construction Staging/Lay down Parcel

The Contractor shall assess the adequacy of the temporary construction staging/lay down
parcels included in the CP Streetcar AA/EA Study as well as the draft CC Streetcar EA. The
Conftractor shall also identify additional needed construction staging/lay down areas, and
establish the requirements, including the preferred locations and sizes of the parcels. Access to
the parcels, including ingress and egress, shall be included. The Confractor shall present their
findings in report format for review and revise the report to include revisions requested by the
Program Sponsor.

6.10.4. Jefferson Street Transit/ Transfer Center Site

6.10.4.1. Confirmation of Design Concept

The Contractor shall review prior conceptual design work completed for the Jefferson Street
facility (off-street transfer center, kiss-and-ride and park-and-ride facility) and coordinate with
the Program Sponsor and Fairfax County on the specific facility concept to be carried into
preliminary engineering. The facility is infended to support streetcar passengers who are
dropped off by cars or fransfer from Fairfax County buses. The facility will be modified from the
facility documented in the AA/EA and shall include the following elements:
1) On-street bus stops on Jefferson Street; two (2) stops serving Jefferson Street Station (1
northbound Jefferson Street and 1 southbound Jefferson Street) and two (2) stops on
Route 7 serving Skyline Station (one eastbound on Route 7 adjacent to the Skyline
station, one westbound on Route 7 across from the Skyline Station); the bus stops shalll
include concrete aprons, sidewalk connections, signage and other amenities;
2) Extended right furn lane on Jefferson Street (southbound) to accommodate the bus
stops and passenger drop off movements; and
3) Kiss-and-ride facility on private retail property, with minimal improvements (sighage,
covered seafing, enhanced lighting, bike racks and other minor supporting amenities);
a lease agreement is envisioned for the property usage.

6.10.4.2. Programming and Design Development

The Confractor shall utilize survey, utility, geotechnical, and other information obtained in other
tasks and undertake additional data collection and analysis. The specific efforts include:

1) Confirming with the Fairfax County and the Program Sponsor on the programming
needs for the facility, including anticipated bus/streetcar transfer ridership and the
projected number of buses that will operate on Jefferson Street and Route 7; this shall
be based upon the updated Streetcar Operating Plan to be developed by the Program
Sponsor;

2) Reviewing and confirming requirements for the kiss-and-ride facility, including drop off
and circulation, sighage, seating and other amenities;

3) Determining the appropriate locations, designs, space requirements and amenities
(shelters, trash receptacles, benches) for the bus stops based upon the applicable

63

186



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

Fairfox County and VDOT bus stop standards; the effort may involve identifying
requirements to accommodate real time passenger information displays at the stops;

4) Preparing schematic design documents to illustrate the scale and character of the bus
stops, kiss-and ride facility and right turn lane;

5) Following approval of the schematic designs by Fairfax County and the Program
Sponsor, developing preliminary design plans for the bus stops, kiss-and ride facility and
right turn lane to a 30% design level; and

6) Identifying property requirements for each facility.

In undertaking the effort, the Contractor shall address applicable design requirements,
including drainage and storm water management.

6.10.5. Mqgjor retaining walls related to Navy Annex O&M Facility - OPTIONAL

If this optional subtask is authorized, the Confractor shall provide engineering and technical
services for the Navy Annex O&M Facility retaining walls. The Program Sponsor will coordinate
with the Contractor to develop the appropriate scope, budget and schedule for the
environmental effort if the Work is required. The Contractor shall provide the necessary
preliminary engineering services for major retaining walls. Major retaining walls are those
exceeding certain heights applicable for standard retaining walls, such as those defined in
VDOT Road and Bridge Standards, Section 400 — Retaining Wallls, Standard “RW-3" (VDOT RW-3).
Maijor retaining walls include CIP cantilever walls, post-and-panel walls (also know as soldier pile
wall), and propriety wall system such as Mechanically Stabilized Earth (MSE) walls. Required
major retaining walls shall be identified and confirmed through coordination with other
disciplines and through existing structural evaluations (Task 6.1.6).

Deliverables

6.10A — Design Criteria Review;

6.10.1A - Pentagon City program confirmation, schematic design, and facility report;
6.10.1B - Pentagon City AHJ Code Review Report— draft and final;

6.10.1C - Pentagon City Preliminary Design;

6.10.1D - Pentagon City Updated LEED scorecard and Documentation Matrix;
6.10.1E - Navy Annex program confirmation, schematic design, and facility report;
6.10.1F - Navy Annex AHJ Code Review Report- draft and final;

6.10.1G - Navy Annex Preliminary Design;

6.10.TH - Navy Annex Updated LEED scorecard and Documentation Matrix;

6.10.2A — Crystal City program confirmation, schematic design, and facility report;
6.10.2B - Crystal City AHJ Code Review Report— draft and final;

6.10.2C - Crystal City Preliminary Design;

6.10.2D - Crystal City Updated LEED scorecard and Documentation Matrix;

6.10.3A- Assessment Report for Laydown Parcels— draft and final;

6.10.4A - Jefferson Street Transit/Transfer Center confirmation of conceptual design;
6.10.4B - Jefferson Street Transit/Transfer Center preliminary design plans;

6.10.5A — Navy Annex Retaining Wall Preliminary design reports - OPTIONAL;

6.10.5B - Navy Annex Retaining Wall Preliminary design and analysis calculations - OPTIONAL;
and

6.10.5C - Navy Annex Retaining Wall Preliminary plans — OPTIONAL.

64

187



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

6.11. Structural

6.11.1. Evaluation of Impacts

For each streetcar project, the Confractor shall evaluate the impact of the proposed alignment
on existing structures, including bridges, retaining walls, and drainage facilities. The Contractor
shall prepare a summary report for each structure with recommendations for structural
modifications and associated preliminary cost estimates for approval approved by the Program
Sponsor. These structures and associated impacts include:

1) Skyline Complex. Evaluations of retaining walls, elevated structures (decks), and
underground structures pertaining to the two alternative station designs.

2) Bridge over Four Mile Run. The structural evaluation report shall follow the VDOT
inspection format. The report shall include the evaluation of and recommendation for
the existing stone masonry retaining wall adjacent to the western-most existing pier.

3) Columbia Pike under Washington Boulevard. Evaluation of vertical clearance, existing
footings for piers, abutments, and wing walls.

4) 12th Street under Jefferson Davis Highway. Evaluation of vertical clearance, existing
footings for piers, abutments, and wing walls.

5) Crystal Drive under Airport Viaduct. Evaluation of vertical clearance, existing footings for
piers, abutments, and wing walls.

6) Airport Viaduct Ramp parallel to Crystal Drive. Evaluation of vertical clearance, existing
footings for piers, abutments, and wing walls.

7) Joyce Street under Washington Boulevard and [-395. Evaluation of vertical clearances,
existing footings for piers, abutments, and wing walls.

8) Potomac Yard Parking Structures. Evaluation of underground parking structures in
Potomac Yard.

9) Pentagon City and Crystal City Structures. Evaluation of underground parking structures
and other potentially affected structures in Pentagon City and Crystal City.

10) WMATA Facilities. Evaluation of Metrorail running tunnel and stations under and near
South Hayes Street and 18th Street South.

This Work shall be coordinated with the Civil/Roadway and Track Way design tasks. The intent of
this evaluation is to further define the scope of final design work. The Contractor will be provided
structure as-built plans from the Program Sponsor for all structures listed.

6.11.1.1. Lenox Apartments Parking Garage. OPTIONAL

If this optional subtask is authorized, the Contractor shall provide a structural assessment of the
Lenox Apartments parking garage. The Program Sponsor will coordinate with the Contractor to
develop the appropriate scope, budget and schedule if the Work is required. The Contractor will
be provided structure as-built plans from the Program Sponsor. Preliminary Design of Four Mile
Run Bridge.

The Contractor shall analyze and recommend the design of modifications to the Four Mile Run
Bridge to accommodate the streetcar project elements. The Contractor shall verify the
conceptual partial superstructure replacement and rehabilitation as outlined in the AA/EA
Report for further consideration for the preliminary design, considering the applicable design
codes and standards as well as the overall serviceability and maintenance of the proposed
designs. The Confractor shall draft a preliminary design report to include the feasibility of the
conceptual design as well as maximum of two (2) additional alternatives for the partial
superstructure replacement. The recommendations shall address the frack type as an
attachment and support of the OCS. Upon concurrence by the Program Sponsor, the
Conftractor shall develop preliminary design plans for the modification or reconstruction of the

65

188



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

Four Mile Run Bridge, including typical sections, superstructure design, substructure design,
construction sequencing, and construction impacts on Four Mile Run.

The existing stone masonry retaining wall adjacent to the western-most pier shall be inspected
and evaluated as outlined in Task 6.1.6 as a part of existing Four Mile Run Bridge structure
assessment; it is not included in the preliminary design Work for the Four Mile Run Bridge.

6.11.2. Preliminary Design of New Retaining Walls

The Contractor shall verify the feasibility of the concept designs as provided by the Program
Sponsor for Skyline Complex for further consideration in preliminary design.

The Conftractor shall provide the necessary preliminary engineering services for major retaining
walls, including those that may be required along South Jefferson Street and along Route 1 in
Crystal City. Major retaining walls are those exceeding certain heights applicable for standard
retaining walls, such as VDOT RW-3. Major retaining walls include CIP cantilever walls, post-and-
panel walls (also known as soldier pile walls), and propriety wall systems, such as MSE walls.
Required major retaining walls shall be identified and confirmed through coordination with
other disciplines and through existing structural evaluations under Task 6.1.6.

6.11.3. Preliminary Design of Modifications to Other Existing Structures- OPTIONAL

Modifications to the following existing structures are contingent upon the recommendations to
be determined as part of the evaluation reports for existing structures. If this optional subtask is
authorized, the Contractor shall provide additional Preliminary Design of modifications to other
existing structures. The Program Sponsor will coordinate with the Contractor to develop the
appropriate scope, budget and schedule if any of the Work is required. The Program Sponsor
will provide the Contractor with as-built plans for the structures listed in this subtask.

6.11.3.1. 12th Street under U.S. Route 1 Jefferson Davis Highway- OPTIONAL

If required, the modification and preliminary engineering shall include the following existing
structure components:

1) Abutment footings. The preliminary engineering effort includes minor retrofit design of
the abutment footings, noting that it is assumed that the existing foundation will be
adequate to handle the additional projected load imposed by the Streetcar Project.

2) Abutment stems (breastwalls). The preliminary engineering effort includes minor refrofit
design of the abutment breastwalls, noting that it is assumed that the existing structure
will be adequate to handle the additional projected load imposed by the Streetcar
Project.

3) Superstructure. The preliminary engineering effort includes an existing steel
superstructure capacity check to support the new additional superstructure details to
manage a potential sub-standard vertical under-clearance and minor modifications,
such as addition of steel plates, miscellaneous steel members, and/or limited repair.

6.11.3.2. Crystal Drive under Airport Viaduct- OPTIONAL

If required, the modification and preliminary engineering shall include the following existing
stfructure components:

1) Footing(s) for the two, multi-column piers directly adjacent to Crystal Drive. The
preliminary engineering effort includes minor retrofit design of the footings noting that it
is assumed that the existing foundation will be adequate to handle the additional
projected load imposed by the CC Streetcar project.

66

189



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

2) Columns for the two piers. The preliminary engineering effort includes minor retrofit
design of the columns. It is assumed that the existing structure will be adequate to
handle the additional projected load imposed by the CC Streetcar project.

6.11.3.3. Joyce Street under Washington Boulevard and I-395- OPTIONAL

This optional subtask includes nine (?) existing VDOT bridge structures going over Joyce Street. If
required and authorized by the Program Sponsor, the modification and preliminary engineering
shall include the following existing structure components:

1) Footings for adjacent impacted piers and abutments. The preliminary engineering effort
includes minor retrofit design of the footings noting that it is assumed that the existing
foundation will be adequate to handle the additional projected load imposed by the
Streetcar project.

2) Columns for the impacted piers. The preliminary engineering effort includes minor retrofit
design of the columns and piers noting that it is assumed that the existing structure will
be adequate to handle the additional projected load imposed by the Streetcar
project.

3) Superstructure. The preliminary engineering effort includes existing steel superstructure
capacity checks to support the new additional superstructure details to manage a
potential sub-standard vertical under-clearance and minor modifications such as
addition of steel plates, miscellaneous steel members, and/or limited repair.

6.11.3.4. Underground Parking Structures - OPTIONAL

Underground Parking Structures for Lenox Apartments, Pofomac Yard, Pentagon City and
Crystal City - Preliminary engineering includes the analyses and minor modification design of
the parts of the existing underground parking structures identified to be impacted by the
additional load (overburden weight) imposed by the CC Streetcar project. It is assumed that
these existing underground structures are satisfactorily designed for and are in satisfactory
condition to bear the existing overburden dead and live loads.

6.11.3.5. WMATA Metrorail Tunnel and Station - OPTIONAL

For the WMATA Tunnel and Stations under South Hayes Street and 18" Street South, the
Preliminary Engineering includes the analyses and minor modification design of the parts of the
existing underground WMATA tunnel and station structures identified to be impacted by the
additional load (overburden weight) imposed by the CP Streetcar project. It assumed that
these existing underground structures are designed and are in satisfactory condition to bear the
existing overburden dead and live loads.

Deliverables
6.11.1A - Skyline Complex Evaluation Report — draft and final;
6.11.1B - Bridge over Four Mile Run Evaluation Report — draft and final;

6.11.1C - Columbia Pike under Washington Boulevard Evaluation Report — draft and final;
6.11.1D - 12th Street under Jefferson Davis Highway Evaluation Report — draft and final;
6.11.1E - Crystal Drive under Airport Viaduct Evaluation Report — draft and final;

6.11.1F - Airport Viaduct Ramp parallel to Crystal Drive Evaluation Report — draft and final;
6.11.1G - Joyce Street under Washington Boulevard and I-395 Evaluation Report — draft and final;
6.11.1H - Potomac Yard Parking Structures Evaluation Report — draft and final;

6.11.11 - Pentagon City and Crystal City Structures Evaluation Report — draft and final;
6.11.1J - WMATA Facilities Evaluation Report — draft and final;

6.11.1K - Lenox Apartments Parking Garage Evaluation Report — draft and final - OPTIONAL;
6.11.2A -Four Mile Run Bridge Preliminary Design Report — draft and final;

6.11.2B - Four Mile Run Bridge Preliminary Design and Analysis Calculations;

67

190



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

6.11.2C - Four Mile Run Bridge Preliminary Plans;

6.11.3A - South Jefferson Street Retaining Walls Preliminary Design Report — draft and final;
6.11.3B - South Jefferson Street Retaining Walls Preliminary Design and Analysis Calculations;
6.11.3C - South Jefferson Street Retaining Walls Preliminary plans;

6.11.3D - Route 1 Retaining Walls Preliminary Design Report — draft and final;

6.11.3E - Route 1 Retaining Walls Preliminary Design and Analysis Calculations;

6.11.3F - Route 1 Retaining Walls Preliminary plans;

6.11.4A - 12t Street under U.S. Route 1 Preliminary plans - OPTIONAL;

6.11.4B - Crystal Drive under Airport Viaduct Preliminary plans - OPTIONAL;

6.11.4C - Joyce Street under Washington Boulevard and [-395 Preliminary plans - OPTIONAL;
6.11.4D - Underground Parking Structures Preliminary plans - OPTIONAL; and

6.11.4E - WMATA Tunnel and Stations Preliminary plans - OPTIONAL.

6.12. Property Identification Plans

6.12.1. Preparation of Plans

Using the property mosaic base developed under Task 6.1.3 and field verified, the Contractor
shall prepare Property Identification Plans for both streetcar corridors, including traction power
substation locations, O & M facilities, vehicle storage facilities, and laydown areas.

6.12.1.1. Deed Information

The Contractor shall obtain deed information for affected parcels and shall depict identified
property ownership and easements on the Property Identification Plans.

6.12.1.2. Acquisition Limits

The Contractor shall indicate limits of acquisition on these plans for parcels or portions of parcels
that will need to be acquired in fee or that will require permanent or temporary easements for
construction, transit operations, public access, or utility or drainage easements.

6.12.1.3. ROW Requirements

The plans shall address right-of-way requirements for the projects and associated facilities. The
Property Identification Plans shall meet Program Sponsor, Fairfax County, and the latest VDOT
Right-of-Way Manual of Instructions and requirements and shall be sealed by a land surveyor
licensed in the Commonwealth of Virginia.

6.12.2. Impact Matrix

The Contractor shall prepare a Summary Impact Matrix that documents the identified right-of-
way acquisition needs, including parcel identification number, parcel description, area to be
acquired, general purpose of the acquisition, and the nature of the interest to be acquired (e.g.,
fee acquisition, tfemporary construction easement, etc.). The Contractor shall use available
property value information to determine an order of magnitude cost for each acquisition.

6.12.3. Final Plats

The preparation of plats for acquisition shall conform to the VDOT Right of Way Manual of
Instructions and requirements and shall be sealed by a land surveyor licensed in the
Commonwealth of Virginia.

68

191



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

Although not exhaustive, listed below are potential right-of-way acquisitions that could require
the preparation of plats under this task; additional acquisitions may be required per the
Confractor’s design development and analysis efforts such as the sight distance evaluation.

Columbia Pike Streetcar

1) Five traction power substations, locations to be determined;

2) Utility easements for fraction power feeds between the traction power substations and
the streetcar running alignment;

3) Skyline station site;

4) Widening of Jefferson Sireet between the retail entrance and Route 7 in Bailey's
Crossroads;

5) Temporary or permanent easements for retaining wall construction associated with South
Jefferson Street re-grading;

6) Corner clip at intersection of South Jefferson Street and Columbia Pike;

7) Corner clip at intersection of South Joyce Street and Columbia Pike;

8) Corner clip at intersection of South Joyce Street and Army-Navy Drive;

9) Corner clip at intersection of South Hayes Street and Army-Navy Drive;

10) Corner clip at intersection of South Hayes Street and 12t Street South; and

11) Construction easements for streetcar elements over WMATA's Metrorail tunnel in
Pentagon City.

Crystal City Streetcar

1) Five traction power substations, locations to be determined;

2) Utility easements for traction power feeds between the fraction power substations and
the streetcar running alignment;

3) Corner clip at intersection of 12th Street South and South Clark Street;

4) Corner clip at intersection of 18th Street South and Crystal Drive;

5) Corner clip at intersection of 12t Street South and Crystal Drive;

6) Construction easements for streetcar elements over WMATA's Metrorail funnel in Crystal
City; and

7) Realignment of 15t Street ramps along Jefferson Davis Highway.

6.12.3.1. Preliminary Plats

Once the Property Identifications are approved by the Program Sponsor at the conclusion of
Preliminary Engineering design development, the Contractor shall prepare preliminary plats (up
to 40) for acquisition. The Program Sponsor will coordinate with the Contractor to develop the
appropriate scope, budget and schedule. The Contractor shall submit the preliminary plats to
the Program Sponsor, Fairfax County, or VDOT (as appropriate) for review and approval.

6.12.3.2. Title Reports and Final Plats

The Contractor shall obtain title reports for all of the parcels platted under task 6.12.3.1 and shall
adjust the existing property information on the plats to reflect information from the title reports.
The Contractor shall submit the final plats to the Program Sponsor for approval.

Deliverables:

6.12.1A - Property Identification Plans;

6.12.2A - Summary Impact Matrix - Draft and Final;

6.12.3.1A - Preliminary plats for parcels identified for acquisition; and
6.12.3.2A - Title Reports and Final Plats.

69

192



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

6.13. NOT USED

6.14. Vehicle Design Specifications

The primary focus of this effort is fo develop the vehicle design specifications. This shall be
achieved by establishing the overall design and operational requirements of the vehicle
required fo operate successfully on the infended alignment. Whenever possible, the Program
Sponsor would like to minimize customization and maximize Commercial Off-The-Shelf (COTS)
available items.

The Program Sponsor will develop and provide to the Contractor the preliminary overall
technical requirements for the vehicle. The Program Sponsor will develop the draft commercial
terms for the vehicle procurement. The Contractor shall coordinate with the Program Sponsor on
refinement of the commercial terms and the integration with the technical specifications. The
Program Sponsor will provide direction relating to the procurement process for the vehicles to
enable the Contractor to develop the technical specifications in line with this direction.

The Program Sponsor will develop the draft operating and maintenance plan (O&M) which will
assist in the development of the technical requirements for the vehicle. The Contractor shall
assist the Program Sponsor in revising the O&M Plan as the technical specifications are
developed and shall incorporate the relevant information into the technical specifications.

6.14.1. Development of Vehicle Technical Specifications

Following approval of the design requirements by the Program Sponsor, the Contractor shall
develop the draft vehicle technical specifications. Working with the technical requirements
developed by the Program Sponsor, the Contractor shall propose the format for the
specifications for approval by the Program Sponsor. The Confractor shall develop performance-
based vehicle technical specifications to focus on:

1) Delivering a vehicle that achieves the overall technical requirements; and
2) Leveraging existing vehicle designs within the marketplace to maximize participation in
the procurement process.

The specification format shall be based upon accepted industry practice and formats for
streetcar technical specifications in comparable procurements. The following list provides
chapter titles that shall be included within the vehicle technical specifications; the order of the
chapters is subject to change dependent upon coordination with the Program Sponsor:

1) Introduction- incorporates Definitions and Abbreviations (consistent with commercial
terms), standards referenced in the document, and a Description of Work for the
contract;

2) Design and Performance Criteria- provides a comprehensive description of the
vehicle performance requirements that all proposers will be obligated to meet. The
requirements will reflect the Program Sponsor’'s operational needs and applicable
industry standards and practices, while allowing proposers to offer a vehicle based
on off-the-shelf designs, minimizing cost and risk for both parties;

3) Carbody;
4) Coupler;
5) Cab;

6) Doors;

7) HVAC;

70

193



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

8) Lighting;

9) Electrical;

10) Propulsion;

11) Trucks;

12) Braking;

13) Communications;

14) Interior;

15) Vehicle Trainline and Local Signal Architecture;
16) Monitoring and Diagnostics;

17) Software;

18) Materials and Workmanship;

19) Testing;

20) Program Management and Quality Assurance;
21) System Support; and

22) Reliability, Availability, Maintainability and Safety.

The technical specifications shall identify the Program Sponsor's operating conditions and
service plan, comprehensively identify performance requirements based on these conditions,
and clearly explain the criteria necessary to establish compliance with those requirements.
Each section shall include a Contract Deliverable Requirements List (CDRL), specifically
identifying the submittals necessary to demonstrate compliance.

The Confractor shall prepare draft vehicle specifications as well as final vehicle specifications
that incorporate the revisions and additions approved by the Program Sponsor.

The Conftractor shall work closely with the PMC and the Program Sponsor to align the technical
and commercial aspects of the vehicle Request for Proposals (RFP). This is to align items such as
milestone payments with acceptance of technical CDRLs and the vehicle production schedule.

6.14.2. Cost Estimates

The Contractor shall prepare draft preliminary cost estimates for the vehicles using information
from the Program Sponsor and PMC regarding the estimated timing and size of the vehicle order
and required commercial provisions, including Buy America requirements. The cost estimates
shall be developed for each project: CP Streetcar and CC Streetcar, and shall be presented in
FTA SCC format. The Confractor shall finalize the cost estimates following Program Sponsor
review.

6.14.3. Technical Specification Industry Review- OPTIONAL

If this optional subtask is authorized, the Contractor shall provide engineering and fechnical
support documentation and assistance with the industry review of the technical specifications.
The Program Sponsor will coordinate with the Confractor to develop the appropriate scope,
budget, and schedule if the Work is required. The effort shall involve the Contractor preparing
cover materials along with technical questions for the carbuilders, assisting in conducting the
technical element of the one-on-one meetings with the respondents, and documenting
questions, answers, and how carbuilder input was reflected in the revised technical
specifications

71

194



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

6.14.4. Support for County-Led Vehicle Procurement- Standard Project Delivery- OPTIONAL

In the event that the Project Sponsor and Fairfax County decide to issue a procurement for
streetcar vehicles using a conventional vehicle procurement approach, the Program Sponsor
may negoftiate with the Contractor for assistance with the procurement effort. If this optional
subtask is authorized, the Confractor shall provide support for a County-led vehicle
procurement using a conventional vehicle procurement approach (e.g. not part of an
alternate project delivery approach such as Design-Build-Operate- Maintain (DBOM)). The
assistance shall include technical advisory and support services. The effort may include
attendance at meetings with the Program Sponsor, PMC, and other entities to discuss
requirements and review draft specifications, preparation of draft responses to potential
offerors’ questions, and reviewing the technical elements in offerors’ proposals. The Program
Sponsor will coordinate with the Contractor to develop the appropriate scope, deliverables,
budget, and schedule if the Work is required.

Deliverables

6.14.1A - Vehicle technical specifications — draft and final;

6.14.2A - Vehicle preliminary capital cost estimates for each project - draft and final;
6.14.3A — Industry Review Summary Report - OPTIONAL;

6.14.3B - Updated Technical Specifications — OPTIONAL; and

6.14.4A — Technical support for procurement — OPTIONAL.

6.15. Basis of Design Report

This report documents the basis of design that went into the development of preliminary
engineering designs. This report is infended to be a complete compendium of the assumptions,
decisions, and information that form the basis for the preliminary engineering and design. The
Conftractor shall compile written results of the preliminary engineering tasks into a Basis of Design
summary report that details key findings for each of the design task areas for each streetcar
project for the following:

1) CP Streetcar;

2) CC Streetcar;

3) Four Mile Run Bridge Modifications;

4) Pentagon City - O&M Facility;

5) Navy Annex - O&M Facility & Vehicle Storage;
6) Cirystal City - Vehicle Storage;

7) CP Streetcar Stations;

8) CP Streetcar Systems;

9) CC Streetcar Stations; and

10) CC Streetcar Systems.

The Contractor shall submit the report to the Program Sponsor and finalize the report based
upon Program Sponsor direction.

Deliverables
6.15A - Basis of Design Report - draft and final.

6.16. Constructability Review and Value Engineering

6.16.1. Constructability Review

The Contractor shall participate in a Constructability Review workshop with the Program Sponsor,
Fairfax County staff, and the PMC for each project. The purpose of the constructability review is

72

195



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

to evaluate the design with the goals of streamlining the bidding process, minimizing change
during construction, improving contractor productivity, enhancing quality, and promoting
construction safety. The Confractor shall provide design information developed as part of Task
6.0 in support of this workshop for:

1) CP Pike Streetcar;

2) CC Streetcar;

3) Pentagon City O&M Facility;

4) Navy Annex O&M Facility & Vehicle Storage;
5) Crystal City - Vehicle Storage Yard;

6) CP Streetcar Stations;

7) CC Streetcar Stations;

8) CP Streetcar Systems;

9) CC Streetcar Systems; and

10) Four Mile Run Bridge Modification.

6.16.2. Value Engineering

The Program Sponsor will perform a Value Engineering review during the Preliminary Engineering
phase of the projects. The Contractor shall provide information developed as part of the design
Work to the value engineering team in advance of the workshop. The Contractor shall make a
presentation at the start of the value engineering workshop to inform the value engineering
team about the scope of the project, the current status of the design work, and to answer
questions from the team before they engage in the value engineering exercise. The Contractor
shall not be an on-going part of the value engineering tfeam workshop or effort apart from the
initial presentation and review of the team’s conclusions. Changes to the design and plans
resulting from a Value Engineering session are not included in the Work.

Deliverables

6.16A — Participation in Constructability Review workshop;
6.16B — Previously Developed Designs and Information; and
6.16C — Participation in Value Engineering review workshop.

6.17. Safety and Security Compliance

The Contractor shall integrate safety and security into each phase of the projects’
development process fo comply with FTA Safety and Security Management Program (SSMP)
requirements as well as Department of Homeland Security requirements. The Contractor shall
review the safety and security requirements for incorporation into the preliminary design
as identified in the Design Criteria and FTA required project plans and other documentation,
including safety and security checklists received from the PMC. The Contractor shall work with
the Program Sponsor, PMC project safety and security committees, and oversight agencies to
ensure that all requirements are satisfactorily addressed in each design submission. The
Confractor shall participate in up to two (2) meetings with safety and security committees and
oversight agencies at the direction of the Program Sponsor. In addition to participation in these
meetings, the Contractor shall communicate with the committees and Program Sponsor and
PMC by telephone or email, as may be necessary, for required clarification or to address other
safety and security related design issues.

The Contractor shall work closely with the Program Sponsor and PMC to complete the safety
and security checklist, developed by the PMC, to document that the Contractor’s preliminary

engineering design submission addresses all identified applicable project safety and security
requirements.

73

196



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

Deliverables

6.17A - Parficipation in safety and security meetings; and

6.17B - Completed Preliminary Engineering Safety and Security checklists.
6.18. Construction Cost Estimates

6.18.1. Cost Estimate and Methodology Report

6.18.1.1. Cost Estimate Methodology Report

The Conftractor shall prepare and submit a cost estimating methodology report to the Program
Sponsor prior to the initiation of the estimating effort. The methodology report shall provide the
basis for the preparation of construction cost estimates for the elements included in Tasks 6.6
through 6.11. The methodology shall include quantity take-offs, development of unit costs, and
extension of costs. The cost estimates shall be developed for each streetcar project and shall
be presented in FTA SCC format, following the WBS.

The preliminary engineering design phase cost estimate shall be a mix of historical unit price
and crew price methods based on the design detail of particular elements. The ratfio of
historical unit price to crew price shall range from 50/50 to 30/70 respectively.

Methods of estimating unit prices:

1) Historical Bid Price Method as a basis for establishing unit prices for a proposed project,
based on past unit price bids for similar Work adjusted for time and project location
using a recognized construction cost index.

2) Time and Material Method, also known as Crew Price Method, of development for unit
prices based on nationally recognized productivity, local labor and equipment rates
from a similar or same database; and material or subcontract costs from the same data
base or as obtained by the estimating team for the project.

These methods may be used either individually or in combinatfion. For the preliminary
engineering estimates, the Time and Material or Crew Price Method has begun fo replace
historical bid prices for those items that can be quantified based on actual preliminary designs
or appropriate assumptions which can significantly contribute to the project’s total cost. In
some cases, neither the Historical Bid Price Method nor the Time and Material Method
accurately portray the cost, in which case a specialized cost method shall be utilized.

The Program Sponsor will provide to the Confractor the results of the risk workshop for use in
establishing the contingency that the Contractor shall include in the PE cost estimates. The
Confractor shall review and validate assignments of allocated and unallocated contingency
and shall establish contingency per SCC line item (i.e. 10.10 Track: Embedded). The Contractor
shall prepare costs in base year and year of expenditure based on completing the SCC
worksheet tabs for inflation and schedule with associated cost loading for the project duration.

The Contractor shall perform a cost confidence analysis to evaluate the effects of uncertainties
in the cost estimate basis. The cost confidence analysis outlines the foreseeable project cost
risks and provides a set of actions to be taken to both prevent the risk from occurring and
reduce the impact of the risk should it eventuate. More specifically, the assessment includes:

1) Alist of the foreseeable cost risks during the project;
2) Arating of the likelihood of each cost risk's occurring;

3) Arating of the impact on the project should each cost risk actually occur;
4) A priority rating of the overallimportance of each cost risk;

74

197



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

5) A set of preventative actions to reduce the likelihood of the cost risk's occurring;
6) A set of contingent actions to reduce the impact should the cost risk eventuate; and
7) A process for managing cost risks through the project.

The Contractor shall prepare a draft cost estimate methodology report and finalize the report
to include the revisions requested by the Program Sponsor.

6.18.1.2. Construction Cost Estimates

The Contractor shall prepare construction cost estimates for the elements described in Tasks 6.6
through 6.11 using the methodology established in Task 6.18.1.1. The Confractor shall update
the cost estimates following Program Sponsor review.

The Preliminary Engineering Design Phase cost estimate shall include detailed cost estimating of
the Work for items such as demolition of existing structures and roads, stormwater drainage,
refined structural items (bridges and retaining walls), utility relocations, waterline relocations,
sewer line relocations, systems integration, grading and drainage for stations, utilities for stations,
electrical/mechanical, and fire protection. The cost estimates shall include the cost of the
general and special provisions of the construction contract.

Deliverables

6.18A - Cost Estimate Methodology Report - draft and final;
6.18B — Cost Confidence Analysis — draft and final; and
6.18C - Cost Estimates —draft and final.

6.19. Outline Specifications

The Contractor shall prepare Outline Specifications for the related elements described in Tasks
6.6 through 6.11. The Outline Specifications shall include general description of what the
specification covers, a listing of the standards cited in section, and a list of other sections
expected to be in the specification. The format for the specifications shall be submitted to the
Program Sponsors for approval prior to their development. The Outline Specifications are to
cover items not covered under current Arlington County and VDOT standard specifications, as
well as list those standard Arlington County and VDOT specifications used by the streetcar
projects. The Contractor shall prepare Outline Specifications for review and comment by
Program Sponsor and shall incorporate revisions. Outline Specification submittals shall include
second and third interim plan submittals and the final submittal for the following:

1) CP Streetcar;

2) CC Streetcar;

3) CP Streetcar Stations;

4) CC Streetcar Stations;

5) CP Streetcar Systems;

6) CC Streetcar Systems;

7) Four Mile Run Bridge Modification; and

8) Navy Annex O&M Facility & Vehicle Storage and Pentagon City O&M Facility and

Crystal City Vehicle Storage Facility.

Deliverables
6.19A- Draft Outline Specifications; and
6.19B- Final Outline Specifications.

75

198



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

6.20. Construction Permit Evaluation

The Contractor shall prepare a list of construction related permits required for project facilities
and infrastructure for each streetcar project and provide a recommended approach to obtain
each permit based on the permitting agency’s standard of practice. The Confractor shall
document this evaluation in a draft memorandum and finalize the memorandum to reflect
revisions requested by the Program Sponsor.

Deliverables
6.20A — Construction Permit Memorandum - draft and final.

6.21. Public Art Integration- OPTIONAL

If this optional subtask is authorized, the Contractor shall coordinate with an artist that will be
retained by the Program Sponsor to integrate public art and/or aesthetic enhancements into
the design of vehicles and facilities. The Program Sponsor will coordinate with the Contractor to
develop the appropriate scope, budget, and schedule if the Work is required. The Contractor
shall lead the integration of the public art into the project design. The effort shall involve
attendance at meetings with Program Sponsor, Fairffax County, and the artist to discuss
potential freatments or enhancements, analysis of the implications of the potential freatments,
including cost, durability, maintenance, and security considerations, and development of
recommendations on the preferred aesthetic enhancements and their integration into project
design.

Deliverables

6.21A - Meeting Attendance — OPTIONAL;

6.21B - Analysis of potential treatments — draft and final- OPTIONAL;

6.21C - Aesthetic Enhancements Recommendations — draft and final - OPTIONAL; and

6.21D - Incorporation of design requirements for aesthetic enhancements into the Preliminary
Engineering plans and specifications — OPTIONAL.

6.22. Design Collateral Materials - OPTIONAL

If this optional subtask is authorized, the Contractor shall develop design collateral materials to
illustrate the design of specific project elements. The Program Sponsor will coordinate with the
Contractor to develop the appropriate scope, budget, and schedule if the Work is required.
The purpose of the materials is to convey to members of the public, stakeholders, and review
agencies that infrastructure elements being developed for the corridors function as an
infegrated system of quality and confinuity including facilities, lighting, alignments, overhead
wires, statfions, vehicle design, landscape, streetscape, and integration of public art and
aesthetic treatments.

Deliverables
6.22A- lllustrative plans, sections and perspectives- OPTIONAL.

Task 7.0 Support for Design-Build (DB), Design-Build-Operate-Maintain (DBOM) or
Public-Private Partnership (P3) Solicitation - OPTIONAL

If the Program Sponsor, in conjunction with Fairfax County, determines that one or both
streetcar projects will be implemented through a Design-Build (DB), Design-Build-Operate-
Maintain (DBOM), or Public-Private-Partnership (P3) contracting arrangement, one or more
subtasks in this task may be authorized. If this optional subtask is authorized, the Contractor shall
provide support for a County-led procurement using an alternative project delivery method.
The Program Sponsor will coordinate with the Contractor to develop the appropriate scope,
budget, and schedule if the Work is required. No Work shall be performed by the Contractor on

76

199



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

this fask unless a written Notice to Proceed is issued by the Project Sponsor for the specific
services.

7.1. Performance-Based Technical Provisions

7.1.1. Infrastructure and Facilities

The Confractor shall prepare engineering performance-based technical provisions for the
streetcar infrastructure and facilities. The provisions shall focus on the design and construction
elements of the project and will be used by the Project Sponsor to develop the contractual
technical requirements for the DB, DBOM, or P3 solicitation.

7.1.0.1. Performance Based Technical Provisions - Infrastructure

The Contractor shall expand the Outline Specifications prepared as part of Subtask 6.19 to
develop performance-based technical provisions. The provisions shall describe the project and
the associated improvements, the quality of the assets and services to be delivered along with
the procedures to be followed by the DB or DBOM Contractor or the P3 concessionaire in the
project design and construction, including the environmental, utilities, geotechnical, and
permitting requirements. The technical provisions shall be presented as performance
requirements and shall not specify the means and methods for the DB or DBOM Contractor or
P3 concessionaire. The specific format for the technical provisions will be confirmed by the
Program Sponsor.

7.1.1.2. Performance Based Technical Provisions - Facilities

The O & M facilities to be incorporated in the technical provisions shall consist of one of the
following: (1) the Navy Annex O & M facility and vehicle storage yard or (2) the Pentagon City
O & M facility and vehicle storage yard and the Crystal City vehicle storage facility. The specific
facility will be confirmed by the Project Sponsor in advance of the Work effort.

7.1.1.3. Technical Provision Update

The Confractor shall update the draft technical provisions and shall modify the provisions to
include revisions and additions requested by the Program Sponsor. The effort shall involve the
Confractor attending meetings with the Program Sponsor, PMC, and other entities to discuss the
scope and format for the technical provisions as well as review the draft technical provisions
document.

7.1.2.  Vehicles

The Contractor shall prepare draft and final engineering performance-based technical
provisions for the vehicles for the specific project delivery method confirmed by the Program
Sponsor (DB, DBOM, or P3). The Contractor shall modify the vehicle technical specifications
prepared as part of Task 6.14 to develop comprehensive performance-based technical
provisions for the vehicle element. The technical provisions shall define the precise scope,
technical parameters, and quality of the vehicle assets and services to be delivered. The
technical provisions shall be presented as performance requirements and not specify the
means and methods for the DB or DBOM Contractor or P3 concessionaire. The specific format
for the technical provisions will be provided by the Program Sponsor. The full vehicle technical
specifications shall be available to be provided as a reference document for the RFP package.

77

200



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

7.2. Reference Design Package

7.2.1. Infrastructure and Facilities

The Contractor shall develop the reference design package for the DB, DBOM, or P3
procurement. The purpose of the reference design package is to define the main elements of
the projects in sufficient detail to enable prospective offerors for the DB, DBOM, or P3 contract
to thoroughly understand the projects, the completed design work, as well as the mandatory
design and construction requirements. The elements to be included in the reference design
package shall include infrastructure and facilities. The specific format for the design package
will be provided to the Confractor by the Program Sponsor prior to the preliminary design
package submittal.

7.2.1.1. Reference Design Package Development

The Contractor shall utilize the preliminary engineering plans developed as part of task 6.0 and
coordinate with Program Sponsor to develop the draft reference design package. The
reference design package will clarify the mandatory elements as well as the elements that will
be the responsibility for the DB, DBOM, or P3 Confractor to confirm. The specific format for the
reference design package will be provided by the Program Sponsor.

7.2.1.2. Reference Design Package Refinement

The Contractor shall modify the reference design package to include up to two (2) revisions
and additions requested by the Program Sponsor. The effort shall involve the Contractor
attending meetings with the Program Sponsor, PMC, and other entities to discuss the scope and
format for the project reference design package, as well as review of the draft reference
design package.

Deliverables

7.1.1A - Technical Performance-Based Provisions for infrastructure — draft and final
7.1.1B - Technical Performance-Based Provisions for facilities — draft and final
7.1.2A - Technical Performance-Based Provisions for vehicles — draft and final
7.2.1A - Reference Design Package for Infrastructure — draft and final; and

7.2.1B - Reference Design Package for Facilities — draft and final.

78

201



Arlington County Streetcar Program EDC Phase | Scope of Work

ATTACHMENT 2
Survey Effort for Streetcar Preliminary Engineering

Project Areas Control Boundary |Topographic Survey and Base Utilities
Survey Survey Mapping
Task 6.1.2 | Task 6.1.3 Task 6.1.4 Task 6.1.5
Columbia Pike
Route 7 (Leesburg Pike) Yes Yes Yes Yes

for 600 feet west of
Jefferson Street to 600
feet east of Jefferson
Street
Jefferson Street from Yes Yes Yes Yes
Leesburg Pike to
Columbia Pike

Columbia Pike from 100 Yes Yes Program Sponsor will provide Yes
feet west of Jefferson St the EDC with Note; an
to northern edge of | Topographic survey from 2009 [optional task
395 on South Joyce St, and a survey of the Navy in tfask 6.1.4
including the Navy Annex O&M Facility site from is for an
Annex O&M facility site 2013. updated

Note: At the completion of | utility survey
construction for the Columbia |in Columbia

Pike Multimodal project the Pike
topographic survey and base [segments A-l
map may be updated for the | following
Columbia Pike segments (A-l) | completion

as defined in the optional of the CP
tasks listed as part of task 6.1.4 | Multimodal
project
construction.

South Joyce Street from Yes Yes Yes Yes
the northern edge of I-

395 to 100 feet south of

Army-Navy Drive
Army-Navy Drive from Yes Yes Yes Yes
100 feet west of South
Joyce Streef to 12th
Street South

South Hayes Street from Yes Yes Yes Yes
Army-Navy Drive to 100
feet south of 12t Street
South

12t Street South from Yes Yes Yes Yes

South Hayes St to
eastern edge of South
Fern Street

12th Street South from Yes Yes Optional task listed as part of Yes
eastern edge of South task 6.1.4

Fern Street to western

edge of South Eads
Street
79

202



Arlington County Streetcar Program

EDC Phase | Scope of Work

Project Areas Control Boundary |Topographic Survey and Base Utilities
Survey Survey Mapping
12th Street South from Yes Yes Yes Yes
western edge of South
Eads Street to western
edge of Route 1
Pentagon City LPA Program Program | Program Sponsor will provide Program
O&M Facility and South |Sponsor will | Sponsor the EDC with a survey Sponsor will
Eads Street provide the will provide completed in 2013 provide the
EDC with a | the EDC EDC with a
survey with a survey
completed survey completed
in2013 completed in 2013
in 2013
Crystal City
12th Street South from Yes Yes Yes Yes
western edge of Route
1 to Crystal Drive
Crystal Drive from 12t Yes Yes Yes Yes
Street South to southern Note: At the completion of Notfe: an
edge of 33d Street construction of the CCPY